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PROSPECTUS

New Issue October 23, 2013

WEDONA CAPITAL INC.

to be renamed
ISIS Lab Corporation

in connection with the acquisition of ISIS Lab Inc.

Minimum Offer:  13,333,333 Units / $4,000,000 (the “Minimum Offering”)
Maximum Offer: 20,000,000 Units / $6,000,000 (the “Maximum Offering”)

Price: $0.30 per Unit

Wedona Capital Inc. (the “Company” or “Wedona”), a capital pool company pursuant to Policy 2.4 (the “CPC
Policy”) of the TSX Venture Exchange (the “Exchange”), hereby offers for sale to the public in the Provinces of
Alberta, British Columbia, Ontario, and Saskatchewan (the “Offering Jurisdictions”) a minimum of 13,333,333 units
of the Company (the “Units”) to a maximum of 20,000,000 Units (the “Offering”) at a price of $0.30 per Unit (the
“Offering Price”). Each Unit is  comprised of one common share of the Company (a “Common Share”) and one-half
of one common share purchase warrant (each whole warrant a “Warrant”), each Warrant being exercisable into one
Common Share at an exercise price of $0.45 for a period of 24 months from the Closing Date. The Warrants will be
created and issued pursuant to the terms of a warrant indenture, to be dated as of the closing of the Offering, between
the Company and Computershare Trust Company of Canada (the “Warrant Agent”). The Units are being offered by
Mackie Research Capital Corporation (the “Agent”) pursuant to an agency agreement (the “Agency Agreement”)
dated as of October 23, 2013 among the Agent, the Company, and ISIS Lab Inc. (“ISIS”). See “Description of
Securities” and “Plan of Distribution”.

This Prospectus qualifies the distribution of (i) the Common Shares which form part of the Units to be issued
pursuant to the Offering, (ii) the Warrants which form part of the Units to be issued pursuant to the Offering, (iii) the
Agent’s Options (including the Agent’s Options granted on exercise of the Over-Allotment Option, if any) described
below, and (iv) the additional Common Shares and Warrants issuable upon the exercise, if any, by the Agent of
the Over-Allotment Option described below.

The closing of the Offering is conditional upon the closing of the Qualifying Transaction described below.
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Price: $0.30 per Unit

Price to Public(1) Agent’s Commission(2)(4) Net Proceeds to the Company (3)(4)

Per Unit $0.30 $0.024 $0.276

Total Minimum Offering $4,000,000 $320,000 $3,680,000

Total Maximum Offering $6,000,000 $480,000 $5,520,000

Notes:
(1) The  Offering  Price  of  $0.30 per  Unit was  determined  based  upon  arm’s  length negotiations  between  the Company,

ISIS and the Agent. See “Plan of Distribution”.
(2) Pursuant to the Agency Agreement and subject to certain Closing conditions, the Company has agreed to pay the Agent a cash

commission equal to 8.0% of the gross proceeds of the Offering, subject to the provision that the Agent’s commission will be
paid at a reduced rate of 2% with respect to investment up to $500,000 from subscribers listed on a president’s list (the
“President’s List”) to be provided to the Agent by ISIS, and options (the “Agent’s Options”) entitling the Agent to purchase
such number of Units (the “Agent’s Units”) that is equal to 8.0% (or 2% with respect to investment up to $500,000 from
subscribers listed the President’s List) of the number of Units sold under the Offering. The Agent’s Options will be exercisable
for a period of 24 months from the Closing Date at a price per Agent’s Unit equal to the Offering Price. The Company has also
granted the Agent an over-allotment option as more particularly described below. The Company will also pay to the Agent a
fee of $30,000 (of which half has been paid) and will issue 33,334 Common Shares to the Agent. Subject to Closing, the
Company will also pay the Agent’s legal fees and other reasonable expenses in connection with the Offering. See “Use of
Proceeds” and “Plan of Distribution”.

(3) After deducting the Agent’s Commission but before deducting the expenses of the Offering, estimated to be $250,000
(including the costs of the Qualifying Transaction) consisting mainly of legal fees, audit fees, and listing fees.

(4) These numbers assume that there are no purchasers identified on the President’s List and, consequently, that the full
commission of 8.0% of the gross proceeds of the Offering is paid to the Agent.

The Company has also granted the Agent an option, exercisable in whole or in part at any time and from time to time
for a period of 30 days following the Closing of the Offering, to offer for sale up to 3,000,000 additional Units, solely
to cover over-allotments, if any, and for market stabilization purposes (the “Over-Allotment Option”). A purchaser
who acquires securities forming part of the over-allotment position acquires those securities under this Prospectus,
regardless of whether such over-allocation position is ultimately filled through the exercise of the Over-Allotment
Option or through secondary market purchases. If the Over-Allotment Option is exercised in full, the total offering
price to the public, the Agent’s commission and the net proceeds to the Company (after deducting the Agent’s
Commission but before deducting the expenses of the Offering estimated to be $250,000) will be $6,900,000,
$552,000 and $6,348,000, respectively, in the case of the Maximum Offering. See “Plan of Distribution”.

The following table sets forth the number of securities issuable upon exercise of the Over-Allotment Option and the
number of securities issuable to the Agent assuming completion of the Maximum Offering and exercise of the Over-
Allotment Option:

Agents Position Maximum Number of
Securities Available Exercise Period Exercise Price

Units issuable if Over-
Allotment Option is fully
exercised

3,000,000

Over-Allotment Option is
exercisable until 30 days

following the Closing of the
Offering

$0.30

Agent’s Units issuable to the
Agent if Agent’s Options are
fully exercised (including
Agent's Options issued to
Agent if Over-Allotment
Option is fully exercised)

1,840,000

Agent's Options are
exercisable for a period of 24

months from the date of
issuance

$0.30

Pursuant to an amalgamation agreement entered into on June 28, 2013 (as amended on August 31, 2013) between the
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Company, Wedona Newco (as hereafter defined) and ISIS, the Company and ISIS have agreed to affect the acquisition
by the Company of ISIS by merging the business assets of ISIS with those of the Company by way of a three-cornered
amalgamation (the “Amalgamation”) pursuant to which ISIS and 2377678 Ontario Inc., a newly incorporated
subsidiary of the Company (“Wedona Newco”), will amalgamate in accordance with the provisions of the Business
Corporations Act (Ontario) to form an amalgamated entity (“Amalco”). Amalco will be a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and be named ISIS Lab Inc. The Amalgamation will constitute the Company’s “Qualifying Transaction”
under the Exchange’s CPC Policy (the “Qualifying Transaction”).

Prior to completion of the Amalgamation, it is anticipated that 1,036,082 options to purchase shares of ISIS (the “ISIS
Options”) will be exercised into common shares of ISIS. Upon closing of the Amalgamation, all of the issued and
outstanding common shares of ISIS (the “ISIS Shares”), currently anticipated to be 24,933,333 ISIS Shares, will be
exchanged for common shares of the Company (the “Transaction Shares”) on the basis of one Transaction Share for
each ISIS Share such that the former shareholders of ISIS and the current shareholders of the Company will own
approximately 85% and 15%, respectively, of the issued and outstanding Common Shares (on a non-diluted basis and
without taking into account the Offering or the CPC Share Escrow Transaction or the issuance of the Finders Shares (as
hereafter defined).  In connection with the Amalgamation, subject to Exchange approval the Company will issue on
Closing an additional 1,303,195 Common Shares (the “Finders Shares”) as a finder’s fee.  In connection with the
Amalgamation on Closing, all of the outstanding debentures of ISIS (the “ISIS Debentures”) will be repaid in full,
other than $395,000 principal amount of ISIS Debentures which will be postponed for 18 months following Closing
upon certain conditions described herein (see “ISIS Debt Deferment”) and holders of all outstanding share purchase
warrants of ISIS (the “ISIS Debenture Warrants”) will receive one common share purchase warrant of the Company
(a “Replacement Warrant”) in exchange for each ISIS Debenture Warrant. There are currently $852,500 principal
amount of ISIS Debentures and 341,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants outstanding as at the date hereof, and additional ISIS
Debentures and ISIS Debenture Warrants may be issued prior to completion of the Amalgamation, subject to certain
conditions. See “ISIS Lab Inc. – ISIS Debenture Financing”.

Following the acquisition of ISIS by the Company, the net proceeds of the Offering will be committed to fund the
business of ISIS, a company specializing in online social gaming software solutions to the online social gaming
industry. Upon completion of the Qualifying Transaction, the Company is expected to be renamed “ISIS Lab
Corporation” (the “Resulting Issuer”).

Upon completion of the Qualifying Transaction, the business of ISIS as described elsewhere in this Prospectus will
constitute all of the operations of the Resulting Issuer. The Qualifying Transaction is subject to the satisfaction of
certain conditions, including the receipt of certain regulatory and other approvals. See “ISIS Lab Inc.” and
“Proposed Qualifying Transaction – Conditions to the Qualifying Transaction Becoming Effective”.

The Common Shares are currently listed on the Exchange under the symbol “WCI.P”. On December 14, 2012 trading
in the shares of the Company was halted at the request of the Company pending news. Trading in the Common Shares
resumed on July 15, 2013, however, trading was halted again effective August 23, 2013 and subsequently suspended
on August 26, 2013 for failure to complete a Qualifying Transaction within 24 months of listing on the Exchange. On
August 22, 2013 the last trading price of the Common Shares on the Exchange was $0.31. See “Trading
Information”. The Exchange has conditionally approved the listing of the Common Shares qualified by this Prospectus
and the Common Shares issuable pursuant to the Amalgamation on the Exchange under the symbol “LAB”. Listing is
subject to the Company fulfilling all listing requirements of the Exchange on or before January 21, 2014.

Subject to applicable laws, the Agent may, in connection with the Offering, effect transactions which stabilize or
maintain the market price of the Common Shares at levels other than those which might otherwise prevail in the
open market.

The Agent conditionally offers the Units on a commercially reasonable efforts basis, subject to prior sale, if, as and
when issued by the Company and accepted by the Agent in accordance with the terms and conditions contained in the
Agency Agreement referred to under “Plan of Distribution” and subject to the approval of certain legal matters on
the Company’s behalf by Anfield Sujir Kennedy & Durno LLP, on ISIS’ behalf by Chitiz Pathak LLP and on the
Agent’s behalf by Fogler, Rubinoff LLP.

The business of the Resulting Issuer will be subject to numerous risks. An investment in the Units is highly
speculative and  involves significant risks that should be carefully considered by prospective investors. An
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investment in the Units should only be made by persons who can afford the total loss of their investment. The
information contained in this Prospectus should be carefully reviewed and considered by prospective investors
in connection with an investment in the Units. See “Risk Factors”.

Subscriptions for Units will be received subject to rejection or allotment in whole or in part and the right is reserved to
close the subscription books at any time without notice. It is expected that the initial closing of the Offering and the
closing of the Qualifying Transaction will occur no later than November 22, 2013 (the “Transaction Deadline”), or
such other date as agreed to by the Company, ISIS and the Agent but no later than the date that is 90 days from the
issuance of a receipt for the final prospectus relating to this Offering or, if a receipt has been issued for an amendment
to the final prospectus, within 90 days of the issuance of such receipt and in any event not later than 180 days from
the date of the receipt for the final prospectus (the “Offering Period”). The initial closing of the Offering is
conditional on the Minimum Offering of $4,000,000 being achieved and the last of the conditions to closing of the
Qualifying Transaction having been satisfied. The Offering will not be completed and no subscription funds will be
advanced to the Company unless and until the Minimum Offering has been raised. In the event the Minimum Offering
is not attained by the Transaction Deadline, or such other date as agreed to by the Company, ISIS, and the Agent but
in any event no later than the end of the Offering Period, all subscription funds that subscribers may have advanced to
the Agent in respect of the Offering will be refunded to the subscribers without interest or deduction. If less than the
Maximum Offering is subscribed for at the initial closing of the Offering, subsequent closings may be held at any
time, and from time to time, as the Company and the Agent may agree, provided that such closings occur before the
end of the Offering Period. See “Plan of Distribution”.

Other than in respect of the Units offered or sold to purchasers in the United States, or to or for the account or benefit
of U.S. Persons or persons in the United States, which will be represented by individual certificates, the Common
Shares and the Warrants comprising the Units will be delivered under the book based system through CDS Clearing
and Depository Services Inc. (“CDS”) or its nominee and deposited in registered or electronic form with CDS on
closing of the Offering. A purchaser of Units (other than a purchaser of Units in the United States or who is or is acting
on behalf of a U.S. Person or a person in the United States) will only receive a customer confirmation from the
registered holder that it is a CDS participant from or through which a beneficial interest in the Units were purchased.
See “Plan of Distribution”.

No Person is authorized by the Company, the Agent or ISIS to provide any information or to make any representations
other than those contained in this Prospectus in connection with the issue and sale of the securities offered pursuant to
this Prospectus. Neither the Agent nor the Company is making an offer to sell the Units in any jurisdiction where the
Offering or sale is not permitted.  Unless otherwise noted, the information in this Prospectus is only accurate as of the
date of this Prospectus.

This Prospectus also constitutes the filing statement required by the CPC Policy.

Unless otherwise indicated, all references to dollar amounts herein are to Canadian dollars.

AGENT: Mackie Research Capital Corporation, 199 Bay St., Suite 4500, Toronto, Ontario M5L 1G2
Contact: Jovan Stupar Tel: 416.860.6786 Fax: 416.860.7674
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GENERAL MATTERS

References in this Prospectus to “the Company”, “we”, “our” or “us” refer to Wedona Capital Inc. Reference in this
Prospectus to ‘‘ISIS” refers to ISIS Lab Inc. References in this Prospectus to the “Resulting Issuer” refer to the
Company after the Completion of its Qualifying Transaction.

For reporting purposes, each of the Company and ISIS prepares its financial statements in Canadian dollars and in
conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

Information contained on ISIS’ website is not part of this Prospectus and is not incorporated herein by reference and
may not be relied upon by prospective purchasers for the purposes of determining whether to invest in the Units
offered under this Prospectus. A prospective purchaser should rely only on information contained in this Prospectus
relating to the Offering.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Prospectus contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of that term under Canadian securities laws.
These statements relate to future events or future performance and reflect the Company’s and ISIS’ expectations and
assumptions regarding such future events and performance. In particular, all statements, other than historical facts,
included in this Prospectus that address activities, events or developments that management of the Company or ISIS
expect or anticipate will or may occur in the future are forward-looking statements, including but not limited to,
statements with respect to:  financial and other projections as well as statements or information concerning future
operation plans, objectives, performance, revenues, growth, profits or operating expenses; plans to develop, implement
or adopt new technology or products, including the expected costs and timing of the commercialization of ISIS' mobile
platform product; expectation to obtain new customers and licensees for ISIS’ products and services; estimates and
projections regarding the industry in which ISIS operates and adoption of technologies; requirements for additional
capital and future financing options; expansion and acceptance of ISIS' brand and products to new markets; marketing
plans, including the expectation to attend certain industry trade shows and advertise in certain industry publications; the
availability of intellectual property protection for ISIS' products; the potential sale of additional ISIS Debentures and
any proceeds therefrom; the completion of the Amalgamation and the proceedings and transactions related thereto; and
other expectations of either the Company or ISIS. Often, but not always, forward-looking statements can be identified
by the use of words such as “plans”, “expects”, “is expected”, “budget”, “scheduled”, “estimates”, “forecasts”,
“intends”, “anticipates”, or “believes” or variations (including negative variations) of such words and phrases, or
statements that certain actions, events or results “may”, “could”, “would”, “might” or “will” be taken, occur or be
achieved.

Such statements, made as of the date hereof, reflect the Company's or ISIS'  current views with respect to future events
and are based on information currently available to the Company or ISIS and are subject to and involve certain known
and unknown risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other factors which may cause the actual results, performance or
achievements of the Company or ISIS to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements
expressed in or implied by such forward-looking statements. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties
materialize, or should assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements prove incorrect, actual results may vary
materially from those described herein as intended, planned, anticipated, believed, estimated or expected. These risks
and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, the Company’s and ISIS’ stages of development, long term capital
requirements and future ability to fund operations, regulatory requirements, general economic, market or business
conditions and future developments in the sectors of the economy in which the business of ISIS operates, the
satisfaction of the conditions to complete the Offering and the Amalgamation, including the approval of the
Amalgamation by ISIS Shareholders and by certain regulatory authorities, and the absence of any event, change or
other circumstance that could give rise to the termination of the Amalgamation Agreement, delay in completing the
Amalgamation Agreement and/or the failure to complete the Amalgamation for any other reason.

Although the forward-looking information contained in this Circular reflect the current estimates, expectations and
projections of management of the Company or management of ISIS, readers are cautioned against placing undue
reliance on this information since actual results may vary from the forward-looking information. The assumptions
made in preparing the forward-looking information include the assumptions that the conditions to complete the
Amalgamation and the Offering will be satisfied, that the Amalgamation and the Offering will be completed within the
expected time frame and that the Company and ISIS will not fail to complete the Amalgamation for any other reason,
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and that the projections relating to growth in the industry of ISIS (and the Resulting Issuer) and adoption of the
technologies underlying ISIS' (and the Resulting Issuer’s) products are accurate.

When relying on forward-looking statements to make decisions, investors should ensure that the preceding information,
the risk factors described herein under the section entitled “Risk Factors”, and the contents of this Prospectus are all
carefully considered. These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this Prospectus, and, except as may
expressly be required by law, the Company and ISIS disclaim any obligation or undertaking to publicly release any
updates or revisions to any forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect any change in expectations,
estimates and projections with regard thereto or any changes in events, conditions or circumstances on which any
statement is based. Readers should not place undue importance on forward-looking statements and should not rely
upon this information as of any other date. In addition to the disclosure contained herein, for more information
concerning the Company's various risks and uncertainties, please refer to the Company's periodic public filings
available under its profile on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

CURRENCY

Unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, all references to “$” in this Prospectus are to Canadian
dollars and references to “£” are to United Kingdom pound sterling. On December 31, 2012 and October 22, 2013, the
noon buying rate for one United Kingdom pound sterling expressed in Canadian dollars, as quoted by the Bank of
Canada, was £1.00=$1.62 and £1.00=$ 1.66, respectively. The exchange rates presented here are historical and are not
indicative of future exchange rates.
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PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the principal features of this distribution and should be read together with the
more detailed information and financial data and statements contained elsewhere in this Prospectus.

Certain capitalized terms used in this summary are defined in the Glossary of Terms.

The Offering

Issuer: Wedona Capital Inc. (to be renamed Isis Lab Corporation) (the “Company”)

Business of the
Issuer:

The Company is a capital pool company whose main business activity is to identify and assess
businesses or assets with a view to completing a Qualifying Transaction within the meaning of
the CPC Policy. The Company completed its initial public offering of 2,000,000 Common
Shares at a price of $0.10 per share for gross proceeds of $200,000 on August 22, 2011. In
accordance with the CPC Policy, the Company has not carried on business since that time
other than the identification and evaluation of businesses and assets with a view to completing
a Qualifying Transaction and entering into an agreement in principal among the outstanding
shareholders of ISIS. See “The Company – Business of the Company”.

Business of ISIS: ISIS is in the business of design, development, and distribution of social-media based online
bingo software for the regulated gaming industry. ISIS’ bingo software includes a socially
networked, community-oriented, interactive gaming platform for online bingo in a regulated
environment. ISIS targets the female demographic, which it believes to be underserved, by
developing, designing, and deploying market products and services that are tailored to the
female demographic.

ISIS generates its revenue from two main revenue streams: (i) software license and other
related fees; and (ii) support and maintenance services provided by its wholly-owned
subsidiary Tech Channel Corporation. ISIS currently has one customer licensing its Software
and using its services, Cladstone Limited (“Cladstone”), a private Isle of Man company that is
licensed by the Isle of Man Gaming Supervision Commission to operate online gambling
activities in the Isle of Man. See “ISIS Lab Inc.”

Offering: The Offering consists of a minimum of 13,333,333 Units for total gross proceeds of
$4,000,000 and a maximum of 20,000,000 Units for gross proceeds of $6,000,000. The Units
will be offered to the public in the provinces of British Columbia, Alberta Ontario, and
Saskatchewan, on a commercially reasonable efforts basis by the Agent at a price of $0.30 per
Unit (the “Offering Price”). Each Unit is comprised of one Common Share and one-half of
one Warrant, with each Warrant being exercisable into one Common Share at an exercise
price of $0.45 for a period of 24 months from the date of issuance. The Company has granted
to the Agent an Over-Allotment Option, exercisable in whole or in part at any time and from
time to time for a period of 30 days following the Closing of the Offering, to offer for sale up
to an additional 3,000,000 Units at the Offering Price. If the Over-Allotment Option is
exercised in full, the aggregate gross proceeds of the Offering will be $6,900,000. This
Prospectus qualifies for distribution (i) the Common Shares which form part of the Units to be
issued pursuant to the Offering, (ii) the Warrants which form part of the Units to be issued
pursuant to the Offering, (iii) the Agent’s Options (including the Agents Options granted on
exercise of the over-allotment option, if any), and (iv) the  additional  Units  issuable  upon
the  exercise, if any,  by  the  Agent  of  the Over-Allotment Option described below. See
“Proposed Qualifying Transaction” and “Plan of Distribution”.

Qualifying The acquisition by the Company of all of the issued and outstanding shares in the capital of
ISIS, to be affected by way of the Amalgamation, will constitute the Qualifying Transaction of
the Company under the CPC Policy. Pursuant to the Amalgamation Agreement, the ISIS
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Transaction: Shares will be exchanged for the Transaction Shares on the basis of one Transaction Share for
each ISIS Share such that the former shareholders of ISIS will own approximately 85% of the
issued and outstanding Common Shares (on a non-diluted basis and without taking into
account the Offering or the CPC Share Escrow Transaction or the issuance of the Finder’s
Shares (as hereafter defined)). Prior to completion of the Amalgamation, it is expected that the
holder of 1,036,082 ISIS Options (York Capital Partners Inc.) will exercise its options for ISIS
Shares. In connection with the Amalgamation, all of the outstanding ISIS Debentures will be
repaid in full, other than $395,000 principal amount of ISIS Debentures which will be
postponed for 18 months following Closing upon certain conditions described herein (see
“ISIS Debt Deferment”), and holders of all outstanding ISIS Debenture Warrants will receive
one Replacement Warrant in exchange for each ISIS Debenture Warrant. See “Proposed
Qualifying Transaction”.

Concurrently with the completion of the Qualifying Transaction, it is also the intention of
Messrs. Daniel Kajouii, Tito Gandhi, Chris Kajouii, Ian Campbell, and Stan Bharti, directly or
indirectly, to purchase all of the Common Shares currently held in escrow (the “CPC Escrow
Shares”) for aggregate consideration of $150,000 (the “CPC Escrow Share Transaction”).
In addition, the Company will issue 1,303,195 common shares as a finder’s fee in connection
with the Amalgamation.  See “Proposed Qualifying Transaction”.

Following Completion of the Company’s Qualifying Transaction, Amalco will be a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and the Company is expected to change its name to “ISIS
Lab Corporation” (or such other name as is acceptable to the Company, ISIS and the
Exchange) and will carry on the current business of ISIS as further described under “Proposed
Qualifying Transaction”. On Completion of the Company’s Qualifying Transaction and the
Offering, it is expected that the Company will qualify for listing on the Exchange as a Tier 2
Technology Issuer. See “Proposed Qualifying Transaction”.

The Offering is conditional upon the Company completing the Qualifying Transaction.
Completion of the Company’s Qualifying Transaction is subject to the satisfaction of certain
conditions, including, without limitation, certain regulatory and shareholder approvals. The
Qualifying Transaction is an arm’s length transaction. See “Proposed Qualifying Transaction
– Conditions to the Qualifying Transaction Becoming Effective”.

It is a condition of the Amalgamation Agreement that the Company raises gross
proceeds of at least $3,000,000 under this Offering.

Commission and
Agent’s Fee:

In consideration for the services performed by the Agent in connection with the Offering, the
Company will pay the Agent a commission equal to a maximum of 8.0% (or 2% with respect
to investment up to $500,000 from subscribers listed the President’s List) of the gross
proceeds of the Offering, and reimburse the Agent for its legal and other expenses incurred
pursuant to this Offering. The Company will also issue the Agent’s Options to the Agent
entitling it to purchase a maximum amount of Agent’s Units equal to 8.0% (or 2% with
respect to investment up to $500,000 from subscribers listed the President’s List) of the Units
issued through the Offering. The Agent’s Options will be exercisable for a period of 24
months from the closing of the Offering at a price per Agent’s Unit equal to the Offering
Price. The Agent will also be paid on the same terms per Unit in respect of the Units issued
pursuant to the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option. See “Plan of Distribution”.

Use of Proceeds: Assuming gross proceeds under the Offering equal to $4,000,000 in the case of the Minimum
Offering and $6,000,000 in the case of the Maximum Offering (and without taking into
account the gross proceeds of up to $900,000 from the exercise, if any, of the Over-Allotment
Option), the net proceeds to be received by the Resulting Issuer under the Offering are
estimated as follows:
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Description
Amount ($)
Minimum Offering

Amount ($)
Maximum Offering

Gross Proceeds 4,000,000 6,000,000

Agent’s Commission (320,000) (480,000)

Estimated costs remaining to be paid
relating to the Qualifying Transaction
and the Offering:

Audit fees (30,000) (30,000)

Legal fees (210,000) (210,000)

Listing Fees (10,000) (10,000)

Estimated Net Proceeds of Offering 3,430,000 5,270,000

It is a condition of the Amalgamation Agreement that the Company raise gross proceeds of at
least $3,000,000 under the Offering. The Agent will receive and hold the proceeds of the
Offering. If the Minimum Offering and the Qualifying Transaction are not concurrently
completed within the Offering Period or by the deadline set out in the Amalgamation
Agreement, being November 22, 2013, (or such other date agreed to by the Company, ISIS
and the Agent, provided that such date is during the Offering Period), the Offering will
terminate and all funds received by the Agent will be returned to the subscribers without
interest or deduction unless otherwise directed by the subscribers. See “Plan of Distribution”.

Estimated Working Capital and Estimated Total Funds Available

As at September 30, 2013, Isis had an estimated working capital deficiency of $1,300,363 and
Wedona had an estimated working capital of $63,973.

Upon completion of the Offering, assuming net proceeds under the Offering equal to
$3,430,000 in the case of the Minimum Offering and $5,270,000 in the case of the Maximum
Offering (and without taking into account the gross proceeds of up to $900,000 from the
exercise, if any, of the Over-Allotment Option), and after giving effect to the Qualifying
Transaction (including the expenses associated therewith), the Resulting Issuer is expected to
have total funds available to it as set out below.

Sources

Amount ($)
Minimum
Offering

Amount ($)
Maximum Offering

Estimated Net Proceeds of
Offering(1) 3,430,000 5,270,000

Estimate of Consolidated Pro
Forma Working Capital of
Resulting Issuer as at September
30, 2013 (excluding estimated
net proceeds above)

(1,236,390) (1,236,390)

Debt Deferment(2) 765,000 -

Other Sources of Funds(3) 105,000 105,000

Estimated Total Funds
Available

$3,063,610 $4,138,610

Notes:
(1) Gross proceeds of the Offering net of Agent’s Commissions and the estimated costs
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of the Transactions of $250,000.
(2) Due to the deferment of certain debts, ISIS will have an additional $765,000 (as at

September 30, 2013) available working capital on Closing in case of the Minimum
Offering. This amount as at September 30, 2013 is comprised of $395,000 in
deferred ISIS Debentures, $120,000 owing to York Capital pursuant to the York
Capital Consulting Agreement, $100,000 owing to Forbes and Manhattan Inc.
pursuant to the ISIS Short Term Loan, and $150,000 owing to 2213802 Ontario Inc.
See “ISIS Lab Inc. – ISIS Debt Deferment.” In the case of the Maximum Offering,
all of these deferred amounts will be paid out on Closing (such amounts are captured
as a current liability in the line item “Estimate of Consolidated Pro Forma Working
Capital of Resulting Issuer as at September 30, 2013 (excluding estimated net
proceeds above)” in the table above). In addition to the foregoing amounts, the
following amounts will be paid out on Closing of either the Minimum Offering or
the Maximum Offering, which amounts are captured as a current liability in the line
item “Estimate of Consolidated Pro Forma Working Capital of Resulting Issuer as at
September 30, 2013 (excluding estimated net proceeds above)” in the table above:
ISIS Debentures in the principal amount of $457,500 outstanding as at September
30, 2013; interest on the ISIS Short Term Loan in the amount of $3,000 outstanding
as at September 30, 2013; and a total of $167,346 accrued to Daniel Kajouii, Chris
Kajouii and Tito Gandhi as deferred management fees or expenses, as applicable, to
September 30, 2013.

(3) In accordance with an option agreement between ISIS and York Capital, ISIS intends
to give York Capital notice of acceleration of the expiry date of the ISIS Options
such that the ISIS Options shall expire no later than the Closing. ISIS expects that
York Capital will exercise all of the 1,036,082 ISIS Options prior to Closing and
upon such exercise ISIS will realize gross proceeds of $105,000. There can be no
assurance that such funds will be realized.

Principal Purposes of Estimated Total Funds Available

The Resulting Issuer intends to use its estimated total funds available for the following
principal purposes for 12 months following Closing (see also “Use of Proceeds – Business
Objectives and Milestones”):

Description

Amount ($)
Minimum

Offering

Amount ($)
Maximum

Offering
York Capital Consulting Agreement(1) - 210,000

Software Development and Continuing
Operations(2)(3) 920,000 1,190,000

Support and Service Centre(3) 621,400 840,000

Sales and Marketing(3) 740,000 1,000,000

General and Administrative(4)

Salaries 24,000 24,000

Subcontractor payments(3) 170,004 146,000

Rent 36,000 36,000

Professional fees 144,000 120,000

Travel and office expenses 50,396 57,796

Unallocated Funds 357,810 514,814

Total $3,063,610 $4,138,610
Notes:

(1) Represents the monthly fee of $12,500 (excluding applicable taxes) due to York
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Capital under the York Capital Consulting Agreement in the first year after the
Closing Date, and such figure assumes that a discretionary bonus of $15,000 per
quarter will be paid to York Capital. Pursuant to an agreement with York Capital, if
the amount raised under the Offering exceeds $4,500,000, ISIS will prepay on
Closing to York Capital all fees that are payable in the first year after the Closing
Date. If less than $4,500,000 is raised under the Offering, York Capital will postpone
all fees and bonuses for 18 months following Closing. The figure in the table above
does not reflect payments due to York Capital in the second year after the Closing
Date. See “ISIS Lab Inc. – Consulting Services Agreement” and “ISIS Debt
Deferment”.

(2) ISIS currently has major parts of its development completed. ISIS will conduct its
own research and development. It is anticipated that depending on the total amount
of net proceeds available, a portion will be allocated to further developments
providing adequate funding is in place for marketing and the development of ISIS'
business. See “ISIS Lab Inc. – Future Developments”.

(3) The proposed use of funds in these categories includes portions of the annual salary
of $240,000 payable to Daniel Kajouii, who will serve as CEO and President of the
Resulting Issuer. See “Executive Compensation of the Resulting Issuer”.

(4) Including expenses not comprising part of software development and continuing
operations, support and service centre, and sales and marketing. Management of ISIS
expects that general administrative costs will rise in aggregate, but the focus in
spending will change, in the event of the Maximum Offering.  As such, the $24,000
difference with respect to professional fees between the Minimum Offering and the
Maximum Offering concerns fees paid to a third party service provider that, in the
event of the Maximum Offering, is proposed to be re-allocated to software
development.  Similarly, the anticipated subcontractor payments will decline as the
allocation of officers' salaries will shift from running the business to increased
marketing efforts with the additional funds available under the Maximum Offering.

ISIS had negative operating cash flow as of September 30, 2013, and it is anticipated the
Resulting Issuer will have to use a portion of the estimated total funds available to cover
future negative operating cash flow. See “Risk Factors- Liquidity Concerns and Future
Financings”.

ISIS (and the Resulting Issuer upon completion of the Qualifying Transaction) is at the early
commercialization stage of the company’s life cycle.  One of the primary business objectives
after completion of the Qualifying Transaction will be to market its software and services to
prospective licensees in order to expand its product offering and increase market share and
revenues by signing on additional licensees.  The Resulting Issuer intends to use available
funds for expanding the sales and marketing programs in order to accelerate product
awareness in the marketplace and generate sales.  The Resulting Issuer also intends to use
available funds for the purposes of continued research and development to improve
functionality as well as develop new features for the Software including the development of a
mobile platform, which would allow ISIS to offer its Software products and services,
including its bingo and social media products and services across all mobile platforms,
including iOS, Windows Phone, and Android. Within 12 months following the completion of
the Qualifying Transaction, the Resulting Issuer anticipates working towards milestones that
will expand the sales and marketing initiatives and development of a mobile platform more
specifically described under “Use of Proceeds – Business Objectives and Milestones”.

The Resulting Issuer will spend the available funds for the principal purposes as indicated
above. Notwithstanding the foregoing, there may also be circumstances where, for sound
business reasons, a reallocation of funds may be necessary for the Resulting Issuer to achieve
its objectives. The Resulting Issuer may require additional funds in order to fulfill all of the
Resulting Issuer's expenditure requirements to meet its objectives (see “Risk Factors”). There
is no assurance that additional funding required by the Resulting Issuer will be available if
required. However, it is anticipated that the available funds will be sufficient to satisfy the
Resulting Issuer's objectives over the 12 months following Completion of the Company's
Qualifying Transaction.
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The table above excludes any proceeds to the Resulting Issuer from any exercise of the Over-
Allotment Option and the proceeds of the issuance of any Common Shares on exercise of any
convertible securities issued pursuant to the Offering. See “Plan of Distribution”. Any
proceeds from the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option or convertible securities issued
pursuant to the Offering will be added to working capital or otherwise allocated among the
purposes set forth above as management of the Resulting Issuer deems appropriate.

The investment policy for unallocated funds will be determined by the directors of the
Resulting Issuer. Until such time as unallocated funds are required for use as working capital,
the Resulting Issuer plans to invest such funds in securities of, or those guaranteed by, the
Government of Canada, any province or territory thereof or the Government of the United
States of America, in certificates of deposit or in interest bearing accounts of Canadian
chartered banks and/or trust companies, or a combination thereof.

For complete details regarding the funds expected to be available to the Company upon
completion of the Offering and the Qualifying Transaction, the expected principal purposes
for which such funds will be used and the business objectives and milestones of the Resulting
Issuer, see “Use of Proceeds”.

Risk Factors: An investment in the Units is highly speculative and involves a high degree of risk.
Prospective investors should carefully review and evaluate certain risks relating to this
Offering, including risks associated with the business of the Resulting Issuer. Each purchaser
should carefully consider information included in this Prospectus before purchasing Units, the
information set out under “Risk Factors” beginning on page 90, including, without limitation,
the following:

(i) Risks Associated with the Business and Industry of ISIS and the Resulting Issuer;
(ii) Dependence on Single Customer;
(iii) Future Dependence on Small Number of Customers
(iv) Liquidity Concerns and Future Financings;
(v) Success of Licensees / Collectability of Debts;
(vi) Difficulty Acquiring Licensees;
(vii) Decline in Volume of Software Usage;
(viii) Loss of Key Members of the Management Team and other Qualified Personnel;
(ix) Dependence on Third-Party Service and Equipment;
(x) Credit Risk of Accounts Receivable;
(xi) Limited Operating History;
(xii) Intellectual Property;
(xiii) Security and Privacy Breaches;
(xiv) System Failures, Delays and Other Problems;
(xv) Competition;
(xvi) Adequacy of Network Resilience, Network Diversity and Backup Systems;
(xvii) Capacity Limits;
(xviii) Dependence on Required Licenses;
(xix) Rapid Technological Changes;
(xx) Conflicts of Interest;
(xxi) Global Economy;
(xxii) No Expectation of Dividend Declaration by Resulting Issuer;
(xxiii) Foreign Currency, Exchange Rate and Taxes;
(xxiv) Foreign Operations;
(xxv) Trends;
(xxvi) No Insurance; and
(xxvii) Risks Associated with the Offering and the Completion of the Qualifying Transaction

Dividend Policy: The  Resulting Issuer  intends to  retain  available  funds  for  the  development  and
expansion  of  its business. Accordingly, the Resulting Issuer does not intend to pay dividends
on its Common Shares in the foreseeable future. See “Selected Financial Information of the
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Company – Dividends”.

Stock Exchange: The Common Shares were listed and posted for trading on the Exchange on August 22, 2011
under the symbol WCI.P. Trading of the Common Shares was halted effective August 23,
2013 and subsequently suspended on August 26, 2013 for failure to complete a Qualifying
Transaction within 24 months of listing on the Exchange. On August 22, 2013, the last trading
price of the Common Shares on the Exchange was $0.31.

The Exchange has conditionally approved the listing of the Common Shares forming part of
the Units distributed under this Prospectus on the Exchange, including those Common Shares
that may be issued upon the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option, the Warrants, the Agent's
Options and the Common Shares issuable pursuant to the Amalgamation. Listing is subject to
the Company fulfilling all listing requirements of the Exchange on or before January 21, 2014.

Summary
Consolidated
Financial
Information of
the Company

The following table sets forth selected financial information for the Company. The selected
financial information has been derived from, and is qualified by, the Company’s unaudited
financial statements for the three month period ended June 30, 2013, audited financial
statements for the years ended March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2013 and for the period from
the date of incorporation, February 9, 2011, to March 31, 2011 appearing elsewhere in this
Prospectus.  The following information should be read in conjunction with those financial
statements and the accompanying notes, and Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the
Financial Condition and Results of Operations of the Company included elsewhere in this
Prospectus. See “Selected Financial Information of the Company”.

As at June
30, 2013

(unaudited)

Year ended
March 31, 2013
(audited)

Year ended
March 31, 2012
(audited)

Period from
Incorporation,
February 9, 2011,
to March 31, 2011
(audited)

Total revenue - - - -

Net income (loss) for
the period

(18,279) (29,329) (66,373) (5,000)

Basic and diluted
earnings (loss) per
share

(0.01) (0.01) (0.05) 0.00

Total assets 157,828 176,024 205,376 100,000

Total long-term
liabilities

- - - -

Cash dividends - - -
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Summary
Consolidated
Financial
Information of
ISIS

The following table sets forth selected financial information for ISIS. The selected
financial information has been derived from, and is qualified by ISIS’ audited financial
statements for the partial year ended December 31, 2010, the audited financial statements for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, the audited financial statements for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2012, and the unaudited financial statements for the three and six month
period ended June 30, 2013. The following information should be read in conjunction with
those financial statements and the accompanying notes found elsewhere in this prospectus. See
“Selected Financial Information of ISIS”.

As at June 30, 2013
($)(unaudited)

As at December 31,
2012 ($)(audited)

As at December 31,
2011($) (audited)

As at December 31,
2010 ($) (audited)

BALANCE
SHEET DATA

Total Assets 2,488,504 2,296,277 2,168,312 1,501,288

Total Liabilities 1,243,673 386,395 100,770 189,527

Share Capital 4,899,500 4,899,500 3,522,500 1,620,000

Deficit (3,888,134) (3,197,560) (1,454,958) (308,239)

For the six
month period

ended June 30,
2013 ($)

(unaudited)

For the three
months ended
June 30, 2013

($) (unaudited)

For the 12
months ended
December 31,

2012 ($)
(audited)

For the 12
months ended
December 31,

2011 ($)

(audited)

For the period
from

incorporation
to December 31,

2010 ($)
(audited)

EARNINGS
DATA

Service fees 60,000 30,000 120,000 90,000 -

License fees 15,000 15,000 - - -

Interest Income 25,237 14,063 44,734 21,212

Expenses

Advertising and
promotion

30,951 27,031
382,083 480,704 364

Salaries and
related benefits

135,290 62,879
476,164 203,489 4,560

Subcontract 103,951 64,263 268,665 132,379 53,631

Rent 44,502 22,755 97,883 129,908 21,719

Professional
fees

143,827 38,571
136,312 87,069 34,983

Travel 20,886 16,678 27,726 79,645 24,511

Office 18,770 9,733 59,683 52,796 3,765

Telephone and
utilities

21,844 10,757
29,924 20,734 827

Foreign
exchange loss

6,468 21,517
10,100 13,326 -

Interest and
bank charges

48,815 32,101
1,667 2,906 478

Amortization of
intangibles

209,139 109,613
413,801 200,385 -
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Depreciation of
equipment

6,368 3,398
3,328 17,991 -

Tax provision - - - (163,401) 163,401

Net Loss

Net Loss and
Comprehensive
Loss for the
Period

(690,574) (360,233) (1,742,602) (1,146,719) (308,239)

Loss per share
(basic and
diluted)

(0.03) (0.02) (0.08) (0.07) (0.03)

Weighted
Average
Number of
Outstanding
Shares (basic
and diluted)

23,897,251 23,897,251 22,127,889 15,885,799 9,644,426

Summary Pro
Forma
Consolidated
Financial
Information

The following table sets forth selected information from the pro forma consolidated financial
statements of the Company as at June 30, 2013 after giving effect to the Company’s
Qualifying Transaction and to the Offering. The following selected financial data has been
derived from, should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the pro
forma consolidated financial statements of the Company and the historical financial
statements of each of the Company and ISIS and the notes thereto, all contained elsewhere in
this Prospectus. See “Selected Pro Forma Consolidated Financial Information”.

Current Assets $3,458,739
Total Assets $5,893,933
Liabilities $936,612
Shareholders’ Equity $4,957,321
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

In this Prospectus, unless there is something in the subject matter or context inconsistent therewith, the following terms
shall have the meanings set out below. All capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meaning given to them
in the Corporate Finance Manual of the Exchange.

“Affiliate” means a company that is affiliated with another company. A company is an “Affiliate” of another
company if (a) one of them is the subsidiary of the other; or (b) each of them is controlled by the same Person. A
company is “controlled” by a Person if: (a) voting securities of the company are held, other than by way of security
only, by or for the benefit of that Person; and (b) the voting securities, if voted, entitle the Person to elect a majority of
the directors of the company. A Person beneficially owns securities that are beneficially owned by: (a) a company
controlled by that Person; or (b) an Affiliate of that Person or an Affiliate of any company controlled by that Person.

“Agent” means Mackie Research Capital Corporation.

“Agency Agreement” means the agreement dated October 23, 2013 among the Company, ISIS and the Agent.

“Agent’s Options” means the options entitling the Agent to purchase such number of Agent’s Units that is equal to
8.0% of the number of Units sold under the Offering each exercisable for a period of 24 months from the date of
issuance at a price per Agent’s Unit equal to the Offering Price.

“Agent’s Units” means the Units issuable to the Agent at a price of $0.30 per Agent’s Unit upon the exercise of the
Agent’s Options, each such Agent’s Unit being comprised of one Common Share and one half of one Warrant.

“Amalco” means the amalgamated company formed pursuant to the amalgamation of ISIS and Wedona Newco, to be
named ISIS Lab Inc.

“Amalgamation” means the three-cornered amalgamation pursuant to which the Company and ISIS have agreed to
merge the business assets of ISIS with those of the Company in accordance with the terms of the Amalgamation
Agreement, with such Amalgamation constituting the Company’s Qualifying Transaction.

“Amalgamation Agreement” means the agreement dated June 28, 2013 (as amended on August 31, 2013), among the
Company, ISIS and Wedona Newco in respect of the Amalgamation.

“Associate” when used to indicate a relationship with a Person, means (a) an issuer of which the Person beneficially
owns or controls, directly or indirectly, voting securities entitling him to more than 10% of the voting rights attached
to outstanding securities of the issuer; (b) any partner of the Person; (c) any trust or estate in which the Person has a
substantial beneficial interest or in respect of which a Person serves as trustee or in a similar capacity; (d) in the case of
a Person who is an individual, a relative of that Person, including (i) that Person’s spouse or child, or (ii) any relative
of the Person or his spouse who has the same residence as that Person; but where the Exchange determines that two
Persons shall, or shall not, be deemed to be Associates with respect to a Member firm, Member corporation or holding
company of a Member corporation, then such determination shall be determinative of their relationships in the
application of Rule D set out in the Exchange Rule Book with respect to that Member firm, Member corporation or
holding company.

“BCBCA” means the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia).

“Broker Warrants” means the 200,000 Common Share purchase warrants previously held by Mackie Research
Capital Corporation and each such Broker Warrant having been exercised into one Common Share at a price of $0.10
per Common Share. These Broker Warrants were issued by the Company as part of the Company's IPO to Mackie
Research Capital Corporation, which acted as the Company’s agent.

“Cladstone” means Cladstone Limited.

“Cladstone Credit Facility” means the loan agreement, dated September 27, 2012 but effective April 1, 2011,
amended on September 3, 2013 and subsequently cancelled on September 12, 2013, between Cladstone and ISIS.
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“Cladstone License Agreement” means the license agreement, dated September 27, 2012 but effective April 1, 2011,
between Cladstone and ISIS.

“Cladstone Services Agreement” means the services agreement, dated September 27, 2012 but effective April 1,
2011, between Cladstone and TCC.

“Closing” means the consummation of the Qualifying Transaction and the Offering, which shall take place on the
Closing Date.

“Closing Date” means the date of Closing.

“Common Shares” means common shares of the Company and after completion of the Qualifying Transaction, the
common shares of the Resulting Issuer.

“Company” means Wedona Capital Inc., a CPC incorporated under the laws of the Province of British Columbia.

“Completion of the Company’s Qualifying Transaction” means the date the Final Exchange Bulletin is issued by
the Exchange in relation to the Qualifying Transaction described in this Prospectus.

“CPC” means a corporation: (a) that has been incorporated or organized in a jurisdiction in Canada; (b) that has
filed and obtained a receipt for a CPC Prospectus from one or more of the securities regulatory authorities in
compliance with Policy 2.4 of the Exchange; and (c) in regard to which the Completion of the Qualifying
Transaction has not yet occurred.

“CPC Escrow Agreement” means the agreement dated April 11, 2011 among the Company, the Escrow Agent and
the holders of CPC Escrow Shares relating to the escrow of the CPC Escrow Shares.

“CPC Escrow Shares” means the 2,000,000 Common Shares held in escrow by the Escrow Agent pursuant to the
CPC Escrow Agreement.

“CPC Escrow Share Transaction” means the purchase by certain principals of ISIS of all of the CPC Escrow Shares
currently held in escrow for aggregate consideration of $150,000.

“CPC Policy” means Policy 2.4 of the Exchange.

“Daniel Kajouii” means Mr. Fouad Aghakajouii.

“ESOP” means the Company’s incentive stock option plan dated as of March 2, 2011.

“Escrow Agent” means Computershare Trust Company of Canada.

“Exchange” means the TSX Venture Exchange Inc.

“Final Exchange Bulletin” means the bulletin that is issued following the Closing and the submission of all
required documentation and that evidences the final acceptance of the Qualifying Transaction by the Exchange.

“Finder” means Parolini Family Holdings Limited.

“Finder’s Fee Agreement” means the finder’s fee agreement dated June 28, 2013 and amended on October 20, 2013
between the Company and the Finder.

“Finders Shares” means the 1,303,195 Common Shares to be issued to the Finder on Closing pursuant to the Finder’s
Fee Agreement, subject to the approval of the Exchange.

“GSC” means the Gambling Supervision Commission of the Isle of Man.
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“IFRS” means international financial reporting standards.

“Incentive Options” means the options to purchase Common Shares pursuant to the Company’s ESOP.

“Initial Release” means the release from escrow of certain CPC Escrow Shares on the issuance of the Final Exchange
Bulletin.

“IPO” means the initial public offering of the Company completed on August 22, 2011, whereby the Company issued
an aggregate of 2,000,000 Common Shares to the public at an issue price of $0.10 per share for aggregate gross
proceeds of $200,000.

“ISIS” means Isis Lab Inc., a corporation incorporated under the law of the Province of Ontario.

“ISIS Debentures” means the 24% (with such interest rate being reduced to 3% per annum subsequent to Closing)
unsecured short-term non-convertible debentures of ISIS being issued under the ISIS Debenture Financing.

“ISIS Debenture Financing” means the offering being conducted by ISIS of up to $1,000,000 principal amount of
ISIS Debentures and up to 400,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants for gross proceeds of up to $1,000,000.

“ISIS Debenture Warrants” means the ISIS share purchase warrants being issued under the ISIS Debenture
Financing (at a rate of 1,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants for each $2,500 principal amount of ISIS Debentures subscribed
for), each ISIS Debenture Warrant being exercisable into one ISIS Share at an exercise price of $0.25 per share in the
first year from the date of issue and thereafter at $0.30 per share (or such other exercise price as may be required by the
Exchange) until the earlier of the date that is 24 months from the Closing Date and December 31, 2015, with the
exception of 68,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants issued after August 30, 2013 which shall expire 30 days after Closing.

“ISIS Debt Deferment” means the deferment of certain debt of ISIS totalling $765,000 as at September 30, 2013. See
“ISIS labs Inc. – ISIS Debt Deferment”.

“ISIS Options” means the 1,036,082 options of ISIS outstanding as at the date hereof, all of which are held by York
Capital, and each of which is exercisable into one ISIS Share at an exercise price of $0.1013 per ISIS Share until
September 30, 2014.

“ISIS Shares” means the common shares in the capital of ISIS.

“ISIS Shareholders” means the holders of ISIS Shares.

“ISIS Short Term Loan” means the $100,000 loan to ISIS pursuant to an agreement dated September 27, 2012, as
amended on August 15, 2013, between ISIS and Forbes & Manhattan Inc.

“Letter of Intent” means the letter of intent, dated December 14, 2012, and subsequently amended on March 13, 2013,
between ISIS and the Company pursuant to which the Company has agreed, subject to certain conditions, to acquire
ISIS as its Qualifying Transaction.

“Lock-up Period” means the period commencing on March 13, 2013 and ending on the date that is four months plus
one day following the Closing Date.

“Maximum Offering” means the maximum offering by the Company of 20,000,000 Units at the Offering Price
pursuant to this Prospectus for gross proceeds of $6,000,000.

“Minimum Offering” means the minimum offering by the Company of 13,333,333 Units at the Offering Price
pursuant to this Prospectus for gross proceeds of $4,000,000.

“NI 52-110” means National Instrument 52-110 - Audit Committees.

“Non-Arm’s Length Qualifying Transaction” means a proposed Qualifying Transaction where the same party or
parties or their respective Associates or Affiliates control the CPC and the Significant Assets which are the subject of
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the proposed Qualifying Transaction.

“OBCA” means the Business Corporations Act (Ontario).

“Offering” means the offering by the Company of a minimum of 13,333,333 Units and a maximum of 20,000,000
Units at the Offering Price for gross proceeds of a minimum of $4,000,000 and a maximum of $6,000,000, without
giving effect to the Over-Allotment Option.

“Offering Period” has the meaning ascribed thereto on page iv of this Prospectus.

“Offering Price” means $0.30 per Unit.

“Over-Allotment Option” means an option granted by the Company to the Agent to offer for sale an additional
3,000,000 Units at the Offering Price, solely to cover over-allotments, if any, and for market stabilization purposes,
such option exercisable in whole or in part at any time and from time to time for a period of 30 days following the
Closing of the Offering.

“Person” means a corporation, incorporated association or organization, body corporate, partnership, trust, association
or other entity or an individual.

“Principal” means: (1) a director or senior officer of a company or any of its material operating subsidiaries; (2)
a Person who acted as a promoter of a company within the previous two years; (3) a Person that holds more than 20%
of the voting shares of a company; (4) a Person that holds more than 10% of the voting shares of a company and has
elected or appointed, or has the right to elect or appoint, one or more directors or senior officers of a company or any
of its material operating subsidiaries; (5) any entity of which more than 50% of its securities (fully diluted) are owned
by one or more of the Persons listed in (1) – (4); and (6) any spouse or relative of any of the Persons listed in (1) – (4)
who lives at the same address as such Person.

“President’s List” means a list of investors identified by ISIS to be provided to the Agent.

“Prospectus” means this prospectus.

“QT Escrow Shares” means certain of the Common Shares to be issued to certain shareholders of ISIS pursuant to the
Qualifying Transaction, who will become Principals of the Resulting Issuer.

“QT Escrow Agreement” means the agreement in accordance with Exchange Policy 5.4 Escrow, Vendor
Consideration and Resale Restrictions between the Company, the Escrow Agent, ISIS Shareholders who will be
Principals of the Company upon completion of the Qualifying Transaction, and certain other individuals as determined
by the Exchange.

“Qualifying Transaction” means a transaction where a CPC acquires Significant Assets other than cash, by way of
purchase, amalgamation, merger or arrangement with another company or by other means. The Company’s Qualifying
Transaction consists of the Amalgamation.

“Resulting Issuer” means the Company as it will exist upon the issuance of the Final Exchange Bulletin and in
particular, means the Company and ISIS, on a consolidated basis.

“Replacement Warrants” means the Common Share purchase warrants of the Company to be issued to holders of the
ISIS Debenture Warrants in exchange for all outstanding ISIS Debenture Warrants pursuant to the Amalgamation.

“Significant Assets” means  one or more  assets  or businesses which, when purchased, optioned or  otherwise
acquired  by  the CPC, together  with any other concurrent  transactions, would  result  in the CPC meeting the
minimum listing requirements of the Exchange.

“Software” means ISIS’ principal software products categorized as Bingo Platform, E-Commerce System/Cashier,
Back-Office Reporting System, and Social Network Platform, as described under “ISIS Lab Inc. – Principal Products
and Services – Current Principal Products”.
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“Tax Act” means the Income Tax Act (Canada).

“TCC” means Tech Channel Corporation.

“Transfer Agent” means Computershare Investor Services Inc.

“TST” means Technical Systems Testing, a subsidiary of Gaming Labs International.

“U.S. Securities Act” means the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

“Transaction Shares” means the Common Shares to be issued by the Company to ISIS Shareholders pursuant to the
Amalgamation in exchange for all of the outstanding ISIS Shares on the basis of one Common Share for every one ISIS
Share currently anticipated to be 24,933,333 Common Shares.

“Units” means the units offered pursuant to the Offering, each comprised of one Common Share and one-half of one
Warrant.

“Warrant Agent” means Computershare Trust Company of Canada.

“Warrant Indenture” means the warrant indenture, to be dated as of the closing of the Offering, between the
Company and the Warrant Agent.

“Warrants” means the Common Share purchase warrants comprising part of the Units, each whole warrant being
exercisable into one Common Share at an exercise price of $0.45 per share for a period of 24 months from the date of
issuance.

“Wedona” means Wedona Capital Inc.

“Wedona Newco” means 2377678 Ontario Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated for the
purposes of amalgamating with ISIS pursuant to the Amalgamation.

“Wedona Shareholders” means the holders of Common Shares.

“York Capital” means York Capital Partners Inc.

“York Capital Consulting Agreement” means the Consulting Services Agreement dated as of October 1, 2012 and
amended as of June 27, 2013, June 28, 2013, August 9, 2013, August 27, 2013 and September 9, 2013, between ISIS
and York Capital.
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THE COMPANY

Name and Incorporation

Wedona Capital Inc. was incorporated by Certificate of Incorporation issued pursuant to the provisions of the BCBCA
on February 9, 2011. The Company’s registered office is located at 1600 - 609 Granville Street, Vancouver, BC, V7Y
1C3.

Concurrently with the closing of the Offering, the Company will acquire all of the issued and outstanding securities of
ISIS pursuant to the Amalgamation Agreement. See “Proposed Qualifying Transaction”.

Inter-corporate Relationships

The Company has one wholly-owned subsidiary, being 2377678 Ontario Inc. (“Wedona Newco”), an Ontario
corporation formed for the purpose of completing the Amalgamation. Upon completion of the Amalgamation, ISIS will
amalgamate with Wedona Newco to form Amalco to be named ISIS Lab Inc., which will be a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Upon completion of the Qualifying Transaction, the Company is expected to be renamed
“Isis Lab Corporation”. See “Proposed Qualifying Transaction”.

Business of the Company

The Company is a CPC pursuant to the policies of the Exchange. As such, the sole business of the Company is and has
been to identify and evaluate businesses and assets with a view to completing a Qualifying Transaction. The Company
will not carry on any other business until completion of the Qualifying Transaction. The Company completed its initial
public offering (“IPO”) on August 22, 2011, issuing an aggregate of 2,000,000 Common Shares to the public at an
issue price of $0.10 per share for aggregate gross proceeds of $200,000. The Company’s Common Shares were listed
for trading on the Exchange with the trading symbol WCI.P.

To date, the Company has not conducted commercial operations other than to enter into discussions for the purpose of
identifying potential acquisition targets and entering into the Amalgamation Agreement and the Finder’s Fee
Agreement with respect to the Amalgamation and advancing $25,000 to ISIS in accordance with Exchange Policy (see
“Proposed Qualifying Transaction”). The Company does not own any assets other than cash. Funds previously raised
by the Company have been utilized for the identification and evaluation of potential Qualifying Transactions and to
meet its corporate law and continuous disclosure requirements, including the holding of annual shareholders’ meetings
on July 26, 2012 and August 21, 2013.

The acquisition of all of the issued and outstanding ISIS Shares, to be affected by the Amalgamation, is meant to
constitute the Company’s Qualifying Transaction under the CPC Policy. Upon completion of the Amalgamation, ISIS
will amalgamate with Wedona Newco to form Amalco, which will be a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
On completion of the Offering, it is expected that the Company will qualify for listing on the Exchange as a Tier 2
Technology Issuer. See “Proposed Qualifying Transaction” and “ISIS Lab Inc.” for a description of the business to
be owned and carried on by the Company following the Closing of the Company’s Qualifying Transaction and the
Offering.

The Company will carry on the business of ISIS, as described in this Prospectus, following the concurrent completion
of the Offering and of the Company’s Qualifying Transaction.

ISIS LAB INC.

Name and Incorporation

Isis Lab Inc. was incorporated by articles of incorporation on July 28, 2010 under the OBCA. ISIS’ articles were
amended on August 15, 2011 to change the name of the company from ISIS Gaming Inc. to ISIS Lab Inc., and again
on January 29, 2013 to affect a share split whereby every common share of ISIS was split for 6.9072189 ISIS Shares.
The share split was effected in anticipation of the Qualifying Transaction so that upon exchange of ISIS Shares for
Transaction Shares on completion of the Qualifying Transaction the former ISIS shareholders will hold
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approximately 85% of the outstanding Common Shares (on a non-diluted basis and without taking into account the
Offering or the CPC Share Escrow Transaction). On September 6, 2012, ISIS cancelled all of its Class A and Class B
shares in order to accommodate future financing. ISIS’ registered office is located at 964 Westport Crescent, Unit #6,
Mississauga, Ontario L5T 1S3.

Inter-corporate Relationships

ISIS holds 100% of the issued and outstanding voting shares of Tech Channel Corporation (“TCC”), which was
incorporated pursuant to the laws of Panama on December 25, 2010, and has its registered office at 3308 Torre Global
Bank, Panama City, Panama. There are 500 issued and outstanding voting shares of TCC. After giving effect to the
Qualifying Transaction, ISIS will amalgamate with Wedona Newco to form Amalco, which will be a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, to be named ISIS Lab Inc.

Overview of the Online Gaming Industry

Online gambling has been one of the most rapidly expanding segments of the gambling industry. A variety of types of
games comprise the online gaming market, including sports betting, online poker, casino games, online lottery, and
online bingo.

According to a KPMG report published online in April, 2010 on Forbes.com: “the online gaming business is
progressively moving into markets around the world, changing the model of the gambling industry as many
consumers turn to the Internet to bet on sports, gamble on slots or play cards. Despite potential political and
legislative restrictions, the market, which already produces more than US$20 billion in worldwide revenue, may be
ready to grow further as new geographic regions open up and many governments become more receptive to Internet-
based gaming. One attraction of the online gaming market is its very high rate of growth. H2 Gambling Capital, one
of the most widely quoted sources of online gaming statistics, says the market for global interactive gaming will grow
about 42 percent to US$30 billion in 2012 from US$21.2 billion in 2008. This is significantly faster than the 15
percent growth that H2 forecasts for the gambling industry as a whole over the same period.” 1

Overview of ISIS’ Business

ISIS is in the business of design, development, and distribution of social-media based online bingo software for the
regulated gaming industry. ISIS’ bingo software includes a socially networked, community-oriented, interactive
gaming platform for online bingo in a regulated environment. ISIS targets the female demographic, which it believes to
be underserved, by developing, designing, and deploying market products and services that are tailored to the female
demographic.

ISIS generates its revenue from two main revenue streams: (i) software license and other related fees; and (ii) support
and maintenance services provided by its wholly-owned subsidiary TCC. ISIS currently has one customer, Cladstone
Limited (“Cladstone”), as described under “ISIS’ Three-year History” below.

ISIS’ Three-year History

The development of ISIS’ software (the “Software”) was finalized in January of 2011 and the ‘beta’ version was
subsequently released. In February of 2011, TCC was certified and licensed by the Government of Panama to operate a
full service and support call center in Panama City, Panama. On March 3, 2011, ISIS received certification for certain
aspects of its Software (namely, its Random Number Generator, back-office and reporting system, and gaming
platform) from Technical Systems Testing (“TST”, a subsidiary of Gaming Labs International) a gaming testing
laboratory whose gaming license is accepted by many regulated jurisdictions such as the State of Nevada, the Province
of Quebec, and the Isle of Man. As a software provider to licensed operators, this certification enables ISIS’ Software
to be licensed and utilized by operators licensed in jurisdictions that recognize TST certification, including the Isle of
Man.

1 “Online Gaming: A Gamble or a Sure Bet?,” KPMG, 2010
http://www.forbes.com/forbesinsights/onlinegambling/index.html
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In April of 2011, ISIS obtained its first licensee for its Software, Cladstone, pursuant to a license agreement (the
“Cladstone License Agreement”) dated effective April 1, 2011 between ISIS and Cladstone. ISIS delivered its full-
featured Software for commercial use to Cladstone in July of 2011. In conjunction with the entering into of the
Cladstone License Agreement, ISIS and Cladstone entered into a loan agreement (the “Cladstone Credit Facility”)
dated effective April 1, 2011, and TCC and Cladstone entered into a five year service and support agreement (the
“Cladstone Services Agreement”) dated effective April 1, 2011. See “Cladstone Agreements” below for further
details regarding Cladstone and related agreements.

In March of 2012, ISIS relocated its Software development office from Vancouver, Canada to Toronto, Canada and
consolidated its Canadian operations at its Mississauga, Canada office.  During the current financial year, management
of ISIS plans to continue developing its business through additional marketing initiatives to expand the licensee base
(see “Marketing Plans and Strategies”). ISIS has, based on audited consolidated financial statements for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2012, raised capital of $4,899,500. To date, ISIS has not completed any acquisitions or
dispositions.

Cladstone Agreements

Cladstone is a private Isle of Man company that is licensed by the Isle of Man Gaming Supervision Commission (the
“GSC”) to operate online gambling activities in the Isle of Man. The GSC is a body corporate that licenses and
regulates land-based gambling operations (casino, amusement and slot machines, betting offices and lotteries) as well
as all online gambling activities in the Isle of Man. Isle of Man license-holders are currently “white-listed” by the
United Kingdom Gambling Commission, and therefore Isle of Man license-holders are entitled to advertise their
services in the United Kingdom. Cladstone is the owner of Rogers Bingo, an online bingo social network that offers
bingo and related games, and related brands and websites, through which it offers online gaming services using the
Software licensed pursuant to the Cladstone License Agreement. Cladstone is arm's length to ISIS and the Company.

Pursuant to the Cladstone License Agreement, ISIS granted Cladstone a non-exclusive, non-transferable license to use
its Software for a term of five years, subject to earlier termination of the Cladstone License Agreement in accordance
with its terms. The license granted to Cladstone is a worldwide license, except for the excluded territories of United
States of America, Canada and any other territories and/or countries prohibited under Isle of Man regulations. Pursuant
to the Cladstone License Agreement, subject to the grace period noted below, ISIS earns a monthly fee (the “License
Fee”) for the license of the Software and related services based upon a scale of fees, whereby the fee per month varies
depending on the number of unique users that log on to Cladstone's websites and use the Software during the month.
According to the Cladstone License Agreement, ISIS granted Cladstone a 24 month grace period on the Licence Fees
payable, and such fee only began accruing from April 1, 2013 onward.

Pursuant to the Cladstone Services Agreement, TCC provides call centre services and support to Cladstone for a five
year term, commencing April 1, 2011, which term will automatically renew upon expiry for a period of 12 months
unless otherwise agreed by the parties thereto. In consideration for such services, Cladstone has agreed to pay ISIS a
fee of $10,000.00 per month, commencing April 1, 2011, the collection of which ISIS waived for the first 24 months of
operation up to March 31, 2013. From April 1, 2013, TCC commenced invoicing at the previously stated rate of
$10,000.00 plus $6,666.66 per month to recoup fees for months one to 24. During the twelve months ended December
31, 2012, $120,000 was recognized as revenue (December 31, 2011 - $90,000) on account of the Cladstone Service
Agreement. Subject to earlier termination (upon a breach of the Cladstone Services Agreement), the Cladstone Services
Agreement may be terminated after the initial one year period by either party giving the other three months written
notice.

Pursuant to the Cladstone Credit Facility, ISIS originally agreed to make available to Cladstone a credit facility in an
amount not exceeding the aggregate of £500,000 in any 12 month period to support Cladstone's daily operations. On
September 12, 2013, ISIS and Cladstone entered into an amendment to the Cladstone Credit Facility pursuant to which
Cladstone can no longer draw down any further amounts under the credit facility. The amount outstanding under the
loan will become due upon demand of ISIS at such time that Cladstone is in a position to repay such demand or
otherwise upon certain events of default. As at the date hereof, the principal amount outstanding under the Cladstone
Credit Facility is $457,205 (December 31, 2012- $393,570). The amount advanced under the Cladstone Credit Facility
is unsecured and interest on such amount is calculated and accrued at an annual rate of 12%. Since the balance is not
expected to be repaid within 12 months, it is classified as a long term asset.
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Additionally, Cladstone paid certain expenses on behalf of ISIS’ subsidiary, TCC, amounting to £163,853 as at
December 31, 2012 and £163,853 as at June 30, 2013, which amount owing is unsecured and bears no interest. The
parties have agreed that the amount owing will be offset against invoices issued by TCC to Cladstone for services
under the Cladstone Services Agreement.

ISIS Debenture Financing

During the current financial year, in order to fund the operations of ISIS until completion of the Amalgamation, ISIS
has been undertaking the ISIS Debenture Financing whereby it is offering up to $1,000,000 principal amount of ISIS
Debentures and up to 400,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants for gross proceeds of up to $1,000,000. For each $2,500
principal amount of an ISIS Debentures subscribed for, subscribers receive 1,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants.

To date, ISIS has issued $852,500 principal amount of ISIS Debentures and 341,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants for
aggregate gross proceeds of $852,500. ISIS is authorized to issue up to an additional $147,500 principal amount of
ISIS Debentures and 59,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants pursuant to the ISIS Debenture Financing for additional
aggregate gross proceeds of $147,500. ISIS may continue offering additional ISIS Debentures and ISIS Debenture
Warrants under the ISIS Debenture Financing at any time prior to 36 days before the Closing Date.

The ISIS Debentures are unsecured and bear interest at the rate of 24% per annum, payable on maturity, however
subsequent to Closing, the interest rate on those ISIS Debentures being postponed (as described below) will be reduced
to 3% per annum. The aggregate principal amount and accrued interest of all outstanding ISIS Debentures, excluding
certain ISIS Debentures in the aggregate principal amount of $395,000 as of the date hereof, which will be postponed
for 18 months following Closing upon the conditions described below (see “ISIS Debt Deferment”), will be fully repaid
concurrently on completion of the Amalgamation from the net proceeds of the Offering. See “Use of Proceeds” and
“ISIS Debt Deferment”.

Each ISIS Debenture Warrant is exercisable into one ISIS Share at an exercise price of $0.25 per share in the first year
from the date of issue and thereafter at $0.30 per share until the earlier of the date that is 24 months from the Closing
Date and December 31, 2015 (or such other exercise price as may be required by the Exchange), with the exception of
68,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants issued after August 30, 2013 which shall expire 30 days after Closing. Each
outstanding ISIS Debenture Warrant will be converted into one (1) Replacement Warrant on completion of the
Amalgamation, and the Replacement Warrants will carry the same terms as the ISIS Debenture Warrants, subject to
such amendments that may be required by the Exchange and applicable law.

Tito Gandhi, a current principal shareholder and the CFO of ISIS and an expected Principal and proposed director and
Vice Chairman of the Resulting Issuer, has to date purchased $50,000 principal amount of ISIS Debentures and 20,000
ISIS Debenture Warrants under the ISIS Debenture Financing. Holders of ISIS Shares, Tito Gandhi, Frank Waszkun,
Don MacKinnon, and Nejib Biya are each 20% shareholders of 2213802 Ontario Inc., a company which has purchased
$245,000 principal amount of ISIS Debentures and 98,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants. See “Principal Shareholders”.

ISIS Short Term Loan

Pursuant to an agreement dated September 27, 2012 (as amended August 15, 2013), ISIS borrowed the sum of
$100,000 from Forbes & Manhattan Inc., a private merchant bank controlled by Stan Bharti. The loan is unsecured and
accrues interest at the rate of 3.0% per annum for which interest will be payable in full by the Resulting Issuer on
completion of the Qualifying Transaction. Forbes & Manhattan Inc. has agreed to a deferment of the outstanding
principal amount owing for 18 months following Closing in the event that proceeds raised under the Offering do not
exceed $5,000,000 (see “ISIS Debt Deferment” and “Use of Proceeds”). Stan Bharti owns 4,187,501 ISIS Shares,
representing 17.52% of the outstanding ISIS Shares as of the date hereof and is expected to own Common Shares
representing 10.13% of the outstanding Common Shares on completion of the Qualifying Transaction and assuming the
Minimum Offering. Stan Bharti is the brother of Tito Gandhi, a current principal shareholder and the CFO of ISIS and
a proposed director and Vice Chairman of the Resulting Issuer. See “Principal Shareholders”.
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Consulting Services Agreement

ISIS is party to a consulting agreement dated October 1, 2012 and amended as of June 27, 2013, June 28, 2013, August
9, 2013, August 27, 2013 and September 9, 2013, the “York Capital Consulting Agreement”) with York Capital
Partners Inc. (“York Capital”) pursuant to which York Capital provides certain financial, legal and business
consulting services to ISIS for a term (the “Term”) ending on the date that is two years from the Closing of a going
public transaction, which would include the Qualifying Transaction. York Capital is paid $5,000 per month until
completion of the Qualifying Transaction with a bonus of up to $15,000 each fiscal quarter. During the first year
subsequent to completion of the Qualifying Transaction, York Capital will be paid $12,500 per month and up to a
$15,000 bonus each fiscal quarter. During the second year following completion of the Qualifying Transaction, York
Capital will be paid $15,000 per month and a bonus of up to $20,000 each fiscal quarter.  York Capital has also been
granted 1,036,082 ISIS Options, which are anticipated to be exercised into 1,036,082 ISIS Shares prior to completion
of the Qualifying Transaction. A total of $90,000 with respect to monthly consulting fees and bonus payments accrued
from October 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 and $30,000 with respect to monthly consulting fees and bonus payments
accrued from June 30, 2013 to September 30, 2013 will be payable upon Closing, except in the event that less than
$4,500,000 is raised under the Offering, in which case York Capital has agreed to postpone such accrued amounts for
18 months following Closing. Pursuant to the York Capital Consulting Agreement, ISIS is to prepay on Closing all fees
that are payable in the first year after the Closing; provided that if less than $4,500,000 is raised under the Offering,
York Capital has agreed to waive prepayment and will postpone for 18 months following Closing all fees and bonuses
payable during the period (see “ISIS Debt Deferment” below, and “Use of Proceeds”). The York Capital Consulting
Agreement can be terminated: (i) upon mutual agreement of the parties; (ii) by York Capital, if ISIS ceases to carry on
business or becomes insolvent or if any payment obligation of ISIS under the agreement remains unpaid for a period of
30 days; or (iii) by ISIS, if York Capital ceases to carry on business or becomes insolvent or if York Capital neglects or
refuses to provide service under the agreement for a period of 30 days after being notified of such in writing. If York
Capital terminates the York Capital Consulting Agreement after Closing in the circumstances of item (ii) of the
foregoing sentence, the consulting fees due to the end of the Term become due and payable by ISIS. Certain Principals
of York Capital collectively own 431,700 ISIS Shares representing 1.8% of the outstanding ISIS Shares as of the date
hereof and will own common shares representing 0.98% of the outstanding Common Shares on completion of the
Qualifying Transaction and assuming the Minimum Offering. In addition, the Finder, which is entitled to the Finders
shares on Closing, is an affiliate of a principal of York Capital.

ISIS Debt Deferment

Pursuant to certain agreements with ISIS Debentureholders, Forbes & Manhattan Inc., 2213802 Ontario Inc. and York
Capital, an aggregate of $765,000 owing to such parties as at September 30, 2013 has been deferred for a period of 18
months following the Closing subject to certain conditions described below. 2213802 Ontario Inc. has agreed to defer
repayment of ISIS Debentures in the aggregate principal amount of $245,000 for 18 months following Closing in the
event that proceeds raised under the Offering do not exceed $5,000,000.  Nejib Biya has agreed to postpone repayment
of ISIS Debentures in the aggregate principal amount of $100,000 for 18 months following Closing, and Tito Gandhi
has agreed to postpone repayment of ISIS Debentures in the aggregate principal amount of $50,000 for 18 months
following Closing, but in each case only in the event that proceeds raised under the Offering do not exceed $4,500,000.
Forbes & Manhattan Inc. has agreed to defer payment of the $100,000 principal owing under the ISIS Short Term Loan
for 18 months following Closing, with only accrued interest being payable on Closing, but only in the event that
proceeds raised under the Offering do not exceed $5,000,000. 2213802 Ontario Inc. has also agreed to postpone for 18
months following Closing certain payments owed to employees of ISIS being paid through 2213802 Ontario Inc. in the
amount of $150,000, but only in the event that proceeds raised under the offering do not exceed $4,500,000. York
Capital has agreed to defer payment of monthly consulting fees and bonus payments accrued since October 1, 2012
($120,000 as of September 30, 2013) for a period of 18 months following Closing, except that if proceeds raised under
the Offering exceed $4,500,000, such accrued amounts will be payable at Closing.

Furthermore, the repayment of any additional ISIS Debentures issued prior to Closing pursuant to the ISIS Debenture
Financing may also be postponed for 18 months following Closing. York Capital has also agreed to postpone for 18
months from Closing the prepayment of all monthly fees and bonuses payable in the first year after the Closing if
proceeds of the Offering do not exceed $4,500,000. See “Use of Proceeds”.
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Regulation and Licensing

The production of online gaming solutions is subject to extensive regulation. ISIS must comply with applicable
regulations for each jurisdiction within which it operates. See “Market” below for a description of the current and
proposed markets of ISIS. ISIS’ software is currently only being licensed to Cladstone, which is currently only able to
offer its gambling services to users in the Isle of Man and the United Kingdom.

Canada

While located in Canada, ISIS is not currently subject to gaming regulations in Canada, does not currently lease its
software to any Canadian-based operator nor does ISIS currently have any plans to obtain licenses to operate in any
Canadian jurisdictions. However, in Canada, gaming activities are regulated federally under the Criminal Code
(“Criminal Code”) as well as under provincial legislation. The Criminal Code prohibits most gaming activity subject
to certain prescribed exemptions, which include manufacturing of gaming solutions conducted by a duly licensed
entity. In order to market products in a given province, ISIS must first receive the appropriate licence and registrations
from a provincial lottery and gaming commission (a “Gaming Commission”).

Each province in which ISIS may market products has gaming control legislation in force under which that province
regulates gaming activities. The gaming control legislation, regulations promulgated thereunder and rules adopted by
Gaming Commissions take into account a number of public policy concerns, including: the integrity of gaming; the
prevention of unsuitable persons from having a direct or indirect involvement with gaming at any time or in any
capacity; the establishment and maintenance of responsible accounting practices and procedures; the maintenance of
effective controls over the financial practices of registrants; and the prevention of cheating and fraudulent practices in
gaming. Provincial gaming legislation permits the registration of private entities to provide gaming-related services as
agents, service providers or service suppliers to provincial Crown corporations to conduct and manage gaming in the
province.

Isle of Man

ISIS Software is certified to be compliant with the requirements of the GSC. The GSC licenses and regulates land-
based gambling operations (casino, amusement and slot machines, betting offices and lotteries), as well as all online
gambling activities in the Isle of Man. It seeks to ensure that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way to protect
the young and vulnerable and to prevent gambling from being a source of or supporting of crime or disorder. It reviews
all new license applicants and also undertakes post licensing reviews. It also seeks to ensure that gambler protection
mechanisms are appropriate and investigates complaints from gamblers. Certification in the Isle of Man provides ISIS
with “white-listed” status in the United Kingdom, such that its certificate is recognized and accepted in the United
Kingdom.

Panama

TCC is licensed to operate a call center in Panama City, Panama by the Government of Panama. The call center license
allows TCC to operate a call center and provide support to internationally placed clients. TCC is not subject to gaming
regulations in Panama.

Principal Products and Services

Current Principal Products

ISIS’ principal Software products are categorized as Bingo Platform, E-Commerce System/Cashier, Back-Office
Reporting System, and Social Network Platform, and are licensed individually or as a package. Cladstone is a licensee
of each of the principal products, which are set out and described in the table below:
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Product Name Product Description

Bingo Platform ISIS’ Bingo Platform is available in multiplayer format in a variety of styles
including North American, European, and Scandinavian. ISIS Bingo Platform also
supports multi-language and multi-currency features. The platform has been designed
to be fully customizable, enabling a licensee to provide its services in a localized
fashion.

E-Commerce
System/Cashier

ISIS’ cashier system has been designed to process financial transactions and manage
a licensee’s transactions in a secure environment. The Cashier system works as a
single wallet solution enabling multiple payment processing options offered to the
end-user under one roof.

Back-Office Reporting
System

ISIS’ Back-Office Reporting System has been tested and certified by TST. The Back-
Office allows the licensee to manage operations through a single interface in a secure
environment. It further enables the licensee to track and view live data and reports of
the progress of the operation.

Social Network Platform ISIS’ Social Network Platform encompasses a full-feature set of popular social media
features embedded into a regulated gaming environment.

Current Services

Services provided by ISIS are divided into two areas, namely (1) Support, Professional and Maintenance Services and
(2) Software Services.

Type of Service Description of Service

Support, Professional and
Maintenance Services

Through ISIS’ wholly-owned subsidiary, TCC, a licensee is provided customer
support 24/7. These services include technical support, customer care, graphic design,
marketing and advertising, and other related services.

Software Services Software services include the development and maintenance of the software products
and services. Most of these services are conducted at ISIS’ office in Mississauga,
Ontario.

Future Developments

Currently, research and development work is on-going for the following product upgrades:

Product Name Research and Development Status

Mobile Platform ISIS is currently in the process of development of its mobile platform, which would
allow ISIS to offer its Software products and services, including its bingo and social
media products and services across all mobile platforms, including iOS, Windows
Phone, and Android. Management believes the steps required to reach
commercialization are completion of the development, testing, pricing, and
development of a marketing strategy. Management believes the investment required to
reach commercialization of the mobile gaming social platform will be approximately
$100,000. Management believes that completion of the development process and
launch of the mobile platform will take approximately six (6) months from the date of
this Prospectus to complete and become available to Cladstone in addition to other
prospective licensees. The uncertainties related to this project include, but are not
limited to, the following: adequate funding, major software development disruptions,
personnel disruptions, and management’s expectations of market acceptance.
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Revenue Model

Software License and Other Related Fees

ISIS charges its licensee Cladstone fees based on the number of users using the Software. Other types of charges
include fees related to design, development, and setup. As part of the Cladstone License Agreement, ISIS decided that
it was commercially advantageous to give a two-year moratorium of fees related to Software usage. As a result, the
Software License and Other Related Fees operating segment accounted for no revenues during the first two years of the
Cladstone License Agreement. See “Cladstone Agreements”.

Support, Professional and Maintenance Services

ISIS’ subsidiary TCC provides support and maintenance services to Cladstone. Pursuant to the Cladstone Services
Agreement, the fees, with interest earned, for the 12 months ended December 31, 2011 were $90,000 and for the
twelve-months ended December 31, 2012 were $120,000. These fees are recognized as revenue for such years,
although in accordance with the Cladstone License Agreement, TCC only began collecting such amounts in April of
2013 as described under “Cladstone Agreements”.

The breakdown for the two main streams of revenue are as follows:

Twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2011

$ and (%)

Twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2012

$ and (%)

Software License & Other Related Fees $0 (0%) $0 (0%)

Support and Professional and Maintenance
Services

$90,000 (100%) $120,000 (100%)

Operations

Production and Sale of Products

ISIS’ products are all designed in-house by in-house product architects, software designers and software developers
and programmers based out of ISIS’ office located in Mississauga, Ontario. The development process goes from idea to
completion as indicated below.
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ISIS’ finished software products are then licensed to a licensee in accordance with the commercial terms of a license
agreement.

Lease Agreements

ISIS sub-leases office space in Mississauga, Ontario on a month to month basis. The office space is sub-leased from a
shareholder of ISIS and expires on April 30, 2014. ISIS may terminate this agreement at any time upon 30 days written
notice.

ISIS subsidiary, TCC, has a lease agreement, payable month-to-month, which is in good standing, for its offices in
Panama City, Panama. The lease agreement has no contractual expiration date.

Specialized Skill and Knowledge

The design, development, and distribution of social-media based online bingo software require specialized skills and
knowledge. ISIS and its subsidiaries have personnel with the required specialized skills and knowledge to carry out
their respective operations. ISIS’ CEO, Daniel Kajouii, was founder and President of 1 Gaming Inc. from 2001 to
2006. During this time, he saw the company evolve from a small team of developers to one of the world’s leading
providers of online bingo software, specializing in the female demographic. Mr. Kajouii is frequently consulted by
industry publications and industry leaders on the current state and the future of online bingo. His work has been
published by some of the most widely read Internet Gaming publications (including, iGaming Business and E-gaming
Review) and has spoken on the same subject at major industry events. See also “Directors and Executive Officers”.

Cyclical or Seasonal Business

ISIS’ business is not considered to be cyclical or seasonal.

Employees

As at June 30, 2013, ISIS had 6 employees located at the Mississauga, Ontario office and TCC had 17 employees
located at the Panama City, Panama office.
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Difficulty in Acquiring Licensees

The risks involved with acquiring new licensees include the failure to attract qualified personnel and finalise
prospective deals with qualified operators within the restrictions of the regulated jurisdictions that ISIS is able to
provide Software within. In some instances the existing contracts and exit clauses of the licensees interested in coming
on board with ISIS could pose risk of delays. ISIS’ revenue relies in part on the performance of each licensee. While all
efforts are made to qualify the potential of the performance of the licensee, it is subject to the licensee achieving its
goals in marketing and acquiring new clients. The goals of ISIS are to obtain a deposit from each prospective licensee;
however, most revenue is post-paid.

There exists a risk of breach of contract on the part of the licensees in such a way that the licensee abandons the
contract with ISIS for the provision of Software services.

ISIS currently depends on one licensee, Cladstone, for all of its business and ISIS expects that in the future it will
depend on a limited number of customers for a significant portion of its business. The loss of Cladstone or any of such
future customers could materially and adversely affect ISIS and ISIS’ business and financial position. See “Risk
Factors”.

Market

ISIS’ target market consists of potential licensees/operators operating in well-regulated jurisdictions, including the Isle
of Man and the United Kingdom. The industry trends within the current and targeted market segments that ISIS
operates or intends to operate in are (i) transition to mobile platforms, (ii) transition to social gaming, and (iii)
consolidation. The feedback that ISIS has received from Cladstone, its first licensee, indicates that ISIS’ Software is
being well received in the Isle of Man.

The industry that ISIS operates in is online gaming software, which is subject to rapid changes and development.
Management believes that ISIS has cutting-edge software and is well positioned to maintain that advantage through the
integration of social media into its platform and continuous software development. ISIS currently has one licensee,
Cladstone, in the Isle of Man, a well-regulated jurisdiction with high standards.

Marketing Plans and Strategies

ISIS intends to market its Software and services to prospective licensees. Its marketing intentions include trade shows
and trade publications within the first year following the Closing. Additionally, its management believes that its
experience in the industry provides an ability to enter into meaningful discussions with prospective licensees.
Management also believes that its Software, with its embedded social media, gives it a competitive advantage in the
market place. Additionally, management also believes that by working towards the success of its first licensee,
Cladstone, the marketing of its Software and services to prospective licensees will be more likely to succeed.

ISIS intends to invest up to $400,000 attending key trade shows in the twelve months following the Closing in order to
market its products and services to prospective licensees. ISIS intends to attend the following trade shows within the
first twelve months: International Casino Exhibition (ICE) in London in February 2014; London Affiliate Conference
(LAC) in London in February 2014; Global iGaming Summit & Expo (GiGSe) in San Francisco in May 2014; Global
Gaming Expo (G2E) in Las Vegas in September 2014; and European iGaming Expo (EiG) in Barcelona in October
2014.

ISIS intends to invest up to $100,000 in trade publications to market its products and services to prospective licensees
in the twelve months following the Closing, including publications such as iGaming Business, E-gaming Review
Magazine, and Casino Life Magazine.

Competitive Conditions

The market for gaming solutions is highly competitive, constantly evolving and subject to rapid technological chance.
New or expanding gaming solutions generate new product demand which, in turn, stimulates replacement demand.
Competitors are then compelled to upgrade their services in order to remain competitive. The names of the competitors
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currently in the space that ISIS operates are Playtech, Dragonfish Tech (B2B Division of 888 Holdings), Amaya
Gaming, MicroGaming, Nyx Interactive, Cozy Games, Facebook, and Betable.

ISIS’ principal competitive advantages include product differentiation and in-house expertise. Management believes
ISIS to have a specialized product offering targeted to a female demographic, which it believes to be underserved, by
developing, designing, and deploying market products and services that are tailored to this underserved market.
Management believes that ISIS’ products and services provide a competitive advantage due to the fact that ISIS’
products include a social network-integrated gaming platform that is not widely commercially available. Management
further believes that this product differentiation will allow its current licensee and potential licensees to outperform
market indicators essential to operators. Additionally, management believes that ISIS’ in-house expertise offers ISIS a
competitive advantage as a result of the history and experience that key personnel of ISIS possess and which
management believes prospective licensees value. ISIS’ key personnel experience in the market dates to the
establishment and beginnings of the online gaming sector and is considered by management to be a competitive
advantage vis-à-vis ISIS’ principal competitors.

Proprietary Protection

ISIS’ general practice is to require all key employees and consultants to sign confidentiality agreements and assign all
rights of inventions to ISIS. All source codes are stored and backed up in a central server, based at its Mississauga,
Ontario office, with limited access granted only to senior management of ISIS. Additionally, a copy of the source code
is routinely backed-up and placed in a safety deposit box in ISIS’ bank.

ISIS does not own any patents nor has it made or currently intends to make any patent applications. See “Risk Factors”.

Lending

ISIS does not have investment policies or lending and investment restrictions. Management of ISIS from time to time,
and on an as-required basis, make recommendations to the board to approve a lending decision. See “Cladstone
Agreements” for certain arrangements between ISIS and Cladstone.

Current Directors and Officers of ISIS

The following table sets out the current directors and executive officers of ISIS and the number and percentage of ISIS
Shares presently held.  For information regarding the proposed directors and executive officers of the Company on
completion of the Qualifying Transaction, see “Directors and Executive Officers”.

Name and Municipality of
Residence

Position and Period
with ISIS(1)

Principal Occupation for
Last Five Years

Number and Percentage of ISIS
Shares Beneficially Owned as of

the date hereof (2)

Daniel Kajouii
Brampton, ON

President, CEO &
Director since July 28,

2010

President and CEO of
ISIS

4,023,455
(16.84%)

Tito Gandhi (3)

Caledon East, ON
CFO and Director
since July 28, 2010

CFO of ISIS; CEO of Raj
Gaming Corp

6,458,249
(27.03%)

Frank Waszkun(4)

Toronto, ON
Secretary and Director

since July 28, 2010
President of 2213802

Ontario Inc.
2,054,897

(8.6%)
Julian Bharti
Toronto, ON

Director since April
2012

President and CEO of
Delano Capital Corp.

777,062
(3.25%)

Chris Kajouii(5)

Toronto, ON
VP Operations since

May 2011
VP Operations of ISIS

196,856
(0.82%)

Notes:
(1) Directors stand for re-election annually. The directors of ISIS will serve until the end of the next annual meeting of

shareholders of ISIS.
(2) The information as to shares beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, or over which control or direction is exercised, is

based upon information furnished to ISIS by the respective directors and executive officers as at the date hereof and does
not include any convertible securities held by such person.

(3) Mr. Gandhi owns 6,026,548 ISIS Shares directly and 431,701 ISIS Shares indirectly through 2213802 Ontario Inc. Mr.
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Gandhi also directly owns 20,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants and indirectly owns 19,600 ISIS Debenture Warrants through
2213802 Ontario Inc.

(4) Mr. Waszkun owns 1,623,196 Common Shares directly and 431,701 shares indirectly through 2213802 Ontario Inc. Mr.
Waszkun also owns 19,600 ISIS Debenture Warrants indirectly through 2213802 Ontario Inc.

(5) The ISIS shares held by Chris Kajouii are registered in his legal name, Farzad Agha-Kajouii.

PROPOSED QUALIFYING TRANSACTION

Overview

Pursuant to the Amalgamation Agreement, the Company has agreed to acquire all of the issued and outstanding ISIS
Shares by way of a three-corned amalgamation, whereby, upon Closing, Wedona Newco and ISIS will amalgamate
under the OBCA to form the amalgamated entity, Amalco.  Amalco will be a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and be named ISIS Lab Inc.

The corporate structure of the Company upon completion of the Qualifying Transaction will be as follows:

Rather than receiving securities of Amalco, the securityholders of ISIS will receive securities of the Company, as
described below. Following completion of the Amalgamation, the Company will carry on the business of ISIS and it is
expected that the Company will be listed on the Exchange as a Tier 2 technology issuer.

As consideration for the acquisition of ISIS, on Closing, each holder of an ISIS Share will receive one (1) Transaction
Share for each ISIS Share held immediately prior to completion of the Amalgamation and each holder of an ISIS
Debenture Warrant will receive one (1) Replacement Warrant for each ISIS Debenture Warrant held immediately prior
to completion of the Amalgamation.

There are currently 23,897,251 ISIS Shares outstanding, 1,036,082 ISIS Options outstanding, $852,500 principal
amount of ISIS Debentures outstanding and 341,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants outstanding.  Up to an additional
$147,500 ISIS Debentures and 59,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants may be issued prior to Closing under the ISIS
Debenture Financing (see “ISIS Lab Inc. – ISIS Debenture Financing”). Prior to Closing, ISIS intends to accelerate the
exercise period of the ISIS Options in accordance with its terms such that the ISIS Options shall expire no later than the
Closing, and ISIS expects that York Capital will exercise its 1,036,082 ISIS Options into 1,036,082 ISIS Shares at an
exercise price of $0.1013 per ISIS Share.  Upon Closing, the ISIS Debentures will be repaid in full, except that certain
ISIS Debentures in the aggregate principal amount of $395,000 outstanding as at the date hereof will be postponed for
18 months following Closing upon certain conditions (see "Isis Lab Inc. - ISIS Debt Deferment").

As such, immediately prior to Closing, it is expected that 24,933,333 ISIS Shares will be issued and outstanding and
341,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants will be issued and outstanding (assuming there is no exercise of existing ISIS
Debenture Warrants or no additional issuances of ISIS Debenture Warrants under the ISIS Debenture Financing),
which, pursuant to the Amalgamation, will be exchanged for 24,933,333 Transaction Shares and 341,000 Replacement

WEDONA CAPITAL INC.
(to be renamed

ISIS LAB CORPORATION)
(British Columbia)

100%

100%

ISIS LAB INC.
(Ontario)

TECH CHANNEL CORPORATION
(Panama)
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Warrants. The Amalgamation will result in the former holders of ISIS Shares holding approximately 85% of the issued
and outstanding Common Shares on a non-diluted basis (without taking into account the Offering and the CPC Escrow
Share Transaction or the issuance of the Finder’s Shares). See “Consolidated Capitalization”.

In connection with the Qualifying Transaction and in accordance with to Exchange Policy 2.4, the Company advanced
the sum of $25,000 to ISIS for working capital purposes on September 4, 2013, which is evidenced by a promissory
note and payable on demand at any time after and in the event the Amalgamation Agreement is terminated. Such
indebtedness does not accrue interest and is not secured.

The number and terms of securities to be issued in connection with the Qualifying Transaction were determined
pursuant to arm’s length negotiations between the Company and ISIS. The Qualifying Transaction is not a Non-Arm’s
Length Qualifying Transaction.

Completion of the Amalgamation is subject to compliance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Amalgamation
Agreement. The Amalgamation, if completed, will constitute the Company’s Qualifying Transaction for the purpose of
the policies of the Exchange.

The Amalgamation will be effected pursuant to the Amalgamation Agreement, which contains covenants,
representations and warranties of and from each of the Company and ISIS, as well as various conditions precedent,
both mutual and with respect to the Company and ISIS, including, without limitation, receipt of regulatory and
shareholder approval and completion of the Minimum Offering. Unless all of such conditions are satisfied or waived by
the party for whose benefit such conditions exist, to the extent they may be capable of waiver, the Amalgamation will
not proceed. There is no assurance that the conditions will be satisfied or waived on a timely basis, or at all. See
“Conditions to the Qualifying Transaction Becoming Effective” below.

In addition, pursuant to a finder’s fee agreement (the “Finder’s Fee Agreement”) dated as of June 28, 2013 (as
amended on October 20, 2013) between the Company and Parolini Family Holdings Limited (the “Finder”) the
Company has agreed to issue to the Finder upon and subject to Closing 1,303,195 Common Shares (the “Finder’s
Shares”), at a deemed price of $0.30 per share, as a finder’s fee in relation to the Amalgamation. The Finder’s Shares
will be subject to resale restrictions imposed by securities laws and the Finder’s Shares are expected to be subject to
escrow on Closing on such terms as required by the Exchange and/or the Agent. The issuance of the Finder’s Shares is
subject to the approval of the Exchange.

The following summarizes the material terms of the Amalgamation and the Amalgamation Agreement. The following
summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Amalgamation Agreement, which contains full
particulars of the Company’s Qualifying Transaction. A copy of the Amalgamation Agreement will be available for
review during normal business hours until the Closing at the offices of the Company’s counsel at 155 Glenora Gates,
10403 – 122 Street, Edmonton, AB  T5N 4C1. A copy of the Amalgamation Agreement is available on SEDAR under
the Company’s profile, which can be accessed through the internet at www.sedar.com.

Closing Date and Effective Time of Transaction

The closing of the Amalgamation will take place concurrently with the initial closing of the Offering (such concurrent
closing referred to herein as the “Closing”, and the date on which such Closing will occur is referred to herein as the
“Closing Date”) on such date designated jointly by the Company, ISIS and the Agent, which Closing Date will be no
later than November 22, 2013 unless the parties otherwise agree.

The Amalgamation will become effective at 12:01 a.m. (EST) (the “Effective Time”) on the Closing Date (which will
be the date of filing of the articles of amalgamation with respect to the Amalgamation) or at such later time as may be
designated jointly by the Company, ISIS and the Agent.

Effects of the Amalgamation

At the Effective Time, the following shall occur and shall be deemed to occur in the following order without any
further act or formality:
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(a) Wedona Newco and ISIS shall amalgamate to form Amalco and shall continue as one company under the
OBCA;

(b) immediately upon the Amalgamation:

(i) each one (1) ISIS Share shall be exchanged for one (1) fully-paid and non-assessable Transaction
Share;

(ii) each one (1) ISIS Debenture Warrant shall be replaced with one (1) Replacement Warrant with the
same terms and conditions;

(iii) each one (1) common share of Wedona Newco shall be exchanged for one (1) fully-paid and non-
assessable common share of Amalco;

(iv) all of the property and assets of each of ISIS and Wedona Newco shall be the property and assets of
Amalco and Amalco shall be liable for all of the liabilities and obligations of each of ISIS and
Wedona Newco; and

(v) Amalco shall be a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Name Change

At or shortly after Closing, the Company will change its name to “ISIS Lab Corporation”, or such other name as the
board of directors of the Company may determine and that is acceptable to the Exchange.

Directors and Officers on Closing

At Closing, the board of directors of the Company will be increased from four to five and the current four directors of
the Company are expected to resign. The Amalgamation Agreement provides that the board of directors of the
Resulting Issuer will consist of five (5) directors, all of which will be nominees of ISIS, anticipated to be Daniel
Kajouii, Tito Gandhi, Michael Davidson, Bernie Wilson, and Norm Inkster. It is expected that Daniel Kajouii will
become President, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Chairman and Ian Campbell will become Chief Financial
Officer and Corporate Secretary of the Resulting Issuer. See “Directors and Executive Officers”.

CPC Escrow Share Transaction

In connection with the Qualifying Transaction, it is the intention of Messrs. Daniel Kajouii, Tito Gandhi, Chris Kajouii,
Ian Campbell, and Stan Bharti, directly or indirectly, to purchase the 2,000,000 CPC Escrow Shares (currently being
held in escrow pursuant to the CPC Escrow Agreement) for aggregate consideration of $150,000, pursuant to the terms
of a share purchase agreement to be entered into with the current holders of the CPC Escrow Shares. The completion of
the CPC Escrow Share Transaction is subject to a number of conditions, including but not limited to: (i) obtaining the
approval of the Exchange, (ii) the closing of the Qualifying Transaction, and (iii) Messrs. Daniel Kajouii, Tito Gandhi,
Chris Kajouii, Ian Campbell, and Stan Bharti, as purchasers of the CPC Escrow Shares, being bound by and assuming
the relevant seed share resale restrictions of the Exchange set out in the CPC Escrow Agreement. Pursuant to the CPC
Escrow Share Transaction, certain Principals of the Company who are the holders of the CPC Escrow Shares will
receive the benefit of the proceeds from the sale of the CPC Escrow Shares. The Principals who will receive such
benefits are Randy Clifford ($60,000), Michael Wilson ($60,000) and Douglas Eacret ($30,000).

Representations and Warranties; Covenants

The Amalgamation Agreement contains customary representations and warranties made by each of the Company and
ISIS. Those representations and warranties were made solely for the purposes of the Amalgamation Agreement and are
subject to important qualifications and limitations agreed to by the parties in connection with negotiating its terms.
Moreover, some of the representations and warranties contained in the Amalgamation Agreement are qualified by
knowledge or by reference to a contractual standard of materiality (including a Material Adverse Effect, as such term is
defined in the Amalgamation Agreement) that may be different from that generally applicable to public disclosure to
shareholders, or those standards used for the purpose of allocating risk between parties to an agreement. For the
foregoing reasons, readers should not rely on the representations and warranties contained in the Amalgamation
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Agreement as statements of factual information at the time they were made or otherwise. Shareholders may not directly
enforce or rely upon the terms and conditions of the Amalgamation Agreement.

The representations and warranties provided by each of the Company and ISIS relate to, among other things: their valid
incorporation and existence, authorized capital and outstanding securities, authority and capacity to enter into the
Amalgamation Agreement, no material defaults under any contracts, agreements or licenses, and an absence of certain
material changes and litigation.

In addition, the Amalgamation Agreement contains customary affirmative and negative covenants whereby, among
other things, each of the Company and ISIS covenants to maintain their respective businesses and not take certain
actions outside the ordinary course until the Closing Date or the termination of the Amalgamation Agreement, and to
use commercially reasonable efforts to satisfy certain conditions precedent to their respective obligations under the
Amalgamation Agreement.

Conditions to the Qualifying Transaction Becoming Effective

The respective obligations of the Company and ISIS to complete the Qualifying Transaction are subject to the
satisfaction or waiver, on or before the Closing Date (or such other time as is specified in the condition), of certain
conditions, including, among others, the following:

Mutual Conditions

(a) The Exchange shall have conditionally approved the listing thereon of the Common Shares to be issued
pursuant to the Qualifying Transaction and the Offering and shall have accepted notice for filing of all
transactions of the Company and ISIS necessary to complete the Qualifying Transaction, subject only to
compliance with the usual requirements of the Exchange;

(b) The Exchange and applicable securities commissions shall have approved the Prospectus;

(c) The Company shall have completed the Minimum Offering;

(d) The Effective Time shall be on or before November 22, 2013 or such later date as agreed to in writing by ISIS
and the Company;

(e) ISIS shall have received requisite shareholder approval from its shareholders in respect of the Qualifying
Transaction and related matters, as required;

(f) Any other regulatory approvals or third party consents shall have been obtained, except when the failure to
obtain such approvals or consents would not have a Material Adverse Effect (as such term is defined in the
Amalgamation Agreement) on the partiers or materially impeded the completion of the Qualifying Transaction
and the Offering; and

(g) Any escrow and/or pooling agreements in respect of the Common Shares to be issued pursuant to the
Amalgamation required under the policies of the Exchange shall have been executed and delivered by the
parties thereto.

Additional Conditions in favour of the Company

(a) On or prior to July 31, 2013, the completion by the Company of a satisfactory due diligence investigation of
ISIS and TCC;

(b) ISIS Debentures, excluding those for which repayment has been deferred, and accrued interest on the ISIS
Short Term Loan shall be repaid in full concurrently with the completion of the Qualifying Transaction and
the Offering (see “ISIS Debt Deferment”);

(c) ISIS shall have arranged for a member of the Exchange to sponsor the Qualifying Transaction in accordance
with the policies of the Exchange, if required by the Exchange;

(d) The representations and warranties made by ISIS in the Amalgamation Agreement shall be true and correct as
of the Effective Date, except where any failures or breaches of representations and warranties would not either
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individually or in the aggregate, in the reasonable judgment of the Company, have a Material Adverse Effect
(as such term is defined in the Amalgamation Agreement) on ISIS;

(e) Delivery to the Company of standard certificates of officers of ISIS, as well as delivery to the Company of a
legal opinion relating to ISIS and TCC in form and substance satisfactory to the Company and its counsel,
acting reasonably;

(f) From the date of the Amalgamation Agreement to the Effective Date, there shall not have occurred a Material
Adverse Effect (as such term is defined in the Amalgamation Agreement) with respect to ISIS; and

(g) ISIS shall have caused the exercise of all of the ISIS Options.

Additional Conditions in favour of ISIS

(a) On or prior to July 31, 2013, the completion by ISIS of a satisfactory due diligence investigation of the
Company;

(b) The reconstitution of the board of directors and executive team of the Company as described in “Directors and
Officers on Closing” above shall have been completed;

(d) On or prior to the Closing Date, the CPC Escrow Share Transaction shall have been completed as described in
“CPC Escrow Share Transaction” above, subject to the approval of the Exchange;

(e) The representations and warranties made by the Company in the Amalgamation Agreement shall be true and
correct as of the Closing Date, except where any failures or breaches of representations and warranties would
not either individually or in the aggregate, in the reasonable judgment of the ISIS, have a Material Adverse
Effect (as such term is defined in the Amalgamation Agreement) on the Company;

(f) Delivery to ISIS of standard certificates of officers of the Company, as well as delivery to ISIS of a legal
opinion relating to the Company in form and substance satisfactory to ISIS and its counsel, acting reasonably;
and

(g) From the date of the Amalgamation Agreement to the Effective Date, there shall not have occurred a Material
Adverse Effect (as such term is defined in the Amalgamation Agreement) with respect to the Company.

Conditions of the Exchange

In order to meet the Exchange’s listing requirements, ISIS must provide the Exchange with undertakings prior to listing
with respect to the following:

(a) that it will remain a “software & technology provider” and will not operate a casino or gaming platform;

(b) that it will not, directly or indirectly, commence operations in, or otherwise provide technology for use in a
jurisdiction not previously approved by the Exchange;

(c) that its revenue model will not be based on gaming royalties, or a portion or  percentage of the money played
or gaming proceeds; and

(d) that it will not otherwise materially amend its business plan or revenue model without prior Exchange
approval.

In addition, the Exchange will require an addendum to be added to the Resulting Issuer’s Listing Agreement
confirming the undertakings noted above and a condition that the Resulting Issuer will provide an annual certification
to the Exchange, to be signed by the CEO, CFO and 2 independent directors, confirming the compliance with the
addendum. Furthermore, an acknowledgement of the additional requirements and restrictions in the addendum, signed
by each member of the board of directors of the Resulting Issuer, will be required at Closing.
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Approvals Necessary for the Qualifying Transaction

Shareholder Approval

The Qualifying Transaction, which will be effected by way of the Amalgamation, will not require approval by the
shareholders of the Company but requires the approval of the shareholders of ISIS by way of special resolution in
accordance with the OBCA. ISIS Shareholders approved the Qualifying Transaction on August 23, 2013.

Regulatory Approval

The Qualifying Transaction is subject to the approval of the Exchange (which must also approve the change of the
Company’s name). Listing of the Common Shares to be issued in connection with the Company’s Qualifying
Transaction and the Offering is subject to the Company fulfilling all of the Exchange’s listing requirements. The
Offering is also subject to the approval of certain provincial securities regulatory authorities.

The Company and ISIS will seek an exemption from the Exchange from its requirement to engage a sponsor in
connection with the Qualifying Transaction.

The Company’s deadline to complete a Qualifying Transaction is November 22, 2013 pursuant to the Ama lgamation
Agreement (unless the parties otherwise determine), or otherwise two years from the date of the Company’s IPO in
accordance with Exchange policies, subject to extension with the consent of the Exchange.

Non-Solicitation and Superior Proposal

The Amalgamation Agreement contains customary non-solicitation covenants by both the Company and ISIS, whereby
each party has agreed not to, among other things, solicit, encourage, negotiate, recommend, accept, approve or enter
into an agreement to implement an Acquisition Proposal (as such term is defined in the Amalgamation Agreement).
However, the Amalgamation Agreement contains customary exemptions to permit the respective boards of directors to
exercise their fiduciary duties by accepting an Acquisition Proposal that constitutes a Superior Proposal. In order for a
party to accept a Superior Proposal (as such term is defined in the Amalgamation Agreement), such party must first
comply with the procedures in the Amalgamation Agreement, including providing appropriate notice to the other party
and allowing the other party to propose an amendment to the Amalgamation Agreement to provide for a consideration
having a value equivalent to or more favourable to the shareholders of such party than that of the Superior Proposal.

Termination of the Amalgamation Agreement

The Amalgamation Agreement may be terminated, among other things:

(a) by the mutual written agreement of the parties thereto;

(b) if the Closing Date does not occur before November 22, 2013 or such later date as agreed to in writing by ISIS
and the Company;

(c) by either party if any of the conditions of the Amalgamation Agreement (as summarized above) in such
party’s favour are not satisfied or waived;

(d) by either party, if after public announcement of an Acquisition Proposal by the other party, the Board of
Directors of the other party shall have failed to reaffirm its recommendation of the Qualifying Transaction and
the Amalgamation Agreement; and

(e) by either party, if such party proposes to enter into a definitive agreement with respect to, or approve or
recommend a, Superior Proposal, in each case in compliance with the provisions of the Amalgamation
Agreement, provided that such party has not breached any of its covenants or obligations in the Amalgamation
Agreement.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

Estimated Net Proceeds

Assuming gross proceeds under the Offering equal to $4,000,000 in the case of the Minimum Offering and $6,000,000
in the case of the Maximum Offering (and without taking into account the gross proceeds of up to $900,000 from the
exercise, if any, of the Over-Allotment Option), the net proceeds to be received by the Resulting Issuer under the
Offering are estimated as follows:

Description
Amount ($)

Minimum Offering
Amount ($)

Maximum Offering

Gross Proceeds 4,000,000 6,000,000

Agent’s Commission (320,000) (480,000)

Estimated costs remaining to be paid
relating to the Qualifying Transaction
and the Offering:

Audit fees (30,000) (30,000)

Legal fees (210,000) (210,000)

Listing Fees (10,000) (10,000)

Estimated Net Proceeds of Offering 3,430,000 5,270,000

It is a condition of the Amalgamation Agreement that the Company raise gross proceeds of at least $3,000,000 under
the Offering. The Agent will receive and hold the proceeds of the Offering. If the Minimum Offering and the
Qualifying Transaction are not concurrently completed within the Offering Period or by the deadline set out in the
Amalgamation Agreement, being November 22, 2013 (or such other date agreed to by the Company, ISIS and the
Agent, provided that such date is during the Offering Period), the Offering will terminate and all funds received by the
Agent will be returned to the subscribers without interest or deduction unless otherwise directed by the subscribers. See
“Plan of Distribution”.

The funds expected to be available to the Company upon completion of the Offering and the Qualifying Transaction,
the expected principal purposes for which such funds will be used and the business objectives and milestones of the
Resulting Issuer are described below.
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Estimated Working Capital and Estimated Total Funds Available

As at September 30, 2013, Isis had an estimated working capital deficiency of $1,300,363 and Wedona had an
estimated working capital of $63,973.

Upon completion of the Offering, assuming net proceeds under the Offering equal to $3,430,000 in the case of the
Minimum Offering and $5,270,000 in the case of the Maximum Offering (and without taking into account the gross
proceeds of up to $900,000 from the exercise, if any, of the Over-Allotment Option), and after giving effect to the
Qualifying Transaction (including the expenses associated therewith), the Resulting Issuer is expected to have total
funds available to it as set out below.

Sources
Amount ($)

Minimum Offering
Amount ($)

Maximum Offering

Estimated Net Proceeds of Offering(1) 3,430,000 5,270,000

Estimate of Consolidated Pro Forma
Working Capital of Resulting Issuer as at
September 30, 2013 (excluding estimated
net proceeds above)

(1,236,390) (1,236,390)

Debt Deferment(2) 765,000 -

Other Sources of Funds(3) 105,000 105,000

Estimated Total Funds Available $3,063,610 $4,138,610

Notes:
(1) Gross proceeds of the Offering net of Agent’s Commissions and the estimated costs of the Transactions of

$250,000.
(2) Due to the deferment of certain debts, ISIS will have an additional $765,000 (as at September 30, 2013)

available working capital on Closing in case of the Minimum Offering. This amount as at September 30, 2013 is
comprised of $395,000 in deferred ISIS Debentures, $120,000 owing to York Capital pursuant to the York
Capital Consulting Agreement, $100,000 owing to Forbes and Manhattan Inc. pursuant to the ISIS Short Term
Loan, and $150,000 owing to 2213802 Ontario Inc. See “ISIS Lab Inc. – ISIS Debt Deferment.” In the case of
the Maximum Offering, all of these deferred amounts will be paid out on Closing (such amounts are captured as
a current liability in the line item “Estimate of Consolidated Pro Forma Working Capital of Resulting Issuer as at
September 30, 2013 (excluding estimated net proceeds above)” in the table above). In addition to the foregoing
amounts, the following amounts will be paid out on Closing of either the Minimum Offering or the Maximum
Offering, which amounts are captured as a current liability in the line item “Estimate of Consolidated Pro Forma
Working Capital of Resulting Issuer as at September 30, 2013 (excluding estimated net proceeds above)” in the
table above: ISIS Debentures in the principal amount of $457,500 outstanding as at September 30, 2013; interest
on the ISIS Short Term Loan in the amount of $3,000 outstanding as at September 30, 2013; and a total of
$167,346 accrued to Daniel Kajouii, Chris Kajouii and Tito Gandhi as deferred management fees or expenses, as
applicable, to September 30, 2013

(3) In accordance with an option agreement between ISIS and York Capital, ISIS intends to give York Capital
notice of acceleration of the expiry date of the ISIS Options such that the ISIS Options shall expire no later than
the Closing. ISIS expects that York Capital will exercise all of the 1,036,082 ISIS Options prior to Closing and
upon such exercise ISIS will realize gross proceeds of $105,000. There can be no assurance that such funds will
be realized.

Principal Purposes of Estimated Total Funds Available

The Resulting Issuer intends to use its estimated total funds available for the following principal purposes for 12
months following Closing (see also “Use of Proceeds – Business Objectives and Milestones”):
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Description
Amount ($)

Minimum Offering
Amount ($)

Maximum Offering

York Capital Consulting Agreement(1) - 210,000

Software Development and Continuing Operations(2)(3) 920,000 1,190,000

Support and Service Centre(3) 621,400 840,000

Sales and Marketing(3) 740,000 1,000,000

General and Administrative(4)

Salaries 24,000 24,000

Subcontractor payments(3) 170,004 146,000

Rent 36,000 36,000

Professional fees 144,000 120,000

Travel and office expenses 50,396 57,796

Unallocated Funds 357,810 514,814

Total $3,063,610 $4,138,610

Notes:
(1) Represents the monthly fee of $12,500 (excluding applicable taxes) due to York Capital under the York Capital

Consulting Agreement in the first year after the Closing Date, and such figure assumes that a discretionary bonus
of $15,000 per quarter will be paid to York Capital. Pursuant to an agreement with York Capital, if the amount
raised under the Offering exceeds $4,500,000, ISIS will prepay on Closing to York Capital all fees that are
payable in the first year after the Closing Date. If less than $4,500,000 is raised under the Offering, York Capital
will postpone all fees and bonuses for 18 months following Closing. The figure in the table above does not
reflect payments due to York Capital in the second year after the Closing Date. See “ISIS Lab Inc. – Consulting
Services Agreement” and “ISIS Debt Deferment”.

(2) ISIS currently has major parts of its development completed. ISIS will conduct its own research and
development. It is anticipated that depending on the total amount of net proceeds available, a portion will be
allocated to further developments providing adequate funding is in place for marketing and the development of
ISIS' business. See “ISIS Lab Inc. – Future Developments”.

(3) The proposed use of funds in these categories includes portions of the annual salary of $240,000 payable to
Daniel Kajouii, who will serve as CEO and President of the Resulting Issuer. See “Executive Compensation of
the Resulting Issuer”.

(4) Including expenses not comprising part of software development and continuing operations, support and service
centre, and sales and marketing. Management of ISIS expects that general administrative costs will rise in
aggregate, but the focus in spending will change, in the event of the Maximum Offering.  As such, the $24,000
difference with respect to professional fees between the Minimum Offering and the Maximum Offering concerns
fees paid to a third party service provider that, in the event of the Maximum Offering, is proposed to be re-
allocated to software development.  Similarly, the anticipated subcontractor payments will decline as the
allocation of officers' salaries will shift from running the business to increased marketing efforts with the
additional funds available under the Maximum Offering.

ISIS had negative operating cash flow as of September 30, 2013, and it is anticipated the Resulting Issuer will have to
use a portion of the estimated total funds available to cover future negative operating cash flow. See “Risk Factors-
Liquidity Concerns and Future Financings”.

The Resulting Issuer will spend the available funds for the principal purposes as indicated above. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, there may also be circumstances where, for sound business reasons, a reallocation of funds may be
necessary for the Resulting Issuer to achieve its objectives. The Resulting Issuer may require additional funds in order
to fulfill all of the Resulting Issuer's expenditure requirements to meet its objectives (see “Risk Factors”). There is no
assurance that additional funding required by the Resulting Issuer will be available if required. However, it is
anticipated that the available funds will be sufficient to satisfy the Resulting Issuer's objectives over the 12 months
following Completion of the Company's Qualifying Transaction.
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The table above excludes any proceeds to the Resulting Issuer from any exercise of the Over-Allotment Option and the
proceeds of the issuance of any Common Shares on exercise of any convertible securities issued pursuant to the
Offering. See “Plan of Distribution”. Any proceeds from the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option or convertible
securities issued pursuant to the Offering will be added to working capital or otherwise allocated among the purposes
set forth above as management of the Resulting Issuer deems appropriate.

The investment policy for unallocated funds will be determined by the directors of the Resulting Issuer. Until such time
as unallocated funds are required for use as working capital, the Resulting Issuer plans to invest such funds in securities
of, or those guaranteed by, the Government of Canada, any province or territory thereof or the Government of the
United States of America, in certificates of deposit or in interest bearing accounts of Canadian chartered banks and/or
trust companies, or a combination thereof.

Business Objectives and Milestones

Business Objectives

ISIS (and the Resulting Issuer upon completion of the Qualifying Transaction) is at the early commercialization stage
of the company’s life cycle.  One of the primary business objectives after completion of the Qualifying Transaction
will be to market its software and services to prospective licensees in order to expand its product offering and increase
market share and revenues by signing on additional licensees.  The Resulting Issuer intends to use available funds for
expanding the sales and marketing programs in order to accelerate product awareness in the marketplace and generate
sales. The Resulting Issuer also intends to use available funds for the purposes of continued research and development
to improve functionality as well as develop new features for the Software including the development of a mobile
platform, which would allow ISIS to offer its Software products and services, including its bingo and social media
products and services across all mobile platforms, including iOS, Windows Phone, and Android.

Milestones

Within 12 months following the completion of the Qualifying Transaction, the Resulting Issuer anticipates working
towards milestones that will expand the sales and marketing initiatives and development of a mobile platform more
specifically as follows:

1. The Resulting Issuer intends to aggressively market the company’s products at tradeshows and promotional
events including dedicated presentations intended to raise awareness of the Software among potential
customers.  These tradeshows or promotional events include: International Casino Exhibition (ICE) in London
in February 2014, London Affiliate Conference (LAC) in London in February 2014, Global iGaming Summit
& Expo (GiGSe) in San Francisco in May 2014, Global Gaming Expo (G2E) in Las Vegas in September 2014
and European iGaming Expo (EiG) in Barcelona in October 2014.  The Resulting Issuer anticipates allocating
approximately $400,000 toward attending such trade shows in the 12 months following completion of the
Qualifying Transaction. However, depending on the Resulting Issuer’s success at each trade or promotional
event, management of the Resulting Issuer will determine on a case by case basis the amount of resources that
the company will deploy at each subsequent event.

2. The Resulting Issuer intends to advertise its products and services in major gaming publications such as
iGaming Business magazine, E-Gaming Review Magazine and Casino Life Magazine. The Resulting Issuer
anticipates allocating approximately $100,000 toward such advertising in the 12 months following completion
of the Qualifying Transaction.

3. In order to achieve commercialization for a mobile platform, management of the Resulting Issuer believes the
necessary steps are the completion of the development, testing, pricing of the platform and development of a
marketing strategy. Management believes the investment required will be approximately $100,000.
Management believes that completion of the development process and launch of the mobile platform will take
approximately six months from the date of this Prospectus.
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The Resulting Issuer anticipates funding the foregoing from the proceeds of the Offering.

ISIS Debenture Financing

In order to meet certain financial obligations of ISIS, at any time prior to 36 days before the Closing Date, ISIS is
offering for sale up to $1,000,000 principal amount of ISIS Debentures and up to 400,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants for
gross proceeds of up to $1,000,000. As of the date hereof, $852,500 principal amount of ISIS Debentures and 341,000
ISIS Debenture Warrants have been issued. ISIS will repay the ISIS Debentures in full on the date of Closing,
excluding certain ISIS Debentures in the aggregate amount of $395,000 outstanding as of the date hereof, for which
repayment has been deferred for 18 months following Closing upon certain conditions described herein (see “ISIS Debt
Deferment”). Tito Gandhi, a current principal shareholder and the CFO of ISIS and an expected Principal and proposed
director and Vice Chairman of the Resulting Issuer, has purchased $50,000 principal amount of ISIS Debentures and
20,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants under the ISIS Debenture Financing. ISIS Shareholders Tito Gandhi, Frank Waszkun,
Don MacKinnon and Nejib Biya are each 20% shareholders of 2213802 Ontario Inc., a company which has purchased
$245,000 principal amount of ISIS Debentures and 98,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants. See “Principal Shareholders”. To
date the funds have been used for ongoing operations of ISIS.

DIVIDENDS

Neither the Company nor ISIS, since inception, have declared or paid any dividends on the Common Shares or ISIS
Shares, respectively. Following completion of the Company’s Qualifying transaction, the Resulting Issuer does not
expect to declare or pay any dividends on the Common Shares in the foreseeable future. The declaration of dividends
on the Common Shares is within the discretion of the Resulting Issuer’s board of directors. At the present time, the
Resulting Issuer’s anticipated capital requirements are such that it intends to follow a policy of retaining earnings in
order to finance the further development of its business.

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

The following tables set forth selected financial information for the Company. The selected financial information has
been derived from, and is qualified by, the Company’s unaudited financial statements for the three month period
ending June 30, 2013 and audited financial statements for the years ended March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2013 and
for the period from the date of incorporation, February 9, 2011, to March 31, 2011 appearing elsewhere in this
Prospectus. The following information should be read in conjunction with those financial statements and the
accompanying notes, and Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the Financial Condition and Results of Operations
of the Company included elsewhere in this Prospectus.

Period ended
June 30, 2013
(unaudited)

Year ended March
31, 2013 (audited)

Year ended March
31, 2012 (audited)

Period from
Incorporation,

February 9, 2011, to
March 31, 2011

(audited)

Total revenue - - - -

Net income (loss) for the
period

(18,279) (29,329) (66,373) (5,000)

Basic and diluted earnings
(loss) per share

(0.01) (0.01) (0.05) 0.00

Total assets 157,828 176,024 205,376 100,000

Total long-term liabilities - - - -

Cash dividends - - -

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF ISIS

The following table sets forth selected financial information for ISIS. The selected financial information has been
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derived from, and is qualified by ISIS’ audited financial statements for the period from incorporation, July 28, 2010, to
December 31, 2010, the audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, and the audited
financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 and the unaudited financial statements for the three
and six month period ended June 30, 2013. The following information should be read in conjunction with those
financial statements and the accompanying notes.

As at June 30, 2013
($)(unaudited)

As at December 31,
2012 ($)(audited)

As at December 31,
2011($) (audited)

As at December 31,
2010 ($) (audited)

BALANCE
SHEET DATA
Total Assets 2,488,504 2,296,277 2,168,312 1,501,288
Total Liabilities 1,243,673 386,395 100,770 189,527
Share Capital 4,899,500 4,899,500 3,522,500 1,620,000
Deficit (3,888,134) (3,197,560) (1,454,958) (308,239)

For the six
month period

ended June 30,
2013 ($)

(unaudited)

For the three
months ended
June 30, 2013

($) (unaudited)

For the 12
months ended
December 31,

2012 ($)
(audited)

For the 12
months ended
December 31,

2011 ($)
(audited)

For the period
from

incorporation
to December 31,

2010 ($)
(audited)

EARNINGS
DATA
Service fees 60,000 30,000 120,000 90,000 -
License fees 15,000 15,000 - - -
Interest Income 25,237 14,063 44,734 21,212

Expenses

Advertising and
promotion

30,951 27,031
382,083 480,704 364

Salaries and
related benefits

135,290 62,879
476,164 203,489 4,560

Subcontract 103,951 64,263 268,665 132,379 53,631
Rent 44,502 22,755 97,883 129,908 21,719
Professional
fees

143,827 38,571
136,312 87,069 34,983

Travel 20,886 16,678 27,726 79,645 24,511
Office 18,770 9,733 59,683 52,796 3,765
Telephone and
utilities

21,844 10,757
29,924 20,734 827

Foreign
exchange loss

6,468 21,517
10,100 13,326 -

Interest and
bank charges

48,815 32,101
1,667 2,906 478

Amortization of
intangibles

209,139 109,613
413,801 200,385 -

Depreciation of
equipment

6,368 3,398
3,328 17,991 -

Tax provision - - - (163,401) 163,401
Net Loss
Net Loss and
Comprehensive
Loss for the
Period

(690,574) (360,233) (1,742,602) (1,146,719) (308,239)

Loss per share
(basic and
diluted)

(0.03) (0.02) (0.08) (0.07) (0.03)

Weighted
Average
Number of
Outstanding
Shares (basic

23,897,251 23,897,251 22,127,889 15,885,799 9,644,426
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and diluted)

SELECTED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following table sets forth selected information from the pro forma consolidated financial statements of the
Resulting Issuer after giving effect to the Company’s Qualifying Transaction and to the Offering. The following
selected financial data has been derived from, should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by,
the pro forma consolidated financial statements of the Resulting Issuer and the historical financial statements of each of
the Company and ISIS and the notes thereto, all contained elsewhere in this Prospectus.

Current Assets $3,458,739
Total Assets $5,893,933
Liabilities $936,612
Shareholders’ Equity $4,957,321

THE COMPANY’S MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Year Ended March 31, 2013 and the Three Month Period Ended June 30, 2013

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”), prepared as of August 29, 2013, should be read
together with the unaudited condensed interim financial statements for the three month period ended June 30, 2013 and
the related notes attached thereto.  Readers are also encouraged to refer to the Company’s audited financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2013 and the related notes attached thereto.  Accordingly, these condensed interim
financial statements and MD&A include the results of operations and cash flows for the three month period ended June
30, 2013 and the reader must be aware that historical results are not necessarily indicative of the future performance.
All amounts are reported in Canadian dollars. The aforementioned documents can be accessed on the SEDAR web site
www.sedar.com.

Unless otherwise stated, financial results are being reported in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”).

Management’s Discussion and Analysis contains the term cash flow from operations, which should not be considered
an alternative to, or more meaningful than, cash flows from operating activities as determined in accordance with IFRS
as an indicator of the Company’s performance. The Company’s determination of cash flow from operations may not be
comparable to that reported by other companies. The reconciliation between profit or loss and cash flows from
operating activities can be found in the statement of cash flows.

Certain statements contained in this interim management discussion and analysis may contain words such as “could”,
“should”, “expect”, “believe”, “will” and similar expressions and statements relating to matters that are not historical
facts but are forward-looking statements.  Such forward-looking statements are subject to both known and unknown
risks and uncertainties which may cause the actual results, performances or achievements of the Company to be
materially different from any future results, performances or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-
looking statements.  Such factors include, among other things, the receipt of required regulatory approvals, the
availability of sufficient capital, the estimated cost and availability of funding for the continued exploration and
development of the Company's prospects, political and economic conditions, commodity prices and other factors.

Description of Business

The Company was incorporated as a private company by Certificate of Incorporation issued pursuant to the provisions of
the BCBCA on February 9, 2011. On August 19, 2011 the Company announced that its IPO had been completed and the
Company was now classified as a Capital Pool Company as defined in Exchange Policy 2.4. The Company will not carry
on any business other than the identification and evaluation of assets or businesses with a view to completing a
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Qualifying Transaction. The Company’s common shares were listed for trading on the Exchange on August 22, 2011
with the trading symbol WCI.P.

On December 14, 2012, trading in the shares of the Company was halted at the request of the Company pending news.
On December 20, 2012 the Company issued a press release stating that it had entered into a Letter of Intent (the “LOI”)
dated December 14, 2012 with ISIS pursuant to which the Company has agreed, subject to certain conditions, to acquire
ISIS as its Qualifying Transaction.   The LOI has been replaced by the Amalgamation Agreement dated June 28, 2013
(as amended August 31, 2013).  Pursuant to the Amalgamation Agreement, the Company has agreed to acquire all of the
issued and outstanding shares of ISIS in exchange for 24,933,333 common shares of the Company.  In addition, ISIS
may complete a financing of up to $1,000,000 by the offering of ISIS Debentures and ISIS Debenture Warrants, which
would result in the issuance of up to 400,000 ISIS Warrants and it is intended that each ISIS Warrant would entitle the
holder to acquire one Common Share of the Company on closing of the Qualifying Transaction.  The Company has also
agreed to issue 1,303,195 Common Shares as a finder’s fee in connection with the Qualifying Transaction.  The
Qualifying Transaction is an arm’s length transaction and will not be subject to approval of the shareholders of the
Company although the approval of the shareholders of the Company may be requested to elect a new board of directors.
Upon completion thereof, it is expected that the Company will be a Tier 2 Technology Issuer.

The Company’s registered office is located at 1600 - 609 Granville Street, Vancouver, BC, V7Y 1C3.

The Company’s Board of Directors is comprised of Randy Clifford (President, CEO & CFO), Michael Wilson, Douglas
Eacrett and Ken Ralfs.

Performance Summary

Selected Annual Information

The following table provides a brief summary of the Company’s financial operations.  This information has been
prepared in accordance with IFRS and is presented in Canadian Dollars which is the functional currency of the
Company.

Year Ended
March 31,

2013

Year Ended
March 31,

2012

Period from
incorporation on
February 9, 2011

to March 31,
2011

Total revenue - - -
Net income (loss) for the period (29,329) (66,373) (5,000)
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share (0.01) (0.05) 0.00
Total assets 176,024 205,376 100,000
Total long-term liabilities - - -

This information has been prepared in accordance with IFRS and is presented in Canadian dollars, which is the
functional currency of the Company.  For more detailed information please refer to the Company’s Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2013.

Summary of Quarterly Results

June
30, 2013

$

March
31, 2013

$

December
31, 2012

$

September
30, 2012

$
Total revenue - - - -
Net gain (loss) for the period (18,279) (12,786) 850 (16,505)
Basic and diluted loss per share (0.01) (0.01) 0.00 (0.01)

June March December September
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30, 2012
$

31, 2012
$

31, 2011
$

30, 2011
$

Total revenue - - - -
Net gain (loss) for the period (888) (25,298) (827) (26,748)
Basic and diluted loss per share 0.00 (0.01) 0.00 (0.01)

Results of Operations

For the three month period ended June 30, 2013

The Company incurred a loss of $18,279 for the three month period ended June 30, 2013 compared to a loss of $888 for
the three month period ended June 30, 2012.  The increase in losses for the three month period ended June 30, 2013
compared to the three month period ended June 30, 2012 is attributable to costs incurred in connection with the
Company’s Qualifying Transaction.

Off-balance sheet arrangements

The Company has not entered into any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Liquidity & capital resources

At June 30, 2013 the Company had $127,490 of working capital.  Management of the Company is confident that it will
have sufficient working capital to meet its anticipated financial obligations for the current year.

June 30, 2013 March 31, 2013
Working capital (deficiency) $127,490 $145,769
Deficit (118,981) (100,702)

Related Party Transactions

The Company had no related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2013 and 2012.

Share Capital

a) Authorized:

Unlimited number of voting common shares

Unlimited number of preferred shares

b) Issued:

Common Shares
Issued

Amount
$

Balance at March 31, 2013 4,000,000 245,361
Balance at June 30, 2013 4,000,000 245,361
Agent’s options exercised August 6, 2013 100,000 10,000
Agent’s options exercised August 8, 2013 100,000 10,000
Balance at August 29, 2013 4,200,000 265,361
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c) Outstanding Options, Warrants, Rights or other Derivatives:

As at June 30, 2013 and August 29, 2013, there were 200,000 stock options outstanding, these options were
qualified under the Company’s Prospectus.  The stock options are exercisable at $0.10 and will expire 10 years
from the date the shares were listed for trading on the TSX-V (August 21, 2021).

As at June 30, 2013, there were 200,000 Agent’s options outstanding.  The Agent’s options were exercisable at
$0.10 per share and were due to expire 2 years from the date the shares were listed for trading on the TSX-V
(August 21, 2013). As of August 29, 2013 the 200,000 Agent's options were exercised for common shares, and
no Agent's options remain outstanding.

The Company has not issued any warrants, rights or other derivatives.

d) Commitments:

Share Purchase Options

The Company has a stock option plan under which it is authorized to grant options to executive officers
and directors, employees and consultants enabling them to acquire up to 10% of the issued and outstanding
common stock of the Company. Under the plan, the exercise price of each option equals the market price
of the Company's stock, less an applicable discount, as calculated on the date of grant. The options can
be granted for a maximum term of 10 years and vest at the discretion of the board of directors.

e) Escrow Shares:

During the period from incorporation on February 9, 2011 to March 31, 2011, the Company issued
2,000,000 common shares at $0.05 per share for gross proceeds of $100,000. The 2,000,000 common
shares are held in escrow until completion of the Company’s Qualifying Transaction. Upon completion
of the Company’s Qualifying Transaction the shares are to be released on a staged basis, with 10% to be
released on the issuance of a final exchange bulletin by the Exchange, and 15% to be released every six
months thereafter for a period of thirty-six months. As such, the number of common shares held in escrow as
at June 30, 2013 and August 29, 2013 remains at 2,000,000.

Accounting Policies and Estimates

The significant accounting policies of the Company are disclosed in Note 3 to the Financial Statements. Certain
accounting policies require that management make appropriate decisions with respect to the formulation of estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and revenues and expenses. The Company’s
management reviews its estimates regularly.

New accounting pronouncements

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published which were not yet effective for the year
ended March 31, 2013.  The following standards are expected not to have a material impact on the Company’s
condensed interim financial statements, but may result in additional disclosures in future years:

 IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Liabilities: effective for annual periods
commencing on or after January 1, 2013

 IFRS 9, Financial Instruments: effective for annual periods commencing on or after January 1, 2015
 IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements: effective for annual periods commencing on or after January 1, 2013
 IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements: effective for annual periods commencing on or after January 1, 2013
 IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: effective for annual periods commencing on or after January 1,

2013
 IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement: effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013
 IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements: effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012
 IAS 27, Separate Financial Statements: effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013
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 IAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2013; and

 IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation: effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014

Financial Instruments, Business Risk and Uncertainties

The Company is a Capital Pool Corporation, has no source of operating revenues and its capacity to operate as a going
concern in the near term will depend on its ability to continue raising equity financing and to ultimately complete the
Qualifying Transaction within 24 months of listing on the Exchange. The Qualifying Transaction will be subject to
shareholder and regulatory approval. There is no assurance that the Company will be able to complete the Qualifying
Transaction. Should the Company be unable to complete the Qualifying Transaction, the net realizable value of its assets
may be materially less than the amounts recorded on the statements of financial position. These financial statements do
not include adjustments that would be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

Credit risk

The Company's credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and equivalents and receivables. The Company has no
significant concentration of credit risk arising from operations. Cash consists of chequing accounts at reputable financial
institutions, from which management believes the risk of loss to be remote. The Company limits its exposure to credit
loss for cash by placing its cash with high quality financial institutions. The Company’s credit risk has not changed
significantly from the prior period.

Liquidity risk

The Company’s ability to remain liquid over the long term depends on its ability to obtain additional financing. The
Company has in place planning and budgeting processes to help determine the funds required to support normal
operating requirements on an ongoing basis as well as its planned development and capital expenditures. The Company's
approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities when due. At
March 31, 2013, the Company had current assets of $146,024 to settle current liabilities of $255.

Interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and price risk

The Company is presently exposed to interest rate risk on the funds that are held in its interest bearing account(s) that
bear interest at a floating rate. These funds are held in account(s) with a Canadian Chartered Bank and as such
management does not have concerns for the amount of interest rate risk that the Company is exposed to. The Company
does not hold any investments other than its interest bearing account(s) and therefore management feels that the
Company has minimal to exposure to foreign currency risk or price risk.

For The Years Ended March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012

The following MD&A, prepared as of May 29, 2013, should be read together with the audited financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2013 and the related notes attached thereto. Readers are also encouraged to refer to the
Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 and the related notes attached thereto.
Accordingly, these financial statements and MD&A include the results of operations and cash flows for the year ended
March 31, 2013 and the reader must be aware that historical results are not necessarily indicative of the future
performance. All amounts are reported in Canadian dollars. The aforementioned documents can be accessed on the
SEDAR web site www.sedar.com.

Unless otherwise stated, financial results are being reported in accordance with IFRS.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis contains the term cash flow from operations, which should not be considered an
alternative to, or more meaningful than, cash flows from operating activities as determined in accordance with IFRS as
an indicator of the Company’s performance. The Company’s determination of cash flow from operations may not be
comparable to that reported by other companies. The reconciliation between profit or loss and cash flows from operating
activities can be found in the statement of cash flows.
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Certain statements contained in this interim management discussion and analysis may contain words such as "could",
"should", "expect", "believe", "will" and similar expressions and statements relating to matters that are not historical
facts but are forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements are subject to both known and unknown risks
and uncertainties which may cause the actual results, performances or achievements of the Company to be materially
different from any future results, performances or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements. Such factors include, among other things, the receipt of required regulatory approvals, the availability of
sufficient capital, the estimated cost and availability of funding for the continued exploration and development of the
Company's prospects, political and economic conditions, commodity prices and other factors.

Performance Summary Selected Annual Information

The following table provides a brief summary of the Company’s financial operations:

Year Ended
March 31, 2013

Year Ended
March 31, 2012

Period from incorporation on
February 9, 2011 to

March 31, 2011

Total revenue - - -

Net income (loss) for the period (29,329) (66,373) (5,000)
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share (0.01) (0.05) 0.00
Total assets 176,024 205,376 100,000
Total long-term liabilities - - -
Cash dividends - - -

This information has been prepared in accordance with IFRS and is presented in Canadian dollars, which is
the functional currency of the Company. For more detailed information please refer to the Company’s Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2013.

Summary of Quarterly Results

March 31,
2013

$

December 31,
2012

$

September 30, 2012
$

June 30,
2012

$

Total revenue - - - -
Net gain (loss) for the period (12,786) 850 (16,505) (888)

Basic and diluted loss per share (0.01) 0.00 (0.01) 0.00

March 31,
2012

$

December 31,
2011

$

September 30, 2011
$

June 30,

2011
$

Total revenue - - - -
Net gain (loss) for the period (25,298) (827) (26,748) (13,500)

Basic and diluted loss per share (0.01) 0.00 (0.01) 0.00

Results of Operations

For the year ended March 31, 2013

The Company incurred a loss of $29,329 for the year ended March 31, 2013 compared to a loss of $66,373 for the year
ended March 31, 2012. This decrease in losses for the year ended March 31, 2013 is mainly attributable to initial
expenses for the completion of the Company’s IPO and share based compensation during year ended March 31, 2012
and the receipt of finance income from the Company’s GIC during the period ended March 31, 2013.



46

ISIS’ MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2012

The following MD&A provides a review of ISIS’ results of operations, financial condition and cash flows for the
twelve month periods ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2012. This document should be read in conjunction
with the information contained in ISIS’ consolidated financial statements and related notes for the same periods, which
were prepared in accordance with IFRS and are found elsewhere in this Prospectus. Unless otherwise indicated, all
dollar (“$”) amounts in this MD&A are expressed in Canadian dollars.

Description of Business

Founded in July of 2010 pursuant to the OBCA, ISIS is a privately held company in the business of design,
development, and distribution of social-media based online bingo software for the online gambling industry. ISIS’
bingo software includes a socially networked, community-oriented, interactive gaming platform for online bingo in a
regulated environment. ISIS has developed a gaming platform that has embedded bingo and other related products that
focuses on the female demographic in a social manner. ISIS’ bingo software has been designed to provide a variety of
styles that are in demand by the international community.

ISIS holds 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of TCC, which was incorporated in Panama on December 25,
2010. TCC provides marketing and 24-7 telephone support services to ISIS’ customers.

ISIS’ Software incorporates features used in social media sites into a bingo platform in an effort to provide a better
gaming experience for the visitor.

Since the launch of its Software, ISIS continues to create, develop, and improve its gaming solutions to cater for the
changing needs of the industry including the development of software for mobile devices.

ISIS’ registered office is located at 964 Westport Crescent, Toronto, Ontario L5T 1S3.

The current board of directors is comprised of Daniel Kajouii (President and CEO), Tito Gandhi (CFO), Frank
Waszkun (Secretary), and Julian Bharti.

Highlights

Management believes ISIS has developed a highly competitive online gaming platform, which incorporates the latest in
online gaming, including bingo and other online games with leading social networking solutions.

ISIS has signed the multi-year Cladstone License Agreement including the Cladstone Services Agreement. Cladstone is
the owner and operator of Rogers Bingo. The Cladstone License Agreement grants Cladstone a non-exclusive, non-
transferable license for a term of five years, from April 1, 2011. The software license fee is based on the number of
users. Cladstone is licensed by the Isle of Man Gaming Supervision Commission. Isle of Man is a leading regulated
gaming jurisdiction allowing its licensees to operate in the United Kingdom. See “ISIS Lab Inc. – Cladstone
Agreement”

Significant Events

ISIS and the Company entered into the Amalgamation Agreement on June 28, 2013, as amended August 31, 2013,
providing for the amalgamation of ISIS with Wedona Newco to form Amalco to be named ISIS Lab Inc., which will
be a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. See “Proposed Qualifying Transaction”.
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Selected Financial Information

Financial Condition

ISIS has funded its activities to date almost exclusively from debt and equity financings. ISIS will continue to require
substantial funds to continue its operations, including software development, and to continue sales and marketing
efforts. Management’s plans in order to meet its operating cash flow requirements include financing activities such as
equity financing through reverse takeover, and issuances of debt and convertible debt instruments.

Revenue and Expenses

Revenue

Revenues for the 12 months period ended December 31, 2012 were $164,734, versus $111,212 for the comparable
period in the prior year. Revenue is comprised of service fees and interest income. By product, revenue composition is
as follows:

Twelve Months Ended December 31
2012 2011

Revenue
Service Fee $120,000 $90,000
Interest Income $44,734 $21,212

$164,734 $111,212

Financial

During the year 2011, ISIS agreed to lend funds to its customer Cladstone for an amount not exceeding an aggregate
sum of £500,000 in any 12 month period to support Cladstone’s daily operations. The loan will become due upon
demand of ISIS at such time that Cladstone is in a position of making sufficient revenues to support its daily
operations. The interest is calculated and accrued at an annual rate of 12%. Since the balance is not expected to be
repaid within 12 months, it is classified as a long term asset. See “ISIS Lab Inc. – Cladstone Agreements” for further
detail.

The below chart sets out the amounts receivable from Cladstone for the financial years ended December 31, 2011 and
2012:

Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Note receivable $393,570 $279,912

ISIS also signed the Cladstone License Agreement and the Cladstone Services Agreement. The Cladstone License
Agreement grants Cladstone a non-exclusive, non-transferable license for a term of five years, from April 1, 2011. The
fee will be calculated based on the number of users. ISIS agreed to grant Cladstone a 24 month grace period on the fee.
No revenue has been recognized with the Cladstone License Agreement. The Cladstone Service Agreement charges
Cladstone a $10,000 monthly fee for a term of five years from April 2011. During the twelve months ended December
31, 2012, $120,000 was recognized as revenue under the Cladstone Services Agreement as compared to $90,000 during
the 12 month period ended December 31, 2011.

Pursuant to the fee schedule contained in the Cladstone License Agreement, the fee relating to the software will be
calculated by a sliding scale as follows:

Users Per Month Fee Per Month

0-10,000 $5,000

10,001-25,000 $20,000
25,001-50,000 $25,000
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50,001-75,000 $30,000
75,001-100,000 $35,000
100,001-150,000 $40,000
150,001 + $50,000

Note:
(1) a user is a player either currently registered or a new registrant that logs into their account in any one calendar month and

uses the gaming software on the website. Furthermore, if a user logs into their account more than once in a calendar month
it shall still be considered as a unique user.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization
of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities and commitments in the normal course of business. ISIS has experienced
negative cash flows from operations since inception. As at December 31, 2012, ISIS had a negative working capital of
$273,902 and has an accumulated deficit of $3,197,560. At December 31, 2012, ISIS had only one customer utilizing
its software package and marketing and support services. See “ISIS Lab Inc. – Cladstone Agreements”.

ISIS has funded its activities to date almost exclusively from debt and equity financings. ISIS will continue to require
substantial funds to continue its operations, including software development, and to continue sales and marketing
efforts. Management’s plans in order to meet its operating cash flow requirements include financing activities such as
equity financing, and issuances of debt and convertible debt instruments.

While ISIS believes that it will be successful in obtaining the necessary financing to fund its operations, meet revenue
projections and manage costs, there are no assurances that such additional funding will be achieved and that it will
succeed in its future operations. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the
recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or amounts of liabilities that might be necessary should ISIS
be unable to continue in existence.

These factors raise substantial doubt about ISIS’ ability to continue to operate in the normal course of business.

Short-term Debt

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2012, ISIS received a loan in the amount of $100,000 from a
shareholder. The loan is unsecured and only the accrued interest will be due and payable on the date on which the
common shares of ISIS are listed and commence trading on any public stock exchange. Interest is calculated at the rate
of 3% per annum and payable on the maturity date. The principal amount will be postponed to 18 months after Closing
in the event proceeds raised under the Offering do not exceed $5,000,000. See “Related Party Transactions” and “ISIS
Lab Inc. – ISIS Debt Deferment”.

Cash Flow by Activity

Twelve Months Ended December 31
2012 2011

(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH $(68,637) $30,502
CASH, BEGINNING OF PERIOD $137,318 $106,816
CASH, END OF PERIOD $68,681 $137,318

Operating Activities

ISIS’ cash flow used in operating activities during the 12 months ended December 31, 2012 was $1,031,186, compared
to $1,007,083 for the comparable period in 2011.
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TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31
2012 2011

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the period $(1,742,602) $(1,146,719)
Deferred income tax recovery $- $(163,401)
Amortization of intangibles $413,801 $200,385
Depreciation of equipment $3,328 $17,991
Stock-based compensation $207,942 -
Accrual of interest income ($44,734) ($21,212)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid and other receivables $(4,755) $31,229
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities $135,834 $74,644
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES $(1,031,186) $(1,007,083)

Investing Activities

ISIS’ net cash flow used in investing activities during the 12 months ended December 31, 2012 was $563,670,
compared to $864,915 for the comparable period in 2011.

2012 2011
Intangibles ($489,248) ($573,212)
Advance under a note receivable ($68,924) ($258,700)
Purchase of equipment ($5,498) ($33,003)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ($563,670) ($864,915)

Financing Activities

ISIS’ net cash flow provided by financing activities during the 12 months ended December 31, 2012 was $1,526,219
compared to $1,902,500 for the comparable period in 2011.

2012 2011
Issuance of share capital $1,377,000 $1,902,500
Advances under loans payable $100,000 -
Issuing of debenture units $50,000 -
Shareholder advances ($781) -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES $1,526,219 $1,902,500

Summary of Quarterly Results

ISIS experienced an increase in the net loss for the quarter ended September 30, 2011 due to the increase in marketing
and promotion expenses related to marketing ISIS’ software. The increase in the net loss for the quarter ended
December 31, 2012, was due to a onetime charge related to the expensing of options granted to consultants.

A summary of the quarterly results is set out below:

December 31,
2011

September 30,
2011

June 30, 2011 March 31,
2011

Revenue 51,212 30,000 30,000
Net gain (loss) (402,291) (436,899) (239,117) (231,813)
Loss per share (0.02) (0.02) (0.02) (0.02)

December 31,
2012

September 30,
2012

June 30, 2012 March 31,
2012

Revenue 44,485 40,675 50,779 38,900
Net gain (loss) (598,539) (428,562) (436,346) (313,435)
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Revenues

During the most recent quarter, ISIS generated revenue of $59,063 from service fees and interest income, versus
revenue of $50,779 in the second quarter of 2012. The increase is attributable to higher interest income in the first
quarter of 2013.

On a comparative quarterly basis, product revenues were:

Revenue
Composition

Q2 2013 Q2 2012

Service Fee 30,000 30,000
Interest Income 14,063 20,779
License Fees 15,000 -

Operating Expenses

ISIS incurred operating expenses during the second quarter of $419,296, compared to $487,125 in second quarter 2012.
The primary components of this increase on a quarter-over-quarter basis were:

Q2 2013 Q2 2012
EXPENSES
Salaries and related benefits 62,879 88,231
Subcontract 64,263 2,226
Professional fees 38,571 13,092
Amortization of intangibles 109,613 121,294

ISIS chose to increase its development during this period in order complete its mobile platform development.
Management believes that the future of its business will rely heavily on its ability to deliver competitive mobile
applications. As such, management made the decision to invest in further developments and ready itself to provide the
software and tools necessary for its clients to compete effectively in current markets and therefore incurred the
resulting increased costs in salaries and related benefits, subcontract costs, and professional fees.

ISIS has deferred receipt of certain funds payable pursuant to the services provided to Cladstone.  Under the Cladstone
License Agreement, ISIS granted Cladstone a 24 month grace period on the licence fees payable, and such fee only
began accruing from April 1, 2013 onward.  In addition, Cladstone agreed to pay ISIS a service fee of $10,000 per
month, commencing April 1, 2011, the collection of which ISIS waived for the first 24 months of operation up to
March 31, 2013. From April 1, 2013, TCC commenced invoicing at the previously stated rate of $10,000 plus
$6,666.66 per month to recoup fees for months one to 24.

Net Loss

The net loss for the most recent quarter was $360,233, compared to a loss of $436,346 for the comparable prior year
quarter. The increase in the net loss is of course the cumulative result of the various items discussed above. On a per
share basis, the net loss is $0.02 for the quarter, versus $0.02 in second quarter 2012.

Management foresees an increase in the expansion of regulated markets worldwide and thus creating additional
opportunities for ISIS to forge new partnerships and expand its business globally. This trend is in line with the global
adoption of online commerce and online for-pay entertainment. As a result, management believes there will be an
increasing number of operators looking to serve the online social gaming market as result of the expansion of regulated

Loss per share (0.03) (0.02) (0.02) (0.02)

June 30, 2013 March 31, 2013

Revenue 59,063 41,174
Net gain (loss) (360,233) (330,341)
Loss per share (0.02) (0.01)
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markets. Consequently, management believes continued online commerce and online for-pay entertainment acceptance
and adoption may positively affect ISIS’ revenues.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

ISIS has had no off-balance sheet arrangements.

Related Party Transactions

In September of 2012, ISIS borrowed the sum of $100,000 from Forbes & Manhattan Inc., a private merchant bank
controlled by Stan Bharti who owns 4,187,501 ISIS Shares, representing 17.52% of the outstanding ISIS Shares as of
the date hereof and will own Common Shares representing 10.13% of the outstanding Common Shares on completion
of the Qualifying Transaction and assuming the Minimum Offering and assuming completion of the CPC Escrow Share
Transaction. See “Principal Shareholders”. Stan Bharti is also the brother of Tito Gandhi, a current principal
shareholder and the CFO of ISIS and a principal of the Resulting Issuer. The loan is unsecured and accrues interest at
the rate of 3.0% per annum. The interest is payable in full upon listing of the Resulting Issuer on the Exchange.
Repayment of the principal amount will be postponed until 18 months after the Closing if proceeds under the Offering
do not exceed $5,000,000. See also “Use of Proceeds” and “ISIS Lab Inc. – ISIS Debt Deferment”.

ISIS is party to the York Capital Consulting Agreement, pursuant to which York Capital is currently paid $5,000 per
month with up to an additional $15,000 bonus paid each financial quarter which fees will increase to $12,500 per
month after completion of the Qualifying Transaction. York Capital has agreed to postpone the fees and bonuses for 18
months after Closing if less than $4,500,000 is raised in the Offering. If more than $4,500,000 is raised in the Offering,
ISIS will be required to pay 12 months of consulting fees to York Capital on Closing in the amount of $150,000 (see
“ISIS Lab Inc. – Consulting Services Agreement” and “ISIS Lab Inc. – ISIS Debt Deferment”). York Capital has also
been granted 1,036,082 ISIS Options, which are expected to be exercised into 1,036,082 ISIS Shares prior to
completion of the Qualifying Transaction. Certain Principals of York Capital collectively own 431,700 ISIS Shares
representing 1.8% of the outstanding ISIS Shares as of the date hereof and will own common shares representing
0.98% of the outstanding Common Shares on completion of the Qualifying Transaction and assuming the Minimum
Offering. See “ISIS Lab Inc. - Consulting Services Agreement” and “Interests of Management and Others in Material
Transactions”.

The total amount owed to related parties as of the date hereof is $167,347, payable as follows: Chris Kajouii, Vice-
President Operations of ISIS, is owed $91,325.07 for deferred salary payments since November 1, 2012; Tito Gandhi,
CFO of ISIS, is owed $56,265.63 for unpaid expenses; and Daniel Kajouii, CEO of ISIS, is owed $19,756.53 for
unpaid salary since April, 2013.

ISIS Shareholders Tito Gandhi, Frank Waszkun, Don MacKinnon, and Nejib Biya are each 20% shareholders of
2213802 Ontario Inc., a company which has purchased $245,000 principal amount of ISIS Debentures and 98,000 ISIS
Debenture Warrants. Pursuant to an agreement with 2213802 Ontario Inc., the repayment ISIS Debentures in the
principal amount $245,000 has been postponed for 18 months following Closing but only in the event proceeds under
the Offering do not exceed $5,000,000. See “ISIS Lab Inc. – ISIS Debt Deferment”.

Tito Gandhi, ISIS’ Chief Financial Officer and a director, has purchased ISIS Debentures in the aggregate principal
amount of $50,000, however Mr. Gandhi has agreed to postpone repayment of this debenture for a period of 18 months
in the event proceeds raised under the Offering do not exceed $4,500,000. See “ISIS Debt Deferment”.

For the Three and Six Month Period Ended June 30, 2013

The following MD&A of ISIS for the three and six month period ended June 30, 2013, prepared as of the date of this
Prospectus, should be read together with ISIS’ interim condensed consolidated financial statements for the three
and six month period ended June 30, 2013 and the related notes attached thereto. Readers are also encouraged to
refer to the audited consolidated financial statements for the periods from incorporation to December 31, 2012,
and related notes attached thereto, which are found elsewhere in this Prospectus. Accordingly, these financial
statements and MD&A include the results of operations and cash flows for the quarter ended June 30, 2013 and
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the reader must be aware that historical results are not necessarily indicative of the future performance. All
amounts are reported in Canadian dollars.

Unless otherwise stated, financial results are being reported in accordance with IFRS.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis contains the term cash flow from operations, which should not be
considered an alternative to, or more meaningful than, cash flows from operating activities as determined in
accordance with IFRS as an indicator of the Company’s performance. The Company’s determination of cash flow
from operations may not be comparable to that reported by other companies. The reconciliation between profit
or loss and cash flows from operating activities can be found in the statement of cash flows.

Highlights

ISIS continued development of software development projects, including further development of its social gaming
platform, scalability and enhanced performance of its current assets.

Significant Events

ISIS and the Company entered into the Amalgamation Agreement on June 28, 2013, as amended August 31, 2013,
providing for the amalgamation of ISIS with Wedona Newco to form Amalco to be named ISIS Lab Inc., which will
be a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. See “Proposed Qualifying Transaction”.

Trends

ISIS foresees that the continued adoption of mobile gaming within the markets that its licensee serves. As a
consequence, the demographic that its licensee serves are expected to reduce their social gaming usage on the
equipment that ISIS’ Software operates on. As a result, this continued mobile adoption may affect ISIS’ profit margin.

ISIS foresees an increase in the expansion of regulated markets worldwide and thus creating additional opportunities
for ISIS to forge new partnerships and expand its business globally. This trend is in line with the global adoption of
online commerce and online for-pay entertainment. Resultantly, management believes there will be an increasing
number of operators looking to serve the online social gaming market as result of the expansion of regulated markets.
Consequently, ISIS believes continued online commerce and online for-pay entertainment acceptance and adoption
may positively affect ISIS’ revenues.

Commitments

As of the date of this Prospectus, ISIS has issued ISIS Debentures with an aggregate principal balance of $852,500,
each having an annual interest rate of 24%, which interest rate shall be reduced to 3% per annum subsequent to Closing
in respect of those ISIS Debentures noted below as being postponed. The debentures were issued as part of the ISIS
Debenture Financing and, excluding certain ISIS Debentures in the aggregate principal amount of $395,000, it is
intended that they will be repaid in full on closing of the Qualifying Transaction. The repayment of ISIS Debentures in
the principal amount $150,000 will be postponed for 18 months following Closing in the event that proceeds raised
under the Offering do not exceed $4,500,000 and the repayment of $245,000 principal amount of ISIS Debentures will
be postponed for 18 months following Closing if proceeds raised under the Offering do not exceed $5,000,000. ISIS
will also pay on Closing the accrued interest on a $100,000 loan from Forbes & Manhattan Inc. The loan was granted
in September of 2012 and accrues interest at a rate of 3.0% per annum. Repayment of the principal of the loan has been
postponed for 18 months after Closing in the event that proceeds raised under the Offering do not exceed $5,000,000.
A total of $120,000 with respect to monthly consulting fees and bonus payments accruing from October 1, 2012 to
September 30, 2013 will be payable upon Closing to York Capital but only in the event that proceeds raised under the
Offering do not exceed $4,500,000. Pursuant to the York Capital Consulting Agreement, ISIS is to prepay on Closing
all fees that are payable in the first year after the Closing; provided that if less than $4,500,000 is raised under the
Offering, York Capital has agreed to waive prepayment and will postpone for 18 months following Closing all fees and
bonuses payable during the period. See “ISIS Lab Inc. – ISIS Debenture Financing”, “ISIS Lab Inc. - ISIS Short Term
Loan”, “ISIS Lab Inc. - Consulting Services Agreement” and “ISIS Lab Inc. – ISIS Debt Deferment”.
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Performance Summary

Selected Quarterly Information

The following table provides a brief summary of ISIS’ financial operations:

Six Months Ended
June 30, 2013

Three Months Ended
June 30, 2013

Six Months Ended June
30, 2012

Three Months
Ended June 30,

2012
Total revenue 100,237 59,063 89,679 50,779
Net income (loss) for the
period

(690,574) (360,233) (749,781) (436,346)

Basic & diluted earnings
(loss) per Share

(0.03) (0.02) (0.04) (0.02)

Total assets 2,488,504 2,488,504 2,359,712 2,359,712
Total long-term liabilities 0 0 0 0
Total Liabilities 1,243,673 1,243,673 118,157 118,157
Cash dividends 0 0 0

Results of Operations

For the three and six month period ended June 30, 2013

Revenues

During the three month period ended June 30, 2013, ISIS generated $59,063 in revenue from service fees, license
fees and interest income, versus revenue of $50,779 during the three month period ended June 30, 2012. The net
increase is attributable to a $15,000 increase in license fees offset by a $6,716 decrease in interest revenue.

During the six month period ended June 30, 2013, ISIS generated $100,237 in revenue from service fees, license
fees and interest income, versus revenue of $89,679 for the six month period ended June 30, 2012. The net increase
is attributable to a $15,000 increase in license fees offset by a $4,442 decrease in interest revenue.

Expenses (for the three month period ended June 30, 2013)

During the three month period ended June 30, 2013, ISIS incurred expenses of $419,296 compared to $487,125
during the comparable period in 2012. The primary components of this variance were:

Three month period
ended June 30, 2013

Three month period
ended June 30, 2012

Advertising and promotion 27,031 204,017

Foreign exchange and loss (gain) 21,517 5,219

Interest and bank charges 32,101 341

Professional fees 38,571 13,092

Salaries and related benefits 62,879 88,231

Subcontract 64,263 2,226
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Travel and accommodation 16,678 1,921

The advertising and promotion expenses decreased for the three month period ended June 30, 2013 from the
comparable period during 2012 due to less promotional expenditures in 2013 as the ISIS software had been
introduced, adopted and licensed in a previous period.

The increase in foreign exchange expenses for the three month period ended June 30, 2013 from the comparable
period during 2012 are a reflection of the fluctuation in value of the British Pound Sterling relating the notes
receivable from Cladstone and the U.S dollar relating to software support operations in Panama.

Interest and bank charged increased for the three month period ended June 30, 2013 from the comparable period
during 2012 due to the issuance of ISIS Debentures during 2013.

Professional fees increased for the three month period ended June 30, 2013 from the comparable period during 2012
as a result of fees incurred in relation to the Qualifying Transaction.

The reduction in salaries and related benefits for the three month period ended June 30, 2013 as compared to the three
month period ended June 30, 2012 is attributed to a decrease in the number of software support personnel in Panama.

The increase in subcontract fees for the three month period ended June 30, 2013 versus the comparable period in 2012
is due to an increase in consulting fees charged by York Capital during the period.

The increase in travel and accommodation expenses for the three month period ended June 30, 2012 is attributed to
increased travel by management relating to the Qualifying Transaction.

Expenses (for the six month period ended June 30, 2013)

During the six month period ended June 30, 2013, ISIS incurred expenses of $790,811 compared to $839,460 during
the comparable period in 2012. The primary components of this variance were:

Six month period ended
June 30, 2013

Six month period
ended June 30, 2012

Advertising and promotion 30,951 298,277

Foreign exchange and loss (gain) 6,468 (34,946)

Interest and bank charges 48,815 789

Professional fees 143,827 43,681

Salaries and related benefits 135,290 170,863

Subcontract 103,951 7,630

The advertising and promotion expenses decreased for the six month period ended June 30, 2013 from the
comparable period during 2012 due to less promotional expenditures in 2013 as the ISIS software had been
introduced, adopted and licensed in a previous period.

The increase in foreign exchange expenses for the six month period ended June 30, 2013 from the comparable period
during 2012 are a reflection of the fluctuation in value of the British Pound Sterling relating the notes receivable from
Cladstone and the U.S dollar relating to software support operations in Panama.

Interest and bank charged increased for the six month period ended June 30, 2013 from the comparable period during
2012 due to due to the issuance of ISIS Debentures during 2013.
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Professional fees increased for the six month period ended June 30, 2013 from the comparable period during 2012 as
a result of fees incurred in relation to the Qualifying Transaction.

The reduction in salaries and related benefits for the six month period ended June 30, 2013 as compared to the six
month period ended June 30, 2012 is attributed to a decrease in the number of software support personnel in Panama.

The increase in subcontract fees for the six month period ended June 30, 2013 versus the comparable period in 2012
is due to an increase in consulting fees charged by York Capital during the period.

The decrease in travel and accommodation expenses for the six month period ended June 30, 2012 is attributed to
increased travel by management relating to the Qualifying Transaction.

Net Loss

ISIS incurred a loss of $360,233 during the three month period ended June 30, 2013 as compared to a loss of
$436,346 during the quarter ended June 30, 2012. The decreased loss was attributed to less advertising and promotion
expenses for its software as well as lower software support personnel offset by increased interest expense associated
with the issuance of ISIS Debentures and expenses related to the proposed Qualifying Transaction for professional,
subcontract consulting and travel.

ISIS incurred a loss of $690,574 during the six month period ended June 30, 2013 as compared to a loss of $749,781
for the six month period ended June 30, 2012. The decreased loss was attributed to less advertising and promotion
expenses for its software as well as lower software support personnel offset by increased interest expense associated
with the issuance of ISIS Debentures and expenses related to the proposed Qualifying Transaction for professional
and subcontract consulting.

Off-balance Sheet Arrangements

ISIS has not entered into any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Liquidity & Capital Resources

At June 30, 2013 ISIS had a working capital deficiency of $1,160,363. Management of ISIS believes that it will have
sufficient working capital to meet its anticipated financial obligations for the current year.

June 30, 2013
Working capital (deficiency) ($1,160,363)
Deficit ($3,888,134)

Related Party Transactions

ISIS was billed $45,000 in consulting fees by Daniel Kajouii, President and CEO of ISIS, during the three month
period ended June 30, 2013 and $90,000 during the six month period ended June 30, 2013. The fees were capitalized
under intangibles.

The total amount owed to related parties is $167,347 as of the date hereof, payable as follows: Chris Kajouii, Vice-
President Operations of ISIS, is owed $91,325.07 for deferred salary payments since November 1, 2012; Tito Gandhi,
CFO of ISIS, is owed $56,265.63 for unpaid expenses; and Daniel Kajouii, CEO of ISIS, is owed $19,756.53 for
unpaid salary since April, 2013.

ISIS Shareholders Tito Gandhi, Frank Waszkun, Don MacKinnon, and Nejib Biya are each 20% shareholders of
2213802 Ontario Inc., a company which has purchased $245,000 principal amount of ISIS Debentures and 60,000 ISIS
Debenture Warrants. Pursuant to an agreement with each of 2213802 Ontario Inc., Tito Gandhi, and Nejib Biya, the
repayment ISIS Debentures in the principal amount $395,000 has been postponed for 18 months following Closing
upon certain conditions described herein. See “ISIS Lab Inc. – ISIS Debenture Financing” and “ISIS Lab Inc. – ISIS
Debt Deferment”.
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Tito Gandhi, ISIS’ Chief Financial Officer and a director, has purchased ISIS Debentures in the aggregate principal
amount of $50,000, however Mr. Gandhi has agreed to postpone repayment of this debenture for a period of 18 months
in the event proceeds raised under the Offering do not exceed $4,500,000. See “ISIS Debt Deferment”.

Financial Instruments

Fair Value

Fair value estimates of financial Instruments are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant information about
financial markets and specific instruments. As these estimates are subjective in nature, involving uncertainties and
matters of significant judgment, they cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions can significantly
affect estimated fair values. As of June 30, 2013, the fair value of the ISIS’ note receivable is not determinable given
the circumstances described in credit risk below. The carrying value was presented in the interim condensed
consolidated statement of financial position. The fair value of all ISIS’ other financial Instruments approximate the
carrying value, due to their short- term nature.

Financial Risk Factors 

ISIS is exposed in varying degrees to a variety of financial Instrument related risks:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial Instrument may fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss. ISIS’ primary exposure to credit risk is in its note receivable it is from Cladstone, which
is a start-up company. In an effort to mitigate this risk, management actively manages and monitors its receivables. No
bad debts have been recognized to date and it has been determined that no allowance is required as all amounts
outstanding are considered collectible.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises through the excess of financial obligations over available financial assets due at any point in time.
ISIS has reported a negative working capital of $1,160,363 and $273,902 as at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012
respectively. ISIS manages its liquidity risk through the management of its capital which incorporates the continuous
monitoring of actual and projected cash flows to ensure that it has sufficient liquidity to meet its operating
commitments without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the ISIS’ reputation.

Foreign currency risk

The ISIS functional currency is the Canadian dollar. ISIS holds a note receivable denominated in U.K. pound sterling
and also funds certain operations, and administrative expenses in the Isle of Man and in Panama on a cash call basis
using the United Kingdom pound sterling and US dollar converted from its Canadian dollar bank accounts held in
Canada. ISIS does not hedge its foreign exchange risk.

Share Capital

Common Shares

ISIS is authorized to issue an unlimited number of voting common shares. As at the date of this Prospectus, there are
23,897,251 ISIS Shares outstanding.

Outstanding Options, Warrants, Rights or other Derivatives

As at the date hereof, 1,036,082 ISIS Options have been issued. The ISIS Options are exercisable at $0.1013 and are
expected to be exercised into 1,036,082 ISIS Shares prior to completion of the Amalgamation.
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ISIS has issued 341,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants each being exercisable into one ISIS Share at an exercise price of
$0.25 per share in the first year from the date of issue and thereafter at $0.30 per share until the earlier of the date that
is 24 months from the completion of the Amalgamation and December 31, 2015 (or such other exercise price as may be
required by the Exchange) with the exception of 68,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants issued after August 30, 2013 which
shall expire 30 days after Closing. The ISIS Debenture Warrants were issued under the ISIS Debenture Financing. See
“ISIS Lab Inc. – ISIS Debenture Financing”.

Commitments

As of the date of this Prospectus, ISIS has issued ISIS Debentures with an aggregate principal balance of $852,500,
each having an annual interest rate of 24%, with such interest rate being decreased to 3% per annum subsequent to
Closing with respect to those ISIS Debentures noted below as being postponed. The debentures were issued as part of
the ISIS Debenture Financing and, excluding certain ISIS Debentures in the aggregate principal amount of $395,000, it
is intended that they will be repaid in full on closing of the Qualifying Transaction. The repayment of ISIS Debentures
in the principal amount $150,000 will be postponed for 18 months following Closing in the event that proceeds raised
under the Offering do not exceed $4,500,000 and the repayment of $245,000 principal amount of ISIS Debentures will
be postponed for 18 months following Closing if proceeds raised under the Offering do not exceed $5,000,000. ISIS
will also pay on Closing the accrued interest on a $100,000 loan from Forbes & Manhattan Inc. The loan was granted
in September of 2012 and accrues interest at a rate of 3.0% per annum. Repayment of the principal of the loan has been
postponed for 18 months after Closing, but only in the event proceeds raised under the Offering do not exceed
$5,000,000. A total of $90,000 with respect to monthly consulting fees and bonus payments accrued from October 1,
2012 to June 30, 2013 and $30,000 with respect to monthly consulting fees and bonus payments accrued from June 30,
2013 to September 30, 2013 will be payable upon Closing to York Capital, provided that such accrual will be
postponed for 18 months following Closing in the event proceeds under the Offering do not exceed $4,500,000.
Pursuant to the York Capital Consulting Agreement, ISIS is to prepay on Closing all fees that are payable in the first
year after the Closing; provided that if less than $4,500,000 is raised under the Offering, York Capital has agreed to
waive prepayment and will postpone for 18 months following Closing all fees and bonuses payable during the period.
See “ISIS Lab Inc. – ISIS Debenture Financing”, “ISIS Lab Inc. - ISIS Short Term Loan”, “ISIS Lab Inc. - Consulting
Services Agreement” and “ISIS Lab Inc. – ISIS Debt Deferment”.

DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES BEING DISTRIBUTED

Overview

This Prospectus qualifies the distribution of: (i) up to a maximum of 20,000,000 Common Shares which form part of
the Units; (ii) up to a maximum of 10,000,000 Warrants which form part of the Units; (iii) the grant of the Agent’s
Options (including the Agent’s Options granted on exercise of the Over-Allotment Option, if any); and (iv) up to an
additional 3,000,000 Common Shares and 1,500,000 Warrants which form part of the additional Units issuable on
exercise, if any, by the Agent of the Over-Allotment Option.

Common Shares

The holders of the Common Shares are entitled to dividends, subject to the rights of holders of any other class of shares
of the Company, if, as and when declared by the Company’s board of directors, to one vote per share at meetings of the
shareholders and, subject to the rights of holders of any other class of shares of the Company, upon liquidation,
dissolution or winding up of the Company, to receive such assets of the Company as are distributable to the holders of
Common Shares. The Common Shares are not subject to call or assessment nor do they carry any pre-emptive or
conversion rights. There are no provisions attached to such shares for redemption, purchase for cancellation, surrender
or sinking or purchase funds. All Common Shares to be outstanding after the Completion of the Company’s Qualifying
Transaction will be fully paid and non-assessable.

Warrants

Each Unit issued in connection with the Offering, including those issued pursuant to the Over- Allotment Option, shall
comprise one (1) Common Share and one-half (½) of one Warrant. Each whole Warrant will entitle the holder to
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purchase one (1) additional Common Share at a price of $0.45 per Common Share for a period of 24 months from
the date of issuance.

The Warrants will be created and issued pursuant to the Warrant Indenture to be dated as of the Closing Date between
the Company and the Warrant Agent.

The following is a summary only of certain provisions of the Warrant Indenture and does not purport to be complete
and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the provisions of the Warrant Indenture. Reference is made to the Warrant
Indenture for the full text of the attributes of the Warrants.

The Warrant Indenture will provide for adjustments in the exercise price and number of Common Shares issuable upon
the exercise of the Warrants upon the occurrence of certain events, including: the issuance of Common Shares or
securities exchangeable for, or convertible into, Common Shares to all or substantially all of the holders of Common
Shares by way of distribution (other than a distribution of Common Shares upon the exercise of Warrants); the
subdivision, redivision or change of the outstanding Common Shares into a greater number of Common Shares; the
reduction, combination or consolidation of the Common Shares into a smaller number of Common Shares; the fixing of
a record date for a rights offering; and the fixing of a record date for the making of a distribution by the Company to all
or substantially all of the holders of outstanding Common Shares of securities, securities convertible into or
exchangeable for Common Shares (other than pursuant to a rights offering), evidence of its indebtedness or any
property or other assets.

The Warrant Indenture will also provide that, in certain cases of reclassification of Common Shares or capital
reorganization of the Company, as well as in the case of a consolidation, amalgamation, arrangement or merger of the
Company with or into any other body corporate, trust, partnership or other entity, or a sale or conveyance of the
property and assets of the Company as an entirety or substantially as an entirety to any other body corporate, trust,
partnership or other entity (any of the foregoing referred to as a “Reorganization”), any registered holder of Warrants
who has not exercised his Warrants prior to the effective date of such Reorganization, upon the exercise of his
Warrants thereafter, shall receive, in lieu of the number of Common Shares that prior to such effective date such holder
would have been entitled to receive, the number of shares or other securities or property of the Company or of the body
corporate, trust, partnership or other entity resulting from or party to such Reorganization that such holder would have
been entitled to receive on such Reorganization, if on the effective date thereof, as the case may be, such holder had
been the registered holder of the number of Common Shares to which prior to such effective date it was entitled to
acquire upon the exercise of the Warrants.

No adjustment in the exercise price of Warrants will be required unless such adjustment would require an increase or
decrease of at least 1% in the exercise price then in effect; provided however, that any adjustments which by reason of
this provision are not required to be made shall be carried forward and taken into account in any subsequent
adjustment.

The Company will covenant in the Warrant Indenture that, so long as any Warrants remain outstanding, it will give
notice to the Warrant Agent and to the registered holders of Warrants of its intention to fix a record date that is prior to
the expiry date of the Warrants for any matter which an adjustment may be required as described above. The notice
shall be given in each case not less than 14 days prior to such applicable record date.

No fractional Warrants shall be issued or otherwise provided for by the Warrant Indenture, and Warrants may only be
exercised in a sufficient number to acquire whole numbers of Common Shares. Except as specifically provided in the
Warrant Indenture, the holding of a Warrant certificate, entitlement to a Warrant or otherwise, does not confer upon a
holder of Warrants any right or interest whatsoever as a shareholder of the Company, including, but not limited to, the
right to vote at, to receive notice of, or to attend, meetings of shareholders or any other proceedings of the Company, or
the right to dividends and other allocations.

From time to time, the Company and the Warrant Agent may execute and deliver indentures or instruments
supplemental to the Warrant Indenture for certain purposes, including the correction or rectification of any ambiguities,
defective or inconsistent provisions, errors, mistakes or omissions therein, or modifying any provisions of the Warrant
Indenture, provided that in the opinion of the Warrant Agent, relying on the advice of counsel, the rights of the Warrant
Agent or of the registered holders of Warrants are in no way prejudiced thereby. The holders of Warrants have the
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power exercisable from time to time by Extraordinary Resolution (as defined below) to agree to, among other things,
any modification, abrogation, alteration, compromise or arrangement of the rights of registered holders of Warrants or
the Warrant Agent in its capacity as warrant agent under the terms of the Warrant Indenture (subject to the Warrant
Agent’s prior consent, acting reasonably) or on behalf of the registered holders of Warrants against the Company
whether such rights arise under the Warrant Indenture or otherwise. An “Extraordinary Resolution” is a resolution
which is either (i) proposed at a meeting of the registered holders of Warrants at which there are registered holders of
Warrants present in person or represented by proxy holding at least 25% of the aggregate number of Common Shares
that could be acquired pursuant to all the then outstanding Warrants and passed by the affirmative vote of registered
holders of Warrants holding not less than 66 2/3% of the aggregate number of Common Shares that could be acquired
at the meeting and voted on the poll upon such resolutions; or (ii) signed in writing by registered holders of Warrants
holding at least 66 2/3% of the aggregate number of Common Shares that could be acquired pursuant to all the then
outstanding Warrants.

Agent’s Options

The Agent will receive the Agent’s Options which will entitle the Agent to purchase such number of Agent’s Units
as is equal to 8.0% (or 2% with respect to investment up to $500,000 from subscribers listed on the President’s List)
of the number of Units sold pursuant to the Offering, including those issued pursuant to the Over-Allotment Option, or
a maximum of 1,840,000 Agent’s Units, at a price of $0.30 per Agent’s Unit for a period of 24 months from the date of
issuance of the Agent’s Options. See “Plan of Distribution”.

The Agent’s Options issued in connection with the Offering will be non-transferable. The number of Agent’s Units
that may be issued upon exercise of the Agent’s Options will be subject to adjustment upon the occurrence of certain
events, including the subdivision or consolidation of the Common Shares, certain distributions of Common Shares,
certain offerings of Common  Shares  or  rights to  purchase Common Shares and certain capital reorganizations. The
Agent shall not have any rights as a shareholder of the Company (except in respect of the Common Shares it otherwise
holds) until such time as the Agent’s Options are exercised and the underlying Common Shares issued. The Agent’s
Options will be governed by the provisions of a certificate to be issued on the Closing Date by the Company, which
will contain, among other things, the above-described provisions.

For details regarding securities of the Company to be issued pursuant to the Qualifying Transaction, see “Proposed
Qualifying Transaction”.

CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION

Pro Forma Consolidated Capitalization

The following table sets out the particulars of the share capital of the Company, before and after giving effect to the
Company’s Qualifying Transaction and to the Offering.
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Designation
of the
Security

Amount
Authorized

Amount
Outstanding as

at June 30,
2013, prior to
giving effect to
the Qualifying

Transaction and
to the Offering.

Amount Outstanding as
at June 30, 2013, after

giving effect to the
Qualifying Transaction
but prior to giving effect

to the Offering

Amount Outstanding
as at June 30, 2013

after giving effect to
the Qualifying

Transaction and to the
Minimum Offering

Amount Outstanding
as at June 30, 2013

after giving effect to
the Qualifying

Transaction and to the
Maximum Offering

Common
Shares

Unlimited 4,000,000 30,236,528(1)(8) 43,603,195(2)(8) 50,269,862(2)(8)

Warrants N/A 200,000(3) 541,000(4) 7,207,666(5) 10,541,000(5)

Agent's
Options

N/A - - 1,066,666(6) 1,600,000(6)

Incentive
Options

10% of the
issued and
outstanding
Common

Shares

200,000(7) 200,000 200,000 200,000

Notes:
(1) Includes the 4,000,000 Common Shares outstanding as at June 30, 2013 and the 24,933,333 Transaction Shares to be issued

pursuant to the Qualifying Transaction (assuming the exercise of the ISIS Options into ISIS Common Shares immediately prior
to Closing).

(2) Includes the 4,000,000 Common Shares outstanding as at June 30, 2013, the 24,933,333 Transaction Shares to be issued
pursuant to the Qualifying Transaction (assuming the exercise of the ISIS Options into ISIS Common Shares immediately prior
to Closing), the 33,334 Common Shares to be issued to the Agent on Closing, and the issuance of 13,333,333 Common Shares
in the case of the Minimum Offering or 20,000,000 Common Shares in the case of the Maximum Offering. The numbers in the
table do not take into account any issuance of Common Shares pursuant to the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option.

(3) As at June 30, 2013 the Company had 200,000 Broker Warrants outstanding to acquire Common Shares. On August 6, 2013
and August 8, 2013 the Broker Warrants were exercised into 100,000 Common Shares and 100,000 Common Shares
respectively for a total exercise of 200,000 Broker Warrants.

(4) Includes 200,000 Broker Warrants outstanding as at June 30, 2013 and 341,000 Replacement Warrants, with such Replacement
Warrants to be issued in exchange for the ISIS Debenture Warrants pursuant to the Qualifying Transaction.

(5) Includes 200,000 Broker Warrants outstanding as at June 30, 2013, 341,000 Replacement Warrants to be issued in exchange for
the ISIS Debenture Warrants pursuant to the Qualifying Transaction, and 6,666,666 Warrants to be issued in the case of the
Minimum Offering or 10,000,000 Warrants to be issued in the case of the Maximum Offering. These numbers do not take into
account any issuance of Warrants pursuant to the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option.

(6) 1,066,666 Agent's Options and 1,600,000 Agent's Options will be issued pursuant to the Minimum Offering and the Maximum
Offering, respectively, each Agent's Option exercisable into an Agent's Unit comprised of a Common Share and one-half of one
Warrant as described under "Description of Securities Being Distributed". These numbers do not take into account any issuance
of Agent's Options pursuant to the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option.

(7) The Company has 200,000 Incentive Options outstanding to acquire Common Shares, each such option having an exercise
price of $0.10 per Common Share and an expiry date of August 21, 2021.

(8) Includes 1,303,195 Common Shares to be issued pursuant to the Finder’s Fee Agreement with Parolini Family Holdings
Limited.

The above table assumes that the 1,036,082 ISIS Options currently outstanding will be exercised into 1,036,082 ISIS
Shares immediately prior to Closing, which ISIS Shares will be exchanged for Transaction Shares pursuant to the
Qualifying Transaction. Furthermore, the above table does not take into account the additional 59,000 ISIS Debenture
Warrants that may be issued prior to Closing under the ISIS Debenture Financing, which, if issued, will be exchanged
for Replacement Warrants pursuant to the Qualifying Transaction. The repayment of any additional ISIS Debentures
issued pursuant to the ISIS Debenture Financing (currently, $852,500 principal amount of ISIS Debentures are
outstanding) may be postponed for 18 months following Closing. See “ISIS Lab Inc. – ISIS Debenture Financing” and
“ISIS Lab Inc. – ISIS Debt Deferment”.

Pro Forma Fully-Diluted Share Capital

The fully-diluted issued and outstanding share capital of the Company assuming completion of the Company’s
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Qualifying Transaction and the Offering (but not taking into account any exercise of the Over-Allotment Option) will
be as follows:

Security

Number of
Common Shares

(Minimum
Offering)

Number of
Common Shares

(Maximum
Offering)

Percentage
(Minimum
Offering)

Percentage
(Maximum
Offering)

Common Shares Currently held by
shareholders of the Company

4,200,000 4,200,000 7.98% 6.62%

Common Shares to be issued to former
ISIS Shareholders pursuant to the
Qualifying Transaction

24,933,333(1) 24,933,333(1) 47.34% 39.28%

Common Shares to be issued pursuant to
Finder’s Fee Agreement

1,303,195 1,303,195 2.47% 2.05%

Common Shares issued pursuant to the
Offering

13,333,333 20,000,000 25.31% 31.51%

Common Shares issued to the Agent
pursuant to the Offering

33,334 33,334 0.06% 0.05%

Common Shares reserved for issuance
pursuant to Replacement Warrants

400,000(2) 400,000(2) 0.76% 0.63%

Common Shares reserved for issuance
pursuant to the exercise of Warrants
issued pursuant to the Offering

6,666,666 10,000,000 12.66% 15.76%

Common Shares reserved for issuance
pursuant to Incentive Options held by
option holders of the Company

200,000 200,000 0.38% 0.32%

Common Shares reserved for issuance
pursuant to the Agent’s Options

1,599,999(3) 2,400,000(3) 3.04% 3.78%

Total 52,669,860 63,469,862 100.00% 100.00%

Notes:
(1) Assumes the exercise of the 1,036,082 ISIS Options into 1,036,082 ISIS Shares prior to Closing.
(2) Includes 341,000 Replacement Warrants to be issued in exchange for 341,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants currently

outstanding, and assumes an additional 59,000 Replacement Warrants to be issued in the event that an additional 59,000
ISIS Debenture Warrants are issued pursuant to the ISIS Debenture Financing. See “ISIS Lab Inc. - ISIS Debenture
Financing”.

(3) Each Agent’s Option is exercisable into an Agent Unit comprised of one Common Share and one-half of one Warrant. The
figures in the table above include the Common Shares comprising the Agent’s Units and the Common Shares underlying
the Warrants comprising the Agent’s Units.

OPTIONS TO PURCHASE SECURITIES

The Company

The Company has adopted an ESOP in accordance with the policies of the Exchange which provides that the board
of directors of the Company may from time to time, in its discretion, grant to directors and officers of the Company, as
well as to certain other eligible Persons, non-transferable options (the “Incentive Options”) to purchase Common
Shares. Such options are exercisable for a period of up to ten (10) years following the date of their grant.

The board of directors of the Company determines the exercise price per Common Share and the number of Common
Shares which may be allotted to each director, officer and other eligible Person and all other terms and conditions
of each option granted under the ESOP, subject to the rules of the Exchange. The number of Common Shares
reserved for issuance under the ESOP is equal to 10% of the issued and outstanding shares of the Company from time
to time. In addition, the number of Common Shares reserved for issuance to any one Person in any twelve (12) month
period cannot exceed five percent (5%) of the issued and outstanding Common Shares and the number of Common
Shares reserved for issuance to any one technical consultant in any twelve (12) month period cannot exceed two
percent (2%) of the issued and outstanding Common Shares. The Incentive Options which have been granted to date
may be exercised by their holders at any time up to and including the ninetieth (90th) day following the date they cease
to be an officer or director of the Company or of the Resulting Issuer, provided that, if the termination of
employment or cessation of position with the Resulting Issuer is by reason of death, the option may be exercised
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within twelve (12) months after such death, subject to the expiry date of the Incentive Options.

The exercise price per Common Share set by the board of directors for a particular Incentive Option cannot be, while
the Company remains a CPC, less than the Discounted Market Price (as defined in the policies of the Exchange). In the
event a press release fixing the exercise price is not issued, the Discounted Market Price shall be the closing price of
the Common Shares that were traded on the last business day prior to the date on which such option is granted, less
the applicable discount permitted by the rules of the Exchange (if any).

Upon Completion of the Company’s Qualifying Transaction, Incentive Options will be outstanding as follows:

Optionees
Number of Incentive

Options Exercise Price ($) Expiry Date

Current Directors and Officers of the
Company, as a whole (1) 200,000 $0.10 August 21, 2021

Notes:
(1) Held by the three current directors (one of whom is also an executive officer) of the Company, who will resign from all

such positions upon Closing. Such Incentive Options will expire 12 months from Closing (unless otherwise extended in
accordance with the ESOP and Exchange Policies).

(2) On August 22, 2013, the market price of the Common Shares on the Exchange was $0.31.

The Resulting Issuer intends to issue Incentive Options to the new directors, officers, and consultants of the Resulting
Issuer after completion of the Qualifying transaction, in accordance with the amended ESOP, although the number of
Incentive Options is not known at this time, other than as described under “Executive Compensation of the Resulting
Issuer”.

ISIS

As of the date hereof, the following ISIS Options are outstanding and held by the optionee indicated:

Optionee Number of ISIS Options Exercise Price ($) Expiry Date

York Capital Partners Inc. 1,036,082 $0.1013
The earlier of

October 1, 2014 and
the Closing Date(1)

Note:
(1) In accordance with the option agreement between ISIS and York Capital, ISIS intends to give York Capital notice of

acceleration of the expiry date of the ISIS Options such that the ISIS Options shall expire no later than the Closing.

All of the ISIS Options are expected to be exercised for ISIS Shares immediately prior to the Closing on the basis of
one ISIS Share for each ISIS Option exercised and will be immediately exchanged for Transaction Shares in the course
of the Qualifying Transaction.

PRIOR SHARE SALES

The Company

The following table sets out all issuances of Common Shares since February 9, 2011, the date of
incorporation of the Company, and the Company’s share capital as of the date of this Prospectus:
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Date Number of Common Shares IssuedIssue Price per Common Share
February 1, 2011 1 $0.05

February 23, 2011
799,999 $0.05
800,000 $0.05
400,000 $0.05

August 22, 2011 2,000,000(1) $0.10
August 6, 2013 100,000(2) $0.10
August 8, 2013 100,000(2) $0.10
TOTAL 4,200,000

Notes:
(1) Initial public offering of Common Shares.
(2) These Common Shares were issued upon the exercise of 200,000 Broker Warrants.

ISIS

Since January, 2012, the following ISIS Shares have been issued and are outstanding as follows:

Date
Number of ISIS
Shares Issued

Issue Price per ISIS
Share

January 17, 2012 50,000 $2.00
January 30, 2012 40,000 $2.00
February 23, 2012 250,000 $2.00
May 01, 2012 60,000 $2.00
June 27, 2012 62,500 $2.00
July 26, 2012 50,000 $2.00
July 30, 2012 10,000 $2.00
August 29, 2012 30,000 $2.00
August 29, 2012 20,000 $2.00
September 26, 2012 10,000 $2.00
September 27, 2012 6,000 $2.00
October 04, 2012 10,000 $2.00
October 26, 2012 10,000 $2.00
October 30, 2012 40,000 $2.00
November 30, 2012 30,000 $2.00
December 10, 2012 6,000 $2.00
December 31, 2012 4,000 $2.00

TOTAL 688,500(1)

Note:
(1) This number reflects the pre-share split numbers. A share split was enacted on January 29, 2013

whereby every ISIS Share was split for 6.9072189 ISIS Shares.

Since January, 2012, the following ISIS Debenture Warrants have been issued and are outstanding as follows:

Date

Number of ISIS
Debenture Warrants

Issued

Conversion Price
per ISIS Debenture

Warrant(1)

Conversion
Price per ISIS

Debenture
Warrant(2)

January 30, 2013 50,000 $0.25 $0.30
February 6, 2013 10,000 $0.25 $0.30
February 7, 2013 10,000 $0.25 $0.30
February 28, 2013 10,000 $0.25 $0.30
March 1, 2013 20,000 $0.25 $0.30
March 13, 2013 10,000 $0.25 $0.30
April 1, 2013 30,000 $0.25 $0.30
April 10, 2013 25,000 $0.25 $0.30
May 31, 2013 10,000 $0.25 $0.30
June 26, 2013 10,000 $0.25 $0.30
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June 27, 2013 20,000 $0.25 $0.30
July 12, 2013 10,000 $0.25 $0.30
July 31, 2013 20,000 $0.25 $0.30
August 12, 2013 10,000 $0.25 $0.30
August 30, 2013 28,000 $0.25 $0.30
September 26, 2013 8,000 $0.25 $0.30
October 2, 2013 60,000 $0.25 $0.30
TOTAL 341,000

Notes:
(1) Each ISIS Debenture Warrant is exercisable into one ISIS Share at an exercise price of $0.25 per share in

the first year from the date of issue.
(2) Subsequent to the first year from the date of issue, each ISIS Debenture Warrant is exercisable at $0.30

per share until the earlier of the date that is 24 months from the Closing Date and December 31, 2015,
with the exception of 68,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants issued after August 30, 2013 which shall expire
30 days after Closing.

ISIS has authorized the sale of up to $1,000,000 principal amount of ISIS Debentures and 400,000 ISIS Debenture
Warrants for gross proceeds of up to $1,000,000, of which $852,500 principal amount of ISIS Debentures and 341,000
ISIS Debenture Warrants have been issued to date. Each ISIS Debenture Warrant entitles the holder to purchase one
ISIS Share at an exercise price of $0.25 per share in the first year from the date of issuance and $0.30 per share in the
second year from the date of issuance until their expiry, with the exception of 68,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants issued
after August 30, 2013 which shall expire 30 days after Closing. See “ISIS Lab Inc. – ISIS Debenture Financing”.

Other than as set out above, no other equity securities or securities convertible into equity securities o f  IS IS have
been issued since January, 2012.

TRADING INFORMATION

The Common Shares trade on the Exchange under the symbol “WCI.P”. The Company commenced trading on the
Exchange on August 22, 2011. Trading in Common Shares was halted on December 14, 2012 pending the
announcement that the Company had entered into a letter of intent in relation to the Amalgamation. The Common
Shares resumed trading on July 15, 2013 however was halted on August 23, 2013 and subsequently suspended on
August 26, 2013 for failure to complete a Qualifying Transaction. The following table summarizes the trading history
of the Common Shares on the Exchange:

Month High ($) Low ($) Trading Volume
September, 2013 N/A N/A N/A
August, 2013(1) 0.31 0.21 953,000
July, 2013 0.10 0.205 477,500
June, 2013 N/A N/A N/A
May, 2013 N/A N/A N/A
April, 2013 N/A N/A N/A
March 2013 N/A N/A N/A
February 2013 N/A N/A N/A
January 2013 N/A N/A N/A
December 2012(2) 0.125 0.12 10,000
November 2012 N/A N/A N/A
October 2012 N/A N/A N/A
September 212 N/A N/A N/A
August 2012 N/A N/A N/A
July 2012 N/A N/A N/A
June 2012 0.12 0.12 40,000
May 2012 N/A N/A N/A
April 2012 N/A N/A N/A
March 2012 0.10 0.10 2,000
February 2012 0.06 0.06 2,000
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January 2012 N/A N/A N/A
December 2011 N/A N/A N/A
November 2011 N/A N/A N/A
October 2011 N/A N/A N/A
September 2011 N/A N/A N/A
August 2011(3) N/A N/A N/A

Notes:
(1) The Common Shares were halted from trading effective August 23, 2013. The last trade took place on August 22, 2013.
(2) Although trading in the Common Shares was halted on December 14, 2012, the last trade took place on December 11,

2012.
(3) The Common Shares commenced trading on the Exchange on August 22, 2011.

The ISIS Shares are not listed or posted for trading on any stock exchange.

ESCROWED SECURITIES

CPC Escrow Shares

Pursuant to the CPC Escrow Agreement, an aggregate of 2,000,000 CPC Escrow Shares are held in escrow by the
Transfer Agent. The CPC Escrow Agreement provides that the CPC Escrow Shares shall not be sold, assigned,
hypothecated, transferred within escrow or otherwise dealt with in any manner without the written consent of the
Exchange. Under the CPC Escrow Agreement, 10% of the escrowed Common Shares will be released from escrow
upon the Initial Release and an additional 15% will be released on each of the dates which are six months,
twelve months, 18 months, 24 months, 30 months and 36 months following the Initial Release.

If the Company meets the Exchange’s Tier 1 minimum listing requirements either at the time the Final Exchange
Bulletin in respect of the Company’s Qualifying Transaction is issued or subsequently, the release of the CPC Escrow
Shares will be accelerated. An accelerated escrow release will not commence until the Company has made application
to the Exchange for listing as a Tier 1 issuer and the Exchange has issued a bulletin that announces the acceptance for
listing of the Company on Tier 1 of the Exchange. The Resulting Issuer expects to be listed as a Tier 2 technology
issuer after completion of the Qualifying Transaction.

The CPC Escrow Agreement further provides that in the event of bankruptcy or death of an escrowed securityholder
the Transfer Agent, on written notification to the Exchange, may transmit such securityholder’s securities to the trustee
in bankruptcy, executor, administrator, personal representative, surviving joint tenant or such other Person as is legally
entitled to become the registered owner of the securities, but notwithstanding such transmission, the securities shall
remain in escrow subject to the terms and conditions of the CPC Escrow Agreement.

The CPC Escrow Shares are held, as at the date hereof, as follows:
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Prior to Giving Effect to the
Qualifying Transaction and

Offering

Percentage of Common
Shares After Giving Effect

to the Qualifying
Transaction and Minimum

Offering(1)(2)

Percentage of Common
Shares After Giving

Effect to the Qualifying
Transaction and

Maximum Offering(1)(2)

Percentage of
Common Shares After

Giving Effect to the
Qualifying

Transaction and
Assuming Exercise of
the Over-Allotment

Option(1)(2)

Name and
Municipality of
Residence of
Security Holder

Number of
Common

Shares held in
Escrow Percentage

Randy Clifford
Edmonton, AB

800,000 40% 1.82% 1.58% 1.49%

Michael Wilson
Parksville, BC

800,000 40% 1.82% 1.58% 1.49%

Douglas Eacrett
Vancouver, BC

400,000 20% 0.91% 0.79% 0.74%

Notes:
(1) Assumes that no Common Shares are purchased by these shareholders under the Offering, including without limitation

the Over-Allotment Option, if exercised by the Agent.
(2) Assumes completion of the Offering. This amount does not reflect the release of 10% of the CPC Escrow Shares from

escrow upon receipt of the Final Exchange Bulletin.
(3) Concurrent with the Closing and subject to Exchange approval, the CPC Escrow Shares listed above are expected to be

transferred to the following shareholders of the Resulting Issuer: Daniel Kajouii, Tito Gandhi, Chris Kajouii, Ian
Campbell, and Stan Bharti. For further details, see “Proposed Qualifying Transaction – CPC Escrow Share Transaction”.

QT Escrow Shares

In addition to the CPC Escrow Shares to be transferred to those Principals set out above, pursuant to the CPC Escrow
Share Transaction, and held in escrow as set out above, the QT Escrow Shares to be issued to certain Principals (as
hereinafter defined) of ISIS pursuant to the Qualifying Transaction, who will become Principals of the Resulting Issuer
and certain other individuals as determined by the Exchange, will be subject to escrow restrictions, unless otherwise
determined by the Exchange. Those ISIS shareholders who will be Principals of the Company, in addition to certain
other individuals as determined by the Exchange, upon completion of the Company’s Qualifying Transaction will have
a certain number of the securities of the Company held by them subject to the terms of the QT Escrow Agreement
between the Company, the Escrow Agent, certain Principals and certain other individuals as determined by the
Exchange. “Principal” means: (1) a director or senior officer of a company or any of its material operating
subsidiaries; (2) a Person who acted as a promoter of a company within the previous two years; (3) a Person that holds
more than 20% of the voting shares of a company; (4) a Person that holds more than 10% of the voting shares of a
company and has elected or appointed, or has the right to elect or appoint, one or more directors or senior officers of a
company or any of its material operating subsidiaries; (5) any entity of which more than 50% of its securities (fully
diluted) are owned by one or more of the Persons listed in (1) – (4); and (6) any spouse or relative of any of the
Persons listed in (1) – (4) who lives at the same address as such Person.

The QT Escrow Agreement restricts the ability of the Principals and certain other individuals to deal with the QT
Escrow Shares while they are in escrow. The QT Escrow Agreement provides that the QT Escrow Shares shall not
be sold, assigned, hypothecated, transferred within escrow or otherwise dealt with in any manner without the written
consent of the Exchange. An entity, controlled by one or more Principals, that holds QT Escrow Shares, may not
participate in a transaction that results in a change of its control or a change in the economic exposure of the Principals
to the risks of holding QT Escrow Shares.

Generally, if at least 75% of the securities issued pursuant to the Qualifying Transaction are “Value Securities” (as
defined herein), then all the securities issued to Principals of the Resulting Issuer and certain other individuals, as
determined by the Exchange, pursuant to the Qualifying Transaction will be deposited into escrow pursuant to a value
security escrow agreement (the QT Escrow Agreement). Value Securities are securities issued pursuant to a transaction
for which the deemed value of the securities at least equals the value ascribed to the asset, using a valuation method
acceptable to the Exchange, or securities that are otherwise determined by the Exchange to be Value Securities and
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required to be placed in escrow under a value security escrow agreement.

In accordance with Exchange Policy 5.4 Escrow, Vendor Consideration and Resale Restrictions, upon completion of
the Qualifying Transaction, the escrowed securities shall be released as to 10% immediately following the issuance of
the Final Exchange Bulletin, 15% six months following the initial release and 15% every six months thereafter.

The Resulting Issuer expects to be listed as a Tier 2 technology issuer after completion of the Qualifying Transaction.
If the Resulting Issuer meets the Exchange’s Tier 1 minimum listing requirements either at the time the Final Exchange
Bulletin is issued or subsequently, the release of the QT Escrow Shares will be accelerated.  An accelerated escrow
release will not commence until the Resulting Issuer has made application to the Exchange for listing as a Tier 1 issuer
and the Exchange has issued a bulletin that announces the acceptance for listing of the Resulting Issuer on Tier 1 of the
Exchange.

The following Common Shares will be deposited into escrow and subject to the terms and conditions of the QT Escrow
Agreement upon completion of the Company’s Qualifying Transaction, unless otherwise agreed to by the Exchange:

Name and
Municipality of
Residence of Security
Holder(1)

Number of Common
Shares After Giving

Effect to the
Qualifying

Transaction and
Offering(2)

Percentage of
Common Shares After

Giving Effect to the
Qualifying Transaction

and the Minimum
Offering(2)(3)

Percentage of
Common Shares

After Giving Effect
to the Qualifying

Transaction and the
Maximum

Offering(2)(3)

Percentage of
Common Shares

After Giving Effect
to the Qualifying
Transaction and

Assuming Exercise
of the Over-
Allotment
Option(1)(2)

Daniel Kajouii
Brampton, ON

4,023,455 9.18% 7.97% 7.52%

Tito Gandhi
Caledon East, ON(5)

6,458,249 14.74% 12.79% 12.07%

Ian Campbell
Toronto, ON

172,680 0.39% 0.34% 0.32%

Chris Kajouii
Toronto, ON

196,856 0.44% 0.39% 0.36%

Michael Davidson(6)

Toronto, ON
863,402 1.97% 1.71% 1.61%

Anthony Vielle
Thornhill, ON

863,402 1.97% 1.71% 1.61%

Sharad Mistry
Toronto, ON

21 5,850 0.49% 0.42% 0.40%

Julian Doyle
Toronto, ON

215,850 0.49% 0.42% 0.40%

Bernadette Parolini
Woodbridge, ON

215,850 0.49% 0.42% 0.40%

Felicia Capone
Woodbridge, ON

215,850 0.49% 0.42% 0.40%

2213802 Ontario Inc.
Mississauga, ON

518,041 1.18% 1.02% 0.96%

Notes:
(1) Under the terms of the Amalgamation Agreement these security holders have agreed to enter into a lock-up agreement

restricting the sale of the above Common Shares for a period of one year after the Closing
(2) Assumes that no Common Shares are purchased by these shareholders under the Offering, including the Over-Allotment

Option, if exercised by the Agent.
(3) Assumes completion of the Offering. This amount does not reflect the release of 10% of the QT Escrow Shares from

escrow upon receipt of the Final Exchange Bulletin.
(4) For greater certainty, the above table does not include the CPC Escrow Shares to be held in escrow as set out above under

“CPC Escrow Shares”.
(5) For greater certainty, the above table does not include 20,000 Replacement Warrants to be issued to Mr. Gandhi and which

will also be held in escrow pursuant to the QT Escrow Agreement.
(6) For greater certainty, the above table does not include 10,000 Replacement Warrants to be issued to Mr. Davidson and
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which will also be held in escrow pursuant to the QT Escrow Agreement.

PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

The Company

To the knowledge of management of the Company, the following Persons beneficially own, or control or direct,
directly or indirectly, 10% or more of the issued and outstanding Common Shares as of the date of this Prospectus:

Name &
Municipality of
Residence

Type of
Ownership

Number of
Common

Shares

Percentage of
Outstanding

Common Shares
after Closing of

Qualifying
Transaction and

the Minimum
Offering(2)

Percentage of
Outstanding

Common Shares
after Closing of

Qualifying
Transaction and
the Maximum

Offering(3)

Percentage of
Common Shares

After Giving
Effect to the
Qualifying

Transaction, the
Maximum

Offering and
Assuming

Exercise of the
Over-Allotment

Option(4)

Randy Clifford
Edmonton, AB

Direct and
Beneficial

800,000 1.82% 1.58% 1.49%

Michael
Wilson
Parksville, BC

Direct and
Beneficial

800,000 1.82% 1.58% 1.49%

Douglas
Eacrett
Vancouver,
BC

Direct and
Beneficial

400,000 0.91% 0.79% 0.74%

Notes:
(1) The numbers above assume that no Common Shares are purchased by these shareholders under the Offering, including

without limitation the Over-Allotment Option, if exercised by the Agent.
(2) The percentage calculations are calculated assuming the Minimum Offering of 13,333,333 Units, in addition to the

30,469,862 Common Shares to be outstanding upon Closing (including the 1,303,195 Common Shares to be issued to the
Finder).

(3) The percentage calculations are calculated assuming the Maximum Offering of 20,000,000 Units, in addition to the
30,469,862 Common Shares to be outstanding upon Closing (including the 1,303,195 Common Shares to be issued to the
Finder).

(4) The percentage calculations are calculated assuming the Maximum Offering of 20,000,000 Units, in addition to the
additional 3,000,000 Units issued pursuant to the Over-Allotment Option and the 30,469,862 Common Shares to be
outstanding upon Closing. (including the 1,303,195 Common Shares to be issued to the Finder).

(5) Does not reflect the proposed CPC Escrow Transaction.

ISIS

To the knowledge of management of ISIS, the following Persons beneficially own, or control or direct, directly or
indirectly, 10% or more of the issued and outstanding ISIS Shares as of the date of this Prospectus:

Name &
Municipality of
Residence

Type of
Ownership

Number of
ISIS Shares

Percentage of
Outstanding ISIS

Shares
Tito Gandhi
Caledon East, ON

Registered and
Beneficial

6,458,249(1) 27.03%

Daniel Kajouii
Brampton, ON

Registered and
Beneficial

4,023,455 16.84%

Stan Bharti
Toronto, ON

Registered and
Beneficial

4,187,501 17.52%

Note:
(1) Mr. Gandhi owns 6,026,548 ISIS Shares directly and 431,701 ISIS Shares indirectly, through 2213802 Ontario Inc.
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Resulting Issuer

To the knowledge of management of the Company and ISIS, the following Persons, upon completion of the
Company’s Qualifying Transaction and taking into account the Offering, will beneficially own, or control or direct,
directly or indirectly, 10% or more of the issued and outstanding shares of the Resulting Issuer:

On a Non-Diluted Basis

Name &
Municipality of
Residence

Type of
Ownership

Number of
Common
Shares(7)

Percentage of
Outstanding

Common Shares
after Closing of the

Qualifying
Transaction and

Minimum Offering(4)

Percentage of
Outstanding

Common Shares
after Closing of

Qualifying
Transaction and the
Maximum Offering

(5)

Percentage of
Common Shares

After Giving
Effect to the
Qualifying

Transaction, the
Maximum

Offering and
Assuming

Exercise of the
Over-Allotment

Option(6)

Tito Gandhi
Caledon East, ON

Registered and
Beneficial

6,958,249(1) 15.88% 13.78% 13.01%

Daniel Kajouii
Brampton, ON

Registered and
Beneficial

4,523,455(2) 10.32% 8.96% 8.45%

Stan Bharti(8)

Toronto, ON
Registered and

Beneficial
4,437,501(3) 10.13% 8.79% 8.29%

Notes:
(1) Upon Closing Mr. Gandhi will own 6,026,548 Common Shares directly and 431,701 Common Shares indirectly through

2213802 Ontario Inc. and it is anticipated that Mr. Gandhi will purchase 500,000 CPC Escrow Shares pursuant to the CPC
Escrow Share Transaction. See “Proposed Qualifying Transaction – CPC Escrow Share Transaction”.

(2) Upon Closing Mr. Kajouii will own 4,023,455 Common Shares directly, and it is anticipated that Mr. Kajouii will
purchase 500,000 CPC Escrow Shares pursuant to the CPC Escrow Share Transaction. See “Proposed Qualifying
Transaction – CPC Escrow Share Transaction”.

(3) Upon Closing Mr. Bharti will own 4,187,501 Common Shares directly, and it is anticipated that Mr. Bharti will purchase
250,000 CPC Escrow Shares pursuant to the CPC Escrow Share Transaction. See “Proposed Qualifying Transaction –
CPC Escrow Share Transaction”.

(4) The percentage calculations are calculated assuming the Minimum Offering of 13,333,333 Units, in addition to the
30,469,862 Common Shares to be outstanding upon Closing (including the 1,303,195 Common Shares to be issued to the
Finder).

(5) The percentage calculations are calculated assuming the Maximum Offering of 20,000,000 Units, in addition to the
30,469,862 Common Shares to be outstanding upon Closing. (including the 1,303,195 Common Shares to be issued to the
Finder).

(6) The percentage calculations are calculated assuming the Maximum Offering of 20,000,000 Units, in addition to the
additional 3,000,000 Units issued pursuant to the Over-Allotment Option and the 30,469,862 Common Shares to be
outstanding upon Closing. (including the 1,303,195 Common Shares to be issued to the Finder).

(7) These numbers assume the transfer of the CPC Escrow Shares.
(8) Mr. Bharti and Mr. Gandhi are brothers. These numbers assume no Units are purchased by these shareholders under the

Offering, including the Over-Allotment Option if exercised by the Agent.
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On a Fully Diluted Basis

Name & Municipality
of Residence

Number of
Common Shares

Percentage of
Outstanding Common
Shares after Closing of

the Minimum
Offering(4)(8)

Percentage of
Outstanding Common
Shares after Closing of
the Maximum Offering

(5)

Percentage of
Common Shares

After Giving Effect
to the Qualifying
Transaction and

Assuming Exercise of
the Over-Allotment

Option(6)

Tito Gandhi(4)

Caledon East, ON
6,997,849(1) 13.27% 11.02% 10.52%

Daniel Kajouii
Brampton, ON

4,523,455(2) 8.58% 7.12% 6.80%

Stan Bharti(7)

Toronto, ON
4,437,501 (3) 8.42% 6.99% 6.67%

Notes:
(1) Upon Closing Mr. Gandhi will own 6,026,548 Common Shares directly and 431,701 Common Shares indirectly through

2213802 Ontario Inc., directly own 20,000 Replacement Warrants and indirectly own 19,600 Replacement Warrants
through 2213802 Ontario Inc. It is anticipated that Mr. Gandhi will purchase 500,000 CPC Escrow Shares pursuant to the
CPC Escrow Share Transaction. See “Proposed Qualifying Transaction – CPC Escrow Share Transaction”.

(2) Upon Closing Mr. Kajouii will own 4,023,455 Common Shares directly, and it is anticipated that Mr. Kajouii will
purchase 500,000 CPC Escrow Shares pursuant to the CPC Escrow Share Transaction. See “Proposed Qualifying
Transaction – CPC Escrow Share Transaction”.

(3) Upon Closing Mr. Bharti will own 4,187,501 Common Shares directly, and it is anticipated that Mr. Bharti will purchase
250,000 CPC Escrow Shares pursuant to the CPC Escrow Share Transaction. See “Proposed Qualifying Transaction –
CPC Escrow Share Transaction”.

(4) The percentage calculations are based on their being 52,669,860 Common Shares outstanding on a fully diluted basis upon
Closing. See “Consolidated Capitalization – Pro Forma Fully Diluted Share Capital”.

(5) The percentage calculations are based on their being 63,469,862 Common Shares outstanding on a fully diluted basis upon
Closing.

(6) The percentage calculations are based on their being 66,469,862 Common Shares outstanding on a fully diluted basis upon
Closing.

(7) Mr. Bharti and Mr. Gandhi are brothers.
(8) These numbers assume the transfer of the CPC Escrow Shares. These numbers assume no Units are purchased by these

shareholders under the Offering, including the Over-Allotment Option if exercised by the Agent.

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
The following table indicates the directors and officers of the Resulting Issuer upon the completion of the Qualifying
Transaction and the Offering and the number and percentage of Common Shares that they will own:

Name and
Municipality
of Residence

Proposed
Position

with
Resulting
Issuer(1)

Period
with ISIS

Principal
Occupation

for Last
Five Years

Number of
Common Shares

Beneficially
Owned after the
Amalgamation(2)

Percentage of
Common

Shares
Beneficially
Owned after

the
Amalgamation
and Minimum

Offering

Percentage of
Common

Shares
Beneficially
Owned after

the
Amalgamation
and Maximum

Offering

Percentage of
Common

Shares
beneficially
owned after

the
Amalgamation,

Maximum
Offering and

Assuming
Exercise of the

Over-
Allotment

Option

Daniel
Kajouii(5)

Brampton,
ON

President,
CEO,

Director,
&

Executive
Chairman

President,
CEO and
Director
of ISIS

since July
28, 2010

President &
CEO of

ISIS Lab.
Inc.

4,523,455 10.32% 8.96% 8.45%
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Tito
Gandhi(3)(4)

Caledon
East, ON

Vice
Chairman
& Director

CFO and
Director
of ISIS

since July
28, 2010

CFO ISIS
Lab Inc.
CEO Raj
Gaming

Corp

6,958,249 15.88% 13.78% 13.01%

Ian
Campbell(6)

Toronto, ON

CFO &
Secretary

N/A

Partner,
Hawton

Campbell
Chartered

Accountants

672,680 1.53% 1.33% 1.25%

Michael
Davidson(3)

Toronto, ON
Director N/A

CEO Friday
Capital Inc.,

President
Amamus

Consulting
Inc., CIO

Apotex Inc.

863,402 1.97% 1.71% 1.61%

Bernie
Raymond
Wilson(3)

Toronto, ON

Director N/A
Corporate
Director

NIL N/A N/A N/A

Norm Inkster
Toronto, ON

Director N/A
CEO

Inkster Inc.
NIL N/A N/A N/A

Chris
Kajouii(7)

Toronto, ON

VP
Operations

VP
Operations

of ISIS
since May,

2011

Analyst,
Government
of Canada,

V.P.
Operations
of ISIS Lab

Inc.

446,856 1.02% 0.88% 0.83%

Notes:
(1) Directors stand for re-election annually. The proposed directors of the Resulting Issuer will serve until the end of the next

annual meeting of shareholders of the Resulting Issuer.
(2) The information as to shares beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, or over which control or direction is exercised, is

based upon information furnished to the Company by the respective directors and senior officers as at the date hereof and
assumes completion of the CPC Escrow Transaction, that no Units are purchased pursuant to the Offering, and does not
include any convertible securities held by such person.

(3) Mr. Gandhi, Mr. Davidson, and Mr. Wilson will serve on the Resulting Issuer’s Audit Committee.
(4) Upon Closing Mr. Gandhi will own 6,026,548 Common Shares directly and 431,701 Common Shares indirectly through

2213802 Ontario Inc., will directly own 20,000 Replacement Warrants and indirectly own 19,600 Replacement Warrants
through 2213802 Ontario Inc. It is anticipated that Mr. Gandhi will purchase 500,000 CPC Escrow Shares pursuant to the
CPC Escrow Share Transaction. See “Proposed Qualifying Transaction – CPC Escrow Share Transaction”.

(5) Upon Closing Mr. Daniel Kajouii will own 4,023,455 Common Shares directly, and it is anticipated that Mr. Daniel
Kajouii will purchase 500,000 CPC Escrow Shares pursuant to the CPC Escrow Share Transaction. See “Proposed
Qualifying Transaction – CPC Escrow Share Transaction”.

(6) Upon Closing Mr. Campbell will own 172,680 Common Shares directly, and it is anticipated that Mr. Campbell will
purchase 500,000 CPC Escrow Shares pursuant to the CPC Escrow Share Transaction. See “Proposed Qualifying
Transaction – CPC Escrow Share Transaction”.

(7) Upon Closing Mr. Chris Kajouii will own 196,856 Common Shares directly, and it is anticipated that Mr. Chris Kajouii
will purchase 250,000 CPC Escrow Shares pursuant to the CPC Escrow Share Transaction. See “Proposed Qualifying
Transaction – CPC Escrow Share Transaction”.

Management of the Company on Closing of the Company’s Qualifying Transaction

Following the Closing of the Qualifying Transaction, Management of the Resulting Issuer will consist of the following
individuals:

Daniel Kajouii (38) – Proposed Director, President, CEO, Executive Chairman and Principal Shareholder

Mr. Kajouii has been the President and CEO of ISIS since its founding. Mr. Kajouii was founder and President of 1
Gaming Inc., a privately held company in the business of software development, from 2001 to 2006. Subsequent to his
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work with 1 Gaming Inc. Mr. Kajouii has provided consulting services to various companies in the online media and
entertainment industry.  He is frequently consulted by industry publications and industry leaders on the current state
and the future of online bingo. His work has been published by internet gaming publications including iGaming
Business and E-gaming Review.  Mr. Kajouii has also spoken on the same subject at industry events in the past. His
most recent articles, entitled “Online Bingo and the Social Graph” and “Online Bingo: Its Future in Technology”, were
published in iGaming Business magazine’s January 2012 issue and IGB Affiliate magazine’s November 2012 issue,
respectively. Mr. Kajouii will work full-time under his employment agreement dated July 8, 2013 between Mr. Kajouii
and ISIS for his role of President and CEO, which agreement will be assumed by the Resulting Issuer on Closing. Mr.
Kajouii’s contract contains non-disclosure and non-compete clauses.

Ian Campbell (52), C.A., M.BA – Proposed CFO

Mr. Campbell has been a partner with Hawton Campbell Chartered Accountants since 1996. He commenced his career
with Peat, Marwick Mitchell and Company (now KPMG) and received his C.A. designation while with BDO Ward
Mallette (now BDO Dunwoody) in 1990. Mr. Campbell was also a director of Bison Gold Resources Inc. (formerly
Bison Gold Exploration Inc.) (TSX-V: BGE:CA) from June 2012 to December 2012. He earned his MBA from the
Schulich School of Business at York University in 1994. Mr. Campbell will be working part-time with the Resulting
Issuer as a consultant and will enter a non-disclosure and non-compete agreement with the Resulting Issuer.

Tito Gandhi (58) – Proposed Director and Vice Chairman

Mr. Gandhi has been CFO of ISIS since its founding. Mr. Gandhi has been a technology entrepreneur for the past 20
years. During his time he has bought, operated, restructured, and sold a number of companies. In 1996 he founded and
served as President and CEO of Office Solutions Group, a technology solution provider that was acquired by
Imagistics/Oce in 2004, which was subsequently acquired by Canon Japan. From March, 2007 to present Mr. Gandhi
has been CEO Raj Gaming Corp, a casino in the Dominican Republic, until he joined ISIS in 2010. Mr. Gandhi has a
Higher National Diploma in Business Studies from North Herts College in Hitchin, Hertfordshire, UK. Mr. Gandhi will
enter into a non-disclosure and non-compete agreement with the Resulting Issuer.

Michael Davidson (58) – Proposed Director

Mr. Davidson is currently the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and a director of Friday Capital Inc., a
capital pool company, Mr. Davidson is also concurrently the President of Amamus Consulting Inc. which provides
coaching and mentoring to C-Level suite executives to enable business opportunities to translate into operational
activities and profit.  From 1997 to 2011, Mr. Davidson was Chief Information and Privacy Officer at Apotex Inc., a
pharmaceutical company.  Mr. Davidson was formerly a Director of Valencia Ventures Inc. (TSX-V:VVI) from April,
2000 to December, 2002.  Mr. Davidson obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from York University.

Bernie Raymond Wilson (70) – Proposed Director

Mr. Wilson is a senior financial professional with a wide array of working relationships with business executives in
Canada, the United States and internationally. Mr. Wilson is an advisor in corporate finance and investment banking
and has extensive experience in major financial restructurings as an advisor on international trade and commerce
issues. In 2009 Mr. Wilson was awarded the first ever Institute of Corporate Directors (“ICD”) Governance Award by
his peers in the Director community. This honour recognizes individuals who have demonstrated superior effort and
commitment to advancing Corporate Governance in Canada consistent with the goals of the ICD. Mr. Wilson was a
partner and the Vice Chairman of PricewaterhouseCoopers until 2005, and has been a corporate director on a number
of public and private Canadian and international businesses and an investor in emerging companies, particularly in the
resource industry.
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Norm Inkster (75) – Proposed Director

Mr. Norm Inkster, OC served as 18th Commissioner of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police, from 1987 to 1994. From
1992 until 1994 he also served as President of Interpol. From 1994 to 2003 he was a partner with KPMG in Toronto,
the latter part of which he was global managing partner of the forensic practice.  In 1995 he was made an Officer of the
Order of Canada. In 2003 he retired from KPMG and started Inkster Group, a company providing investigative,
security and law reform services to domestic and foreign governments and international financial institutions. In 2006
Inkster Group was acquired by Navigant Consulting. Mr. Inkster has served as President of Inkster Incorporated since
2006. He was awarded the Gusi Peace Prize in 2011.

Chris Kajouii (29) – Proposed Vice President – Operations of the Resulting Issuer

Chris Kajouii has worked in operations in the online gaming industry since 2002. With an academic background in
science, research and consulting, Chris Kajouii brings a level of online gaming management experience that dates back
to the industry’s founding. Additionally, Chris Kajouii holds a science degree from McMaster University (Ontario,
Canada) and has additional experience in non-profit, government relations, and seed-stage organizations. Chris Kajouii
will work full-time under a consulting agreement to be entered into for his role of VP – Operations with the Resulting
Issuer, and such contract will contain non-disclosure and non-compete clauses. Chris Kajouii has been the Vice
President of Operations of ISIS since May 2011. Prior to this, Chris was an Analyst with the Government of Canada.

Penalties or Sanctions

No current or proposed director, officer or promoter of ISIS or the Company or securityholder anticipated to hold
sufficient securities of the Company upon completion of the Qualifying Transaction to affect materially the control of
the Company has, within the ten years prior to the date of this Prospectus, been subject to any penalties or sanctions
imposed by a court or regulatory body or self-regulatory authority that would likely be considered important to a
reasonable investor in making an investment decision.

Corporate Cease Trade Orders or Bankruptcies

No current or proposed director, officer or promoter of ISIS or the Company or securityholder anticipated to hold
sufficient securities of the Company upon completion of the Qualifying Transaction to affect materially the control of
the Company has, within the ten years prior to the date of this Prospectus, been a director, officer or a promoter of any
issuer (including ISIS or the Company) that: (a) was the subject of a cease trade or similar order or an order that denied
the company access to any statutory exemption that was in effect for a period of more than 30 consecutive days, and
that was issued while such person was acting in such capacity or that was issued after such person ceased to act in such
capacity and which resulted from an event that occurred while such person was acting in such capacity; or (b) while
such person was acting in such capacity or within a year from such person ceasing to act in such capacity, was declared
bankrupt or made a voluntary assignment in bankruptcy, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy
or been subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver-
manager or trustee appointed to hold the assets of such issuer.

Personal Bankruptcies

No current or proposed director, officer or promoter of ISIS or the Company or securityholder holding sufficient
securities of the Company to affect materially the control of the Company, or personal holding company of any such
persons, has, within the ten years preceding the date of this Prospectus, become bankrupt, made a proposal under any
legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or been subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or
compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold the assets of the individual.

Conflicts of Interest

There are no existing or potential material conflicts of interest between the Company or ISIS and any director or officer
of the Company or ISIS. However, certain of such directors and officers are or may become directors or officers of
other companies with businesses that may conflict with the Resulting Issuer's business. Accordingly, conflicts of
interest may arise which could influence these individuals in generally acting on behalf of the Resulting Issuer.
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Pursuant to the BCBCA, directors will be required to act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of
the Resulting Issuer. As required under the BCBCA: (a) a director or senior officer who holds any office or possesses
any property, right or interest that could result, directly or indirectly, in the creation of a duty or interest that materially
conflicts with that individual’s duty or interest as a director or senior officer of the Resulting Issuer, must promptly
disclose the nature and extent of that conflict; and (b) a director who holds a disclosable interest (as that term is used in
the BCBCA) in a contract or transaction into which the Resulting Issuer has entered or proposes to enter may generally
not vote on any directors’ resolution to approve the contract or transaction.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The Company

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

The Company is a CPC. Accordingly, prior to the completion of a Qualifying Transaction, no payment of any kind
may be made, directly or indirectly, by the Company to a non-arm’s length party to the Company or a non-arm’s
length party to the Qualifying Transaction, or to any Person engaged in investor relations activities in respect of the
Company or its securities or any resulting issuer by any means, including:

(a) remuneration, which includes, but is not limited to:

salaries;
consulting fees;
management contract fees or directors’ fees;
finder’s fees;
loans, advances, bonuses; and

(b) deposits and similar payments;

However, the Company may reimburse a non-arm’s length party to the Company for reasonable expenses for office
supplies, office rent and related utilities, reasonable expenses for equipment leases, and legal services, as well as for
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in pursuing the business of the Company (“Permitted Reimbursements”).

Under the policies of the Exchange, the directors and officers of the Company are permitted to be granted stock
options. In determining the number of options to be granted to the directors and officers of the Company, the board
considers the time that the director and/or officer devotes to the operations of the Company as well as the capital
contribution made by such director and/or officer.

Following the completion of a Qualifying Transaction, it is anticipated that the Company will pay compensation to its
directors and officers (see “Executive Compensation – Resulting Issuer” below). However, no payment other than the
Permitted Reimbursements will be made by the Company or by any party on behalf of the Company after Completion
of the Company’s Qualifying Transaction if the payment relates to services rendered or obligations incurred before or
in connection with the Qualifying Transaction.

Incentive Plan Awards

The Company does not have any incentive plans.

Summary Compensation Table

The following describes a summary of all compensation information for the current NEO’s of the Company.
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Name and
Principal
Position

Year Salary ($) Share
Based

Awards
($)

Option
Based

Awards
($)

Non-Equity Incentive
Plan Compensation

Pension
Value

($)

All Other
Compensation

Total
Compens
ation ($)

Annual
Incentive

Plans

Long-
Term

Incentive
Plans

Randy
Clifford,
CEO, CFO
and
President

2013

2012

2011

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

$7,588(1)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

$7,588

Nil

Note:
(1) Represents 80,000 stock options granted effective on August 22, 2011 exercisable at $0.10 until August 22, 2021.  The

value of options based awards was determined in accordance the Black-Scholes option pricing method using an expected
life of ten years, a risk free interest rate of 2.3%, an expected volatility of 120%, and an expected dividend yield of nil.

Outstanding Option-Based Awards

The following table (presented in accordance with Form 51-102F6) sets forth for officers and directors all awards
outstanding at March 31, 2013, including awards granted before the most recently completed financial year.

Option-based Awards Share-based Awards

Name

Number of
securities

underlying
unexercised
options (#)(1)

Option exercise
price ($)

Option
expiration date

Value of
unexercised in-

the-money
options ($)(2)

Number of
shares or units
of shares that

have not vested
(#)

Market or
payout value of

share- based
awards that

have not vested
($)

Randy Clifford 80,000 $0.10 August 22, 2021 $1,600 Nil Nil

Michael Wilson 80,000 $0.10 August 22, 2021 $1,600 Nil Nil

Douglas Eacrett 40,000 $0.10 August 22, 2021 $800 Nil Nil

Notes:
(1) Pursuant to the CPC Policy, directors and officers of a CPC are not entitled to be awarded any form of remuneration.

However, granting of options is permitted and the Company considers primarily the capital contribution of such
director and/or officer in determining the number of options to be granted.

(2) On December 14, 2012, the last trading day prior to the announcement of the Amalgamation, the closing price of the
Common Shares on the Exchange was $0.12.

Pension Plan Benefits

The Company does not have any pension benefit arrangements under which the Company has made payments to the
executive officers of the Company during the most recently completed financial year nor does the Company intend to
make payments to the Company’s executive officers upon their retirement (other than those made, if any, pursuant to
the Canada Pension Plan or any governmental plan similar to it).

ISIS

During the financial year ended December 31, 2012, ISIS had three “Named Executive Officer”, or “NEOs” being
Daniel Kajouii, ISIS’ Chief Executive Officer, Tito Gandhi, ISIS’ Chief Financial Officer, and former Chief
Technology Officer and Vice-President, Marketing, Sohrab Merat.
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Compensation Discussion and Analysis

In assessing the compensation of ISIS’ executive officers, ISIS does not have in place any formal objectives, criteria or
analysis; instead, ISIS relies mainly on its Board of Directors to perform such assessment.

Compensation Process

In assessing the compensation of ISIS’ directors and senior officers, ISIS does not have in place any formal objectives,
criteria or analysis; instead, ISIS relies mainly on its Board of Directors to perform such assessment.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets out all annual and long-term compensation for services to ISIS in all capacities for the fiscal
years ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 of each NEO:

Name and
Principal
Position Year

Salary
($)

Share-
Based

Awards
($)

Option-
Based

Awards
($)

Non-Equity Incentive
Plan Compensation

($)

Pension
Value

($)

All Other
Compensation

($)

Total
Compensation

($)

Daniel Kajouii
CEO

2010(1)

2011

2012

90,000

180,000

180,000

NIL NIL N/A NIL N/A

90,000

180,000

180,000

Tito Gandhi
CFO

2010

2011

2012

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL NIL N/A NIL N/A

NIL

NIL

NIL

Sohrab Merat(2)

Former CTO

2010(1)

2011

2012

90,000

180,000

30,000

NIL NIL N/A NIL N/A

90,000

180,000

30,000
Note:

(1) Compensation was for six months, July through December, 2010.
(2) Mr. Merat resigned as Chief Technology Officer on April 10, 2012.

Outstanding Share-Based Awards and Option-Based Awards

ISIS does not have any long-term incentive plans in place. Consequently, there were no awards made under any long-
term incentive plan to the NEOs during ISIS’ most recently completed financial year.

Incentive Plan Awards – Value Vested or Earned during the Year

ISIS does not have any share-based or option-based incentive plans.

Termination and Change of Control Benefits

Mr. Daniel Kajouii entered into an employment agreement with ISIS dated as of July 8, 2013, which agreement
contains termination and change of control benefits. For details regarding such agreement see “Compensation of the
Resulting Issuer” below.



77

Director Compensation

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, ISIS did not pay any cash or other compensation to its directors for
their services rendered in this regard. All compensation paid by ISIS to its directors for their service as NEOs is
described in the Summary Compensation Table above.

Compensation of the Resulting Issuer

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

In assessing the compensation of the Resulting Issuer’s directors and executive officers, the Resulting Issuer will rely
mainly on its Board of Directors to perform such assessment. The Resulting Issuer’s board of directors will establish
compensation for all employees through comparative salary surveys of similar type and sized companies. Both
individual and corporate performance will be taken into account.

Executive Compensation of the Resulting Issuer

Mr. Daniel Kajouii entered into an employment agreement with ISIS dated as of July 8, 2013. Pursuant to the terms of
this agreement, Mr. Kajouii will serve as President and CEO of the Resulting Issuer for a period of three years
following Closing. The employment agreement continues until terminated by the Resulting Issuer or by Mr. Kajouii by
providing notice to the other party.

Under the employment agreement, Mr. Kajouii is entitled to receive a salary of $240,000 per year. Mr. Kajouii is also
entitled to an annual performance bonus amounting to 1% of the Resulting Issuer’s gross revenue.  In addition, Mr.
Kajouii is to be granted up to 25% of the eligible options to purchase Common Shares of the Resulting Issuer, or
approximately 1,000,000 Common Shares, following the completion of the Qualifying Transaction. Upon any further
options granted by the Resulting Issuer from time to time, the agreement provides that the Resulting Issuer will ensure
that Mr. Kajouii is granted not less than 25% of any such options, subject to Exchange policies and the ESOP. Mr.
Kajouii is also entitled to be reimbursed for all travel and other reasonable expenses incurred in connection with the
conduct of the business of the Resulting Issuer.

It is not anticipated at this time that, following completion of the Qualifying Transaction, the directors of the Resulting
Issuer will receive compensation other than Incentive Options that may be granted from time to time. The
compensation for each of the Resulting Issuer’s most highly compensated executive officers earning over $150,000, in
addition to the proposed Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer (each a “Resulting Issuer NEO” and
collectively, the “Resulting Issuer NEOs”) for the 12 month period following completion of the Qualifying Transaction
is set out in the summary compensation table below.

Name and
Principal
Position Year

Salary
($)

Share-
Based

Awards
($)

Option-
Based

Awards
($)

Non-Equity
Incentive Plan

Compensation ($)

Pension
Value

($)

All Other
Compensation

($)

Total
Compensation

($)
Daniel Kajouii,
President, CEO
and director

2013 $240,000 NIL NIL(1) NIL(2) NIL NIL $240,000

Ian Campbell,
CFO and
Secretary

2013 $50,000 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL $50,000

Notes:
(1) Mr. Kajouii is to be granted up to 25% of the eligible options to purchase Common Shares of the Resulting Issuer, or

approximately 1,000,000 Common Shares, following the completion of the Qualifying Transaction.
(2) Mr. Kajouii is also entitled to an annual performance bonus amounting to 1% of the Resulting Issuer’s gross revenue.
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Retirement Plans

It is not anticipated at this time that the Resulting Issuer will have any retirement plans, pension plans or other forms of
funded or unfunded retirement compensation for its employees.

Termination and Change of Control Benefits

Pursuant to his employment agreement dated July 8, 2013, in the event that Mr. Kajouii is terminated without cause
during the original term of the agreement, he shall be entitled to a lump sum payment equal to three years’ salary and
applicable benefits (or, if termination without cause occurs during any extended period of employment beyond the
original term, then a lump sum payment equal to three years' salary and applicable benefits together with such salary
and applicable benefits that would be payable for the remainder of the extended term).  If there should be a change of
control of the Resulting Issuer, Mr. Kajouii may terminate his obligations under his employment agreement within 30
days following the change of control by giving notice to the Resulting Issuer. In this situation, the Resulting Issuer will
pay Mr. Kajouii a lump sum equal to three years’ salary and applicable benefits upon delivery by Mr. Kajouii of his
written resignation as a director and officer of the Resulting Issuer. Additionally, upon termination (for any reason) all
stock options granted to Mr. Kajouii will immediately vest and will remain exercisable for a period of 12 months from
the date of termination, notwithstanding the terms of any stock option plan.

INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

No person who is, or who has been, a director, executive officer or employee of the Company, ISIS or TCC at any
time since January 1, 2012, or any person who will serve in such capacity with respect to the Resulting Issuer upon
completion of the Amalgamation, or any Associate of any of the aforementioned, is or has been indebted to Company,
ISIS or TCC or to any entity which has been provided a guarantee, support agreement, letter of credit or similar
arrangement by the Company, ISIS or TCC, at any time before the date of the this Prospectus.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company

Audit Committee Charter

The charter of the Audit Committee may be found attached hereto as Schedule “A”

Composition of the Audit Committee

The following are the current members of the Audit Committee:

Name Independent(1) Financially Literate(2)

Randy Clifford Not Independent Yes

Michael Wilson Independent Yes

Douglas Eacrett Independent Yes
Notes:

(1) As a “venture issuer”, as defined in NI 52-110, the Company is exempt from the requirement to have an audit committee
composed entirely of independent members.

(2) Each member is financially literate within the meaning of NI 52-110.

Relevant Education and Experience of Audit Committee Members

All three members of the Company’s Audit Committee have the required financial education and/or experience that
would deem them “financially literate” by reason of having the ability to read and understand a set of financial
statements that present a breadth and level of complexity of accounting issues that are generally comparable to the
breadth and complexity of the issues that can reasonably be expected to be raised by the Company’s financial
statements.
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 Randy Clifford has been a director and officer, including chief financial officer, of numerous reporting issuers.
Mr. Clifford has 25 years of corporate management and consulting experience.

 Michael Wilson has served as the chief financial officer for a number of public companies.

 Douglas Eacrett is a corporate securities lawyer with over 15 years’ experience as an officer and/or director of
a number of publically traded companies. Mr. Eacrett holds a chartered accountant designation and is a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of British Columbia.

Audit Committee Oversight

At no time since the commencement of the Company’s most recently completed financial period was a
recommendation of the Audit Committee to nominate or compensate an external auditor not adopted by the Company’s
board of directors.

Reliance on Certain Exemptions

At no time since the commencement of the Company’s most recently completed financial period has the Company
relied on the exemption in Section 2.4 of NI 52-110, or an exemption from NI 52-110, in whole or in part, granted
under Part 8 (Exemptions) of NI 52-110.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

The Audit Committee must approve non-audit services, as required in the section “External Auditor” of the Audit
Committee’s charter.

External Auditor Service Fees (By Category)

For the financial year ended March 31, 2013, Davidson & Company LLP, Chartered Accountants received fees from
the Company as follows:

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 Period from
incorporation Feb. 9,

2011 to  March 31, 2011

Audit Fees $9,103.50 $8,032.50 $5,712

Audit Related Fees Nil Nil Nil

Tax Fees $1,575 $2,968 Nil

All Other Fees Nil Nil Nil

Total Fees: 10,678.50 $11,000.50 $5,712

(a) “Audit Fees” means the aggregate fees billed by the Company’s external auditor for the last fiscal year for
audit services.

(b) “Audit-Related Fees” means the aggregate fees billed for the last fiscal year for assurance and related services
by the Company’s external auditor that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of the
Company’s financial statements and are not reported under clause (a) above, including assistance with specific
audit procedures on interim financial information.

(c) “Tax Fees” means the aggregate fees billed in the last fiscal year for professional services rendered by the
Company’s external auditor for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning.
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(d) “All Other Fees” means the aggregate fees billed in the last fiscal year for products and services provided by
the Company’s external auditor, other than the services reported under clauses (a), (b) and (c), above.

Exemption

The Company is relying on the exemption provided in section 6.1 of NI 52-110 as the Company is a “venture issuer”
and is therefore exempt from the requirements of Part 3 (Composition of Audit Committee) and Part 5 (Reporting
Obligations) of NI 52-110.

Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the general supervision of the management of the Company’s
business and affairs with the objective of enhancing shareholder value. The Company’s board of directors discharges
its responsibilities directly and through its committees, which currently comprise an audit committee only.

The Company’s board of directors facilitates exercise of independent supervision over management as best it can
through its independent members recognizing that the Company is a capital pool company pursuant to the policies of
the Exchange and to date has not carried on any operations. The principal business of the Company has been to identify
and evaluate opportunities for the acquisition of a business to constitute the Qualifying Transaction of the Company
under the CPC Policy.

The Company’s board of directors currently consists of three directors. The Company’s board of directors has
concluded that two directors, Michael Wilson and Douglas Eacrett, are “independent” for purposes  of  board
membership, as  defined in NI  58-101 Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices. By virtue of his
management positions, Randy Clifford is not considered “independent”.

Other Reporting Issuer Experience

The following directors of the Company are also currently a director or officer or have been a director or
officer of the following other reporting issuers within the past five years:
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Name of
Director, Officer
or Promoter

Name of Reporting Issuer Exchange Position Term

Randy Clifford
Wise Oakwood Ventures
Inc.

Pending(1) Director &
Secretary

January, 2013 to Present

Firebird Energy Inc. TSXV(2) Director July, 2007 to Present

Firebird Resources Inc. TSXV CFO April, 2013 to present

Vinergy Resources Ltd. CNSX(3)
Director,
President,
CEO, CFO

November, 2009 to Present

Monster Uranium Corp. TSXV Director December, 2012 to Present

GTO Resources Inc. TSXV CFO May, 2011 to Present

Yorkton Ventures Inc. TSXV
Director,
CFO

January, 2013 to Present

Terreno Resources Corp. TSXV Director July, 2003 to August, 2010

Michael Wilson
Yorkton Ventures Inc. TSXV Director August, 2006 to Present

Excelsior Mining Corp. TSXV Director May, 2006 to October, 2010

Excelsior Mining Corp. TSXV
President &
CEO

May, 2006 to May, 2007

Razore Rock Resources Inc. CNSX Director September, 2005 to Present

Razore Rock Resources Inc. CNSX
President &
CEO

September, 2005 to Present

Douglas Eacrett
Baroyeca Gold & Silver Inc. TSXV Director December 2010 to Present

Regent Ventures Ltd. TSXV Director May 2002 to Present

Regent Ventures Ltd. TSXV CFO February 2007 to Present

Elm Tree Minerals Inc.
(formerly Everett Resources
Ltd.)

TSXV
CFO
Director

January 2007 to April, 2013

Clear Gold Resources Inc.
(formerly Clearframe
Solutions Corp.)

TSXV Secretary April 2005 to Present

Powertech Uranium Corp. TSX(4) Director February 2005 to Present

Notes:
(1) Wise Oakwood Ventures Inc. is a capital pool company currently in the process of becoming listed on the Exchange.
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(2) TSXV means the Exchange.
(3) CNSX means the Canadian National Stock Exchange.
(4) TSX means the Toronto Stock Exchange

Orientation and Continuing Education

The provisions of the CPC Policy require that each director have previous positive experience with public companies
in order to be acceptable to the Exchange so that each of them be previously familiar with the role and responsibilities
of being a public company director.

While the Company does not have a formal continuing education program, the directors individually are responsible for
updating their skills required to meet their obligations as directors.

Ethical Business Conduct

The Company’s board of directors has not adopted specific guidelines. To ensure that an ethical business culture is
maintained and promoted, directors are encouraged to exercise their independent judgment. If a director has a material
interest in any transaction or agreement that the Company proposes to enter into, such director is expected to
disclose such interest to the Company’s board of directors in compliance with all applicable laws, rules and policies
which govern conflicts of interest in connection with such transaction or agreement. Further, any director who has a
material interest in any proposed transaction or agreement will be excluded from the portion of a board of directors’
meeting concerning such matters and will be further precluded from voting on such matters.

Nomination of Directors

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the identification and assessment of potential directors. While no
formal nomination procedure is in place to identify new candidates, the Company’s board of directors reviews the
experience and performance of nominees for the election to the Company’s board of directors, and in particular, any
appointments to the Audit Committee. The Company’s board of directors also assesses any potential conflicts,
independence or time commitment concerns a candidate may present.

Compensation

At present, no compensation other than the grant of stock options is paid to the Company’s directors, in such
capacity, in accordance with the policies of the Exchange. See “Executive Compensation – The Company”.

Other Board Committees

The Company’s board of directors has no standing committees other than its Audit Committee.

Board Assessments

The Company’s board of directors, its Audit Committee and its individual directors are assessed as to their
effectiveness and contribution. All directors and/or committee members are free to make suggestions for improvement
of the practice of the Company’s board of directors and/or its committees at any time and are encouraged to do so.

Resulting Issuer

Upon Completion of the Company’s Qualifying Transaction, the following individuals will be the members of the
Audit Committee:
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Name Independence(1) Financial Literacy(2)

Tito Gandhi Not  Independent Yes

Michael Davidson Independent Yes

Bernie Raymond Wilson Independent Yes

Notes:
(1) As a “venture issuer”, the Company is exempt from the requirement to have an audit committee composed entirely of

independent members pursuant to NI 52-110 Audit Committees.
(2) Each member is financially literate within the meaning of NI 52-110 Audit Committees.

Relevant Education and Experience of Proposed Audit Committee Members

All three proposed members of the Resulting Issuer’s Audit Committee have the required financial education and/or
experience that would deem them “financially literate” by reason of having the ability to read and understand a set of
financial statements that present a breadth and level of complexity of accounting issues that are generally comparable
to the breadth and complexity of the issues that can reasonably be expected to be raised by the Resulting Issuer’s
financial statements.

 Mr. Gandhi has a higher national diploma (H.N.D.) in business studies and has extensive experience working
with financial statements and accounting principles. Mr. Gandhi currently serves as the CFO of ISIS.

 Mr. Davidson has been the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and a director of numerous public
and private companies.

 Bernie Wilson is the former Vice Chairman of PricewaterhouseCoopers and has served as the Chairman of
and as a member of numerous other audit committees of public companies.

The Board of Directors

Following Completion of the Company’s Qualifying Transaction, the Company’s board of directors will consist of five
directors, being Bernie Wilson, Norm Inkster, Michael Davidson, Tito Gandhi, and Daniel Kajouii. The Company’s
board of directors has concluded that three directors, Bernie Wilson, Norm Inkster, and Michael Davidson will be
“independent” for purposes of board membership, as defined in NI 58-101 Disclosure of Corporate Governance
Practices. By virtue of his proposed management position as CEO of the Resulting Issuer, Daniel Kajouii will not be
considered “independent”. By virtue of his past position as CFO of ISIS, Tito Gandhi will not be considered
“independent”.

The following individuals, who are to become directors of the Resulting Issuer, are also currently a director or have
been a director of the following other reporting issuers within the last five years:
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Name Name of Reporting Issuer Exchange Position Term

Bernie Raymond
Wilson

Aberdeen International TSX(1) Director October 2008 to Present

Clearwater Seafoods Income
Fund

TSX Director May 2006 to October 2010

Consolidated Thompson Iron
Mines Limited

TSX Director June 2006 to May 2011

Crowflight Mineral Inc. TSX Director July 2006 to December 2010

Excapsa Software AIM(2) Director 2005 to 2006

Valencia Ventures Inc. TSXV(3) Director October 2008 to Present

Forbes & Manhattan Coal Corp. TSX Director 2012 to Present

Norm Inkster VIQ Solutions Inc. TSXV Director December 2004 to Present

Michael Davidson Friday Capital Inc. TSXV
Director,
CEO and
CFO

December 2012 to Present

Tito Gandhi
Friday Capital Inc. TSXV Director, January 2013 to Present

Vast Exploration Inc. TSXV Director June 2008 to Present

Notes:
(1) TSX means the Toronto Stock Exchange.
(2) AIM means the London Stock Exchange
(3) TSXV means the Exchange.

The Resulting Issuer intends to adopt an Audit Committee charter in accordance with the rules applicable to a venture
issuer.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

In Canada, the Units will be offered in each of the provinces of Ontario, British Columbia, Alberta, and Saskatchewan,
and within the United States, or to or for the account or benefit of any U.S. Persons or any persons in the United States
under certain exemptions from the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act and applicable state laws in a
manner that will not require the Company to comply with the registration, prospectus, continuous disclosure or other
similar requirements under the U.S. Securities Act and applicable state laws.

Pursuant to an Agency Agreement dated as of October 23, 2013 between the Company, the Agent and ISIS, the
Company has appointed the Agent as exclusive agent to offer for sale to the public on a commercially reasonable
efforts basis, without underwriter liability, and the Company has agreed to issue and sell, a minimum of 13,333,333
and a maximum of 20,000,000 Units of the Company at the Offering Price of $0.30 per Unit for total gross proceeds of
$4,000,000 in the event of the Minimum Offering and $6,000,000 in the event of the Maximum Offering, subject to the
terms and conditions contained in the Agency Agreement. Each Unit comprises one Common Share and one-half of a
Warrant. The Warrants will be created and issued pursuant to the terms of a warrant indenture, to be dated as of the
Closing Date, between the Company and the Warrant Agent (see “Description of Securities Being Distributed –
Warrants”). Each Warrant will entitle the holder to acquire one Common Share at a price of $0.45 at any time prior to
4:30 p.m. Eastern Standard Time on the date that is 24 months following the closing of the Offering. No fractional
Common Shares will be issued upon the exercise of the Warrants. See “Description of Securities Being Distributed”.
This Prospectus qualifies the distribution of the Units (including those issued pursuant to the exercise of the Over-
Allotment Option, if any, described below).

The Offering Price has been determined by negotiation between the Company and the Agent. The Agent may form a
sub-agency group including other qualified investment dealers and determine the fees payable to members of such
group, which fees will be paid by the Agent out of its own fees. While the Agent has agreed to use its commercially
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reasonable efforts to sell the Units offered hereunder, the Agent will not be obligated to purchase any Units that are not
sold.

The Offering is conditional upon the Company’s Qualifying Transaction being completed by November 22, 2013
or such other date agreed to by the Company, ISIS and the Agent. The Amalgamation Agreement provides that the
Company’s Qualifying Transaction is subject to the Company raising gross proceeds of at least $3,000,000 under this
Offering, among other things. See “Proposed Qualifying Transaction - Conditions to the Qualifying Transaction
Becoming Effective”.

Subscriptions for Units will be received subject to rejection or allotment in whole or in part and the right is reserved to
close the subscription books at any time without notice. Funds received from subscriptions will be held by the Agent in
trust and, if the Minimum Offering is not met by November 22, 2013, or such other date agreed to by the Company,
ISIS and the Agent, provided that such date is during the Offering Period, the Offering will be discontinued and the
Agent will return all amounts received without interest or deduction. It is expected that the Offering will close on or
about October 29, 2013, or such earlier or later date as the Company and the Agent may agree. If less than the
Maximum Offering is subscribed for at closing of the Offering, subsequent closings may be held at any time, and from
time to time, as the Company and the Agent may agree, provided that such subsequent closings occur within 30 days of
the Closing of the Offering.

Other than in respect of the Units offered or sold to purchasers in the United States, or to or for the account or benefit
of U.S. Persons or persons in the United States, which will be represented by individual certificates, the Common
Shares and the Warrants comprising the Units will be delivered under the book based system through CDS Clearing
and Depository Services Inc. (“CDS”) or its nominee and deposited in registered or electronic form with CDS on each
closing. A purchaser of Units (other than a purchaser of Units in the United States, or who is or is acting on behalf of a
U.S. Person or a person in the United States) will only receive a customer confirmation from the registered holder that
it is a CDS participant from or through which a beneficial interest in the Units were purchased.

The Company has granted to the Agent the Over-Allotment Option, exercisable in whole or in part at any time and
from time to time for a period of 30 days following the Closing of the Offering, to offer for sale up to an additional
3,000,000 Units at $0.30 per unit to cover over-allotments, if any, and for market stabilization purposes. A purchaser
who acquires Units forming part of the Over-Allotment Option acquires those Units under this Prospectus, regardless
of whether the over-allocation position is ultimately filled through the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option or
secondary market purchases. If the Over-Allotment Option is exercised on the Units in full, and assuming the
Maximum Offering, the price to the public, the Agent’s maximum commission and the net proceeds to the Company,
after deducting the Agent’s commission but before deducting expenses of the Offering, will be $6,900,000, $552,000
and $6,348,000, respectively. The distribution of the Over-Allotment Option and of the Common Shares and Warrants
that may be issued on the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option is also qualified under this Prospectus.

Pursuant to the Agency Agreement, the Company has agreed not to, directly or indirectly, issue, sell, offer, grant an
option or right in respect of, or otherwise dispose of, or agree to, or announce any intention to, issue, sell, offer, grant
an option or right in respect of, or otherwise dispose of, any additional Common Shares or any securities convertible or
exchangeable into Common Shares, other than pursuant to (i) the Offering, (ii) the exercise of the Over-Allotment
Option, (iii) the issuance of Agent Options and exercise thereof (including the underlying Warrants), (iv) the exercise
of the Warrants issued pursuant to the Offering, (v) the issuance of the Transaction Shares and Replacement Warrants
pursuant to the Amalgamation, as well as the Common Shares underlying the Replacement Warrants, and the issuance
of the Finder’s Shares, or (vi) the grant or exercise of stock options and other similar issuances pursuant to any stock
option plan or similar share compensation arrangements in place prior to the Closing Date, for a period commencing on
the date of the Agency Agreement and ending on the date that is four months plus one day following the Closing Date
(the “Lock-Up Period”), without the prior written consent of the Agent.

Pursuant to the Agency Agreement, it is a condition of closing of the Offering that the Company and ISIS cause certain
shareholders, officers and directors of ISIS and the Resulting Issuer, as the Agent may require, to enter into an
undertaking in favour of the Agent agreeing not to sell, pledge or otherwise dispose of any Transaction Shares for a
period of 12 months following the Closing Date without the prior consent of the Agent.
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The Company has also agreed to notify the Agent of any further brokered equity or convertible debt financings that it
may propose to undertake within twelve (12) months from the Closing Date. The Agent has a right of first refusal to act
as the Company's agent or advisor in respect of such financings. Such right of first refusal is to be exercised within
seven (7) days following receipt of notice by the Company to the Agent containing the terms of the proposed financing.

The Exchange has conditionally approved the listing of the Common Shares forming part of the Units distributed under
this Prospectus on the Exchange, including those Common Shares that may be issued upon the exercise of the Over-
Allotment Option, the Warrants, the Agent's Options and the Common Shares issuable pursuant to the Amalgamation.
Listing is subject to the Company fulfilling all listing requirements of the Exchange on or before January 21, 2014. On
August 22, 2013, the last trading price of the Common Shares on the Exchange was $0.31.

In connection with the Offering, subject to applicable laws, the Agent may over-allot or effect transactions that
stabilize or maintain the market price of the Common Shares at levels other than those which otherwise might prevail
on the open market, including stabilizing transactions, short sales, purchases to cover positions created by short sales,
imposition of penalty bids and syndicate covering transactions. Such transactions, if commenced, may be discontinued
at any time.

In consideration for the services performed by the Agent in connection with the Offering, the Company has agreed to
pay the Agent (a) a cash commission equal to 8.0% (or 2% with respect to investment up to $500,000 from subscribers
listed the President’s List) of the gross proceeds of the Offering, including any proceeds resulting from the issuance of
Units pursuant to the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option, and (b) the Agent’s Options entitling the Agent to
purchase such number of Agent’s Units as is equal to 8.0% (or 2% with respect to investment up to $500,000 from
subscribers listed the President’s List) of the number of Units sold under the Offering, including any Units sold
pursuant to the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option. The Agent’s Options will be exercisable for a period of 24
months from the date of issuance at a price per Agent’s Unit equal to the Offering Price. The Company has agreed to
pay a cash fee of $30,000 (of which half has been paid) and issue 33,334 Common Shares to the Agent, which
Common Shares will be subject to a hold period of 12 months from the date of issuance. In addition, the Company has
agreed to pay the Agent’s technical consultants and legal counsel fees in all jurisdictions, all expenses of or incidental
to and in connection with the marketing of the Offering. Individual expenses, other than the Agent’s legal counsel and
the fees and expenses of any experts or third parties engaged by the Agent, in excess of $10,000 are subject to pre-
approval by the Company. This Prospectus also qualifies the distribution of the Agent’s Options (including those
issued pursuant to the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option, if any).

The Agent may offer selling group participation, in the normal course of the brokerage business, to selling groups of
other licensed investment dealers, at no additional cost to the Company.

The Company has not made nor will it make any payments in cash, securities or other consideration to a promoter,
finder or any other Person in connection with the Offering other than as set out above and elsewhere in this Prospectus.

The Agency Agreement provides that the Agent, at its discretion, may terminate its obligations with respect to the
Offering on the basis of its assessment of the state of the financial markets or upon the occurrence of certain events.
The Agent is not obliged, directly or indirectly, to advance its own funds to purchase any Units.

The Company has agreed to indemnify the Agent, and certain related parties, insofar as any losses, claims, damages,
liabilities, costs and expenses that arise out of, or are based, directly or indirectly on, the transactions contemplated in
the Agency Agreement.

United States Offering Restrictions

The Units, Common Shares and Warrants (including the Common Shares underlying the Warrants) offered pursuant to
this Prospectus have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act or under the securities laws of
any state of the United States, and may not be offered, sold or delivered, directly or indirectly, within the United States,
or to or for the account or benefit of any U.S. Persons or any persons in the United States, except in transactions
exempt from the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act or any applicable state securities laws. This
Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any of the securities qualified by this
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Prospectus within the United States, or to or for the account or benefit of any U.S. Persons or any persons in the United
States.

ELIGIBILITY FOR INVESTMENT

In the opinion of Legacy Tax + Trust Lawyers, special tax counsel to the Company, based on current provisions of the
Tax Act and the regulations thereunder, as amended, provided that the Common Shares are listed on a designated stock
exchange (which includes the Exchange) upon closing of the Offering, the Common Shares and Warrants will be
qualified investments under the Tax Act for trusts governed by registered retirement savings plans (“RRSPs”),
registered retirement income funds (“RRIFs”), registered disability savings plans, deferred profit sharing plans,
registered education savings plans and tax-free savings accounts (“TFSAs”), all as defined in the Tax Act.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Common Shares and Warrants are a “prohibited investment” (as defined  in  the
Tax Act) for a trust governed by a TFSA, RRSP or RRIF (a “Registered Plan”), the holder of the TFSA or the
annuitant of the RRSP or RRIF, as the case may be, (such holder or annuitant being a “Controlling Individual” of the
Registered  Plan) will be subject to a penalty tax on the Common Shares and Warrants as set out in the Tax Act.  A
Unit will generally not be a prohibited investment for a trust governed by a Registered Plan held by a particular holder
provided that the Controlling Individual deals at arm's length with the Company for the purposes of the Tax Act, and
does not have a "significant interest" (as defined in the Tax Act) in the Company.  In general terms, a Controlling
Individual of a Registered Plan will have a significant interest in the Company if the Registered Plan, the Controlling
Individual, and other persons not at arm's length with the Controlling Individual together, directly or indirectly, own
not less than 10% of the outstanding shares of the Company.

Prospective purchasers should consult their own tax and professional advisors for income tax considerations and
consequences related to the purchase of Units and their own particular circumstances.

SALE OF CPC ESCROW SHARES

In connection with the Qualifying Transaction, it is the intention of Messrs. Daniel Kajouii, Tito Gandhi, Chris Kajouii,
Ian Campbell, and Stan Bharti, directly or indirectly, to purchase the CPC Escrow Shares for aggregate consideration
of $150,000, pursuant to the terms of a share purchase agreement to be entered into with the current holders of the CPC
Escrow Shares, being Randy Clifford, Michael Wilson and Douglas Eacrett. The completion of the CPC Escrow Share
Transaction is subject to a number of conditions, including but not limited to: (i) obtaining the approval of the
Exchange, (ii) the closing of the Qualifying Transaction, and (iii) Messrs. Daniel Kajouii, Tito Gandhi, Chris Kajouii,
Ian Campbell, and Stan Bharti, as purchasers of the CPC Escrow Shares, being bound by and assuming the relevant
seed share resale restrictions of the Exchange set out in the CPC Escrow Agreement. Pursuant to the CPC Escrow
Share Transaction, certain Principals of the Company will receive the benefit of the proceeds from the sale of the CPC
Escrow Shares. The Principals who will receive such benefits are Randy Clifford ($60,000), Michael Wilson ($60,000)
and Douglas Eacret ($30,000).

RISK FACTORS

The proposed operations of the Resulting Issuer should be considered speculative due the high-risk nature of its
business. An investment in the Company’s (and therefore the Resulting Issuer's) securities should only be made by
persons who can afford the total loss of their investment.

The purchase of securities of the Company involves a number of significant risk factors. In addition to the factors set
forth elsewhere in this Prospectus including the financial statements attached hereto, before purchasing Units,
prospective subscribers should consider the following risks associated with the business of ISIS which will be
applicable to the Resulting Issuer following the completion of the Qualifying Transaction. Prospective purchasers
should also consider the following risk factors relating to the Offering and the completion of the Qualifying
Transaction. Any or all of these risks, or other as yet unidentified risks, may have a significant material adverse effect
on ISIS, the Company and the Resulting Issuer.
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Risks Associated with the Business and Industry of ISIS and the Resulting Issuer

Dependence on a Single Customer

ISIS currently has only one customer, Cladstone, for its products and services pursuant to the Cladstone License
Agreement and the Cladstone Service Agreement. For the fiscal years ended 2011 and 2012, all of ISIS' revenue was
realized from Cladstone.  Furthermore, ISIS has given Cladstone certain waivers of payment of service fees and
licensee fees payable pursuant to the Cladstone License Agreement and Cladstone Service Agreement. As well, ISIS
had provided a credit facility to Cladstone pursuant to which the principal amount of $407,041 is outstanding as of the
end of the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2013, to support the business of Cladstone, although Cladstone is no longer
able to draw down further amounts under such credit facility. See “ISIS Lab Inc. – Cladstone Agreements”.

There is no guarantee that Cladstone, a start-up company, will be able to generate sufficient revenue and meet the
necessary milestones in order to be able to pay the accounts and fees payable to ISIS pursuant to the Cladstone License
Agreement and Cladstone Service Agreement or repay the amounts outstanding under the Cladstone Credit Facility.
The termination of, breach of, or material amendment to the terms of such agreements, the reduction or postponement
of the purchases by Cladstone of ISIS' products or services, the failure of Cladstone to successfully implement ISIS'
products which it licenses, and/or any other adverse change in the relationship between ISIS and Cladstone could have
a material adverse effect on ISIS and the Resulting Issuer's business, results of operations and financial condition.

Future Dependence on Small Number of Customers

The Company and ISIS expect that the Resulting Issuer will be dependent on a relatively small number of customers
for a large percentage of its revenue. In the event the Resulting Issuer fails to grow its customer base and if one or more
of the Resulting Issuer's future customers discontinues its relationship with the Resulting Issuer for any reason, or
reduces or postpones current or expected purchases of the Resulting Issuer’s solutions, the Resulting Issuer's business,
results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected. At present ISIS has one licensee.

Liquidity Concerns and Future Financings

ISIS has funded its activities to date almost exclusively from debt and equity financings. The Resulting Issuer will have
limited financial resources and will require significant capital and operating expenditures in connection with its
operations. The Resulting Issuer's future capital commitments will likely exceed its cash resources, which would
require the Resulting Issuer to raise additional financing. The development, design and promotion of the Resulting
Issuers products will be very expensive. In addition, the Resulting Issuer may incur major unanticipated liabilities or
expenses. If additional financing is raised by the issuance of Common Shares from the treasury of Resulting Issuer,
control of the Resulting Issuer may change and shareholders may suffer additional dilution.

Although each of the Company and ISIS has been successful in the past in financing its activities, there can be no
assurance that it or the Resulting Issuer will be able to obtain additional financing as and when needed in the future to
execute its business plan and future operations.  The ability of the Resulting Issuer to arrange such financing in the
future will depend in part upon the prevailing capital market conditions as well as the business performance of
Resulting Issuer. It may be difficult or impossible for the Resulting Issuer to obtain debt financing or equity financing
on commercially acceptable terms. This may be further complicated by the limited market liquidity for shares of
smaller companies such as the Resulting Issuer, restricting access to some institutional investors. There is a risk that
interest rates will increase given the current historical low level of interest rates. An increase in interest rates could
result in a significant increase in the amount that the Resulting Issuer pays to service future debt incurred by the
Resulting Issuer and affect the Resulting Issuer's ability to fund ongoing operations.

Failure to obtain additional financing on a timely basis could result in delay or indefinite postponement of further
development of its products. Such delay would have a material and adverse effect on the Resulting Issuer's business,
financial condition and results of operations.
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Success of Licensees / Collectability of Debts

ISIS’ revenue relies on the performance of each licensee. While all efforts are made to qualify the potential of the
performance of the licensee, it is subject to the licensee achieving its goals in marketing and acquiring new clients. The
goals of ISIS are to obtain a deposit from each prospective licensee; however, most revenue is post-paid.

Difficulty Acquiring Licensees

The risks involved with acquiring new licensees include the failure to attract qualified personnel and close the deal with
qualified operators within the restrictions of the regulated jurisdictions that ISIS is able to provide software within. In
some instances the existing contracts and exit clauses of the licensees interested in coming on board with ISIS could
pose risk of delays. ISIS’ revenue relies in part on the performance of each licensee. While all efforts are made to
qualify the potential of the performance of the licensee, it is subject to the licensee achieving its goals in marketing and
acquiring new clients. The goals of ISIS are to obtain a deposit from each prospective licensee; however, most revenue
is post-paid.

There exists a risk of breach of contract on the part of the licensees in such a way that the licensee abandons the
contract with ISIS for the provision of software services.

ISIS currently depends on one licensee, Cladstone, for all of its business and ISIS expects that in the future it will
depend on a limited number of customers for a significant portion of its business. The loss of Cladstone or any of such
future customers could materially and adversely affect ISIS, and ISIS’ business and financial position.

Decline in Volume of Software Usage

A decline in the volume of software usage ISIS handles may have an adverse effect on ISIS’ operations results.
Although ISIS charges a minimum fee, ISIS earns revenue mostly on a usage basis. As such, ISIS is not protected
against the potential adverse effect on its revenue of a decrease in the software usage provided by its customers or
pricing pressures imposed directly by its customers or indirectly by its competitors.

Loss of Key Members of the Management Team and other Qualified Personnel

The loss of any key members of the management team may impair ISIS’ ability to continue to develop its products,
identify and secure new contracts with customers or otherwise manage its business effectively. ISIS’ success depends,
in part, on the continued contributions of its senior management. Most of them are well experienced in the online
gaming software industry and have in depth knowledge of various aspects of the development of an online gaming
software business. ISIS’ CEO, Daniel Kajouii, is considered by ISIS to have specialized skill and knowledge and the
loss of such individual would have a material adverse effect on ISIS’ business. Competition for qualified personal is
intense and ISIS may not be able to retain its key personnel or to attract or retain other highly qualified personnel in the
future.

Dependence on Third-Party Service and Equipment

The failure of third-party service and equipment which ISIS uses in its systems may cause interruptions or failures of
its systems. In addition to the use of the internet and certain telecom networks maintained by broker carriers and other
third parties for the transmission of data traffic, ISIS also incorporates hardware, software and equipment developed by
third parties into its systems. As a result, ISIS’ ability to provide services depends in part on the continued performance
and support of these third-party products. If these products experience failures or contain defects, and the third parties
supplying these products fail to provide adequate remedial support, this may result in the interruption or unsatisfactory
performance of ISIS’ services.

Credit Risk of Accounts Receivable

ISIS is subject to credit risk in respect of its accounts receivable. ISIS provides credit periods to its customers, which
are calculated from the dates the invoices are issued by ISIS to the dates of payment by the customers. Although ISIS
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implements credit control policies and measures, ISIS cannot assure that these measures are adequate in protecting ISIS
against material credit risks. In the future, ISIS may provide services to customers who do not provide sufficient
deposits, advance payments or bank guarantees for ISIS’ services. Moreover, should ISIS’ customers be unable to pay
in full for any reason, ISIS’ profit and cash flow will be adversely affected. ISIS has provided its sole licensee a two-
year moratorium of fees related to software usage. See “ISIS Lab Inc. – Revenue Model” and “ISIS Lab Inc. –
Cladstone Agreements”.

Any delay in the payment by customers may also adversely affect ISIS’ operations and financial position. ISIS may
have to sustain legal costs in pursuing unsettled invoices, a process which is time- consuming and may be affected by a
variety of factors including any counterclaim from such non-paying licensees. Even if ISIS obtains favourable
judgments, enforcement of such judgments may take time and may not always be successful.

Limited Operating History

The Company has not commenced commercial operations and has no assets other than cash.  It has no history of
earnings, and shall not generate earnings or pay dividends until at least after completion of the Qualifying Transaction,
if at all. Investment in the Units offered by this Prospectus is highly speculative given the proposed nature of the
Company’s business and its present stage of development.

ISIS has a limited operating history and the lack of meaningful historical financial data makes it difficult to fully
evaluate the Resulting Issuer’s prospects. To the extent that the Resulting Issuer is able to execute its business plan, its
business will be subject to all of the problems that typically affect a business with a limited operating history, such as
unanticipated expenses, capital shortfalls, delays in program development and possible cost overruns.

The Resulting Issuer’s success will depend on many factors, including some which may be beyond its control or which
cannot be accounted for at this time, such as regulatory and/or technical approval for the sale of its solutions, the
market’s acceptance of its solutions, the emergence of potential competitors, changes in demand for gaming products in
general and changes in economic conditions. To implement its business plan and generate revenue from other sources,
it is imperative that the Resulting Issuer obtains the requisite regulatory approvals and licenses in many additional
jurisdictions. The timing of the Resulting Issuer’s revenue generation will be driven in part by the receipt of such
approvals and licenses in various jurisdictions. It is possible, although unlikely, that the Resulting Issuer may not
receive any further regulatory approvals and licenses. For the reasons discussed above and elsewhere in this prospectus,
it is possible that the Resulting Issuer may not generate significant revenues or profits in the foreseeable future or at all.

Intellectual Property

ISIS relies on trade secrets and proprietary know-how. As protection, it is ISIS general practice that key employees and
consultants sign confidentiality agreements and assign all rights of inventions to ISIS, however it cannot be assured that
the obligations therein will be maintained and honoured. In spite of confidentiality agreements and other methods of
protecting trade secrets, ISIS’ proprietary information could become known to or independently developed by
competitors.

ISIS does not currently own any patents, does not have any patents pending, and has not made any patent  applications
nor does it have any intention to do so in the near future. Were the Resulting Issuer to apply for patent protection, no
assurances can be provided that any of patents will be issued at all. If the Resulting Issuer is denied any or all of these
patents, it may not be able to successfully prevent its competitors from imitating its solutions or using some or all of the
processes that are the subject of such patent applications. Such imitation may lead to increased competition within the
finite market for the Resulting Issuer’s solutions. Even if pending patents were to be issued to the Resulting Issuer, its
intellectual property rights may not be sufficiently comprehensive to prevent its competitors from developing similar
competitive products and technologies.

Further, ISIS’ competitors have been granted patents protecting various gaming solutions features, including systems,
methods and designs. If ISIS or the Resulting Issuer’s solutions employ these processes, or other subject matter that is
claimed under its competitors’ patents, or if other companies obtain patents claiming subject matter that ISIS uses,
those companies may bring infringement actions against us. Whether a product infringes a patent involves complex
legal and factual issues, the determination of which is often uncertain. In addition, because patent applications can take
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many years to issue, there may be applications now pending of which ISIS is unaware, which might later result in
issued patents that the ISIS’ or the Resulting Issuer’s solutions may infringe. If any of ISIS’ solutions infringes a valid
patent, it could be prevented from distributing that particular product, unless and until it can obtain a license or
redesign the product in question to avoid infringement. A license may not be available or may require ISIS or the
Resulting Issuer to pay substantial royalties. Additionally, ISIS or the resulting Issuer may not be successful in any
attempt to redesign the infringing product. Infringement and other intellectual property claims, with or without merit,
can be expensive and time-consuming to litigate, and the Resulting Issuer may not have the financial and human
resources to defend against any infringement suits that may be brought.

Moreover, due to the differences in foreign patent, trademark, trade dress, copyright and other laws concerning
proprietary rights, ISIS’ or the Resulting Issuer’s intellectual property may not receive the same degree of protection in
foreign countries as it would in Canada or the United States. The Resulting Issuer’s failure to possess, obtain or
maintain adequate protection of its IP rights for any reason in these jurisdictions could have a material adverse effect
on its business, results of operations and financial condition.

Security and Privacy Breaches

Security or privacy breaches may result in an interruption of service or a reduced quality of service, which could
increase ISIS’ costs or result in a reduction in the use of ISIS’ services by its customers. ISIS’ systems may be
vulnerable to physical break-ins, computer viruses, attacks by computer hackers or similar disruptive problems. If
unauthorized users gain access to ISIS’ databases, they may be able to steal, publish, delete or modify sensitive
information that is stored or transmitted on ISIS’ networks and which ISIS is required by its contracts to keep
confidential. A security or privacy breach could result in an interruption of service or a reduced quality of service.
Confidential information internal to Company may also be disclosed to unauthorized personnel who may use such
information in a manner adverse to the interests of ISIS. Hackers may attempt to “flood” the network, thereby
preventing legitimate network traffic or to disrupt the connection between two machines, thereby preventing access to a
service or preventing a particular individual from accessing a service. ISIS may therefore be required to make
significant expenditures in connection with corresponding corrective or preventive measures. In addition, a security or
privacy breach may harm ISIS’ reputation and cause its customers to reduce their use of ISIS’ services, which could
harm ISIS’ revenue and business prospects. In addition, ISIS’ revenue may be adversely affected by un-captured usage,
in the event that ISIS’ system is “hacked” into, resulting in transmissions that may not be detected by its billing system.
Further, the increase in traffic as a result of such unauthorized “hacking” may slow or overload ISIS’ transmission
network, thereby adversely affecting the overall quality of services which ISIS provides to its paying customers. If ISIS
incurs any such losses or liabilities, ISIS’ operating results, financial condition, business and prospects may be
adversely affected.

System Failures, Delays and Other Problems

System failures, delays and other problems could harm ISIS’ reputation and business, cause it to lose customers and
expose it to customer liability. ISIS’ system architecture is contingent on its ability to process a high volume of
transactions in a timely and effective manner. ISIS may experience failures or interruptions of its systems and services,
or other problems in connection with its operations as a result of, amongst others things:

 damage to or failure of its computer software or hardware or its infrastructure and connections;
 data processing errors by its systems;
 computer viruses or software defects; and
 physical or electronic break-ins, sabotage, intentional acts of vandalism and similar events.

If ISIS cannot adequately ensure that its network services perform consistently at a high level or otherwise fail to meet
its customers’ expectations:

 it may experience damage to its reputation, which may adversely affect its ability to attract or retain customers
for its existing services, and may also make it more difficult for ISIS to market its existing or future services;

 it may suffer significant damage or expose itself to customer liability claims, under its contracts or otherwise,
including the requirement to pay penalties relating to service level requirements in its contracts;

 its operating expenses or capital expenditures may increase as a result of corrective actions that ISIS must
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perform;
 ISIS’ customers may reduce their use of ISIS’ services; or
 one or more of its significant contracts may be terminated early, or may not be renewed. These or other

consequences would adversely affect ISIS’ revenue and performance.

Competition

The market for online gaming software is competitive and rapidly changing. ISIS faces competition from other
providers of software and service, many of which are larger and better funded than ISIS.  Increasing competition could
result in fewer future customers, reduced revenue, reduced sales margins and loss of market share, any one of which
could harm the business of ISIS. Finally, customers may internally deploy services and technologies which may reduce
or eliminate their demand for such services and technologies from providers including ISIS and further increase
competitive pricing pressure.

Adequacy of Network Resilience, Network Diversity and Backup Systems

Inadequate network resilience, network diversity and backup systems may result in service disruptions. Any failure of
ISIS’ backup systems or any insufficiency in ISIS’ redundancy capacity may disrupt ISIS’ operations. ISIS regularly
reviews its network and assesses its vulnerability to such outside factors. However, there can be no assurance that ISIS’
existing alternative routes and cable diversity will provide adequate backup for all types of service interruptions that
may occur. Moreover, even with these contingency measures, service disruptions could last for a considerable period of
time before complete service can be restored. This may cause customers to reduce their use of ISIS’ services, which
could harm ISIS’ revenue and business prospects.

Capacity Limits

Capacity limits on ISIS’ network and application platforms may be difficult to project and ISIS may not be able to
expand or upgrade its systems to meet increasing demand. ISIS’ business requires it to handle a large number of
transactions simultaneously. In order to manage growth in the number of such transactions successfully, ISIS needs to
enhance its operational, management, financial, and information systems and controls continuously and effectively.
Although ISIS has upgraded its systems, it is difficult to predict when the capacity limits on ISIS’ network and
application platforms will be reached, given that the usage requirement of ISIS’ services depends on the demand from
its licensees. If ISIS does not expand or upgrade its hardware and software quickly enough, it may not have sufficient
capacity to handle the increasing demands and this would limit the growth of its operations and improvement of its
performance.

Dependence on Required Licenses

ISIS relies on the governing bodies’ authorization in order to provide its services and software to licensees licensed and
regulated by said regulatory bodies. There is no assurance that the requirements of the regulatory bodies will not
change and adversely affect ISIS. Failure to obtain these licenses and approvals in any jurisdiction may prevent ISIS
from distributing its solutions and generating revenues in those jurisdictions. A gaming regulatory body may refuse to
issue or renew a registration if a licensee, or one of its directors, officers, employees or associates: (i) is considered to
be a detriment to the integrity or lawful conduct or management of gaming; (ii) no longer meets a registration
requirement; (iii) has breached or is in breach of a condition of registration or an operational agreement with a lottery
corporation; (iv) has made a material misrepresentation, omission or misstatement in an application for registration or
in reply to an enquiry by a person conducting an audit, investigation or inspection under the gaming control legislation;
(v) has been refused a similar registration in another jurisdiction; (vi) has held a similar registration, or license in that
province or another jurisdiction which has been suspended or cancelled; or (vii) has been convicted of an offence,
inside or outside of Canada, that calls into question a licensee’s honesty or integrity or the honesty or integrity of one of
its directors, officers, employees or associates. These circumstances are beyond ISIS’ control. Cladstone, ISIS’ current
sole licensee, is subject to regulations in the Isle of Man to operate it business and use ISIS’ products. Any loss by
Cladstone of its ability to operate could have a material effect on the business of Cladstone and thus ISIS.
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Rapid Technological Changes

The future of ISIS’ business will rely heavily on its ability to deliver competitive mobile applications. ISIS is currently
in the process of developing a mobile platform, although there is no assurance that such product will be completed,
reach commercial application and be competitive, and failure to do so will have an adverse effect on ISIS’ business and
revenue (see “ISIS Lab Inc. – Principal Products and Services – Future Developments”) Rapid technological changes
may increase competition and render ISIS’ technologies, products or services obsolete or cause ISIS to lose market
share. The online gaming software industry is subject to rapid and significant changes in technology, frequent new
service introductions and evolving industry standards. Such changes may adversely affect ISIS’ revenue. There can be
no assurance that ISIS can improve the features, functionality, reliability and responsiveness of its interoperability,
infrastructure and other services to meet the changing demands of its licensees towards new communications
technologies. Similarly, the technologies that ISIS employs may become obsolete or subject to intense competition
from new technologies in the future. If ISIS fails to develop, or obtain timely access to, new technologies, or if it fails
to obtain the necessary licenses for the provision of services using these new technologies, ISIS may lose its licensees
and market share, and its results of operations would be adversely affected.

Conflicts of Interest

Certain directors and officers of ISIS and the proposed directors of the Resulting Issuer, are also directors, officers, or
shareholders of other companies that may operate in the same sectors as ISIS and the Resulting Issuer. Such
associations may give rise to conflicts of interest from time to time. The directors of ISIS are required by law to act
honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of ISIS and to disclose any interest that they may have in
any project or opportunity of ISIS. If a conflict of interest arises at a meeting of the board of directors, any director in a
conflict is required under the applicable corporate laws to disclose his interest and to abstain from voting on such
matter.

Global Economy

Recent global market events and conditions, including disruptions in the international credit markets and other financial
systems and the deterioration of global economic conditions, could impede access to capital or increase its cost of
capital.  Beginning in 2007, the U.S. credit markets experienced serious disruption due to a deterioration in residential
property values, defaults and delinquencies in the residential mortgage market and a decline in the value and credit
quality of mortgage-backed securities. Other adverse events included delinquencies in non-mortgage consumer credit
and a general decline in consumer confidence. These conditions worsened in 2008 and the effects continue today,
contributing to reduced confidence in credit and financial markets around the world and the collapse of, and
government intervention in, major financial institutions.  Asset price volatility and solvency concerns were prevalent,
and there has been less liquidity, a widening of credit spreads, a lack of price transparency, increased credit losses and
tighter credit conditions.   These market disruptions have had significant material adverse impact on issuers in many
sectors of the economy and have limited access to capital and credit.

No Expectation of Dividend Declaration by Resulting Issuer

Neither the Company nor ISIS have ever declared or paid any dividends on their shares. The Resulting Issuer will
retain any future earnings to fund the development and growth of its business and does not anticipate paying any cash
dividends in the foreseeable future. Any future determination to pay dividends will be at the discretion of the board of
directors and will depend upon many factors, including the Resulting Issuer’s results of operations, capital
requirements and other factors as the board of directors deems relevant.

Foreign Currency, Exchange Rate and Taxes

A substantial portion of the ISIS’ revenue is earned in British Pounds, but a substantial portion of ISIS’ operating
expenses are incurred in Canadian dollars, as will also be the case with the Resulting Issuer. Since ISIS’ headquarters
are located in Canada, the majority of its operating expenses are denominated in Canadian dollars. Fluctuations in the
exchange rate between the British Pound and other currencies, such as the Canadian dollar, may have a material
adverse effect on the business, financial condition and operating results.
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Foreign Operations

A significant portion of ISIS’, its subsidiary TCC’s and licensee Cladstone’s operations are conducted in foreign
jurisdictions, including Panama and the Isle of Man. As such, ISIS’ operations may be adversely affected by changes in
foreign government policies and legislation or social instability and other factors which are not within the control of
ISIS or the Resulting Issuer, including, but not limited to, renegotiation or nullification of existing contracts or licenses,
changes in gaming policies, regulatory requirements or the personnel administering them, economic sanctions, risk of
terrorist activities, revolution, border disputes, implementation of tariffs and other trade barriers and protectionist
practices, volatility of financial markets, labour disputes and other risks arising out of foreign governmental
sovereignty over the areas in which ISIS’ operations are conducted. ISIS’ or the Resulting Issuer’s operations may also
be adversely affected by laws and policies of such foreign jurisdictions affecting foreign trade, taxation and investment.
If ISIS’ or the Resulting Issuer’s operations are disrupted and/or the economic integrity of its contracts is threatened for
unexpected reasons, its business may be harmed. In the event of a dispute arising in connection with ISIS’ or the
Resulting Issuer’s operations in a foreign jurisdiction where ISIS does conduct or the Resulting Issuer will conducts its
business, ISIS or the Resulting Issuer may be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of foreign courts or may not be
successful in subjecting foreign persons to the jurisdictions of the courts of Canada or enforcing Canadian judgments in
such other jurisdictions. ISIS or the Resulting Issuer may also be hindered or prevented from enforcing its rights with
respect to a governmental instrumentality because of the doctrine of sovereign immunity. Accordingly, ISIS’ or the
Resulting Issuer’s activities in foreign jurisdictions could be substantially affected by factors beyond their control, any
of which could have a material adverse effect on ISIS or the Resulting Issuer. ISIS believes that its management and
the proposed management of the Resulting Issuer are sufficiently experienced to reduce these risks.

Trends

ISIS foresees the continued adoption of mobile gaming within the markets that its licensee serves. As a consequence,
the markets that its licensee serves are expected to reduce their social gaming usage on the equipment that ISIS’
Software operates on. As a result, this continued mobile adoption may affect ISIS’ profit margin. ISIS is developing a
mobile aspect to its Software, however than is no guarantee that such product will be completed and reach
commercialization.

No Insurance

ISIS does not currently hold any insurance and there may be risks associated with the business which are uninsurable.

Risks Associated with the Offering and the Completion of the Qualifying Transaction

Market for Securities

There can be no assurance that an active trading market will develop for the Common Shares acquired through the
purchase of Units (including the Common Shares issued upon the exercise of Warrants) following the Closing Date, or
if developed, that such a market will be sustained at the Offering Price. The Offering Price was determined by
negotiations between the Company and the Agent and may bear no relationship to the price that will prevail in the
public market.

Tax Issues

There may be income tax consequences in relation to the Common Shares and Warrants comprising the Units and the
Common Shares underlying the Warrants, which will vary according to circumstances of each investor. Prospective
investors should seek independent advice from their own tax and legal advisers prior to subscribing to the Offering.

Completion of the Qualifying Transaction is Subject to Conditions Precedent

The completion of the Qualifying Transaction is subject to a number of conditions precedent, including the approval by
the Exchange and regulatory authorities and approval by ISIS Shareholders. Certain of such conditions precedent are
outside the control of either or both of the Company and ISIS, and there can be no assurance that these conditions will
be satisfied.
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Termination of the Amalgamation Agreement

The Amalgamation Agreement specifies that the parties’ obligation to effect the Qualifying Transaction is conditional
upon the satisfaction of a number of conditions including receipt of all required regulatory approvals.  If any of these
conditions are not satisfied or waived, the Amalgamation Agreement may not be completed. Each of the Company and
ISIS has the right, in certain circumstances, in addition to termination rights relating to the failure to satisfy the
conditions of Closing, to terminate the Amalgamation Agreement. Accordingly, there can be no certainty, nor can the
Company or ISIS provide any assurance, that the Amalgamation Agreement will not be terminated by either of the
Company or ISIS prior to the completion of the Qualifying Transaction.

Risks Associated with Fixed Consideration under the Qualifying Transaction

Pursuant to the provisions of the Amalgamation Agreement, each ISIS Share will be cancelled and replaced by the
issuance of one (1) Transaction Share. Such consideration is fixed, and the number of Transaction Shares being issued
in connection with the Qualifying Transaction will not change despite decreases or increases in the market price of the
Common Shares.

The issuance of Common Shares under the Qualifying Transaction will be dilutive

The issuance of Transaction Shares in connection with the Qualifying Transaction will dilute the ownership interest of
purchasers of Common Shares. The Resulting Issuer may also issue additional equity securities from time to time in the
future. If it does so, the ownership interest of the Resulting Issuer's shareholders will also be diluted.

Potential Undisclosed Liabilities Associated with the Qualifying Transaction

Upon completion of the Qualifying Transaction, ISIS and TCC will be direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company and will continue to have the liabilities that existed prior to completion of the Qualifying Transaction.
There may be liabilities of ISIS and TCC that the Company failed to discover or was unable to accurately assess or
quantify in its due diligence.

PROMOTERS

Tito Gandhi, considered a promoter of ISIS and therefor the Resulting Issuer, as of the date hereof, beneficially owned,
directly or indirectly, or over which control or direction will be exercised, 6,458,249 Isis Shares. Mr. Tito Gandhi is
also anticipated to purchase 500,000 CPC Escrow Shares pursuant to the CPC Escrow Share Transaction, which upon
Closing and conversion of ISIS Shares into 6,458,249 Common Shares, will result in a total beneficial ownership of
6,958,249 common shares of the Resulting Issuer. These common shares will represent between approximately 15.88%
(in the event of the Minimum Offering) and 13.78% (in event of the Maximum Offering) of the issued and outstanding
common shares of the Resulting Issuer. Mr. Gandhi is the current CFO of ISIS. Mr. Gandhi has purchased $50,000
principal amount of ISIS Debentures and 20,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants under the ISIS Debenture Financing. Mr.
Gandhi has agreed to postpone the repayment of these ISIS Debentures, which would otherwise be repayable upon
Closing, for 18 months following Closing in the event proceeds raised under the Offering do not exceed $4,500,000.
Mr. Gandhi is also a 20% shareholder of 2213802 Ontario Inc., a company which has purchased $245,000 principal
amount of ISIS Debentures and 98,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants. See “ISIS Lab Inc. – ISIS Debenture Financing” and
“ISIS Debt Deferment”.

EXPERTS

The audited financial statements of the Company included in this Prospectus were passed upon on behalf of the
Company by Davidson & Company LLP, Chartered Accountants, and their audit report is included herein. The audited
financial statements of ISIS included in this Prospectus were passed upon on behalf of the ISIS by MNP LLP,
Chartered Accountants, and their audit report is included herein.

Certain legal matters relating to this Offering will be passed upon on behalf of the Company by Anfield Sujir Kennedy
& Durno LLP, on behalf of ISIS by Chitiz Pathak LLP, on behalf of the Agent by Fogler, Rubinoff LLP, and with
regard to certain tax matters by Legacy Tax + Trust Lawyers.
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As of the date hereof, the partners and associates of Anfield Sujir Kennedy & Durno LLP owns, directly or indirectly,
less than 1% of the outstanding Common Shares. As of the date hereof, the partners and associates of Chitiz Pathak
LLP as a group beneficially own, directly or indirectly, less than 1% of the outstanding Common Shares. As of the
date hereof, the partners and associates of Fogler, Rubinoff LLP as a group beneficially own, directly or indirectly, less
than 1% of the outstanding Common Shares. As of the date hereof, Legacy Tax + Trust Lawyers owns, directly or
indirectly, less than 1% of the outstanding Common Shares.As of the date hereof, the partners and associates of
Davidson & Company LLP as a group beneficially own, directly or indirectly, less than 1% of the outstanding
Common Shares. As of the date hereof, the partners and associates of MNP LLP as a group beneficially own, directly
or indirectly, less than 1% of the outstanding Common Shares.

Davidson & Company LLP are considered independent in accordance with the Rules of Professional Conduct of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of British Columbia.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND REGULATORY ACTIONS

There are no material pending legal proceedings or regulatory proceedings to which the either the Company or ISIS is,
or, so far as management of the Company or ISIS is aware, is likely to be, a party.

INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

The Company

Other than the CPC Escrow Transaction (see “Sale of CPC Escrow Shares”) no Principal of the Company or Associate
or Affiliate of a Principal of the Company has or has had any material interest, direct or indirect, in any transaction
within the three years before the date of this Prospectus that has materially affected or is reasonably expected to
materially affect the Company.

ISIS

Other than as disclosed below, no Insider of ISIS or Associate or Affiliate of an Insider of ISIS has or has had any
material interest, direct or indirect, in any transaction within the three years before the date of this Prospectus that has
materially affected or is reasonably expected to materially affect ISIS other than as follows.

Tito Gandhi, a current principal shareholder and the CFO of ISIS and an expected Principal of the Resulting Issuer, has
purchased $50,000 principal amount of ISIS Debentures and 20,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants under the ISIS
Debenture Financing. Holders of ISIS Shares, Tito Gandhi, Frank Waszkun, Don MacKinnon, and Nejib Biya are each
20% shareholders 2213802 Ontario Inc., a company which has purchased $245,000 principal amount of ISIS
Debentures and 98,000 ISIS Debenture Warrants (see “Principal Shareholders”).  As of the date hereof, each of Mr.
Gandhi and 2213802 Ontario Inc. has agreed to postpone for 18 months the repayment of ISIS Debentures, which
would otherwise be repayable upon Closing, in the principal amount of $50,000 and $245,000, respectively, in the
event that proceeds raised under the Offering do not exceed $4,500,000, in the case of Mr. Gandhi, and $5,000,000, in
the case of 2213802 Ontario Inc. See “ISIS Lab Inc. – ISIS Debenture Financing” and “ISIS Debt Deferment”.

In connection with the Qualifying Transaction, it is the intention of Messrs. Daniel Kajouii, Tito Gandhi, Chris Kajouii,
Ian Campbell, and Stan Bharti, directly or indirectly, to purchase the 2,000,000 CPC Escrow Shares (currently being
held in escrow pursuant to the CPC Escrow Agreement) for aggregate consideration of $150,000, pursuant to the terms
of a share purchase agreement to be entered into with the current holders of the CPC Escrow Shares. See “Proposed
Qualifying Transaction – CPC Escrow Share Transaction”.

ISIS borrowed the sum of $100,000 from Forbes & Manhattan Inc., a private merchant bank controlled by Stan Bharti.
The loan is unsecured and accrues interest at the rate of 3.0% per annum and is payable in full upon listing of the
Resulting Issuer on the Exchange, however, in the event proceeds raised under the Offering do not exceed $5,000,000
repayment of the principal amount of the loan will be postponed for 18 months following Closing. Stan Bharti owns
4,187,501 ISIS Shares, representing 17.52% of the outstanding ISIS Shares as of the date hereof and will own Common
Shares representing 10.13% of the outstanding Common Shares on completion of the Qualifying Transaction and
assuming the Minimum Offering and assuming completion of the CPC Escrow Share Transaction. Stan Bharti is the
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brother of Tito Gandhi, a current principal shareholder and the CFO of ISIS and a proposed director of the Resulting
Issuer. See “Principal Shareholders”.

ISIS is party to a consulting agreement with York Capital Partners Inc., pursuant to which York Capital is currently
paid $5,000 per month with up to an additional $15,000 bonus paid each financial quarter, which fees will increase
after completion of the Qualifying Transaction (see “ISIS Lab Inc. – Consulting Services Agreement”). York Capital
has also been granted 1,036,082 ISIS Options, which are expected to be exercised into 1,036,082 ISIS Shares prior to
completion of the Qualifying Transaction. Certain Principals of York Capital collectively own 431,700 ISIS Shares
representing 1.8% of the outstanding ISIS Shares as of the date hereof and will own common shares representing
0.98% of the outstanding Common Shares on completion of the Qualifying Transaction and assuming the Minimum
Offering. See “ISIS Lab Inc. - Consulting Services Agreement”. The Finder, which is entitled to the Finder’s Shares on
Closing, is an affiliate of a Principal of York Capital.

AUDITORS, REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT

The auditors of the Company are Davidson & Company LLP, Chartered Accountants of 1200 – 609 Granville Street,
Vancouver, British Columbia V7Y 1G6. The auditors of ISIS are MNP LLP, 701 Evans Avenue, 8th Floor, Toronto,
Ontario, M9C 1A3. Upon completion of the Company’s Qualifying Transaction the directors of the Resulting Issuer
intend to retain MNP LLP as the auditors of the Resulting Issuer.

The registrar and transfer agent of the Company is Computershare Investor Services Inc., 3rd Floor 510 Burrard Street,
Vancouver, BC, V6C 3B9, which is expected to continue on as the registrar and transfer agent of the Resulting Issuer.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The Company

The Company has not entered into any material contracts since incorporation, other than contracts in the ordinary
course of business, except for:

(1) Agency Agreement, dated as of May 20, 2011, between the Company and Mackie Research Capital
Corporation respecting the Company’s IPO. See “Business of the Company”.

(2) CPC Escrow Agreement, dated April 11, 2011, among the Company, Computershare Investor Services Inc.
and those shareholders that executed such agreement. See “Escrowed Securities”.

(3) Transfer Agent and Registrar Agreement, dated March 15, 2011, between the Company and
Computershare Investor Services Inc.

(4) Amalgamation Agreement, dated June 28, 2013, as amended August 31, 2013, among the Company, ISIS and
2377678 Ontario Inc. See “Proposed Qualifying Transaction”.

(5) Finder’s Fee Agreement dated June 28, 2013, as amended October 20, 2013, between the Company and
Parolini Family Holdings Limited respecting the payment of the Finder’s Shares in connection with the
Amalgamation. See “Proposed Qualifying Transaction – Overview”.

(6) Agency Agreement dated October 23, 2013 between the Company and the Agent. See “Plan of Distribution”.
(7) QT Escrow Agreement to be entered into on Closing between the Company, certain shareholders whose

shares will be subject to escrow and Computershare Trust Company Canada. See “Escrowed Securities – QT
Escrow Shares”.

(8) Warrant Indenture to be entered into on Closing between the Company and Computershare Trust Company
Canada. See “Description of Securities Being Distributed – Warrants”.

Copies of these agreements will be available for inspection at the office of the Company’s counsel at 1600-609
Granville Street, Vancouver, British Columbia V7Y 1C3 during ordinary business hours while the securities offered
by this Prospectus are in the course of distribution and for a period of 30 days thereafter.

ISIS

The only material contracts entered into by ISIS since incorporation, other than contracts in the ordinary course of
business, are:
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(1) Cladstone License Agreement, dated effective April 1, 2011 between ISIS and Cladstone Limited. See “ISIS
Lab Inc. – Cladstone Agreements”.

(2) Cladstone Services Agreement, dated effective April 1, 2011 between ISIS and Cladstone Limited. See “ISIS
Lab Inc. – Cladstone Agreements”.

(3) Cladstone Credit Facility, dated September 27, 2012 but effective April 1, 2011, amended on September 3,
2013 and subsequently cancelled on September 12, 2013, between ISIS and Cladstone Limited. See “ISIS Lab
Inc. – Cladstone Agreements”.

(4) Consulting Services Agreement, dated October 1, 2012 and amended as of June 27, 2013, June 28, 2013,
August 9, 2013, August 27, 2013 and September 9, 2013, between ISIS and York Capital Partners Inc. See
“ISIS Lab Inc. – Consulting Services Agreement”.

(5) Loan Agreement, dated September 27, 2012 (as amended), between ISIS and Forbes & Manhattan Inc. See
“ISIS Lab Inc. – ISIS Short Term”.

(6) Amalgamation Agreement, dated June 28, 2013, as amended August 31, 2013, between the Company and
ISIS. See “Proposed Qualifying Transaction”.

(7) ISIS Debentures in the aggregate principal amount of $245,000 held by 2213802 Ontario Inc. See “ISIS Lab
Inc. - ISIS Debenture Financing” and “ISIS Lab Inc. – ISIS Debt Deferment”.

Copies of the foregoing agreements are available for inspection at ISIS’ registered office located at 964 Westport
Crescent, Unit #6, Mississauga, Ontario, L5T 1S3 during regular business hours until the Closing of the Offering and
for a period of 30 days thereafter.

OTHER MATERIAL FACTS

There are no other material facts relating to the Offering which are not disclosed elsewhere in this Prospectus and
which are necessary for this Prospectus to contain full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the
Offering.

PURCHASERS’ STATUTORY RIGHTS OF WITHDRAWAL AND RESCISSION

Securities legislation in certain of the provinces of Canada provides purchasers with the right to withdraw from an
agreement to purchase securities. This right may be exercised within two business days after receipt or deemed
receipt of a prospectus and any amendment. In several of the provinces, securities legislation further provides a
purchaser with remedies for rescission or in some jurisdictions, revisions of the price of damages if the prospectus
and any amendment contains a misrepresentation or is not delivered to the purchaser, provided that such remedies for
rescission, revisions of the price or damages are exercised by the purchaser within the time limit prescribed by the
securities legislation of the purchaser’s province. The purchaser should refer to the applicable provisions of the
securities legislation of the purchaser’s province for the particulars of these rights or consult with a legal advisor.
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
As At

June 30,
2013

$
(Unaudited)

March 31,
2013

$
(Audited)

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 123,039 142,106
Amount receivable 4,789 3,918

Total current assets 127,828 146,024

Non-current assets

Deferred charges (Note 4) 30,000 30,000

Total assets 157,828 176,024

Liabilities and shareholder equity

Current liabilities

Accounts payable & accrued liabilities 338 255

338 255

Shareholders’ equity
Capital stock (Note 5) 245,361 245,361
Other equity reserve (Note 5) 31,110 31,110
Deficit (118,981) (100,702)

157,490 175,769

157,828 176,024

Nature and continuance of operations (Note 1)

Approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on August 29, 2013:

Signed “Randy Clifford” Signed “Michael Wilson”
Randy Clifford Michael Wilson
Director Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
For the three month periods ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
Unaudited

June 30,
2013

$

June 30,
2012

$

Expenses

General & administrative 49 18
Transfer agent and filing fees 3,523 870
Professional fees 14,794 -

(18,366) (888)

Finance income 87 -

Loss and comprehensive loss for the period (18,279) (888)

Basic and diluted loss per common share (0.01) 0.00

Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding (Note 3) 2,000,000 2,000,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
Unaudited

Capital Stock

Shares Amount

$

Other
Equity

Reserve
$

Deficit

$

Total
Shareholders’

Equity
$

Balance, March 31, 2012 4,000,000 245,361 31,110 (71,373) 205,098

Loss for the period - - - (888) (888)

Balance, June 30, 2012 4,000,000 245,361 31,110 (72,261) 204,210

Balance, March 31, 2013 4,000,000 245,361 31,110 (100,702) 175,769

Loss for the period - - - (18,279) (18,279)

Balance, June 30, 2013 4,000,000 245,361 31,110 (118,981) 157,490

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the three month periods ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
Unaudited

June 30, 2013
$

June 30, 2012
$

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss for the period (18,279) (888)

Changes in non-cash working capital items:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 83 (23)
Amounts receivable (871) 10,411

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (19,067) 9,500

Increase (decrease) in cash for the period (19,067) 9,500

Cash, beginning of period 142,106 194,916

Cash, end of period 123,039 204,416

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash 3,039 204,416
Liquid short-term investments 120,000 -

123,039 204,416

Interest paid - -

Interest received 87 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
Unaudited

1. NATURE AND CONTINUANCE OF OPERATIONS

Wedona Capital Inc. (the "Company") was incorporated as a private company by Certificate of Incorporation issued
pursuant to the provisions of the British Columbia Business Corporations Act on February 9, 2011.  On August 19,
2011 the Company announced that its Initial Public Offering (“IPO”) had been completed and the Company was now
classified as a Capital Pool Company as defined in the TSX Venture Exchange (“TSX-V”) Policy 2.4.  The Company
will not carry on any business other than the identification and evaluation of assets or businesses with a view to
completing a Qualifying Transaction (“QT”).  The Company’s common shares were listed for trading on the TSX-V
August 22, 2011 with the trading symbol WCI.P.  The Company’s registered office is located at 1600 – 609 Granville
Street, Vancouver, BC, V7Y 1C3.

On December 14, 2012, trading in the shares of the Company were halted at the request of the Company pending
news. On December 20, 2012 the Company issued a press release stating that it had entered into a Letter of Intent
(“LOI”) dated December 14, 2012 with a private Ontario company, Isis Lab Inc. (“Isis”) pursuant to which the
Company has agreed, subject to certain conditions, to acquire Isis as its QT under the policies of the TSX-V (the
“Transaction”). Isis is a privately held corporation, incorporated pursuant to the Business Corporations Act (Ontario).
Isis specializes in the development of online Bingo and Social Gaming software and related services. The LOI has
been replaced by a formal amalgamation agreement (“Amalgamation” Agreement”) dated June 28, 2013.  Pursuant to
the Amalgamation Agreement, the Company has agreed to acquire all of the issued and outstanding shares of Isis in
exchange for 24,933,333 common shares of the Company.  In addition, Isis may complete a financing of up to
$1,000,000 by the offering of debentures and warrants, which would result in the issuance of up to 400,000 warrants
and it is intended that each warrant would entitle the holder to acquire one common share of the Company on closing
of the transaction.  The Corporation has also agreed to issue 1,355,000 common shares as a finder’s fee in connection
with the transaction. The Transaction is an arm’s length transaction and will not be subject to approval of the
shareholders of the Company although the approval of the shareholders of the Company may be requested to elect a
new board of directors. Upon completion thereof, it is expected that the Company will be a Tier 2 Technology Issuer.

These financial statements of the Company are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the functional currency of the
Company.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) with the assumption that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business rather than through a process of forced liquidation.  The financial statements do not include
adjustments to amounts and classifications of assets and liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be
unable to continue operations.

The Company has no source of revenue, has an accumulated deficit of $118,981 as at June 30, 2013, and expects to
incur further losses. All of these factors may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern and, therefore suggest that the Company may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.

The Company’s continuing operations are dependent upon its ability to identify, evaluate and negotiate an agreement
to acquire an interest in a material asset or business within 24 months of listing on the TSX-V.  Any acquisition or
investment proposed by the Company will be subject to regulatory approval.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

These condensed interim financial statements, including comparatives, have been prepared in accordance with
International Accounts Standards (“IAS”) 34, “Interim Financial Reporting” using accounting policies consistent with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”).

These financial statements have been prepared using accounting policies consistent with IFRS. These financial
statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial instruments classified as financial
instruments at fair value through profit and loss, which are stated at their fair value. In addition, these financial
statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
Unaudited

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to use judgment in making estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Management has made judgments in a number of areas in preparing these financial statements. Those judgments that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are determining whether the
entity remains a going concern. Areas of critical accounting estimates include recoverability of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, and valuations of share-based payments and warrants. Actual results may differ from the estimates made.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Significant estimates made by management affecting the financial statements include:

Share-based payments

Estimating fair value for granted stock options requires determining the most appropriate valuation model which is
dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determining the most appropriate
inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the option, volatility, dividend yield, and rate of forfeitures
and making assumptions about them. The value of the share-based payment expense for the year along with the
assumptions and model used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 5.

Deferred tax Assets & Liabilities

The estimation of income taxes and liabilities includes evaluating the recoverability of deferred tax assets and
liabilities based on an assessment of the Company’s ability to utilize the underlying future tax deductions against
future taxable income prior to expiry of those deductions. Management assesses whether it is probable that some or all
of the deferred income tax assets or liabilities will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets and
liabilities is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income. To the extent that management’s assessment of
the Company’s ability to utilize future tax deductions changes, the Company would be required to recognize more or
fewer deferred tax assets and liabilities, and deferred income tax provisions or recoveries could be affected.

Deferred financing costs

Costs directly identifiable with the raising of capital will be charged against the related capital stock.  Costs related to
shares not yet issued are recorded as deferred financing costs.  These costs will be deferred until the issuance of the
shares to which the costs relate, at which time the costs will be charged against the related capital stock or charged to
operations if the shares are not issued.

Share-based payments

Stock options and warrants give the right, but not the obligation, to buy common shares of the Company at a fixed
price for a limited time. In the future, the Company may choose to grant stock options to directors, officers, employees
and service providers. The Company recognizes share-based payment expense based on the estimated fair value of
options granted. Fair value is estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The fair value of the options is
then recognized over the vesting period of the options granted as both share-based payment expense and reserve. This
includes a forfeiture estimate, which is revised for actual forfeitures in subsequent periods. The other equity reserve
account is subsequently reduced if the options are exercised and the amount initially recorded is then credited to
capital stock along with the consideration paid by the option holder.

In situations where equity instruments are issued to non-employees and some or all of the goods or services received
by the entity as consideration cannot be specifically identified, the equity instruments are measured at the fair value of
the equity instrument. Otherwise, share-based payments are measured at the fair value of goods or services received.
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)
Unaudited

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income taxes

Income tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in
which case it is recognized in equity. Current tax expense is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at period end, adjusted for amendments to tax payable with
regards to previous years.

Deferred tax is recorded using the statement of financial position liability method, providing for temporary differences,
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided for: goodwill not deductible for tax purposes;
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting or taxable loss; nor differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of
deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilized.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at the same time as the liability to
pay the related dividend. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Loss per share

The Company presents basic loss per share for its common shares, calculated by dividing the loss attributable to
common shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted loss per share does not adjust the loss attributable to common shareholders or the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding when the effect is anti-dilutive.

2,000,000 shares outstanding as at June 30, 2013 have been excluded from the weighted average number of shares
outstanding because they are contingently returnable to treasury.

Financial instruments

All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the statement of financial position. The Company has
classified each financial instrument into one of the following categories:

 financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)
 loans and receivables
 financial assets available-for-sale
 financial assets and liabilities held-to maturity
 other financial liabilities.

Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value with changes in those fair values
recognized in the statement of loss and comprehensive loss. Financial assets available-for-sale are subsequently
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax.
Financial assets and liabilities held-to-maturity, loans and receivables, and other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

All financial assets except for those at fair value through profit or loss are subject to review for impairment at least at
each reporting date. Financial assets are impaired when there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are applied for each category of financial
assets, which are described above.
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JUNE 30, 2013
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

IFRS 7 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the input to valuation techniques used to measure fair value as
follows:

 Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
 Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); and
 Level 3 – inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market date (unobservable

inputs).

Refer to Note 6 for relevant disclosures.

New accounting pronouncements

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published which are not yet effective for years ended
March 31, 2013.  The following standards are expected not to have a material impact on the Company’s financial
statements, but may result in additional disclosures in future years:

 IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Liabilities: effective for annual periods
commencing on or after January 1, 2013

 IFRS 9, Financial Instruments: effective for annual periods commencing on or after January 1, 2015
 IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements: effective for annual periods commencing on or after January 1,

2013
 IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements: effective for annual periods commencing on or after January 1, 2013
 IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: effective for annual periods commencing on or after January

1, 2013
 IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement: effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013
 IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements: effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012
 IAS 27, Separate Financial Statements: effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013
 IAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: effective for annual periods beginning on or after

January 1, 2013; and
 IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation: effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,

2014

4. DEFERRED CHARGES

Deferred charges consist of $30,000 which has been paid to PI Financial Corp. relating to the Company’s QT.

5. CAPITAL STOCK

Authorized:

Unlimited common shares with no par value and unlimited preferred shares with no par value.

Issuances:

During the period from incorporation on February 9, 2011 to March 31, 2011, the Company issued 2,000,000 common
shares at $0.05 per share for gross proceeds of $100,000.  The 2,000,000 common shares are held in escrow until
completion of the Company’s QT. Upon completion of the Company’s QT the shares are to be released on a staged
basis, with 10% to be released on the issuance of a final exchange bulletin by the TSX-V, and 15% to be released
every six months thereafter for a period of thirty-six months. Refer to Note 8 for details of the sale of escrowed shares
pursuant to the Company’s anticipated QT.
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5. CAPITAL STOCK (continued)

Issuances: (continued)

On August 19, 2011 the Company announced that it had issued 2,000,000 common shares at $0.10 per share for gross
proceeds of $200,000 by way of completion of its IPO.  In connection with the IPO, the Company incurred cash costs
of $42,500 (of which $25,200 was incurred during the period ended March 31, 2011 and recorded as deferred
financing costs on the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2011) and issued agent’s options, valued at
$12,139.

At June 30, 2013 and March 31, 2013 the Company had 4,000,000 shares issued and outstanding.

Stock options

The Company has a stock option plan under which it is authorized to grant options to executive officers and directors,
employees and consultants enabling them to acquire up to 10% of the issued and outstanding common stock of the
Company. Under the plan, the exercise price of each option equals the market price of the Company's stock, less an
applicable discount, as calculated on the date of grant. The options can be granted for a maximum term of 10 years and
vest at the discretion of the board of directors.

During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Company granted 200,000 stock options with a fair value of $18,971 or
$0.09 per option to directors and officers of the Company. These options qualified under the Company’s Prospectus.
The following weighted average assumptions were used for the Black-Scholes valuation of stock options granted:

2013 2012
Risk-free interest rate - 2.30%
Expected life of option - 10 years
Expected dividend yield - 0%
Expected stock price volatility - 120%

As at June 30, 2013, the following options were issued and outstanding:

Number of options Exercise price Expiry date Remaining contractual life (years)
200,000 $   0.10 August 21, 2021 8.15

A summary of changes of stock options outstanding is as follows:

Options
Weighted average

exercise price

Outstanding – March 31, 2012 200,000 $ 0.10

Granted - -

Outstanding and exercisable – June 30, 2013 and March 31,
2013 200,000 $ 0.10

As at June 30, 2013, there were 200,000 agent’s options outstanding which are exercisable at a price of $0.10 until
August 21, 2013.  The agent’s options were issued in connection with the IPO with a value of $12,139 or $0.06 per
option, and have a remaining contractual life of 0.14 years
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categorization and Valuation

The Company has categorized its financial instruments as follows:

i) Cash and cash equivalents is categorized as FVTPL and is recorded at fair value, and under the fair value
hierarchy is based on Level 1 quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

ii) Amount receivable are categorized as loans and receivables, and are recorded at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method. Due to the short-term nature of current receivables, the Company estimates that
their fair value approximates their face value.

iii) Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are categorized as other financial liabilities and are recorded at their
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Due to the short-term nature of accounts payable and
accrued liabilities, the Company estimates that their fair value approximates their face value.

Financial risk factors Financial risk factors

The Company’s risk exposures and the impact on the Company’s financial instruments are summarized below.

Credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to a significant concentration of credit risk consist
primarily of cash.  The Company limits its exposure to credit loss by placing its cash with major financial institutions.
The Company’s amount receivable consists of input tax credits recoverable from the Government of Canada.  As such,
the Company believes the credit risk with respect to its amount receivable to be insignificant.

Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk to the extent that the cash maintained at financial institutions is subject to
a floating rate of interest. The interest rate risks on cash and on the Company’s obligations are not considered
significant.

Liquidity risk

All of the Company’s financial liabilities are classified as current and are anticipated to mature within the next fiscal
period. The Company intends to settle these with funds from its positive working capital position.

Foreign currency risk

The Company is potentially exposed to foreign currency risk on fluctuations related to cash and cash equivalents, and
accrued liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency. As at June 30, 2013, the Company did not have any
accounts in foreign currencies and considers foreign currency risk insignificant.

Price risk

The Company has limited exposure to price risk with respect to commodity and equity prices. Equity price risk is
defined as the potential adverse impact on the Company’s earnings due to movements in individual equity prices or
general movements in the level of the stock market. Commodity price risk is defined as the potential adverse impact
on earnings and economic value due to commodity price movements and volatilities.

7. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Capital is comprised of the Company’s shareholders’ equity. As at June 30, 2013, the Company’s shareholders’ equity
was $157,490 and there was no long term debt outstanding. The Company manages its capital structure to maximize
its financial flexibility making adjustments to it in response to changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets and business opportunities. The Company does not presently utilize any
quantitative measures to monitor its capital.
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8. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 11, 2013 the Company announced that its shares would resume trading on the TSX-V on July 15, 2013.

On July 11, 2013 the Company also announced that pursuant to an Amalgamation Agreement (the "Amalgamation
Agreement") dated June 28, 2013 between Wedona, ISIS Lab Inc. ("Isis") and a newly incorporated subsidiary of
Wedona, Wedona and ISIS have agreed to complete the Qualifying Transaction (the "Transaction") by way of a three-
cornered amalgamation, which will effectively result in Wedona acquiring all of the issued and outstanding securities
of Isis in exchange for an aggregate of 24,933,333 common shares in the capital of Wedona (“Wedona Shares”). These
shares will have a deemed price of $0.30 per share. The Amalgamation Agreement replaces the Letter of Intent.

In conjunction with, and as a condition of completion of, the Transaction, Wedona is planning on carrying out a
prospectus offering (the “Financing”) to raise gross proceeds of a minimum of $3,000,000 and a maximum of
$6,000,000.  The Financing is proposed to consist of up to 20,000,000 Units at a price of $0.30 per Unit.  Each Unit
will consist of one Wedona Share and one-half of one common share purchase warrant, each full warrant being
exercisable into one Wedona Share at an exercise price of $0.45 for a period of 24 months from the closing of the
Financing.  The Units under the Financing are being offered, on a commercially reasonable efforts basis, by Mackie
Research Capital Corporation. In connection with closing of the Financing, Mackie Research Capital Corporation will
be paid a cash commission of 8% of the gross proceeds raised under the Financing and an agent fee of $30,000, will be
issued 33,334 Wedona Shares and will be granted options to purchase that number of Units equal to 8% of the Units
sold in the Financing, at a price of $0.30 per Unit.

As part of the Transaction, current holders of escrowed Wedona Shares shall sell all 2,000,000 of such escrowed
shares (the “Seed Shares”) at a price of $0.075 per share to certain directors and officers of Isis and other persons,
subject to the approval of the TSXV.  In addition, in connection with the Transaction Wedona has agreed to issue
1,355,000 Wedona Shares to Parolini Family Holdings Limited as a finder’s fee on closing.

Following completion of the Transaction, the Company will carry on the business of Isis and all of the directors of
Wedona will resign in favor of nominees of Isis, whom are expected to be Daniel Kajouii, Tito Gandhi, Michael
Davidson, Bernie Wilson and Norm Inkster.  It is also expected that, post-Transaction, the senior management of the
Company will be reconstituted with Daniel Kajouii being appointed as President and Chief Executive Officer and Ian
Campbell being appointed as Chief Financial Officer.

Completion of the Transaction and the Financing is subject to a number of conditions, including TSXV acceptance.

There can be no assurance that the Transaction will be completed as proposed or at all.

Pursuant to the Policies of the TSX Venture Exchange (the "Exchange"), trading in the common shares was halted at
the opening of the market on August 23, 2013, and subsequently suspended on August 26, 2103. Wedona has until
November 22, 2013 to complete the Transaction, or to apply to transfer to the NEX board of the Exchange ("NEX") in
lieu of being delisted. At Wedona's Annual General and Special Meeting held on August 21, 2013, the shareholders
approved the transfer to NEX, if required.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
 
 
 

To the Shareholders of 
Wedona Capital Inc.  
 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Wedona Capital Inc., which comprise the statements of financial 
position as at March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2011 and the statements of operations and comprehensive loss, changes in 
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2012 and the period from incorporation on February 9, 
2011 to March 31, 2011, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility  
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We conducted our audits in 
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 



 
 

 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Wedona Capital Inc.  
as at March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2011 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2012 
and the period from incorporation on February 9, 2011 to March 31, 2011 in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 in the financial statements which describes conditions and 
matters that indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about Wedona Capital Inc.’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. 
 
 
 

“DAVIDSON & COMPANY LLP” 
 
 
Vancouver, Canada  Chartered Accountants 
  
July 18, 2012  
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC. 
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
(Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
 

      March 31, 
2012 

 March 31, 
 2011 

Assets         

Current assets         
Cash     $ 194,916 $ 74,800 
Amount receivable      10,460  - 

Deferred financing costs (Note 4)      -  25,200 

     $ 205,376 $ 100,000 

Liabilities and shareholder equity         

Current liabilities         
Accounts payable & accrued liabilities     $ 278 $ 5,000 

      278  5,000 

Shareholders’ equity         
Capital stock (Note 4)      245,361  100,000 
Other equity reserve      31,110  - 
Deficit      (71,373)  (5,000) 

      205,098  95,000 

     $ 205,376 $ 100,000 

Nature and continuance of operations (Note 1) 

 

 

Approved for issue by the Board on July 18, 2012: 
 
 
 
“Randy Clifford”       “Michael Wilson”    
Randy Clifford      Michael Wilson     
Director       Director 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC. 
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 
(Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
 

     

 

Year Ended 
March 31, 

2012 

   Period from 
incorporation 
February 9, 

2011 to 
March 31, 

 2011 

Expenses         

General & administrative   $ 90   $ - 
Transfer agent and filing fees    21,320    - 
Professional fees    25,992    5,000 
Share based compensation    18,971    - 

Loss and comprehensive loss for the period   $ (66,373)   $ (5,000) 

Basic and diluted loss per common share   $ (0.05)   $ (0.00) 

Weighted average number of common 
shares outstanding (Note 3) 

  
 
 

 
1,216,438 

  
 
 

 
- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC. 
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
(Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
 

 Capital Stock    

 Shares Amount Other 
Equity 

Reserve 

Deficit Total 
Shareholders’ 

Equity 

Balance, February 9, 2011 (incorporation)  -     $ -    $ - $  - $          - 

Common shares issued at $0.05 2,000,000 100,000                -                 -              100,000 

Loss and comprehensive loss -   -             - (5,000) (5,000) 

Balance, March 31, 2011 2,000,000       100,000  -      (5,000)               95,000 

Common shares issued for IPO at $0.10 2,000,000 200,000                -                -              200,000 

Share issuance costs - cash -   (42,500)             -              - (42,500) 

Share issuance costs – Agent’s options -   (12,139)       12,139              -                     - 

Share based compensation -                  -       18,971              - 18,971 

Loss and comprehensive loss for the year -                  -             -     (66,373) (66,373) 

Balance, March 31, 2012  4,000,000     $    245,361    $    31,110 $   (71,373) $         205,098 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC. 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
 

     

 

Year Ended 
March 31, 

2012 

   Period from 
incorporation 
February 9, 

2011 to 
March 31, 

 2011 

Cash flows from operating activities         

Loss for the period   $ (66,373)   $ (5,000) 

Share based compensation    18,971    - 
Changes in non-cash working capital items:         

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities    (4,722)    5,000 
Amounts receivable    (10,460)    - 

Net cash used in operating activities    (62,584)    - 

Cash flows from financing activities         

Proceeds from the issuance of capital stock    
 

200,000    
 

100,000 
Deferred financing costs    -    (25,200) 
Share issuance costs    (17,300)    - 

Net cash from financing activities    182,700    74,800 

Increase in cash for the period    120,116    74,800 

Cash, beginning of period    74,800    - 

Cash, end of period   $ 194,916   $ 74,800 

Interest paid   $ -   $ - 
Income taxes   $ -   $ - 

 
Supplemental disclosures with respect to cash flows (Note 9) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
MARCH 31, 2012 
(Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
   

1. NATURE AND CONTINUANCE OF OPERATIONS 

 Wedona Capital Inc. (the "Company") was incorporated as a private company by Certificate of Incorporation issued 
pursuant to the provisions of the British Columbia Business Corporations Act on February 9, 2011.  On August 19, 
2011 the Company announced that its Initial Public Offering (“IPO”) had been completed and the Company was 
now classified as a Capital Pool Company as defined in the TSX Venture Exchange (“TSX-V”) Policy 2.4.  The 
Company will not carry on any business other than the identification and evaluation of assets or businesses with a 
view to completing a Qualifying Transaction.  The Company’s common shares were listed for trading on the TSX-V 
August 22, 2011 with the trading symbol WCI.P.  The Company’s registered office is located at 1600 - 609 
Granville Street, Vancouver, BC, V7Y 1C3. 

These financial statements of the Company are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the functional currency of 
the Company. 

These financial statements are authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on July 18, 2012. 

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(“IFRS”) with the assumption that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the 
normal course of business rather than through a process of forced liquidation.  The financial statements do not 
include adjustments to amounts and classifications of assets and liabilities that might be necessary should the 
Company be unable to continue operations. 

 The Company’s continuing operations are dependent upon its ability to identify, evaluate and negotiate an 
agreement to acquire an interest in a material asset or business within 24 months of listing on the TSX-V.  These 
uncertainties cast significant doubt upon the entities ability to continue as a going concern.  Any acquisition or 
investment proposed by the Company will be subject to regulatory approval. 

 There is no assurance that the Company will complete a transaction within twenty-four months from the date the 
Company’s shares are listed on the TSX-V, at which time the TSX-V may suspend or de-list the Company’s shares 
from trading. 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 

These financial statements have been prepared using accounting policies consistent with IFRS. These financial 
statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial instruments classified as financial 
instruments at fair value through profit and loss, which are stated at their fair value. In addition, these financial 
statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.  

The preparation of the financial statements require management to make certain estimates, judgments and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the interim financial statements. 
Significant estimates, judgements and assumptions relate to, but are not limited to, the recoverability of amounts 
receivable and the recognition to deferred income taxes.  Actual results could differ from these estimates.  

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 Deferred financing costs 

 Costs directly identifiable with the raising of capital will be charged against the related capital stock.  Costs related 
to shares not yet issued are recorded as deferred financing costs.  These costs will be deferred until the issuance of 
the shares to which the costs relate, at which time the costs will be charged against the related capital stock or 
charged to operations if the shares are not issued. 

Share based compensation 

 The Company uses the fair value method whereby the Company recognizes compensation costs for the granting of 
all stock options and direct awards of stock based on its fair value over the period of vesting.  Any consideration 
paid by the option holders to purchase shares is credited to capital stock. 
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
MARCH 31, 2012 
(Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
   

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 Income taxes 

Income tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in 
which case it is recognized in equity. Current tax expense is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the 
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at period end, adjusted for amendments to tax payable with 
regards to previous years. 

Deferred tax is recorded using the statement of financial position liability method, providing for temporary 
differences, between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts 
used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided for: goodwill not deductible for 
tax purposes; the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting or taxable loss; and 
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable 
future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the 
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial 
position date. 

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which the asset can be utilized.  

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at the same time as the liability 
to pay the related dividend. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to 
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same 
taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 

 Loss per share 

 The Company presents basic loss per share for its common shares, calculated by dividing the loss attributable to 
common shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the 
period. Diluted loss per share does not adjust the loss attributable to common shareholders or the weighted average 
number of common shares outstanding when the effect is anti-dilutive. 

2,000,000 shares outstanding as at March 31, 2012 have been excluded from the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding because they are contingently returnable to Treasury. 

Financial instruments 

 Financial assets 

The Company classifies its financial assets into one of the following categories, depending on the purpose for which 
the asset was acquired. The Company's accounting policy for each category is as follows: 

Fair value through profit or loss - This category comprises derivatives, or assets acquired or incurred principally for 
the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term. They are carried in the statement of financial position, at 
fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the statement of operations.  

Loans and receivables - These assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that 
are not quoted in an active market. They are carried at cost less any provision for impairment. Individually 
significant receivables are considered for impairment when they are past due or when other objective evidence is 
received that a specific counterparty will default.  

Held-to-maturity investments - These assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 
and fixed maturities that the Company's management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. These 
assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. If there is objective evidence that the 
investment is impaired, determined by reference to external credit ratings and other relevant indicators, the financial 
asset is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. Any changes to the carrying amount of the 
investment, including impairment losses, are recognized in the statement of operations. 
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
MARCH 31, 2012 
(Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
   

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 Financial instruments (continued) 

 Financial assets (continued) 

Available-for-sale - Non-derivative financial assets not included in the above categories are classified as available-
for- sale. They are carried at fair value with changes in fair value recognized directly in equity. Where a decline in 
the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset constitutes objective evidence of impairment, the amount of the 
loss is removed from equity and recognized in the statement of operations. 

All financial assets except for those at fair value through profit or loss are subject to review for impairment at least 
at each reporting date. Financial assets are impaired when there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a 
group of financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are applied for each category of 
financial assets, which are described above. 

Financial liabilities 

The Company classifies its financial liabilities into one of two categories, depending on the purpose for which the 
liability was acquired. The Company's accounting policy for each category is as follows:  

Fair value through profit or loss - This category comprises derivatives, or liabilities acquired or incurred principally 
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term. They are carried in the statement of financial position 
at fair value with change in fair value recognized in the statement of operations.  

Other financial liabilities: This category includes promissory notes, amounts due to related parties and accounts 
payables and accrued liabilities, all of which are recognized at amortized cost. 

 The Company has classified its cash as fair value through profit and loss. The Company’s amount receivable is 
classified as loans and receivables, its accounts payable and accrued liabilities are classified as other financial 
liabilities.  

IFRS 7 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the input to valuation techniques used to measure fair value 
as follows: 

• Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

• Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,  
                either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices) and; 

• Level 3 – inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
                inputs). 
 

New accounting pronouncements 
 

 Financial instruments disclosure  
 
In October 2010, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 7, “Financial Instruments: Disclosures,” that improve the 
disclosure requirements in relation to transferred financial assets. The amendments are effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after July 1, 2011, with earlier application permitted. The Company does not anticipate this 
amendment to have a significant impact on its financial statements.  
 
Income taxes  
 
In December 2010, the IASB issued an amendment to IAS 12, “Income Taxes,” which provides a practical solution 
to determining the recovery of investment properties as it relates to the accounting for deferred income taxes. This 
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2011, with earlier application permitted. The 
Company does not anticipate this amendment to have a significant impact on its financial statements.  
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
MARCH 31, 2012 
(Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
   

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

New accounting pronouncements (continued) 
 
Consolidation  
 
In May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 10, “Consolidated Financial Statements” (“IFRS 10”), which supersedes SIC 
12, “Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities,” and the requirements relating to consolidated financial statements in 
IAS 27, “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements.” IFRS 10 is effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2013, with earlier application permitted. IFRS 10 establishes control as the basis for an investor to 
consolidate its investees and defines control as an investor’s power over an investee with exposure, or rights, to 
variable returns from the investee and the ability to affect the investor’s returns through its power over the investee.  
 
In addition, the IASB issued IFRS 12, “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities” (“IFRS 12”), which combines and 
enhances the disclosure requirements for the Company’s subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and 
unconsolidated structured entities. The requirements of IFRS 12 include enhanced reporting of the nature of risks 
associated with the Company’s interests in other entities, and the effects of those interests on the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements.  
The Company does not anticipate the application of IFRS 10 and IFRS 12 to have a significant impact on its 
financial statements.  
 
Joint arrangements  
 
In May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 11, “Joint Arrangements” (“IFRS 11”), which supersedes IAS 31, “Interests in 
Joint Ventures” and SIC 13, “Jointly Controlled Entities – Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers.” IFRS 11 is 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, with earlier application permitted. Under IFRS 
11, joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or joint ventures based on the rights and obligations of the 
parties to the joint arrangements. A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control 
of the arrangement (“joint operators”) have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the 
arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement 
(“joint venturers”) have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. IFRS 11 requires that a joint operator recognize 
its portion of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of a joint arrangement, while a joint venturer recognizes its 
investment in a joint arrangement using the equity method.  
 
The Company does not anticipate the application of IFRS 11 to have a significant impact on its financial statements.  
Fair value measurement  
 
In May 2011, as a result of the convergence project undertaken by the IASB with the US Financial Accounting 
Standards Board to develop common requirements for measuring fair value and for disclosing information about fair 
value measurements, the IASB issued IFRS 13, “Fair Value Measurement” (“IFRS 13”). IFRS 13 is effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, with earlier application permitted. IFRS 13 defines fair value 
and sets out a single framework for measuring fair value which is applicable to all IFRS that require or permit fair 
value measurements or disclosures about fair value measurements. IFRS 13 requires that when using a valuation 
technique to measure fair value, the use of relevant observable inputs should be maximized while unobservable 
inputs should be minimized.  
 
The Company does not anticipate the application of IFRS 13 to have a significant impact on its financial statements.  
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
MARCH 31, 2012 
(Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
   

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

New accounting pronouncements (continued) 
 

Financial statement presentation  
 
In June 2011, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1, “Presentation of Financial Statements” (“IAS 1”), that require 
an entity to group items presented in the statement of other comprehensive income on the basis of whether they may 
be reclassified to profit or loss subsequent to initial recognition. For those items presented before tax, the 
amendments to IAS 1 also require that the tax related to the two separate groups be presented separately. The 
amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012, with earlier application 
permitted. 
 
The Company does not anticipate this amendment to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial 
statements.  
 
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities  
 
In May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (“IFRS 12”), which establishes 
disclosure requirements for interests in other entities, such as joint arrangements, associates, special purpose 
vehicles and off balance sheet vehicles. The standard carries forward existing disclosures and also introduces 
significant additional disclosure requirements that address the nature of, and risks associated with, an entity’s 
interests in other entities. This standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.  
The Company does not anticipate this amendment to have a significant impact on its financial statements.  

 
Financial instruments  
 
The IASB intends to replace IAS 39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” (“IAS 39”), in its 
entirety with IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments” (“IFRS 9”), in three main phases. IFRS 9 will be the new standard for 
the financial reporting of financial instruments that is principles-based and less complex than IAS 39. In November 
2009 and October 2010, phase 1 of IFRS 9 was issued and amended, respectively, which addressed the classification 
and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities. IFRS 9 requires that all financial assets be classified as 
subsequently measured at amortized cost or at fair value based on the Company’s business model for managing 
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Financial liabilities are classified 
as subsequently measured at amortized cost except for financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL, financial 
guarantees and certain other exceptions. In response to delays to the completion of the remaining phases of the 
project, on December 16, 2011, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 9 which deferred the mandatory effective date 
of IFRS 9 from January 1, 2013, to annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015. The amendments also 
provided relief from the requirement to restate comparative financial statements for the effects of applying IFRS 9.  
 
The Company does not anticipate this amendment to have a significant impact on its financial statements.  

4. CAPITAL STOCK  

 Authorized: 

 Unlimited common shares with no par value value and unlimited preferred shares with no par value. 

 Issuances: 

During the period from incorporation on February 9, 2011 to March 31, 2011, the Company issued 2,000,000 
common shares at $0.05 per share for gross proceeds of $100,000.  The 2,000,000 common shares are held in 
escrow until completion of the Company’s Qualifying Transaction (“QT”).  Upon completion of the Company’s QT 
the shares are to be released on a staged basis, with 10% to be released on the issuance of a final exchange bulletin 
by the TSX-V, and 15% to be released every six months thereafter for a period of thirty-six months.
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
MARCH 31, 2012 
(Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
   

4. CAPITAL STOCK (continued) 

On August 19, 2011 the Company announced that it had issued 2,000,000 common shares at $0.10 per share for 
gross proceeds of $200,000 by way of completion of its IPO.  In connection with the IPO, the Company incurred 
cash costs of $42,500 (of which $25,200 was incurred during the period ended March 31, 2011 and recorded as 
deferred financing costs on the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2011) and issued 200,000 agent’s 
options, valued at $12,139. 

At March 31, 2012 the Company had 4,000,000 common shares issued and outstanding. 

 Stock options 

The Company has a stock option plan under which it is authorized to grant options to executive officers and 
directors, employees and consultants enabling them to acquire up to 10% of the issued and outstanding common 
stock of the Company. Under the plan, the exercise price of each option equals the market price of the Company's 
stock, less an applicable discount, as calculated on the date of grant. The options can be granted for a maximum term 
of 10 years and vest at the discretion of the board of directors.   

During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Company granted 200,000 stock options with a fair value of $18,971 or 
$0.09 per option to directors and officers of the Company. These options qualified under the Company’s Prospectus. 
The following weighted average assumptions were used for the Black-Scholes valuation of stock options granted: 

 

2012 
Risk-free interest rate  2.30% 
Expected life of option 10 years 
Expected dividend yield 0% 
Expected stock price volatility 120% 

 
As at March 31, 2012, the following options were issued and outstanding: 

Number of options Exercise price Expiry date 
200,000 $   0.10 August 21, 2021 

 
A summary of changes of stock options outstanding is as follows: 
 

 
Options 

Weighted average 
exercise price 

   Outstanding – March 31, 2011 - $      - 

Granted 200,000 0.10 

Outstanding and exercisable – March 31, 2012 200,000 $ 0.10 
 
As at March 31, 2012, there were 200,000 agent’s options outstanding which are exercisable at a price of $0.10 until 
August 21, 2013.  The agent’s options were issued in connection with the IPO with a value of $12,139 or $0.06 per 
option. 

The following weighted average assumptions were used for the Black-Scholes valuation of agent’s options granted: 
 

 
2012 

 Risk-free interest rate  0.78% 
 Expected life of option 2 years 
 Expected dividend yield 0% 
 Expected stock price volatility 120% 
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
MARCH 31, 2012 
(Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
   

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

 Fair value  

 Cash is carried at fair value using a level 1 fair value measurement.  The recorded value of the amount receivable 
and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair values due to their demand nature and their short 
term to maturity. 

 Financial risk factors 

 The Company’s risk exposures and the impact on the Company’s financial instruments are summarized below. 

Credit risk 

 Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to a significant concentration of credit risk consist 
primarily of cash.  The Company limits its exposure to credit loss by placing its cash with major financial 
institutions.  The Company’s amount receivable consists of input tax credits recoverable from the Government of 
Canada.  As such, the Company believes the credit risk with respect to its amount receivable to be insignificant. 

 Interest rate risk 

 The Company is exposed to interest rate risk to the extent that the cash maintained at financial institutions is subject 
to a floating rate of interest. The interest rate risks on cash and on the Company’s obligations are not considered 
significant. 

Liquidity risk 

 All of the Company’s financial liabilities are classified as current and are anticipated to mature within the next fiscal 
period. The Company intends to settle these with funds from its positive working capital position. 

Foreign currency risk 

The Company is potentially exposed to foreign currency risk on fluctuations related to cash, and accrued liabilities 
that are denominated in a foreign currency.  As at March 31, 2012, the Company did not have any accounts in 
foreign currencies and considers foreign currency risk insignificant. 

Price risk 

 The Company has limited exposure to price risk with respect to commodity and equity prices. Equity price risk is 
defined as the potential adverse impact on the Company’s earnings due to movements in individual equity prices or 
general movements in the level of the stock market. Commodity price risk is defined as the potential adverse impact 
on earnings and economic value due to commodity price movements and volatilities. 

6. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

 Capital is comprised of the Company’s shareholders’ equity. As at March 31, 2012, the Company’s shareholders’ 
equity was $205,098 and there was no long term debt outstanding. The Company manages its capital structure to 
maximize its financial flexibility making adjustments to it in response to changes in economic conditions and the 
risk characteristics of the underlying assets and business opportunities. The Company does not presently utilize any 
quantitative measures to monitor its capital. 

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 The Company had no related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2012 and the period from 
incorporation on February 9, 2011 to March 31, 2011. 
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
MARCH 31, 2012 
(Expressed in Canadian dollars) 
   

8. INCOME TAXES 
 

  
 
 

 
 
 
 

Year ended 
March 31,  

2012 

 
Period from 

incorporation 
on February 9, 

2011 to 
March 31, 

2011 
    
Loss for the period  $    (66,373) $    (5,000) 
    
Expected income tax recovery       (17,000)        (1,400) 
Non deductible expenditures           5,000  - 
Impact of future income tax rates applied versus current    
   statutory rates 

 
         1,000           - 

Share issue costs          (5,000)         (1,000) 
Change in unrecognized deductible temporary differences         15,000          7,000 
Other           1,000         (4,000) 
    
Total income tax recovery  $           - $           - 
    

The Canadian income tax rate declined during the year due to changes in the law that reduced corporate income tax 
rates in Canada. 
The significant components of deductible temporary differences unused tax losses and unused tax credits that have 
not been recognized on the statement of financial position are as follows: 

  
March 31, 

2012 

 
March 31, 

2011 

 
Expiry Date 

Range 
    
Deferred Tax Assets :    
    
Share issue costs $    29,000 $   20,000 2033 – 2036 
Non-capital losses available for future periods       66,000     10,000 2031 – 2032 
    
Net deferred tax assets $    95,000                    $   30,000  

 
 Tax attributes are subject to review, and potential adjustment, by tax authorities. 

9. SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO CASH FLOWS 

 The significant non-cash transactions for the year ended March 31, 2012 were: 

a) the Company’s issuance of agent’s options in connection with its IPO (Note 4) with a fair value of $12,139. 
 

b) The reallocation of $25,200 from deferred financing costs to capital stock. 

 There were no significant non-cash transactions for the period from incorporation on February 9, 2011 to March 31, 
2011. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
 
 
 
To the Shareholders of 
Wedona Capital Inc. 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Wedona Capital Inc., which comprise the statements of financial 
position as at March 31, 2013 and 2012 and the statements of operations and comprehensive loss, changes in shareholders’ 
equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We conducted our audits in 
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Wedona Capital Inc. 
as at March 31, 2013 and 2012 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 in the financial statements which describes conditions and 
matters that indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about Wedona Capital Inc.’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. 
 
 
 

“DAVIDSON & COMPANY LLP” 
 
 
Vancouver, Canada  Chartered Accountants 
  
May 29, 2013  
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC. 
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
As At 
 
 
 

March 31, 
2013 

$ 

March 31, 
 2012 

$ 

Assets   

Current assets   

Cash and cash equivalents 142,106 194,916 
Amount receivable 3,918 10,460 

Total current assets 146,024 205,376 

Non-current assets   

Deferred charges (Note 4) 30,000 - 

Total assets 176,024 205,376 

Liabilities and shareholder equity   

Current liabilities   

Accounts payable & accrued liabilities 255 278 

 255 278 

Shareholders’ equity   

Capital stock (Note 5) 245,361 245,361 
Other equity reserve (Note 5) 31,110 31,110 
Deficit (100,702) (71,373) 

 175,769 205,098 

 176,024 205,376 

Nature and continuance of operations (Note 1)   

   

Approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on May 29, 2013: 
 

  

 
 
 
Signed “Randy Clifford”     Signed “Michael Wilson”    
Randy Clifford      Michael Wilson     
Director       Director 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC. 
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
For the Years Ended 
 
 

   March 31, 
2013 

$ 

March 31, 
2012 

$ 

Expenses     

General & administrative   146 90 
Transfer agent and filing fees   14,235 21,320 
Professional fees   16,730 25,992 
Share-based payments   - 18,971 

   (31,111) (66,373) 

Finance income   1,782 - 

Loss and comprehensive loss for the year 
  

(29,329) (66,373) 

Basic and diluted loss per common share   (0.01) (0.05) 

Weighted average number of common shares 
outstanding (Note 3) 

  
 

2,000,000 
 

1,216,438 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC. 
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
 
 
 
 

 Capital Stock    

 Shares Amount 
 
 
$ 

Other 
Equity 
Reserve 

$ 

Deficit 
 
 
$ 

Total 
Shareholders’ 

Equity 
$ 

Balance, March 31, 2011 2,000,000 100,000 - (5,000) 95,000 

Common shares issued for IPO at $0.10 2,000,000 200,000 - - 200,000 
Share issuance costs – cash - (42,500) - - (42,500) 
Share issuance costs – Agent’s options - (12,139) 12,139 - - 
Share-based payments - - 18,971 - 18,971 
Loss for the year - - - (66,373) (66,373) 

Balance, March 31, 2012 4,000,000 245,361 31,110 (71,373) 205,098 

Loss for the year - - - (29,329) (29,329) 

Balance, March 31, 2013 4,000,000 245,361 31,110 (100,702) 175,769 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC. 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
For the Years Ended 
 
 
 

March 31, 2013 
$ 

March 31, 2012 
$ 

Cash flows from operating activities   

Loss for the year (29,329) (66,373) 

Share-based payments - 18,971 

Changes in non-cash working capital items:   
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (23) (4,722) 
Amounts receivable 6,542 (10,460) 

Net cash used in operating activities (22,810) (62,584) 

Cash flows from financing activities   

Proceeds from the issuance of capital stock - 200,000 
Deferred charges (30,000) - 
Share issuance costs - (17,300) 

Net cash from financing activities (30,000) 182,700 

Increase (decrease) in cash for the year (52,810) 120,116 

Cash, beginning of year 194,916 74,800 

Cash, end of year 142,106 194,916 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:   

Cash 7,106 194,916 
Liquid short-term investments 135,000 - 

 142,106 194,916 

Interest paid - - 

Interest received 1,782 - 

Supplemental disclosures with respect to cash flows (Note 10) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
MARCH 31, 2013 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
   

1. NATURE AND CONTINUANCE OF OPERATIONS  

Wedona Capital Inc. (the "Company") was incorporated as a private company by Certificate of Incorporation issued 
pursuant to the provisions of the British Columbia Business Corporations Act on February 9, 2011.  On August 19, 
2011 the Company announced that its Initial Public Offering (“IPO”) had been completed and the Company was now 
classified as a Capital Pool Company as defined in the TSX Venture Exchange (“TSX-V”) Policy 2.4.  The Company 
will not carry on any business other than the identification and evaluation of assets or businesses with a view to 
completing a Qualifying Transaction (“QT”).  The Company’s common shares were listed for trading on the TSX 
Venture Exchange August 22, 2011 with the trading symbol WCI.P.  The Company’s registered office is located at 
1600 – 609 Granville Street, Vancouver, BC, V7Y 1C3. 

On December 14, 2012, trading in the shares of the Company was halted at the request of the Company pending news.  
On December 20, 2012 the Company issued a press release stating that it had entered into a Letter of Intent (“LOI”) 
dated December 14, 2012 with a private Ontario company, Isis Lab Inc. (“Isis”) pursuant to which the Company has 
agreed, subject to certain conditions, to acquire Isis as its QT  under the policies of the TSX-V (the “Transaction”).  
Isis is a privately held corporation, incorporated pursuant to the Business Corporations Act (Ontario).  Isis specializes 
in the development of online Bingo and Social Gaming software and related services.  Pursuant to the LOI, the 
Company has agreed to acquire all of the issued and outstanding shares of Isis in exchange for 24,933,333 common 
shares of the Company.  In addition, Isis may complete a financing of up to $600,000 by the offering of debentures 
and warrants, which would result in the issuance of up to 240,000 warrants and it is intended that each warrant would 
entitle the holder to acquire one common share of the Company on closing of the transaction.  The Transaction is an 
arm’s length transaction and will not be subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company although the approval 
of the shareholders of the Company may be requested to elect a new board of directors and to change the name of the 
Company. Upon completion thereof, it is expected that the Company will be a Tier 2 Technology Issuer. 

These financial statements of the Company are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the functional currency of the 
Company. 

These financial statements are authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on May 29, 2013. 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(“IFRS”) with the assumption that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the 
normal course of business rather than through a process of forced liquidation.  The financial statements do not include 
adjustments to amounts and classifications of assets and liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be 
unable to continue operations. 

The Company has no source of revenue, has an accumulated deficit of $100,702 as at March 31, 2013, and expects to 
incur further losses. All of these factors may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern and, therefore suggest that the Company may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the 
normal course of business. 

The Company’s continuing operations are dependent upon its ability to identify, evaluate and negotiate an agreement 
to acquire an interest in a material asset or business within 24 months of listing on the TSX-V.  Any acquisition or 
investment proposed by the Company will be subject to regulatory approval. 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 

These financial statements have been prepared using accounting policies consistent with IFRS. These financial 
statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial instruments classified as financial 
instruments at fair value through profit and loss, which are stated at their fair value. In addition, these financial 
statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.  
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
MARCH 31, 2013 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
   

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

Critical accounting estimates and judgments 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to use judgment in making estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.  
Management has made judgments in a number of areas in preparing these financial statements. Those judgments that 
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are determining whether the 
entity remains a going concern. Areas of critical accounting estimates include recoverability of deferred tax assets and 
liabilities, and valuations of share-based payments and warrants. Actual results may differ from the estimates made.  
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. 

Significant estimates made by management affecting the financial statements include: 

Share-based payments 

Estimating fair value for granted stock options requires determining the most appropriate valuation model which is 
dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determining the most appropriate 
inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the option, volatility, dividend yield, and rate of forfeitures 
and making assumptions about them. The value of the share-based payment expense for the year along with the 
assumptions and model used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 5. 

Deferred tax Assets & Liabilities 

The estimation of income taxes and liabilities includes evaluating the recoverability of deferred tax assets and 
liabilities based on an assessment of the Company’s ability to utilize the underlying future tax deductions against 
future taxable income prior to expiry of those deductions. Management assesses whether it is probable that some or all 
of the deferred income tax assets or liabilities will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets and 
liabilities is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income. To the extent that management’s assessment of 
the Company’s ability to utilize future tax deductions changes, the Company would be required to recognize more or 
fewer deferred tax assets and liabilities, and deferred income tax provisions or recoveries could be affected. 

Deferred financing costs 

Costs directly identifiable with the raising of capital will be charged against the related capital stock.  Costs related to 
shares not yet issued are recorded as deferred financing costs.  These costs will be deferred until the issuance of the 
shares to which the costs relate, at which time the costs will be charged against the related capital stock or charged to 
operations if the shares are not issued. 

Share-based payments 

Stock options and warrants give the right, but not the obligation, to buy common shares of the Company at a fixed 
price for a limited time. In the future, the Company may choose to grant stock options to directors, officers, employees 
and service providers. The Company recognizes share-based payment expense based on the estimated fair value of 
options granted. Fair value is estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The fair value of the options is 
then recognized over the vesting period of the options granted as both share-based payment expense and reserve. This 
includes a forfeiture estimate, which is revised for actual forfeitures in subsequent periods. The other equity reserve 
account is subsequently reduced if the options are exercised and the amount initially recorded is then credited to 
capital stock along with the consideration paid by the option holder. 

In situations where equity instruments are issued to non-employees and some or all of the goods or services received 
by the entity as consideration cannot be specifically identified, the equity instruments are measured at the fair value of 
the equity instrument. Otherwise, share-based payments are measured at the fair value of goods or services received. 
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
MARCH 31, 2013 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
   

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (continued) 

Income taxes 

Income tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in 
which case it is recognized in equity. Current tax expense is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the 
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at period end, adjusted for amendments to tax payable with 
regards to previous years. 

Deferred tax is recorded using the statement of financial position liability method, providing for temporary differences, 
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for 
taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided for: goodwill not deductible for tax purposes; 
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting or taxable loss; nor differences relating to 
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of 
deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and 
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date. 

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which the asset can be utilized. 

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at the same time as the liability to 
pay the related dividend. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation 
authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 

Loss per share 

The Company presents basic loss per share for its common shares, calculated by dividing the loss attributable to 
common shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the 
period. Diluted loss per share does not adjust the loss attributable to common shareholders or the weighted average 
number of common shares outstanding when the effect is anti-dilutive. 

2,000,000 shares outstanding as at March 31, 2013 have been excluded from the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding because they are contingently returnable to treasury. 

Financial instruments 

All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the statement of financial position. The Company has 
classified each financial instrument into one of the following categories:  

• financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) 
• loans and receivables 
• financial assets available-for-sale 
• financial assets and liabilities held-to maturity 
• other financial liabilities. 

Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value with changes in those fair values 
recognized in the statement of loss and comprehensive loss. Financial assets available-for-sale are subsequently 
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax.  
Financial assets and liabilities held-to-maturity, loans and receivables, and other financial liabilities are subsequently 
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 

All financial assets except for those at fair value through profit or loss are subject to review for impairment at least at 
each reporting date. Financial assets are impaired when there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group 
of financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are applied for each category of financial 
assets, which are described above. 
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
MARCH 31, 2013 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
   

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (continued) 

Financial instruments (continued) 

IFRS 7 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the input to valuation techniques used to measure fair value as 
follows: 

• Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
• Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 

directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); and 
• Level 3 – inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market date (unobservable 

inputs). 

Refer to Note 6 for relevant disclosures. 

New accounting pronouncements 

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published which are not yet effective for years ended 
March 31, 2013.  The following standards are expected not to have a material impact on the Company’s financial 
statements, but may result in additional disclosures in future years: 

• IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Liabilities: effective for annual periods 
commencing on or after January 1, 2013 

• IFRS 9, Financial Instruments: effective for annual periods commencing on or after January 1, 2015 
• IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements: effective for annual periods commencing on or after January 1, 

2013 
• IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements: effective for annual periods commencing on or after January 1, 2013 
• IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: effective for annual periods commencing on or after January 

1, 2013 
• IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement: effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 
• IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements: effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012 
• IAS 27, Separate Financial Statements: effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 
• IAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: effective for annual periods beginning on or after 

January 1, 2013; and 
• IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation: effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 

2014 

4. DEFERRED CHARGES 

Deferred charges consist of $30,000 which has been paid to PI Financial Corp. relating to the Company’s QT.  

5. CAPITAL STOCK  

Authorized: 

Unlimited common shares with no par value and unlimited preferred shares with no par value. 

Issuances: 

During the period from incorporation on February 9, 2011 to March 31, 2011, the Company issued 2,000,000 common 
shares at $0.05 per share for gross proceeds of $100,000.  The 2,000,000 common shares are held in escrow until 
completion of the Company’s QT.  Upon completion of the Company’s QT the shares are to be released on a staged 
basis, with 10% to be released on the issuance of a final exchange bulletin by the TSX-V, and 15% to be released 
every six months thereafter for a period of thirty-six months. 
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
MARCH 31, 2013 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
               

5. CAPITAL STOCK (continued) 

Issuances: (continued) 

On August 19, 2011 the Company announced that it had issued 2,000,000 common shares at $0.10 per share for gross 
proceeds of $200,000 by way of completion of its IPO.  In connection with the IPO, the Company incurred cash costs 
of $42,500 (of which $25,200 was incurred during the period ended March 31, 2011 and recorded as deferred 
financing costs on the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2011) and issued agent’s options, valued at 
$12,139. 

At March 31, 2013 and 2012 the Company had 4,000,000 shares issued and outstanding. 

Stock options 

The Company has a stock option plan under which it is authorized to grant options to executive officers and directors, 
employees and consultants enabling them to acquire up to 10% of the issued and outstanding common stock of the 
Company. Under the plan, the exercise price of each option equals the market price of the Company's stock, less an 
applicable discount, as calculated on the date of grant. The options can be granted for a maximum term of 10 years and 
vest at the discretion of the board of directors.   

During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Company granted 200,000 stock options with a fair value of $18,971 or 
$0.09 per option to directors and officers of the Company. These options qualified under the Company’s Prospectus. 
The following weighted average assumptions were used for the Black-Scholes valuation of stock options granted: 

2013 2012 
Risk-free interest rate  - 2.30% 
Expected life of option - 10 years 
Expected dividend yield - 0% 
Expected stock price volatility - 120% 

 
As at March 31, 2013, the following options were issued and outstanding: 

Number of options Exercise price Expiry date Remaining contractual life (years) 
200,000 $   0.10 August 21, 2021 8.4 

 
A summary of changes of stock options outstanding is as follows: 

 

Options 
Weighted average 

exercise price 

Outstanding – March 31, 2011 - $                   - 

Granted 200,000                0.10 

Outstanding and exercisable – March 31, 2012 and 2013 200,000 $ 0.10 
 

As at March 31, 2013, there were 200,000 agent’s options outstanding which are exercisable at a price of $0.10 until 
August 21, 2013.  The agent’s options were issued in connection with the IPO with a value of $12,139 or $0.06 per 
option, and have a remaining contractual life of 0.4 years 

The following weighted average assumptions were used for the Black-Scholes valuation of agent’s options granted: 
 

2013 2012 
Risk-free interest rate  - 0.78% 
Expected life of option - 4.75 months 
Expected dividend yield - 0% 
Expected stock price volatility - 120% 
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
MARCH 31, 2013 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
               

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Categorization and Valuation  

The Company has categorized its financial instruments as follows: 

i) Cash and cash equivalents is categorized as FVTPL and is recorded at fair value, and under the fair value 
hierarchy is based on Level 1 quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities. 

ii)  Amount receivable are categorized as loans and receivables, and are recorded at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate method. Due to the short-term nature of current receivables, the Company estimates that 
their fair value approximates their face value. 

iii)  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are categorized as other financial liabilities and are recorded at their 
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Due to the short-term nature of accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities, the Company estimates that their fair value approximates their face value. 

Financial risk factors 

 The Company’s risk exposures and the impact on the Company’s financial instruments are summarized below. 

Credit risk 

 Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to a significant concentration of credit risk consist 
primarily of cash.  The Company limits its exposure to credit loss by placing its cash with major financial institutions.  
The Company’s amount receivable consists of input tax credits recoverable from the Government of Canada.  As such, 
the Company believes the credit risk with respect to its amount receivable to be insignificant. 

 Interest rate risk 

 The Company is exposed to interest rate risk to the extent that the cash maintained at financial institutions is subject to 
a floating rate of interest. The interest rate risks on cash and on the Company’s obligations are not considered 
significant. 

Liquidity risk 

 All of the Company’s financial liabilities are classified as current and are anticipated to mature within the next fiscal 
period. The Company intends to settle these with funds from its positive working capital position. 

Foreign currency risk 

The Company is potentially exposed to foreign currency risk on fluctuations related to cash and cash equivalents, and 
accrued liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency.  As at March 31, 2013, the Company did not have any 
accounts in foreign currencies and considers foreign currency risk insignificant. 

Price risk 

 The Company has limited exposure to price risk with respect to commodity and equity prices. Equity price risk is 
defined as the potential adverse impact on the Company’s earnings due to movements in individual equity prices or 
general movements in the level of the stock market. Commodity price risk is defined as the potential adverse impact 
on earnings and economic value due to commodity price movements and volatilities. 

7. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

Capital is comprised of the Company’s shareholders’ equity. As at March 31, 2013, the Company’s shareholders’ 
equity was $175,769 and there was no long term debt outstanding. The Company manages its capital structure to 
maximize its financial flexibility making adjustments to it in response to changes in economic conditions and the risk 
characteristics of the underlying assets and business opportunities. The Company does not presently utilize any 
quantitative measures to monitor its capital. 

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Company had no related party transactions during the years ended March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012. 
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WEDONA CAPITAL INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
MARCH 31, 2013 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
               
 

9. INCOME TAXES 

 March 31, 
2013 

March 31, 
2012 

Loss for the year $      (29,329) $     (66,373) 

Expected income tax recovery  $       (7,000)   $    (17,000) 
Change in statutory rates and other             (1,000)            2,000 
Permanent differences                     -            5,000 
Share issue costs                     -          (5,000) 
Change in unrecognized deductible temporary differences             8,000          15,000 

Total income tax recovery  $                 -     $               -            

The Canadian income tax rate declined during the year due to changes in the law that reduced corporate income tax 
rates in Canada. 

The significant components of the Company’s unrecorded deferred tax assets are as follows: 
 

 March 31, 
2013 

March 31, 
2012 

Deferred Tax Assets 
Share issue costs  $         5,000   $        7,000 
Non-capital losses available for future period             25,000           15,000 
           30,000           22,000 
Unrecognized deferred tax assets         (30,000)         (22,000) 

Net deferred tax assets  $               -     $               -           

The significant components of the Company’s unrecognized temporary differences and tax losses are as follows: 
 

 March 31, 
2013 

Expiry Date 
Range 

March 31, 
2012 

Expiry Date 
Range 

Temporary Differences     

Share issue costs $ 20,000 2035 – 2036   $ 29,000 2035 – 2036 

Non-capital losses available for future periods  99,000 2031 – 2033 $ 61,000 2031 – 2032 

Tax attributes are subject to review, and potential adjustment, by tax authorities. 

10. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO CASH FLOWS  

 There were no significant non-cash transactions for the year ended March 31, 2013. 

The significant non-cash transactions for the year ended March 31, 2012 were: 

a) the Company’s issuance of agent’s options in connection with its IPO (Note 5) 

b) the reallocation of $25,200 from deferred financing costs to capital stock 
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MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The management of ISIS LAB INC. is responsible for preparing the interim condensed consolidated
financial statements, the notes to the interim condensed consolidated financial statements and other
financial information contained in this interim report.

Management prepares the interim condensed consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards. The interim condensed consolidated financial statements
are considered by management to present fairly the management's financial position and results of
operations.

ISIS LAB INC., in fulfilling its responsibilities, has developed and maintains a system of internal
accounting controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that management assets are
safeguarded from loss or unauthorized use, and that the records are reliable for preparing the interim
condensed consolidated financial statements.

President and CEO
October 23, 2013
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ISIS LAB INC.
INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(unaudited)
(In Canadian dollars)

June 30, December 31,
2013 2012

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash $ 46,320 $ 68,681
Accounts receivable 10,000 -
Prepaid expenses 26,990 43,240
Due from a shareholder - 572

83,310 112,493

Note receivable  (Note 3) 492,803 393,570
Equipment  (Note 4) 20,081 20,911
Intangibles  (Note 5) 1,892,310 1,769,303

$ 2,488,504 $ 2,296,277

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  (Note 10) $ 600,901 $ 236,395
Demand loan payable  (Note 6) 100,000 100,000
Debentures payable  (Note 7) 532,399 50,000
Due to a shareholder  (Note 10) 10,373 -

1,243,673 386,395

GOING CONCERN  (Note 1)

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS  (Note 11)

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital 4,899,500 4,899,500
Contributed surplus 207,942 207,942
Warrants  (Note 7) 25,523 -
Deficit (3,888,134) (3,197,560)

1,244,831 1,909,882

$ 2,488,504 $ 2,296,277

See the accompanying notes to these interim condensed consolidated financial statements

Approved on behalf of the board:

(Daniel Kajouii) , Director (Tito Gandhi) , Director
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ISIS LAB INC.
INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF LOSS AND
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
For the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2013
(unaudited)
(In Canadian dollars)

3 months
ended June 30,

2013

3 months
ended June 30,

2012

6 months
ended June 30,

2013

6 months
ended June 30,

2012

REVENUE
Service fees $ 30,000 $ 30,000 $ 60,000 $ 60,000
License fees 15,000 - 15,000 -
Interest income 14,063 20,779 25,237 29,679

59,063 50,779 100,237 89,679

EXPENSES
Advertising and promotion 27,031 204,017 30,951 298,277
Depreciation of equipment 3,398 4,044 6,368 8,607
Amortization of intangibles 109,613 121,294 209,139 222,382
Foreign exchange loss (gain) 21,517 5,219 6,468 (34,946)
Interest and bank charges 32,101 341 48,815 789
Office 9,733 10,109 18,770 20,200
Professional fees 38,571 13,092 143,827 43,681
Rent 22,755 23,099 44,502 55,085
Salaries and related benefits 62,879 88,231 135,290 170,863
Subcontract 64,263 2,226 103,951 7,630
Telephone and utilities 10,757 13,532 21,844 24,733
Travel and accommodation 16,678 1,921 20,886 22,159

419,296 487,125 790,811 839,460

NET LOSS AND

COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE

PERIOD $ (360,233) $ (436,346) $ (690,574) $ (749,781)

Basic and diluted loss per share $ (0.02) $ (0.02) $ (0.03) $ (0.04)

Average weighted number of shares 23,897,251 21,786,868 23,897,251 21,061,230

See the accompanying notes to these interim condensed consolidated financial statements
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ISIS LAB INC.
INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
As at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012
(unaudited)
(In Canadian dollars)

Share capital Contributed
surplus

Warrants Deficit Total

Balance, December 31,
2011 $ 3,522,500 $ - $ - $ (1,454,958) $ 2,067,542
Loss for the period - - - (749,781) (749,781)
Issuance of shares 925,000 - - - 925,000

Balance, June 30, 2012 4,447,500 - - (2,204,739) 2,242,761

Loss for the period - - - (992,821) (992,821)
Issuance of shares 452,000 - - - 452,000
Issuance of options - 207,942 - - 207,942

Balance, December 31,
2012

4,899,500 207,942 - (3,197,560) 1,909,882

Loss for the period - - - (690,574) (690,574)
Issuance of warrants - - 25,523 - 25,523

Balance, June 30, 2013 $ 4,899,500 $ 207,942 $ 25,523 $ (3,888,134) $ 1,244,831

See the accompanying notes to these interim condensed consolidated financial statements
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ISIS LAB INC.
INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Six month period ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
(unaudited)
(In Canadian dollars)

2013 2012

Operating activities
Net loss $ (690,574) $ (749,781)
Adjustments for

Depreciation of equipment 6,368 8,607
Amortization of intangibles 209,139 222,382
Accrual of interest income (25,215) (29,679)
Accrual of interest on debentures 45,422 -

(454,860) (548,471)
Change in non-cash working capital items

Accounts receivable and note receivable (60,000) (60,000)
Prepaid expenses 16,250 3,015
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 364,506 17,596

(134,104) (587,860)

Investing activities
Purchase of equipment (5,538) -
Increase in note receivable (24,018) (12,668)
Investment in intangibles (332,146) (329,475)

(361,702) (342,143)

Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of share capital - 925,000
Debentures payable 462,500 -
Due to shareholders 10,945 (10,298)

473,445 914,702

Decrease in cash (22,361) (15,301)

Cash, beginning of year 68,681 137,318

Cash, end of year $ 46,320 $ 122,017

See the accompanying notes to these interim condensed consolidated financial statements
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ISIS LAB INC.
NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
JUNE  30, 2013
(unaudited)
(In Canadian dollars)

1. Nature of Operations and Going Concern

Isis Lab Inc. ("Isis" or "the Company") is a privately held company and was incorporated under the
Ontario Business Corporations Act on July 28, 2010. The Company holds 100% of the issued and
outstanding shares of Tech Channel Corporation (“Tech”), which was incorporated in Panama on
December 25, 2010. Isis is a developer of Internet bingo software packages and Tech provides
marketing and 24-7 telephone support services to the Company’s customers. The address of the
Company’s registered office is 964 Westport Crescent, Unit #6, Mississauga, Ontario, L5T 1S3.  The
Board of Directors approved these interim condensed consolidated financial statements on October
23, 2013.

These interim condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities and commitments
in the normal course of business. The Company has experienced negative cash flows from
operations since inception; it has a negative working capital of $1,160,363 and has an accumulated
deficit of $3,888,134 as of June 30, 2013. At June 30, 2013, the Company has only one customer
utilizing its software package and marketing and support services (notes 3 and 9). 

The Company has funded its activities to date almost exclusively from debt and equity financings.
The Company will continue to require substantial funds to continue its operations, including software
development, and to continue sales and marketing efforts. Management’s plans in order to meet its
operating cash flow requirements include financing activities such as equity financing through a
reverse takeover, and issuances of debt and convertible debt instruments.  

While the Company believes that it will be successful in obtaining the necessary financing to fund its
operations, meet revenue projections and manage costs, there are no assurances that such
additional funding will be achieved and that it will succeed in its future operations. The interim
condensed consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the
recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or amounts of liabilities that might be
necessary should the Company be unable to continue in existence.

These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue to operate in the
normal course of business.
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ISIS LAB INC.
NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
JUNE  30, 2013
(unaudited)
(In Canadian dollars)

2. Statement of Compliance and Significant Accounting Policies

These interim condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Accounting Standard 34 Interim Financial Reporting (“IAS 34”), under International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”), following the same accounting policies and methods of computation as the audited
consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012.  The interim
condensed consolidated financial statements do not include all of the disclosures included in the
annual audited consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included in the Company’s
annual report for the year ended December 31, 2012.

These interim condensed consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis
except for certain financial instruments, which have been measured at fair value. These interim
condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Tech. All inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated.

(a) Accounting standards effective in the current period

IFRS 10, 11, 12 and 13 are effective for the Company's current fiscal period.

IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, replaces the consolidation guidance in IAS 27,
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, and SIC-12, Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities, by introducing a single consolidation model for all entities based on control, irrespective of
the nature of the investee. 

IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, introduces new accounting requirements for joint arrangements,
replacing IAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures.  It eliminates the option of accounting for jointly
controlled entities by proportionate consolidation. 

IRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, requires enhanced disclosures about both
consolidated entities and unconsolidated entities in which an entity has involvement. 

IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, replaces the guidance on fair value measurement in existing
IFRS accounting literature with a single standard. It defines and provides guidance on determining
fair value and requires disclosures about fair value measurements, but does not change the
requirements regarding which items are measured or disclosed at fair value.

The adoption of these standards did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated
financial statements.

(b) Accounting standards effective in the period but no yet adopted

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement, issued in December 2009, effective
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015, with early adoption permitted, introduces
new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial instruments. Management
anticipates that this standard will be adopted in the Company's financial statements for the year
beginning January 1, 2015 and has not yet considered the potential impact of its adoption.
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ISIS LAB INC.
NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
JUNE  30, 2013
(unaudited)
(In Canadian dollars)

3. Note receivable

June 30,
2013

December 31,
2012

Balance, beginning of period $ 393,570 $ 279,912
Advances and additional accrued interest 49,233 149,057
Service fees charged 60,000 120,000
Repayments (10,000) (155,399)

Balance, end of period $ 492,803 $ 393,570

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company agreed to lend funds to its customer
Cladstone Limited (“Cladstone”) for an amount not exceeding an aggregate sum of 500,000 Great
Britain Pounds in any 12 month period to support Cladstone’s daily operations. This agreement
was subsequently terminated on September 12, 2013 (see note 11). The loan will become due
upon demand of the Company at such time that Cladstone is in a position of making sufficient
revenues to support its daily operations. 

The interest is calculated and accrued at an annual rate of 12%. Since the balance is not
expected to be repaid within 12 months, it is classified as a long term asset.

The Company also signed a software licence agreement and a service agreement with Cladstone.
The software license agreement grants Cladstone a non exclusive, non transferable licence for a
term of five years, from April 1, 2011.  The fee will be calculated based on the number of users.
The Company agreed to grant Cladstone a 24 month grace period on the fee.  $15,000 has been
billed and recognized from the license agreement for the three and six months ended June 30,
2013. The service agreement charges Cladstone a $10,000 monthly fee for a term of five years
from April 2011.  During the 3 and 6 month periods ended June 30, 2013, $30,000 and $60,000
was recognized from the service agreement, respectively ($30,000 and $60,000 for the three and
six month periods ended June 30, 2012).

4. Equipment

Cost
Accumulated
depreciation June 30, 2013

Net

December 31,
2012
Net

Vehicles $ 14,594 $ 9,463 $ 5,131 $ 4,540
Office equipment 5,125 3,872 1,253 1,786
Computer equipment 28,097 14,400 13,697 14,585

$ 47,816 $ 27,735 $ 20,081 $ 20,911

Depreciation expense charged to net loss for the 3 and 6 month periods ended June 30, 2013 was
$3,398 and $6,368 respectively ($4,044 and $8,607 for the 3 and 6 month periods ended June 30,
2012).
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ISIS LAB INC.
NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
JUNE  30, 2013
(unaudited)
(In Canadian dollars)

5. Intangibles

Cost
Accumulated
amortization June 30, 2013

Net

December 31,
2012
Net

Software $ 2,715,640 $ (823,330) $ 1,892,310 $ 1,769,303

The intangibles are the Company’s internally developed Internet bingo software with certain
supporting features. The balance consists of the $1,020,000 initial value paid to the three developers
at incorporation through the issuance of 7,045,363 common shares and additional direct costs
incurred by the Company subsequently, mainly the salaries paid to developers. Amortization expense
charged to net loss for the 3 and 6 month periods ended June 30, 2013 was $109,613 and $209,139
respectively ($121,294 and $222,382 for the 3 and 6 month periods ended June 30, 2012).

6. Demand Loan Payable

June 30,
2013

December 31,
2012

3% Demand Loan Payable $ 100,000 $ 100,000

On September 27, 2012 the Company received a loan in the amount of $100,000 from a
shareholder. The loan is unsecured, matures and will be due and payable on the date on which
common shares of the Company are listed and commence trading on any public stock exchange.
Interest is calculated at the rate of 3% per annum and payable on the maturity date.
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ISIS LAB INC.
NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
JUNE  30, 2013
(unaudited)
(In Canadian dollars)

7. Debentures payable and warrants

June 30,
2013

December 31,
2012

24% Debentures $ 532,399 $ 50,000

In the 3 and 6 month periods ended June 30, 2013 the Company issued non-convertible debentures
in the amount of $225,000 and $512,500 respectively. 

The securities form part of a larger offering of Units by the Company (the “Offering”). The maximum
Offering will result in gross proceeds to the Company of $1,000,000.  The Company may, at its
discretion, elect to complete the Offering for proceeds of less than $1,000,000.

Each Unit is comprised of a debenture (the “Debenture”) of the Company and common share
purchase warrants of the Company (the “Warrants”) at a rate of 1,000 Warrants for each $2,500 of
principal amount of the Debenture. The Debenture bears interest of 2% per month, with a minimum
of 3 months payable on the maturity date. The maturity date is the earlier of 2 years from the
debenture date or the closing of the Going Public Transaction for the Company.

The Company has recorded $27,180 and $40,422 of accrued interest on the debentures during the 3
and 6 month periods ended June 30, 2013, respectively ($nil for the 3 and 6 month periods ended
June 30, 2012). 

Warrants

The Company has issued Warrants as part of a debenture issue. The Warrants issued are as
follows:

June 30, 2013
Warrants

outstanding

June 30, 2013
Exercise

Price

December 31,
2012

Warrants
outstanding

December 31,
2012

Exercise
Price

Warrants 205,000 $ 0.25 - $ -

The following table summarizes the warrants outstanding and exercisable at June 30, 2013.
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ISIS LAB INC.
NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
JUNE  30, 2013
(unaudited)
(In Canadian dollars)

7. Debentures payable and warrants, continued

Warrants
issued

Exercise
Price

December 2014 20,000 $ 0.25
January 2015 30,000 0.25
February 2015 30,000 0.25
March 2015 30,000 0.25
April 2015 55,000 0.25
May 2015 10,000 0.25
June 2015 30,000 0.25

205,000

Each Warrant will entitle the holder to acquire one (1) common share of the Company within twenty-
four (24) months from the Closing Date and each Warrant will have an exercise price of $0.25 in the
first year from its date of issue and an exercise price of $0.30 in the second year from its date of
issue, or such other exercise price as may be required by the TSXV. 

Based on management's estimates, the Warrants have a value of $25,523.

The Warrants have been valued using the Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions:
Dividend rate - Nil%; Interest rate - 1.00%; Annualized volatility - 100%; Expected life of 1 year.
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ISIS LAB INC.
NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
JUNE  30, 2013
(unaudited)
(In Canadian dollars)

8. Financial risk factors

Fair Value

Fair value estimates of financial instruments are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant
information about financial markets and specific instruments. As these estimates are subjective in
nature, involving uncertainties and matters of significant judgment, they cannot be determined with
precision. Changes in assumptions can significantly affect estimated fair values. As of June 30, 2013
and December 31, 2012, the fair value of the Company's note receivable is not determinable given
the circumstances described in credit risk below. The carrying value is presented in the interim
condensed consolidated statement of financial position. The fair value of all the Company's other
financial Instruments approximate the carrying value, due to their short-term nature.

Financial Risk Factors

The Company is exposed in varying degrees to a variety of financial instrument related risks:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial Instrument will fall to discharge an obligation and
cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company's primary exposure to credit risk is in
its note receivable (notes 3 and 9) since it is due from Cladstone, a start-up company. In an effort to
mitigate this risk, management actively manages and monitors its receivables. No bad debts have
been recognized to date and it has been determined that no allowance is required as all amounts
outstanding are considered collectible.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises through the excess of financial obligations over available financial assets due at
any point in time. The Company has reported a negative working capital of $1,160,363 and $273,902
as at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 respectively. The Company manages its liquidity risk
through the management of its capital which incorporates the continuous monitoring of actual and
projected cash flows to ensure that it has sufficient liquidity to meet its operating commitments
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.

Foreign currency risk

The Company's functional currency is the Canadian dollar. The Company holds a note receivable
denominated in U.K. pound sterling (note 3) and also funds certain operations, and administrative
expenses in the Isle of Man and in Panama on a cash call basis using the U.K. pound sterling and
US dollar converted from its Canadian dollar bank accounts held in Canada. The Company does not
hedge its foreign exchange risk. 

Sensitivity Analysis

A plus or minus 5% change in foreign exchange rates applied to the financial instruments held at the
end of the reporting period would effect net loss by approximately $7,300 (2012 - $5,650).
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ISIS LAB INC.
NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
JUNE  30, 2013
(unaudited)
(In Canadian dollars)

9. Economic dependence

For the 3 and 6 month periods ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company’s service fee, license
fee and interest income were generated from its only customer – Cladstone, which currently requires
financial support from the Company for its operations (note 3). 

10. Related party transactions and balances

Related parties include the Board of Directors, key management personnel, close family members
and enterprises which are controlled by these individuals as well as certain persons performing
similar functions.

Remuneration of key management personnel of the Company was $45,000 and $90,000 for the 3
and 6 month periods ended June 30, 2013, respectively ($45,000 and $90,000 for the 3 and 6 month
periods ended June 30, 2012). The amount was fully capitalized under intangibles.

The Company had the following related party balances:

June 30,
2013

December 31,
2012

Amount due to officers $ 142,709 $ 97,706
Due to a shareholder 10,373 -

$ 153,082 $ 97,706
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ISIS LAB INC.
NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
JUNE  30, 2013
(unaudited)
(In Canadian dollars)

11. Subsequent events

a) On December 14, 2012, and by amendment on March 13, 2013, Wedona Capital Inc. (“Wedona”)
(TSX-V:WCI.P), a Capital Pool Company listed on the TSX Venture Exchange (the “TSXV”) entered
into a Letter of Intent with Isis pursuant to which Wedona has agreed, subject to certain conditions, to
acquire Isis as its Qualifying Transaction under the policies of the TSXV (the “Transaction”).  The
Transaction is an arm’s length transaction and will not be subject to approval of the shareholders of
Wedona although the approval of the shareholders of Wedona may be requested to elect a new
board of directors and to change the name of Wedona.  Upon completion thereof, it is expected that
the Company will be a Tier 2 Technology Issuer.

Pursuant to the letter of intent, Wedona has agreed to offer to acquire all of the issued and
outstanding securities of Isis in exchange for an aggregate of 24,933,333 common shares in the
capital of Wedona (“Wedona Shares”).  As part of the Transaction, current holders of escrowed
common shares of Wedona shall sell all 2,000,000 of such escrowed shares (the “Seed Shares”) at a
price of $0.075 per share to certain principals of Isis who will be directors or officers of the Company
on closing of the Qualifying Transaction, subject to the approval of the TSXV.  It is expected that on
completion of the Transaction the shareholders of Isis shall own approximately 85% of the issued
and outstanding shares of the resulting company including the shares to be issued on the exercise of
the outstanding options and warrants issued by Wedona (but excluding the shares and warrants to
be issued pursuant to the Financing, as hereinafter defined and excluding the transferred Seed
Shares).

Wedona, Isis and 2377678 Ontario Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Wedona ("Wedona Subco"),
entered into an amalgamation agreement on June 28, 2013, and by amendment on August 31, 2013,
to effect the Transaction by an amalgamation of Isis and Wedona Subco. The amalgamation
agreement provides for the completion of the transaction by no later than November 22, 2013 or such
later date mutually agreed to by Wedona and Isis (the "Closing Date"). The amalgamation agreement
provides for conditions precedent that are standard for a transaction of this nature, including receipt,
by both Isis and Wedona, as required, of all regulatory, board and third party approvals including
TSXV approval. It will also be a condition precedent of the Transaction that Wedona shall have
completed on or before the Closing Date a prospectus offering of units of Wedona with each unit
comprised of one Wedona share and one-half of one common share purchase warrant exercisable
for two years at $0.45 per share, at an effective price per unit not less than $0.30 per Wedona unit to
raise not less than $3,000,000, subject to approval of the TSXV and securities regulatory authorities
(collectively, the “Financing”).

b) Subsequent to June 30, 2013 the Company issued additional debenture units (note 7) for an
aggregate principal amount of $340,000.

c) On August 15, 2013, the repayment date of the $100,000 demand loan payable (note 6) was
postponed for 18 months in the event that Isis raises less than $5,000,000 in connection with the
Wedona Financing transaction.

d) On August 27, 2013, the maturity date of Debentures in the amount of $225,000 was postponed
for 18 months and the interest rate will be amended from 2% per month to 0.25% per month following
the closing date in the event that Isis raises less than $4,500,000 in connection with the Wedona
Financing transaction.
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ISIS LAB INC.
NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
JUNE  30, 2013
(unaudited)
(In Canadian dollars)

11. Subsequent events, continued

e) On August 27, 2013, the due date of the Accounts payable in the amount of $135,838 was
postponed for 18 months in the event that Isis raises less than $5,000,000 in connection with the
Wedona Financing transaction.

f) On August 30, 2013, the maturity date of Debentures in the amount of $170,000 was postponed for
18 months and the interest rate will be amended from 2% per month to 0.25% per month following
the closing datein the event that Isis raises less than $4,500,000 in connection with the Wedona
Financing transaction.

g) On September 4, 2013 Isis borrowed $25,000 from Wedona. The amount is unsecured and non-
interest bearing and is due on June 28, 2014.

h) On September 9, 2013, the due date of Accounts payable in the amount of $90,000 was
postponed for 18 months in the event that Isis raises less than $4,500,000 in connection with the
Wedona Financing transaction.

i) On September 12, 2013 the loan agreement between Isis and Cladstone was terminated. The
outstanding balance is due on demand. This termination does not affect other agreements entered
into between the Isis and Cladstone.
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Shareholders of 
ISIS Lab Inc. 

 
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of ISIS Lab Inc., which comprise 
the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 and the 
consolidated  statements of loss and comprehensive loss, changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows, 
for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 and the period from July 28, 2010 (date of 
incorporation) to December 31, 2010, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"), and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 
We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audits to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 



 

 

 
Opinion 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of ISIS Lab Inc. as at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, and its financial performance and its 
cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 and the period from July 28, 2010 (date of 
incorporation) to December 31, 2010, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 
 
Emphasis of matter 
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2 in the consolidated financial statements 
which indicates that the Company incurred a net loss of $1,742,602 during the year ended December 31, 
2012 and, as at that date, the Company has an accumulated deficit of $3,197,560. These conditions, along 
with other matters as set forth in Note 2, indicate the existence of material uncertainty that may cast 
significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The consolidated financial 
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. 

  

 Chartered Accountants 
 Licensed Public Accountants 

Toronto, Ontario 
October 23, 2013 
 



 

Approved by the Board 
 
Signed “Daniel Kajouii”                                 Signed “Tito Gandhi” 

  

Daniel Kajouii, director Tito Gandhi, director 
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ISIS Lab Inc. 
 

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 
As at December 31 

(in Canadian dollars) 
 

  2012   2011   2010  
  

Assets 

Current assets 

Cash  $ 68,681  $ 137,318  $ 106,816  

Prepaids and other receivables (note 4)  43,240   38,485   69,714  

Due from shareholders (note 5)  572   -   -  
  

  112,493   175,803   176,530  

Note receivable (note 6)  393,570   279,912   -  

Equipment (note 7)  20,911   18,741   3,729  

Intangibles (note 8)  1,769,303   1,693,856   1,321,029  
  

 $ 2,296,277  $ 2,168,312  $ 1,501,288  
  

Liabilities 

Current liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities (note 16) $ 236,395  $ 100,561  $ 25,917  

Demand loans payable (note 9)  100,000   -   -  

Debenture advances (notes 10 and 17)  50,000   -   -  

Due to shareholders (note 5)  -   209   209  
  

  386,395   100,770   26,126  

Deferred tax liability (note 12)  -   -   163,401  
  

  386,395   100,770   189,527  
  

Shareholders' equity 

Share capital (note 11)  4,899,500   3,522,500   1,620,000  

Contributed surplus (note 11)  207,942   -   -  

Deficit  (3,197,560)   (1,454,958)   (308,239)  
  

  1,909,882   2,067,542   1,311,761  
  

 $ 2,296,277  $ 2,168,312  $ 1,501,288  
  

Going concern (note 2) 

Subsequent events (note 17) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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ISIS Lab Inc. 
 

Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss 
(in Canadian dollars)   
 

   July 28, 2010 
   (date of 
 Year Ended Year Ended incorporation) 
 December 31, December 31, to December 31, 
  2012   2011   2010  
  

Revenue 

Service fee $ 120,000  $ 90,000  $ -  

Interest income  44,734   21,212   -  
  

  164,734   111,212   -  
  

Expenses 

Advertising and promotion  382,083   480,704   364  

Salaries and related benefits  476,164   203,489   4,560  

Subcontract  268,665   132,379   53,631  

Rent  97,883   129,908   21,719  

Professional fees  136,312   87,069   34,983  

Travel  27,726   79,645   24,511  

Office  59,683   52,796   3,765  

Telephone and utilities  29,924   20,734   827  

Foreign exchange loss  10,100   13,326   -  

Interest and bank charges  1,667   2,906   478  

Amortization of intangibles  413,801   200,385   -  

Depreciation of equipment  3,328   17,991   -  
  

  1,907,336   1,421,332   144,838  
  

Loss before income tax recovery (expense)  (1,742,602)   (1,310,120)   (144,838)  

Deferred tax recovery (expense)  -   163,401   (163,401)  
  

Net loss and comprehensive loss 
 for the year  $ (1,742,602)  $ (1,146,719)  $ (308,239)  

  

Loss per share 
Basic and diluted $ (0.08)  $ (0.07)  $ (0.03)  

  

Weighted average number of common 
shares outstanding 
Basic and diluted  22,127,889   15,885,799   9,644,426  

  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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ISIS Lab Inc. 
 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity 
For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and period ended December 31, 2010 

(in Canadian dollars) 
 

  Contributed 

 Share Capital Surplus Deficit Total 
  

Balance, at incorporation, July 28, 2010 $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  

Loss for the period  -   -   (308,239)   (308,239)  

Issuance of shares  1,620,000   -   -   1,620,000  
  

Balance, December 31, 2010  1,620,000   -   (308,239)   1,311,761  

Loss for the year  -   -   (1,146,719)   (1,146,719)  

Issuance of shares  1,902,500   -   -   1,902,500  
  

Balance, December 31, 2011  3,522,500   -   (1,454,958)   2,067,542  

Loss for the year  -   -   (1,742,602)   (1,742,602)  

Issuance of shares  1,377,000   -   -   1,377,000  

Issuance of options  -   207,942   -   207,942  
  

Balance, December 31, 2012 $ 4,899,500  $ 207,942  $ (3,197,560)  $ 1,909,882  
  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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ISIS Lab Inc. 
 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
(in Canadian dollars) 
 

   July 28, 2010 
   (date of 
 Year Ended Year Ended incorporation) 
 December 31, December 31, to December 31, 
  2012   2011   2010  
  

Cash flow from operating activities 

Net loss for the year $ (1,742,602)  $ (1,146,719)  $ (308,239)  

Items not affecting cash 

Deferred income tax (recovery) expense  -   (163,401)   163,401  

Amortization of intangibles  413,801   200,385   -  

Depreciation of equipment  3,328   17,991   -  

Stock-based compensation  207,942   -   -  

Accrual of interest income  (44,734)   (21,212)   -  
   

  (1,162,265)   (1,112,956)   (144,838)  

Change in non-cash working capital 

(Increase) decrease in prepaids and  
  other receivables  (4,755)   31,229   (69,714)  

Increase in accounts payable and  

  accrued liabilities  135,834   74,644   25,917  
  

  (1,031,186)   (1,007,083)   (188,635)  
  

Cash flow from investing activities 

Intangibles  (489,248)   (573,212)   (301,029)  

Advances under note receivable  (68,924)   (258,700)   -  

Purchase of equipment  (5,498)   (33,003)   (3,729)  
  

  (563,670)   (864,915)   (304,758)  
  

Cash flow from financing activities 

Issuance of share capital  1,377,000   1,902,500   600,000  

Shareholder advances  (781)   -   209  

Advances under loans payable  100,000   -   -  

Debenture advances  50,000   -   -  
  

  1,526,219   1,902,500   600,209  
  

(Decrease) increase in cash  (68,637)   30,502   106,816  

Cash, beginning of year  137,318   106,816   -  
  

Cash, end of year $ 68,681  $ 137,318  $ 106,816  
  

 
No interest or income taxes have been paid during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the 
period ended December 31, 2010. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 

(in Canadian dollars) 
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1. Nature of Operations  
 

ISIS Lab Inc. ("Isis" or "the Company") is a privately held company and was incorporated under the 
Ontario Business Corporations Act on July 28, 2010. The Company holds 100% of the issued and 
outstanding shares of Tech Channel Corporation (“Tech”), which was incorporated in Panama on 
December 25, 2010. Isis is a developer of internet bingo software packages and Tech provides 
marketing and 24-7 telephone support services to the Company’s customers. The address of the 
Company’s registered office is 964 Westport Crescent, Unit #6, Mississauga, Ontario, L5T 1S3.  
The Board of Directors approved these consolidated financial statements on October 23, 2013. 

2. Basis of Presentation and Going Concern  
 

 These consolidated financial statements are prepared by the Company in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board ("IASB"). These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a 
historical cost basis with the exception of certain financial instruments that are measured at fair 
value. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for 
assets. 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which 
contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities and commitments in the 
normal course of business. The Company has experienced negative cash flows from operations since 
inception; it has negative working capital of $273,902 and has an accumulated deficit of $3,197,560 
as of December 31, 2012. At December 31, 2012, the Company has only one customer utilizing its 
software package and marketing and support services (Notes 6 and 15). 

The Company has funded its activities to date exclusively from equity financings and issuance of 
loans and debentures. It will continue to require substantial funds to continue its operations, 
including software development, and to continue sales and marketing efforts. Management’s plans in 
order to meet its operating cash flow requirements include financing activities such as equity 
financing through a reverse takeover, and issuances of debt and convertible debt instruments. 

While the Company believes that it will be successful in obtaining the necessary financing to fund its 
operations, meet revenue projections and manage costs, there are no assurances that such additional 
funding will be achieved and that it will succeed in its future operations. The consolidated financial 
statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded 
asset amounts or amounts of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to 
continue in existence. 

These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue to operate in the 
normal course of business. 



ISIS Lab Inc. 
 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 

(in Canadian dollars) 
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3. Significant Accounting Policies  
 

The significant accounting policies used are as follows: 

 (a) Use of estimates 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. By their nature, these estimates are subject to 
measurement uncertainty. Actual results could differ from these estimates. The effect of 
changes in such estimates on the financial statements in future periods could be significant.  
Accounts specifically affected by estimates in these consolidated financial statements are: 

Useful lives and residual values of intangibles: Management estimates the useful lives and 
residual values to calculate amortization expense using the declining balance method. 

Allowance for impairment of note receivable: Management assesses the credit worthiness and 
the financial position of the borrower to arrive at and provide for an allowance for impairment 
of receivables. 

Estimated impairment of long-term assets: Management reviews long-term assets’ residual 
values and useful lives at the end of each reporting period and writes down the asset’s carrying 
amount to its estimated recoverable amount if the carrying amount is greater. 

 (b) Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly 
owned subsidiary, Tech.  All inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated. 

 (c) Financial instruments 

The Company’s financial instruments are comprised of the following: 

Financial assets: Classification 

Cash Loans and receivables 

Other receivable and note receivable Loans and receivables 

Due from shareholders Loans and receivables 

Financial liabilities: Classification 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Other financial liabilities 

Due to shareholders  Other financial liabilities 

Demand loans payable Other financial liabilities 

Debentures payable Other financial liabilities 
 



ISIS Lab Inc. 
 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 

(in Canadian dollars) 
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3. Significant Accounting Policies - continued  
 

 (c) Financial instruments - continued 

Loans and receivables:  

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. Such assets are initially recognized at fair value plus any directly 
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition loans and receivables are 
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. 
Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term 
receivables for which recognizing interest would be immaterial. 

Other financial liabilities:  

Other financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value net of any directly attributable 
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition these financial liabilities are measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest method is a method of 
calculating the amortized cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest and any 
transaction costs over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial instrument 
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.  Other financial liabilities are derecognized 
when the obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. 

Impairment of financial assets:  

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. 
Financial assets are impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more 
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future cash 
flows of the assets have been negatively impacted. 

Evidence of impairment could include:  

• significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or 

• default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or 

• it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or re-organization. 

The carrying amount of financial assets is reduced by any impairment loss directly for all 
financial assets with the exception of accounts receivable, where the carrying amount is reduced 
through the use of an allowance account. When an account receivable is considered 
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts 
previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying 
amount of the allowance account are recognized in income for the period. 

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be 
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously 
recognized impairment loss is reversed through income for the period to the extent that the 
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the 
amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized. 
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3. Significant Accounting Policies - continued  
 

 (d) Equipment 

Equipment is recorded at cost.  The Company provides for depreciation using the following 
methods at rates designed to depreciate the cost of the equipment over their estimated useful 
lives.  The annual depreciation rates and methods are as follows: 

Vehicles 30% declining balance 

Office equipment 20% declining balance 

Computer equipment 30% declining balance 

 (e) Development costs and intangible assets 

Certain costs incurred in connection with the development of the software platform are 
capitalized to intangible assets. Intangible assets are recorded at cost, which consists of directly 
attributable costs necessary to create such intangible assets, less accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any.  The costs mainly include the salaries paid to the 
software developers. These costs are recognized as intangible assets when the following criteria 
are met: 

• It is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use; 

• Management intends to complete the software product; 

• It can be demonstrated how the software product will generate future economic benefits; 

• Adequate technical, financial, and other resources to complete the development and to use 
 of sell the software products are available; and 

• The expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably 
 measured. 

The Company provides for amortization using the following method at a rate designed to 
amortize the cost of the intangible assets over their estimated useful lives.  The annual 
amortization rate and method is as follows: 

Software 20% - 25% declining balance 

 (f) Research costs 

Internally generated expenditure on research activities is recognized in profit or loss as an 
expense in the period in which they are incurred since such costs do not meet the criteria for 
capitalization listed in Note 3 (e) above.  
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3. Significant Accounting Policies - continued  
 

 (g) Impairment of non-financial assets 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its 
non-financial assets with finite lives to determine whether there is any indication that those 
assets have suffered an impairment loss. Where such an indication exists, the recoverable 
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss. The 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell or its value in use.  Fair 
value is determined as the amount that would be obtained from the sale of the asset in an arm’s 
length transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset.  If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the 
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount and the impairment loss is 
recognized in the income for the period. 

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset increased to 
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does 
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been 
recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized 
immediately in income for the period. 

The Company has assessed the assets of all its operating entities and has determined that there is 
no impairment of its non-financial assets. 

 (h) Income taxes 

Income tax on the net income (loss) for the periods presented comprises current and deferred 
tax. Income tax is recognized in the consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is 
recognized in equity. 

Current tax expense is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax 
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, adjusted for 
amendments to tax payable with regards to previous years. 

Deferred tax is provided using the asset and liability method, providing for temporary 
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are 
not provided for: goodwill not deductible for tax purposes; the initial recognition of assets or 
liabilities that affect neither accounting or taxable income; nor differences relating to 
investments to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The 
amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of 
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at 
the end of each financial reporting period. 
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3. Significant Accounting Policies - continued  
 

 (h) Income taxes - continued 

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
income will be available against which the asset can be utilized. To the extent that the Company 
does not consider it probable that a deferred tax asset will be recovered, it provides a valuation 
allowance. 

 (i) Investment tax credits 

The Company is entitled to certain Canadian investment tax credits for qualifying research and 
development activities performed in Canada.  The Company records investment tax credits 
when qualifying expenditures have been made provided there is reasonable assurance that the 
credits will be realized.  The amount of investment tax credits recorded can vary, based on 
estimates of future taxable income.  These credits can be applied against income tax liabilities 
and are subject to a 20-year carry-forward period or, in some cases, are refundable.  Accrued 
investment tax credits are accounted for as a reduction of the related expenditures for items 
expensed in profit or loss or a reduction of the related asset’s cost for items capitalized in the 
consolidated statements of financial position.  

 (j) Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to 
the customer, which is at the time service has been rendered; the amount of revenue can be 
measured reliably; and the receipt of economic benefits is probable. 

 (k) Functional and reporting currency 

The functional and reporting currency of the Company and the Company’s foreign subsidiary, 
as determined by management, is the Canadian Dollar. For the purpose of the consolidated 
financial statements, the results and financial position are expressed in Canadian Dollars. 

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the functional 
currency using the average exchange rates of the reporting period. Foreign exchange gains and 
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the period end exchange rates are 
recognized in the consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss. Non-monetary items 
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. 

 (l) Loss per share 

Loss per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding 
during the period.  Diluted earnings per share is computed, using the treasury stock method, to 
show the potential reduction in earnings per share that would occur if securities or other 
contracts to issue common shares were exercised or converted to common shares.   
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3. Significant Accounting Policies - continued  
 

 (m) Share-based payments 

The Company uses the fair value method whereby the Company recognizes compensation costs 
for the granting of all stock options and direct awards of stock based on their fair value over the 
period of vesting using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Any consideration paid by the 
option holders to purchase shares is credited to capital stock. 

 (n) Accounting standards effective in the current period but not yet adopted 

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement, issued in December 2009, 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015, with early adoption 
permitted, introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial 
instruments. Management anticipates that this standard will be adopted in the Company's 
financial statements for the year beginning January 1, 2015 and has not yet considered the 
potential impact of its adoption. 

IFRS 10, 11, 12 and 13 were all issued in May 2011 and are effective for annual periods 
beginning January 1, 2013, with early adoption allowed.  The Company has not yet considered 
the potential impact, if any, of the adoption of these standards. 

IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, replaces the consolidation guidance in IAS 27, 
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, and SIC-12, Consolidation - Special Purpose 
Entities, by introducing a single consolidation model for all entities based on control, 
irrespective of the nature of the investee.  

IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, introduces new accounting requirements for joint arrangements, 
replacing IAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures.  It eliminates the option of accounting for jointly 
controlled entities by proportionate consolidation.  

IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, requires enhanced disclosures about both 
consolidated entities and unconsolidated entities in which an entity has involvement.  

IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, replaces the guidance on fair value measurement in existing 
IFRS accounting literature with a single standard. It defines and provides guidance on 
determining fair value and requires disclosures about fair value measurements, but does not 
change the requirements regarding which items are measured or disclosed at fair value. 

4. Prepaid and Other Receivables  
 

 December 31, December 31, December 31, 
  2012   2011   2010  
  

Prepaid and other receivables $ 20,519  $ 8,558  $ 32,259  

Harmonized sales tax receivable  22,721   29,927   37,455  
  

 $ 43,240  $ 38,485  $ 69,714  
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5. Due from (to) Shareholders  
 

The amount due from (to) shareholders is non-interest bearing and due on demand.  Since there is 
no formal repayment arrangement in effect, this amount has been classified as a current asset and 
liability in the accompanying financial statements. 

6. Note Receivable  
 

   July 28, 2010 
   (date of 
 Year Ended Year Ended incorporation) 
 December 31, December 31, to December 31, 
  2012   2011   2010  
  

Balance, beginning of year $ 279,912  $ -  $ -  

Advances  149,057   299,594   -  

Service fee charged  120,000   90,000   -  

Repayments  (155,399)   (109,682)   -  
  

Balance, end of year $ 393,570  $ 279,912  $ -  
  

During the year 2011, the Company agreed to lend funds to its customer Cladstone Limited 
(“Cladstone”) for an amount not exceeding an aggregate sum of 500,000 Great Britain Pounds in any 
12 month period to support Cladstone’s daily operations. The loan will become due upon demand of 
the Company at such time that Cladstone is in a position of making sufficient revenues to support its 
daily operations.  

The interest is calculated and accrued at an annual rate of 12%. Since the balance is not expected to 
be repaid within 12 months, it is classified as a long-term asset. 

The Company also signed a software licence agreement and a service agreement with Cladstone. The 
software license agreement grants Cladstone a non-exclusive, non-transferable licence for a term of 
five years, from April 1, 2011.  The fee will be calculated based on the number of users.  The 
Company agreed to grant Cladstone a 24 month grace period on the fee.  No revenue has been 
recognized from the license agreement. The service agreement charges Cladstone a $10,000 monthly 
fee for a term of five years from April 2011.  During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, 
and the period ended December 31, 2010, $120,000, $90,000 and $Nil was recognized as revenue, 
respectively. 
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7. Equipment  
 

 Office Computer 
 Vehicle equipment equipment Total 

 

Cost 

Balance, July 28, 2010 $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  

Additions  -   -   3,729   3,729  
 

Balance, December 31,  
  2010  -   -   3,729   3,729  

Additions  14,594   4,076   14,333   33,003  
 

Balance, December 31,  
  2011  14,594   4,076   18,062   36,732  

Additions  -   -   5,498   5,498  
 

Balance, December 31, 
  2012 $ 14,594  $ 4,076  $ 23,560  $ 42,230  

 

Accumulated depreciation 
  and impairment 

Balance, July 28, 2010 $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  

Additions  -   -   -   -  
 

Balance, December 31, 2010  -   -   -   -  

Additions  9,285   1,987   6,719   17,991  
 

Balance, December 31, 2011  9,285   1,987   6,719   17,991  

Additions  769   303   2,256   3,328  
 

Balance, December 31, 2012 $ 10,054  $ 2,290  $ 8,975  $ 21,319  
 

Net book value 

July 28, 2010 $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  
 

December 31, 2010 $ -  $ -  $ 3,729  $ 3,729  
 

December 31, 2011 $ 5,309  $ 2,089  $ 11,343  $ 18,741  
 

December 31, 2012 $ 4,540  $ 1,786  $ 14,585  $ 20,911  
 

Depreciation expense charged to net loss for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the 
period ended December 31, 2010 was $3,328, $17,991 and $Nil respectively. 
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8. Intangibles  
 

 December 31,  December 31, 
  2011  Additions  2012  
 

Cost $ 1,894,241  $ 489,248  $ 2,383,489  

Accumulated amortization  200,385   413,801   614,186  
 

Net book value $ 1,693,856  $ 75,447  $ 1,769,303  
 

 
 

 December 31,  December 31, 
  2010  Additions  2011  
 

Cost $ 1,321,029  $ 573,212  $ 1,894,241  

Accumulated amortization  -   200,385   200,385  
 

Net book value $ 1,321,029  $ 372,827  $ 1,693,856  
 

 
 

 July 28,  December 31, 
  2010  Additions  2010  
 

Cost $ -  $ 1,321,029  $ 1,321,029  
 

Net book value $ -  $ 1,321,029  $ 1,321,029  
 

The intangibles are the Company’s internally developed internet bingo software with certain 
supporting features. The balance consists of the $1,020,000 initial value paid to the three developers 
(Note 11) at incorporation through the issuance of 7,045,363 common shares. As well as additional 
direct costs incurred by the Company subsequently, mainly the salaries paid to developers. 
Amortization expense charged to net loss for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the 
period ended December 31, 2010 was $413,801, $200,385 and $Nil, respectively. 
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9. Demand Loans Payable  
 

 December 31, December 31, December 31, 
  2012   2011   2010  
  

3% Demand loan  $ 100,000  $ -  $ -  
  

On September 27, 2012, the Company received a loan in the amount of $100,000 from a shareholder. 
The loan is unsecured, matures and will be due and payable on the date on which the common shares 
of the Company are listed and commence trading on any public stock exchange. Interest is calculated 
at the rate of 3% per annum and payable on the maturity date. 

10. Debenture Advances  
 

In December 2012, the Company received $50,000 in advances from lenders to be applied against 
subscriptions to the Company's offering of non-convertible debenture units (Note 17). 

The advances are unsecured, mature and will be due and payable on the date on which the common 
shares of the Company are listed and commence trading on any public stock exchange.  Interest is 
calculated at the rate of 24% per annum and payable on the maturity date. 
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11. Share Capital  
 

 Authorized 

 Unlimited common shares without par value 

 Issued and outstanding common shares 
 

 Number of 
 Shares Amount 
  

Balance, July 28, 2010  -  $ -  

Issuance of common shares (i)  4,144,332   600,000  

Issuance of common shares (ii)  7,045,363   1,020,000  
  

Balance, December 31, 2010  11,189,695   1,620,000  

Issuance of common shares (iii)  7,951,936   1,902,500  
  

Balance, December 31, 2011  19,141,631   3,522,500  

Issuance of common shares (iv)  4,755,620   1,377,000  
  

Balance, December 31, 2012  23,897,251  $ 4,899,500  
  

(i) During the period ended December 31, 2010, 4,144,322 common shares were issued to 
shareholders at $0.145 per share. 

(ii) During the period ended December 31, 2010, 7,045,363 common shares were issued to three 
software developers at $0.145 per share for the software under development they contributed to 
the Company as an intangible asset (Note 8). 

(iii) During the year ended December 31, 2011, 2,762,888 common shares were issued to 
shareholders at $0.145 per share and an additional 5,189,048 common shares were issued to 
shareholders at $0.290 per share. 

(iv) During the year ended December 31, 2012, 4,755,620 common shares were issued to 
shareholders at $0.290 per share. 

Stock Split 

On January 29, 2013, the Company split the existing common shares at a ratio of 1:6.9072189 (Note 
17(b)).  All share and per share information, including options, on the consolidated financial 
statements and in the notes to the consolidated financial statements have been retroactively adjusted 
to reflect the stock split. 
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11. Share Capital - continued  
 

Stock options 

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company issued stock options to certain consultants.  
The options are exercisable at any time within the earlier of i) 2 years from the grant date, or ii) the 
time that the Company's shares are listed on a public stock exchange. 

 
 

  2012   2011  
  

Contributed surplus $ 207,942  $ -  
  

 
 
 

  Weighted 
  average 
 Number exercise price 

  

Outstanding December 31, 2011 and 2010  -  $ -  
Options issued  1,036,082   0.10  
  

Outstanding December 31, 2012  1,036,082  $ 0.10  
  

 
 

   Weighted average 
 Range of exercise Number exercisable Remaining contractual Weighted average 
 Price and outstanding Life Exercise price 

 

 $ 0.10   1,036,082   1.75  $ 0.10  
 

The following assumptions were used for the Black-Scholes valuation of the stock options issued 
during the year ended December 31, 2012: 

Risk-free interest rate  2% 

Expected life of options  120 days 

Annualized volatility  50% 

Stock Price   $0.30 

Dividend Rate   0% 
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12. Income Taxes  
 

The following table reconciles the expected income tax recovery at the Canadian Federal and 
Provincial statutory rate of 15.50% (2011 - 15.50%, 2010 - 15.50%) to the amount recognized in the 
consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss. 

 

  July 28, 2012 
   (date of 
 Year Ended Year Ended incorporation) 
 December 31, December 31, to December 31, 
  2012   2011   2010  
  

Loss before income taxes $ (1,742,602)  $ (1,310,120)  $ (144,838)  
  

Expected income tax recovery $ (270,100)  $ (203,069)  $ (22,450)  

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses  180   3,395   161,490  

Tax rate changes $ (50,200)   -   -  

Tax effect of experimental development  -   -   (46,015)  

Difference in foreign tax rates and deferred 
tax rates  7,210   (932)   70,265  

Increase in unrecognized deductible 
temporary differences  312,910   37,205   111  

  

Income tax expense - deferred $ -  $ (163,401)  $ 163,401  
  

 
 December 31, December 31, December 31, 
  2012   2011   2010  
  

Deferred income tax assets 

Canadian non-capital losses carried forward $ 614,180  $ 1,119,624  $ 98,951  

Deferred income tax liabilities 

Intangibles  614,180   1,119,624   262,352  
  

Net deferred income tax liabilities $ -  $ -  $ 163,401  
  

Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset where they related to income taxes levied by the 
same taxation authority and the Company has the legal right and intent to offset.  
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12. Income Taxes - continued  
 

Unrecognized deferred tax assets 

Deferred income taxes are provided as a result of temporary differences that arise due to the 
differences between the income tax values and the carrying amount of assets and liabilities.  
Deferred income tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the following deductible 
temporary differences: 

 

 December 31, December 31, December 31, 
  2012   2011   2010  
  

Non-capital income tax losses $ 2,308,640  $ 139,276  $ -  
  

The gross Canadian non-capital income tax losses are $1,694,460 as at December 31, 2012. They 
will expire between 2030 and 2032. Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of these 
items because it is not probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the 
Company can utilize benefits there from. 
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13. Capital Disclosures  
 

The Company's objective when managing capital is to ensure its ability to meet operating 
commitments as they become due and to provide a return for shareholders. This is achieved 
primarily by continuously monitoring its actual and projected cash flows and making adjustments to 
capital as necessary. The Company will continue to require substantial funds to continue its 
operations, including software development, and to continue sales and marketing efforts. 
Management’s plans in order to meet its operating cash flow requirements include financing 
activities such as equity financing through a reverse takeover, and issuances of debt and convertible 
debt instruments. 

Management includes the following items in its definition of capital: 
 

 December 31, December 31, December 31, 
  2012   2011   2010  
  

Share capital $ 4,899,500  $ 3,522,500  $ 1,620,000  

Contributed surplus  207,942   -   -  

Deficit  (3,197,560)   (1,454,958)   (308,239)  
  

 $ 1,909,882  $ 2,067,542  $ 1,311,761  
  

14. Financial Instruments 
 

Fair Value 

Fair value estimates of financial instruments are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant 
information about financial markets and specific instruments. As these estimates are subjective in 
nature, involving uncertainties and matters of significant judgment, they cannot be determined with 
precision. Changes in assumptions can significantly affect estimated fair values. As of December 31, 
2012, 2011 and 2010, the fair value of the Company's note receivable is not determinable given the 
circumstances described in credit risk below. The carrying value was presented in the consolidated 
statement of financial position. The fair value of all the Company's other financial instruments 
approximate the carrying value, due to their short-term nature. 

Financial Risk Factors 

The Company is exposed in varying degrees to a variety of financial instrument related risks:  

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and 
cause the other party to incur a financial loss.  The Company’s primary exposure to credit risk is in 
its note receivable (Notes 6 and 15) since it is due from Cladstone, a start-up company.  In an effort 
to mitigate this risk, management actively manages and monitors its receivables.  No bad debts have 
been recognized to date and it has been determined that no allowance is required as all amounts 
outstanding are considered collectible.  
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14. Financial Instruments - continued 
 

Financial Risk Factors - continued 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk arises through the excess of financial obligations over available financial assets due at 
any point in time.  The Company has reported a negative working capital of $273,902, and low 
working capital of $75,033 and $150,404 respectively as at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.  
The Company manages its liquidity risk through the management of its capital which incorporates 
the continuous monitoring of actual and projected cash flows to ensure that it has sufficient liquidity 
to meet its operating commitments without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the 
Company’s reputation. 

15. Economic Dependence  
 

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company’s service fee and interest income 
were generated from its only customer – Cladstone, which currently requires financial support from 
the Company for its operations (Note 6).   

16. Related Party Transactions and Balances  
 

Related parties include the Board of Directors, key management personnel, close family members 
and enterprises which are controlled by these individuals as well as certain persons performing 
similar functions. 

Remuneration of key management personnel of the Company was as follows: 
 

   July 28, 2010 
   (date of 
 Year Ended Year Ended incorporation) 
 December 31, December 31, to December 31, 
  2012   2011   2010  
  

Consulting fees 

Fully capitalized under intangibles $ 180,000  $ 178,500  $ 90,000  
  

The Company had the following related party balances: 
 

 December 31, December 31, December 31, 
  2012   2011   2010  
  

Amount due to an officer 

- for expense reimbursement $ 97,706  $ 45,340  $ 11,611  
  

This balance is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities. 
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17. Subsequent Events  
 

Subsequent to the year end the following transactions occurred: 

a) On December 14, 2012 and by an amendment dated on March 13, 2013, Wedona Capital Inc. 
("Wedona") (TSX-V:WCI.P), a Capital Pool Company listed on the TSX Venture Exchange (the 
"TSXV"), entered into a Letter of Intent with Isis pursuant to which Wedona has agreed, subject 
to certain conditions, to acquire Isis as its Qualifying Transaction under the policies of the TSXV 
(the "Transaction"). The Transaction is an arm’s length transaction and will not be subject to 
approval of the shareholders of Wedona although the approval of the shareholders of Wedona 
may be requested to elect a new Board of Directors and to change the name of Wedona. Upon 
completion thereof, it is expected that the Company will be a Tier 2 Technology Issuer. 

Pursuant to the Letter of Intent, Wedona has agreed to offer to acquire all of the issued and 
outstanding securities of Isis in exchange for an aggregate of 24,933,333 common shares in the 
capital of Wedona ("Wedona Shares").  As part of the Transaction, current holders of escrowed 
common shares of Wedona shall sell all 2,000,000 of such escrowed shares (the "Seed Shares") at 
a price of $0.075 per share to certain principals of Isis who will be directors or officers of the 
Company on closing of the Transaction, subject to the approval of the TSXV. It is expected that 
on completion of the Transaction the shareholders of Isis shall own approximately 85% of the 
issued and outstanding shares of the resulting company including the shares to be issued on the 
exercise of the outstanding options and warrants issued by Wedona (but excluding the shares and 
warrants to be issued pursuant to the Financing, as hereinafter defined and excluding the 
transferred Seed Shares). 

Wedona, Isis and 2377678 Ontario Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Wedona ("Wedona 
Subco"), entered into an amalgamation agreement on June 28, 2013, and by amendment on 
August 31, 2013, to effect the Transaction by an amalgamation of Isis and Wedona Subco.  The 
amalgamation agreement provides for the completion of the Transaction by no later than 
November 22, 2013 or such later date mutually agreed to by Wedona and Isis (the "Closing 
Date"). The amalgamation agreement provides for conditions precedent that are standard for a 
transaction of this nature, including receipt, by both Isis and Wedona, as required, of all 
regulatory, board and third party approvals including TSXV approval. It will also be a condition 
precedent of the Transaction that Wedona shall have completed on or before the Closing Date a 
prospectus offering of units of Wedona with each unit comprised of one Wedona share and 
one-half of one common share purchase warrant exercisable for two years at $0.45 per share, at 
an effective price per unit not less than $0.30 per Wedona unit to raise not less than $3,000,000, 
subject to approval of the TSXV and securities regulatory authorities (collectively, the 
"Financing"). 

b) On January 29, 2013, in anticipation of completing the Transaction on the basis of the 
shareholders of the Company receiving one common share of Wedona for each common share of 
the Company ("Common Shares") held, the Company split the existing common shares at a ratio 
of 1:6.9072189 ("Split Ratio"). Outstanding stock options were also adjusted by the Split Ratio 
and the respective exercise price was adjusted accordingly. The issued and outstanding common 
shares of the Company have been increased from 3,459,750 Common Shares to 23,897,251 
Common Shares. All shares and per share information in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements and notes to the consolidated financial statements have been retroactively 
adjusted to reflect the stock split. 
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17. Subsequent Events - continued  
 

c) Subsequent to the year-end, the Company issued non-convertible debenture units for an aggregate 
principal amount of $852,500 of which $50,000 was received prior to year end (Note 10). 

The securities form part of a larger offering by the Company (the "Offering"). The maximum 
Offering will result in gross proceeds to the Company of $1,000,000. The Company may, at its 
discretion, elect to complete the Offering for proceeds of less than $1,000,000. 

Each Unit is comprised of a debenture (the "Debenture") of the Company and common share 
purchase warrants of the Company (the "Warrants") at a rate of 1,000 Warrants for each $2,500 
of principal amount of the Debenture. The Debenture bears interest of 2% per month, with a 
minimum of 3 months payable on the maturity date. The maturity date is the earlier of 2 years 
from the debenture date or the closing of a Going Public Transaction for the Company.  

Each Warrant will entitle the holder to acquire one (1) common share of the Company and will 
have an exercise price of $0.25 in the first year from its date of issue and thereafter at an exercise 
price of $0.30 until expiry or such other exercise price as may be required by the TSXV.  The 
warrants expire on the earlier of December 31, 2015 and two years from the date of completion of 
a Going Public Transaction for the Company. 

d) On August 15, 2013, the repayment date of the $100,000 demand loan payable (note 9) was 
postponed for 18 months in the event that Isis raises less than $5,000,000 in connection with the 
Wedona Financing transaction. 

e) On August 27, 2013, the maturity date of Debentures in the amount of $225,000 was postponed 
for 18 months and the interest rate will be amended from 2% per month to 0.25% per month 
following the closing date in the event that Isis raises less than $4,500,000 in connection with the 
Wedona Financing transaction. 

f) On August 27, 2013, the due date of the Accounts payable in the amount of $45,047 was 
postponed for 18 months in the event that Isis raises less than $5,000,000 in connection with the 
Wedona Financing transaction. 

g) On August 30, 2013, the maturity date of Debentures in the amount of $170,000 was postponed 
for 18 months and the interest rate will be amended from 2% per month to 0.25% per month 
following the closing date in the event that Isis raises less than $4,500,000 in connection with the 
Wedona Financing transaction. 

h) On September 4, 2013 Isis borrowed $25,000 from Wedona. The amount is unsecured and 
non-interest bearing and is due on June 28, 2014. 

i) On September 9, 2013, the due date of Accounts payable in the amount of $15,000 was 
postponed for 18 months in the event that Isis raises less than $4,500,000 in connection with the 
Wedona Financing transaction. 

j) On September 12, 2013 the loan agreement between Isis and Cladstone was terminated. The 
outstanding balance is due on demand. This termination does not affect other agreements entered 
into between the Isis and Cladstone. 
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SCHEDULE “A”
WEDONA CAPITAL INC.

AUDIT COMMITTEE'S CHARTER



WEDONA CAPITAL CORPORATION
AUDIT COMMITTEE'S CHARTER

(For Venture Issuers)

(Adopted by the Board of Directors on March 1, 2011)

A. PURPOSE

The overall purpose of the Audit Committee (the "Committee") of Wedona Capital Inc. (the "Company") is
to ensure that the Company's management has designed and implemented an effective system of internal
financial controls, to review and report on the integrity of the consolidated financial statements and related
financial disclosure of the Company, and to review the Company's compliance with regulatory and
statutory requirements as they relate to financial statements, taxation matters and disclosure of financial
information. It is the intention of the Board that through the involvement of the Committee, the external
audit will be conducted independently of the Company’s Management to ensure that the independent
auditors serve the interests of Shareholders rather than the interests of Management of the Company. The
Committee will act as a liaison to provide better communication between the Board and the external
auditors. The Committee will monitor the independence and performance of the Company’s independent
auditors.

B. COMPOSITION, PROCEDURES AND ORGANIZATION

(1) The Committee shall consist of at least three members of the Board of Directors (the
"Board").

(2) The Board, at its organizational meeting held in conjunction with each annual general
meeting of the shareholders, shall appoint the members of the Committee for the ensuing
year. The Board may at any time remove or replace any member of the Committee and may
fill any vacancy in the Committee.

(3) Unless the Board shall have appointed a chair of the Committee, the members of the
Committee shall elect a chair and a secretary from among their number.

(4) The quorum for meetings shall be a majority of the members of the Committee, present in
person or by telephone or other telecommunication device that permits all persons
participating in the meeting to speak and to hear each other.

(5) The Committee shall have access to such officers and employees of the Company and to the
Company's external auditors, and to such information respecting the Company, as it
considers to be necessary or advisable in order to perform its duties and responsibilities.

(6) Meetings of the Committee shall be conducted as follows:

(a) the Committee shall meet at least four times annually at such times and at such
locations as may be requested by the chair of the Committee. The external auditors or
any member of the Committee may request a meeting of the Committee;

(b) the external auditors shall receive notice of and have the right to attend all meetings of
the Committee; and

(c) management representatives may be invited to attend all meetings except private
sessions with the external auditors.

(7) The internal auditors and the external auditors shall have a direct line of communication to the
Committee through its chair and may bypass management if deemed necessary. The
Committee, through its chair, may contact directly any employee in the Company as it deems



necessary, and any employee may bring before the Committee any matter involving
questionable, illegal or improper financial practices or transactions.

C. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

(1) The overall duties and responsibilities of the Committee shall be as follows:

(a) to assist the Board in the discharge of its responsibilities relating to the Company's
accounting principles, reporting practices and internal controls and its approval of the
Company's annual and quarterly consolidated financial statements and related financial
disclosure;

(b) to establish and maintain a direct line of communication with the Company's internal
and external auditors and assess their performance;

(c) to ensure that the management of the Company has designed, implemented and is
maintaining an effective system of internal financial controls; and

(d) to report regularly to the Board on the fulfilment of its duties and responsibilities.

(2) The duties and responsibilities of the Committee as they relate to the external auditors shall
be as follows:

(a) to recommend to the Board a firm of external auditors to be engaged by the Company,
and to verify the independence of such external auditors;

(b) to review and approve the fee, scope and timing of the audit and other related services
rendered by the external auditors;

(c) review the audit plan of the external auditors prior to the commencement of the audit;

(d) to review with the external auditors, upon completion of their audit:

(i) contents of their report;

(ii) scope and quality of the audit work performed;

(iii) adequacy of the Company’s personnel during the audit;

(iv) co-operation received from the Company's personnel during the audit;

(v) internal resources used;

(vi) significant transactions outside of the normal business of the Company;

(vii) significant proposed adjustments and recommendations for improving internal
accounting controls, accounting principles or management systems; and

(viii) the non-audit services provided by the external auditors;

(e) to discuss with the external auditors the quality and not just the acceptability of the
Company's accounting principles; and

(f) to implement structures and procedures to ensure that the Committee meets the
external auditors on a regular basis in the absence of management.



(3) The duties and responsibilities of the Committee as they relate to the internal auditors are to:

(a) Periodically review the internal audit function with respect to the organization, staffing
and effectiveness of the internal audit department;

(b) review and approve the internal audit plan;

(c) review significant internal audit findings and recommendations, and management’s
response thereto.

(4) The duties and responsibilities of the Committee as they relate to the internal control
procedures of the Company are to:

(a) review the appropriateness and effectiveness of the Company's policies and business
practices which impact on the financial integrity of the Company, including those
relating to internal auditing, insurance, accounting, information services and systems
and financial controls, management reporting and risk management;

(b) review compliance under the Company's business conduct and ethics policies and to
periodically review these policies and recommend to the Board changes which the
Committee may deem appropriate;

(c) review any unresolved issues between management and the external auditors that could
affect the financial reporting or internal controls of the Company; and

(d) periodically review the Company's financial and auditing procedures and the extent to
which recommendations made by the internal audit staff or by the external auditors
have been implemented.

(5) The Committee is also charged with the responsibility to:

(a) review the Company's quarterly statements of earnings, including the impact of
unusual items and changes in accounting principles and estimates and report to the
Board with respect thereto;

(b) review and approve the financial sections of:

(i) the annual report to Shareholders;

(ii) the annual information form, if required;

(iii) annual and interim MD&A;

(iv) prospectuses;

(v) news releases discussing financial results of the Company; and

(vi) other public reports of a financial nature requiring approval by the Board, and
report to the Board with respect thereto;

(c) review regulatory filings and decisions as they relate to the Company's consolidated
financial statements;

(d) review the appropriateness of the policies and procedures used in the preparation of the
Company's consolidated financial statements and other required disclosure documents,
and consider recommendations for any material change to such policies;



(e) review and report on the integrity of the Company's consolidated financial statements;

(f) review the minutes of any audit committee meeting of subsidiary companies;

(g) review with management, the external auditors and, if necessary, with legal counsel,
any litigation, claim or other contingency, including tax assessments that could have a
material effect upon the financial position or operating results of the Company and the
manner in which such matters have been disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements;

(h) review the Company's compliance with regulatory and statutory requirements as they
relate to financial statements, tax matters and disclosure of financial information; and

(i) develop a calendar of activities to be undertaken by the Committee for each ensuing
year and to submit the calendar in the appropriate format to the Board of Directors
following each annual general meeting of shareholders.

(6) The Committee shall have the authority:

(a) to engage independent counsel and other advisors as it determines necessary to carry out
its duties,

(b) to set and pay the compensation for any advisors employed by the Committee; and

(c) to communicate directly with the internal and external auditors.


